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Developing Resilience
in the 21st Century

Strategic Framework

Whiria nga whenu o nga papa,
honoa ki te maurua taukiuki

Bind together the strands of each mat and join
together with the seams of respect and reciprocity

Open to new ideas, new people and new ways of doing things - a city where anything is possible

Beingopen,
transparent and
democratically
accountable

Promoting

equity, valuing
diversity and
fostering inclusion

Taking an inter-generational approach Actively collaborating and
to sustainable development, co-operating with other
prioritising the social, economic Building on the Ensuring local, regional
and cultural wellbeing of relationship with the diversity and national
people and communities Te Rinanga o Ngai Tahu and interests of organisations
and the quality of the and the Te Hononga-Council our communities

environment, now Papatipu Runanga partnership, across the city and the

and into the reflecting mutual understanding district are reflected in

future and respect decision-making

Community Outcomes

Resilient communities

Strong sense of community
Active participation in civic life
Safe and healthy communities

Celebration of our identity
through arts, culture, heritage,
sport and recreation

Valuing the voices of all cultures
and ages (including children)

Liveable city
Vibrant and thriving city centre

Sustainable suburban and
rural centres

A well connected and accessible
city promoting active and
public transport

Sufficient supply of, and
access to, a range of housing

21st century garden city
we are proud to live in

Healthy environment
Healthy water bodies
High quality drinking water

Unique landscapes and
indigenous biodiversity are
valued and stewardship
exercised

Sustainable use of resources
and minimising waste

Prosperous economy

Great place for people, business
and investment

An inclusive, equitable economy
with broad-based prosperity
forall

A productive, adaptive and
resilient economic base

Modern and robust city
infrastructure and community
facilities

Enabling active Meeting the challenge Ensuring a high quality Accelerating the Ensuring rates are
and connected of climate change drinking water supply momentum affordable and
communities through every means that is safe and the city needs sustainable
to own their future available sustainable

Ensuring we get core business done while delivering on our Strategic Priorities and achieving our Community Outcomes

Engagement with
the community and
partners

Strategies, Plans and

Strategic Priorities

Partnerships

Long Term Plan
and Annual Plan

Our service delivery
approach

Monitoring and
reporting on our
progress
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FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE - TERMS OF REFERENCE NGA
ARAHINA MAHINGA

Chair Councillor MacDonald

Deputy Chair Councillor Coker

Membership The Mayor and all Councillors

Quorum Half of the members if the number of members (including vacancies) is even,
or a majority of members if the number of members (including vacancies) is
odd

Meeting Cycle | Monthly

Reports To Council

Delegations

The Council delegates to the Finance and Performance Committee authority to oversee and make
decisions on:

Capital Programme and operational expenditure

e Monitoring the delivery of the Council’s Capital Programme and associated operational expenditure,
including inquiring into any material discrepancies from planned expenditure.

e Asmay be necessary from time to time, approving amendments to the Capital Programme outside
the Long-Term Plan or Annual Plan processes.

e Approving Capital Programme business and investment cases, and any associated operational
expenditure, as agreed in the Council’s Long-Term Plan.

e Approving any capital or other carry forward requests and the use of operating surpluses as the case
may be.

e Approving the procurement plans (where applicable), preferred supplier, and contracts for all capital
expenditure where the value of the contract exceeds $15 Million (noting that the Committee may sub
delegate authority for approval of the preferred supplier and /or contract to the Chief Executive
provided the procurement plan strategy is followed).

e Approving the procurement plans (where applicable), preferred supplier, and contracts, for all
operational expenditure where the value of the contract exceeds $10 Million (noting that the
Committee may sub delegate authority for approval of the preferred supplier and/or contract to the
Chief Executive provided the procurement plan strategy is followed).

Non-financial performance

e Reviewing the delivery of services under s17A.

¢ Amending levels of service targets, unless the decision is precluded under section 97 of the Local
Government Act 2002.

e Exercising all of the Council's powers under section 17A of the Local Government Act 2002, relating to
service delivery reviews and decisions not to undertake a review.

Council Controlled Organisations
e Monitoring the financial and non-financial performance of the Council and Council Controlled
Organisations.
e Making governance decisions related to Council Controlled Organisations under sections 65 to 72 of
the Local Government Act 2002.
e Exercising the Council’s powers directly as the shareholder, or through CCHL, or in respect of an
entity (within the meaning of section 6(1) of the Local Government Act 2002) in relation to -
o (without limitation) the modification of constitutions and/or trust deeds, and other
governance arrangements, granting shareholder approval of major transactions, appointing
directors or trustees, and approving policies related to Council Controlled Organisations; and
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o inrelation to the approval of Statements of Intent and their modification (if any).

Development Contributions
e Exercising all of the Council's powers in relation to development contributions, other than those
delegated to the Chief Executive and Council officers as set out in the Council's Delegations Register.

Property
e Purchasing or disposing of property where required for the delivery of the Capital Programme, in

accordance with the Council’s Long-Term Plan, and where those acquisitions or disposals have not
been delegated to another decision-making body of the Council or staff.

Loans and debt write-offs
e Approving debt write-offs where those debt write-offs are not delegated to staff.
e Approving amendments to loans, in accordance with the Council’s Long-Term Plan.

Insurance

e Allinsurance matters, including considering legal advice from the Council’s legal and other advisers,
approving further actions relating to the issues, and authorising the taking of formal actions (Sub-
delegated to the Insurance Subcommittee as per the Subcommittees Terms of Reference)

Annual Plan and Long Term Plan

e Provides oversight and monitors development of the Long Term Plan (LTP) and Annual Plan.

e Approves the appointment of the Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson of the External Advisory
Group for the LTP 2021-31.

Submissions

e The Council delegates to the Committee authority:

e Toconsider and approve draft submissions on behalf of the Council on topics within its terms of
reference. Where the timing of a consultation does not allow for consideration of a draft submission
by the Council or relevant Committee, that the draft submission can be considered and approved on
behalf of the Council.

Limitations

e The general delegations to this Committee exclude any specific decision-making powers that are
delegated to a Community Board, another Committee of Council or Joint Committee. Delegations to
staff are set out in the delegations register.

e The Council retains the authority to adopt policies, strategies and bylaws.

The following matters are prohibited from being subdelegated in accordance with LGA 2002 Schedule 7

Clause 32(1) :

e the powerto make arate; or

e the powerto make a bylaw; or

e the power to borrow money, or purchase or dispose of assets, other than in accordance with the
long-term plan; or

e the powerto adopt a long-term plan, annual plan, or annual report; or

e the powerto appoint a chief executive; or

e the power to adopt policies required to be adopted and consulted on under this Act in association
with the long-term plan or developed for the purpose of the local governance statement; or

e the power to adopt a remuneration and employment policy.

Chairperson may refer urgent matters to the Council
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As may be necessary from time to time, the Committee Chairperson is authorised to refer urgent matters

to the Council for decision, where this Committee would ordinarily have considered the matter. In order

to exercise this authority:

e The Committee Advisor must inform the Chairperson in writing the reasons why the referral is
necessary

e The Chairperson must then respond to the Committee Advisor in writing with their decision.

e Ifthe Chairperson agrees to refer the report to the Council, the Council may then assume decision
making authority for that specific report.

Urgent matters referred from the Council

As may be necessary from time to time, the Mayor is authorised to refer urgent matters to this Committee
for decision, where the Council would ordinarily have considered the matter, except for those matters
listed in the limitations above.

In order to exercise this authority:

e The Council Secretary must inform the Mayor and Chief Executive in writing the reasons why the
referral is necessary

e The Mayor and Chief Executive must then respond to the Council Secretary in writing with their
decision.

If the Mayor and Chief Executive agrees to refer the report to the Committee, the Committee may then
assume decision-making authority for that specific report.
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PartA Matters Requiring a Council Decision
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Karakia TImMatanga ...cccccviiuireiineciniieiineciesiresiacrescsestasssssssessassssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssess 7
C 1. Apologies Nga Whakapaha .....ccccccereeirncinncnnineciaeciescsessaecsescsesssecsessssssssssessanses 7
B 2. Declarations of Interest Nga Whakapuaki Aronga.......cccceeeteecrecrecraecreccaecsnccnens 7
C 3. Confirmation of Previous Minutes Te Whakaae o te hui o mua......ccccceeevecreecnenns 7
B 4. PublicForum Te HUiNnga WNhanUi ....cccccivieniinncinnineniaeciesisestacsesssessasssesssessascsens 7
B 5. Deputations by Appointment Nga Huinga Whakaritenga.......cccccceeruecrncneccaecnnns 7
B 6. Presentation of Petitions Nga Pakikitanga .....cc.cccecuccreireninncinninennncrencaecnaccnens 7

STAFF REPORTS

W N W W

C

7.
8.
9.

10.
11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Key Organisational Performance Results - February 2023 ........cccccectuecnennnncnens 17
Financial Performance Report - February 2023 .......cccccceceeceecencenceecsececcsocencens 33
Capital Programme Performance Report February 2023 .........cccceeccrecnnecnnecennes 41
Development Contributions Rebate Schemes .......cccceeceeieniencnncenceecececencencees 91
Christchurch Foundation - Annual Report 2021/22 and Half Year Report for

the six months ending 31 December 2022. .......cccccecvviinecincresineciencaesssecsoscansns 103
Council-controlled organisations - Half year performance reports for the

six months ending 31 December 2022........cccccverncrniineciaceessacsescaesssecsoscansns 145
Venues Otautahi - Half year performance report and interim financial
statements for the six months ending 31 December 2022.......c.cccceerecnecnecnenes 207
Christchurch City Holdings Ltd - Half year report and financial statements

for the Group for the period 1 July-31 December 2022 ......cccceeuvecrecececececencens 231
Appointment of elected members to the boards of ChristchurchNzZ

Holdings Ltd, Venues Otautahi and Civic Building Ltd ...........ceeeeeeeereenennnnnnnee. 329
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Karakia Timatanga
Whakataka Te hau ki Te uru

Whakataka Te hau ki Te tonga
Kia makinakina ki uta

Kia mataratara ki Tai

E hi ake ana te atakura

He tio, he huka, he hau hu
Tihei Mauri Ora

1. Apologies Nga Whakapaha

At the close of the agenda no apologies had been received.

2. Declarations of Interest Nga Whakapuaki Aronga

Members are reminded of the need to be vigilant and to stand aside from decision making when a
conflict arises between their role as an elected representative and any private or other external
interest they might have.

3. Confirmation of Previous Minutes Te Whakaae o te hui o mua
That the minutes of the Finance and Performance Committee meeting held on Wednesday, 22
February 2023 be confirmed (refer page 8).

4. Public Forum Te Huinga Whanui

A period of up to 30 minutes will be available for people to speak for up to five minutes on any issue
that is not the subject of a separate hearings process.

There were no public forum requests received at the time the agenda was prepared

5. Deputations by Appointment Nga Huinga Whakaritenga

Deputations may be heard on a matter or matters covered by a report on this agenda and approved
by the Chairperson.

There were no deputations by appointment at the time the agenda was prepared.

6. Presentation of Petitions Nga Pakikitanga

There were no petitions received at the time the agenda was prepared.

Page 7


../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=FPCO_20230222_MIN_8400.PDF
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=FPCO_20230222_MIN_8400.PDF

Finance and Performance Committee

22 March 2023

Christchurch

City Council -

Christchurch
City Council ww

Finance and Performance Committee

OPEN MINUTES

Date: Wednesday 22 February 2023

Time: 9.31am

Venue: Council Chambers, Civic Offices,
53 Hereford Street, Christchurch

Present

Chairperson
Deputy Chairperson
Members

Councillor Sam MacDonald

Councillor Melanie Coker

Mayor Phil Mauger

Councillor Kelly Barber

Councillor Pauline Cotter

Councillor Celeste Donovan

Councillor Tyrone Fields

Councillor James Gough

Councillor Tyla Harrison-Hunt - via audio/visual link
Councillor Victoria Henstock
Councillor Yani Johanson -via audio/visual link
Councillor Aaron Keown

Councillor Jake McLellan

Councillor Andrei Moore

Councillor Mark Peters

Councillor Tim Scandrett

Councillor Sara Templeton

Principal Advisor

Leah Scales

General Manager - Resources / CFO
Tel: 941 8999

Principal Advisor
Dawn Baxendale
Chief Executive
Tel: 941 8999

David Corlett

Committee and Hearings Advisor

941 5421

david.corlett@ccc.govt.nz

www.ccc.govt.nz
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To watch a recording of this meeting, or future meetings live, go to:
http://councillive.ccc.govt.nz/live-stream

To view copies of Agendas and Minutes, visit:
www.ccc.govt.nz/the-council/meetings-agendas-and-minutes/
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PartA Matters Requiring a Council Decision
PartB Reports for Information

PartC Decisions Under Delegation

Karakia Timatanga: Given by all Councillors
Whakataka Te hau ki Te uru

Whakataka Te hau ki Te tonga
Kia makinakina ki uta

Kia mataratara ki Tai

E hi ake ana te atakura

He tio, he huka, he hau hu
Tihei Mauri Or

The agenda was dealt with in the following order.

1. Apologies Nga Whakapaha

PartC
Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00001

That the apologies received from the Mayor for lateness , and Councillors MacDonald and Donovan

for partial absence be accepted.

Councillor Coker/Councillor Fields

The Mayor joined the meeting during the public excluded session.

2. Declarations of Interest Nga Whakapuaki Aronga

Carried

It was noted that Councillor Gough is a Director on the Board of Transwaste. (item.13)

3. Confirmation of Previous Minutes Te Whakaae o te hui o mua

PartC
Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00002

That the minutes of the Finance and Performance Committee meeting held on Wednesday, 30

November 2022 be confirmed.

Councillor MacDonald/Councillor Barber

Carried
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4. Public Forum Te Huinga Whanui

4.1 Geoffrey King

Geoffrey King spoke regarding the Organics Processing Plant, street works, recycling and
other matters.

Councillor Henstock left the meeting at 10.21am and returned at 10.24am during discussion on item 5.
Councillor Gough left the meeting at 9.56am and returned at 9.59am during discussion on item 5.
Councillor Moore left the meeting at 10.26am and returned at 10.29am during discussion on item 5.

5. Deputations by Appointment Nga Huinga Whakaritenga

5.1 FionaBennetts

Fiona Bennetts spoke (via audio/visual link) to her presentation (attached) regarding item 14.
Climate Emergency Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over how to Progress

Attachments
A Cycle lanes presentation

5.2 Allan Taunt

Allan Taunt spoke to his presentation (attached) regarding item 14. Climate Emergency
Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over how to Progress

Attachments
A Cycle lane presentation

5.3 DonBabe

Don Babe spoke on behalf of Spokes Canterbury (Inc.) regarding item 14. Climate Emergency
Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over how to Progress

5.4 CeliaHogan

Celia Hogan spoke to her presentation (attached) regarding item 14. Climate Emergency
Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over how to Progress.

Attachments
A Cycle Lanes: Wheels to Wings

5.5 David Duffy and Murray James

David Duffy and Murray James spoke on behalf of Richmond Residents & Business
Association regarding item 14. Climate Emergency Response Fund (Transport Choices) -
Decision over how to Progress
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5.6 Francis Johnson and Faye Brorens

Francis Johnson and Faye Brorens spoke on behalf of Extinction Rebellion regarding item 14.
Climate Emergency Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over how to Progress

6. Presentation of Petitions Nga Pakikitanga

PartB
There was no presentation of petitions.

7. Key Organisational Performance Results - January 2023

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00003 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receive the information in the Key Performance Results January 2023 report.
2. Note the changes to level of service targets to be amended within the current financial year.
Councillor MacDonald/Councillor Peters Carried

8. Financial Performance Report - January 2023
Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00004 Officer recommendations accepted without

change
PartC
That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receive the information in the Financial Performance Reports for January 2023, and
December 2022 (Attachment B).

2. That staff report on steps undertaken to recover the forecast deficit at the next meeting.

Councillor Templeton/Councillor Scandrett Carried

Councillor Donovan left the meeting at 10.52 and returned at 11.40am during discussion on item 13.

9. Capital Programme Performance Report for January 2023

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00005 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:
1. Receive the information in the Capital Programme Performance Report for January 2023.

Councillor Coker/Councillor Peters Carried

Item 3 - Minutes of Previous Meeting 22/02/2023

Page 12



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch g
22 March 2023 City Council -

10. Overdue General and Rates Debtors at 31 December 2022 (Greater than
$20,000 and 90 days)

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00006 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:
1. Receives the Overdue General and Rates Debtors (Greater than $20,000 and 90 days) report.
2. Notes the action being taken to recover the overdue amounts.

3. Resolves that a redacted copy of the report can be released after the Council has received the
report, but the names of the individuals and organisations will remain confidential.

Councillor MacDonald/Councillor Coker Carried

The meeting adjourned at 11.00am and reconvened at 11.23am

Councillor Coker assumed the Chair for items 12 and 13.
Councillors MacDonald, Gough, Donovan, and Mayor Mauger were not present after the adjournment.

12. ChristchurchNZ Holdings Ltd - Half year report for the six months ending
31 December 2022

Committee Comment

1. Therese Arseneau (Chair) and Alison Adams (Chief Executive) spoke to their presentation
(attached).

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00007 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receives ChristchurchNZ Holdings Ltd’s half year performance report for the period 1 July-
31 December 2022.

Councillor Templeton/Councillor Cotter Carried
Attachments

A ChristchurchNZ Half Year Report

Councillor Keown left the meeting at 11.53am and returned at 11.56am during discussion on item 13.
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13. Transwaste Canterbury Ltd - Annual Report 2021/22

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00008 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:
1. Notes the performance of Transwaste Canterbury Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Councillor Johanson/Councillor Peters Carried

The meeting adjourned at 12.02pm and reconvened at 2.03pm.
Councillor MacDonald returned to the Chair.
Mayor Mauger and Councillor Harrison-Hunt were not present after the adjournment.

11. Community Application to the Capital Endowment Fund

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00009 Officer recommendations accepted without
change

PartC

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Approves a grant of up to $50,000 from the 2022/2023 Capital Endowment Fund, to the
Central City Business Association, for the provision of roving security guards in Central City
Retail precinct, from February 1 to June 30 2023. Conditional upon:

a. All monies advanced to the Central City Business Association being repaid in full if the
current Council application for “Better Off Funding” for this purpose is successful.

2. Notes that if the Council’s application for “Better Off Funding” is unsuccessful the Council
has the opportunity to consider funding the Central City Business Association through the
2023/24 Annual Plan process.

3. Delegates to the Head of Community Support and Partnerships the authority to make the
necessary arrangements to fulfil resolution 1.

Councillor McLellan/Councillor Templeton Carried

Councillor Keown left the meeting at 2.40pm and returned at 2.43pm during discussion on item 14.

14. Climate Emergency Response Fund (Transport Choices) - Decision over
how to Progress

Secretarial note: Staff advised that a revised Attachment A and Attachment B (attached) along
with revised recommendations had been provided because staff have received more information
from Waka Kotahi in relation to when they want the design work completed.

The Committee firstly voted on recommendations 1,5,6 and after these carried voted on
recommendations 2,3,4 and 7 which were also carried.
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Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00010

1. Acknowledge the positive response from Waka Kotahi to the Council application for CERF
funded projects and notes the resourcing implications of adding additional projects to the
Transport Capital Programme, especially given the tight delivery timelines of June 2024.

4. Notes that staff will start work on the CERF projects in advance of the final adoption of the
2023/24 Annual Plan.

5. Approves the CERF programme and the projects as defined in Attachment A revised, be
determined as metropolitan significance.

Councillor Templeton/Councillor Cotter Carried

Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00011

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

2. Agree to accept eleven CERF projects (as defined in updated Attachment A revised) to the
transport capital programme as part of the draft 2023/24 Annual Plan, with a total additional
budget of $25,685,419.

3. Notes that three CERF projects will not be accepted - #72757 Southeast Orbital Cycle
Connection; #72761 Healthy Streets Linwood; #66291 PT-Bus Priority, Gloucester Street.

4. Delegates authority to sign the funding agreement between Council and Waka Kotahi for CERF
projects, in accordance with the final resolutions, to the Chief Executive Officer.

7. Approves that the 24 projects, with a total budget of $4,422,532 (as defined in Attachment B
revised), be deferred by one year to mitigate the delivery impact of the increased CERF
budget. This will be reflected and consulted on through the draft 2023/24 Annual Plan.

Councillor Templeton/Councillor Cotter Carried

Attachments
A Revised Attachment A
B  Revised Attachment B

Councillor Donovan requested that it be recorded that she does not support deferral of :
26601 - Major Cycleway - Otakaro-Avon Route (section 1) - Fitzgerald to Swans Road; and
45165 - New Brighton Public Realm Improvements.

Councillor Henstock requested that it be recorded that she supports the deferral of:
26611 and 2612 - Major Cycleway -Wheels to Wings Project.

Councillor Gough requested that it be recorded that he supports the deferral of :
26611 and 2612 - Major Cycleway -Wheels to Wings Project; and does not support deferral of
66406 - Glandovey-Idris Active Transport Improvements

Councillor Johanson abstained on the vote on 2,3,4 and 7 and requested that it be recorded that he did
not support the deferral or rephrasing of any of the projects, and supports all the CERF projects being
done.
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Councillor Coker left the meeting at 3.47pm.

15. Resolution to Exclude the Public
Committee Resolved FPC0/2023/00012

Part C

That at 3.48pm the resolution to exclude the public set out on pages 211 to 212 of the agenda be
adopted.

Councillor MacDonald/Councillor Cotter Carried

Councillor Johanson requested that his vote against the resolution be recorded.

The public were re-admitted to the meeting at 4.02pm.

Karakia Whakamutunga: Given by all councillors.
Kia whakairia te tapu

Kia watea ai te ara
Kia turuki whakataha ai
Kia turuki whakataha ai

Haumi e. Hui e. Taiki e

Meeting concluded at 4.03pm

CONFIRMED THIS 22nd DAY OF March 2023.

COUNCILLOR SAM MACDONALD
CHAIRPERSON

Page 16

Item 3 - Minutes of Previous Meeting 22/02/2023



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council w-

7. Key Organisational Performance Results - February 2023
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/143658

Report of / Te Pou Peter Ryan, Head of Corporate Planning & Performance
Matua: Peter.Ryan@ccc.govt.nz

General Manager / Lynn McClelland, Assistant Chief Executive Strategic Policy and
Pouwhakarae: Performance (lynn.mcclelland@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an overview of service, project and
budget performance, as adopted through the 2021-31 Long Term Plan (and Annual Plan
2022/23), against organisational performance targets.

The key organisational performance targets include:
1.1.1 Service delivery

1.1.2 Capital projects (both planning and delivery)
1.1.3 Finance

1.2 Management-initiated performance goals.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receive the information in the Key Performance Results February 2023 report.

3. Brief Summary

3.1 Organisational performance forecasts are as at the end of February 2023, for the second year
of the LTP 2021-31 (financial year to June 2023).

P Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Organisational Performance Summary Target Jchange  against Target

Service Delivery

Deliver Community Levels of Service to target 285% 86.0% ¥

Capital projects (planning and delivery)

Delivery complete’ milestones (whole of life)

Deliver Key projects =85% 86.2% <
Deliver Non-Key projects 285% 749% v
Capital programme planning

FY24 funding budgets allocated by 1* March 2023 290% 84.2% <
FY25 & 26 funding budgets drawn down by 1 May 2023 290% 69.9% «
Finance

Operational budgets are actively managed within approved opex budget 100% 100.0% <
Deliver overall capital programme to approved budget =/-10% -16.9% <

3.2 Level of service delivery is forecast at 86.0%, against a target of 85%.
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3.3  Key project delivery is forecast at 86.2%, while Non-Key project delivery is forecast at 74.9%
(both against a target of 85%). For more information refer to the Capital Programme
Performance Report.

Item 7

3.4  84.2% of FY2024 funding programme budgets have been allocated (projects initiated by 1%
March 2023) against a target of 90%. The capital Programme Management Office (PMO)
forecast is for this target to be met (noting that while this is an end-February forecast, at the
time of writing there were some outstanding adjustments and finalisations to be made that
PMO believe will move 84.2% to achieving target.)
3.5 69.9% of FY2025/FY2026 funding programme budgets have been drawn down (by 1* May
2023) against a target of 90%. The capital PMO forecast is also for this target to be met.
3.6  The organisation is forecasting a year-end operational surplus of $0.2m.
3.7 Forecast for capital expenditure is presently at -16.9%, outside ELT’s target range. In line with
the ELT target, this forecast includes core and externally funded work, but excludes Te Kaha
and Parakiore.
Service delivery
ELT Goal: Deliver 85% Community Levels of Service to target
Community Level of Service Delivery
W00% 2022/23  #LOS R/A/G/B
fre v’ 86.0% 214 5/24/185/0

\_\._‘-—3‘6-0% ' o
- Red: Will not meet target

- Amber: Requires remedial action

85%
80%

. - Green: Will meet target
5% Jun-22
79.8%

@ o > 20

- Black: Not reported

4.1 Community levels of service (LOS) is forecast 86.0% delivery against the performance target of
85%, declining marginally from January 2023 forecast (86.4%) reporting to Committee.

4.2 Comments and remedial actions from managers for LOS exceptions are available in
Attachment A.

4.3 Amongst the LOS exceptions are a number relating to residents satisfaction. Results from the
Residents Survey 2021/22 were presented to Council at the meeting of 9 June 2022. Included
with the results were responses from Heads of Service, providing an interpretation of the
results and details of actions to be taken to improve or maintain resident service satisfaction.
As part of the 9 June meeting Council asked for a 6-month update, which was compiled and
presented to Council at the meeting of 30 November 2022.

4.4 Transport activity has a number of exceptions related to road and footpath condition,
resurfacing, including resident satisfaction, transport mode-share and safety.

4.5 Water Supply activity is impacted by leakage rates and water quality issues.

4.6 Impacts are also noticeable in some regulatory services, from increases in consent volumes
leading to delays in consent processing. Extensive effort around recruitment, contracting and
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process improvement initiatives have been underway for some time to provide the additional
capacity needed.

4.7 Performance management and reporting activity exceptions relate to date and processing
timeline adjustments potentially impacting quality and timeliness of reporting to
management and to Committee.

4.8 The scatter diagram below is an overview of the performance of the top-ten activities.
e The vertical y-axis shows service delivery (LOS) performance.

e The horizontal x-axis shows budget over/underspend.

Level of Service Delivery vs Net Cost % Variance by Activity
Top Ten Activities by Actual Net Cost - February 2023
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Performance by Activity Table - Forecast February 2023

Community Levels

Net Cost * (Opex) of Service

Activities Full Year Full Year Plan Carry Fwd **Variance % Variance after

Actual $000 $000 $000  after C/Fwd C/Fwd % Delivery Total #
Water Supply 15,257 12,700 0 -2,557 -20% 81% 16
Wastewater Collection, Treatment and Disposal 0 0 0 0 0% 91% 11
Stormwater Drainage 9,848 8,201 0 -1,647 -20% 100% 10
Flood Protection and Control Works 0 0 0 0 0% 100% 5
Strategic Planning and Policy 0 0 0 0 0% 88% 17
Economic Development 15,275 15,285 0 10 0% 100% 15
Transport 0 0 0 0 0% 44% 18
Solid Waste and Resource Recovery 0 0 0 0 0% 88% 8
Regulatory and Compliance -4,273 -5,450 0 -1,177 -22% 86% 28
Parks, Heritage and Coastal Environment 36,595 36,726 130 1 0% 79% 24
Housing -11,219 -10,915 0 304 3% 100% 5
Governance 0 0 0 0 0% 80% 5
Citizens and Customer Services 0 0 0 0 0% 88% 8
Civil Defence Emergency Management 1,179 1,154 0 -25 -2% 100% 4
Community Development and Facilities 19,520 20,102 485 97 0% 100% 5
Christchurch Art Gallery 6,310 6,327 79 -62 -1% 100% 6
Canterbury and Akaroa Museums 0 0 0 0 0% 100% 5
Libraries 25,465 25,643 20 158 1% 100% 10
Recreation, Sports, Community Arts and Events 0 0 0 0 0% 100% 9
Performance Management and Reporting 0 0 0 0 0% 60% 5
Net Cost 113,957 109,773 714 -4,898 -4% 0.0% 214

*Net Cost - excludes depreciation, corporate overheads and interest.
** Negative variance means overspend or under-recovery

5. Capital projects - delivery and planning
ELT Goal: Deliver 85% Key capital projects to ‘delivery complete’ milestones

ELT Goal: Deliver 85% non-Key capital projects to ‘delivery complete’
milestones

5.1 Key project delivery is forecast at 86.2% delivery against the target of 85%. 25 of the 29
identified key projects are forecast to meet milestone baseline target date at year-end.

5.2 Non-Key project milestone delivery is forecast at 74.9% delivery against the target of 85%.

5.3 Supply chain delays, construction price escalation remain a concern nationwide and remain
risks to the delivery of the Council’s capital programme.

5.4  For further information and underlying detail, refer to the detailed Capital Programme
Performance Report for February 2023.

Forecast Capital Project Delivery

100% 2022/23 R/A/G/B

95%

84.5% - KayPrlects Key v  86.2% 4/0/25/0

R 6.2%

5% Target Area* /\_. — 0.0%

2006 2022/23 R/A/G/B
- Non-Key

o " Projects Non-Key  y 74.9%  132/8/625/70

15: 73.5% v -0.1%

- Red : >61 Days delay

60%

55% Amber : 31-60 days delay

0% Green : <30days delay

Black : No baseline date set

Key Project target 85%, Non-Key project target 85%
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5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Below is a forward view of capital delivery performance (financial), an overview of capital
delivery in recent years against plan, plus capital delivery planned for the first three years of
the LTP 2021-31 (2021/22 to 2023/24).

Figures are updated for 2022/23, to align with the Capital Programme Performance report.

$750m Planned delivery budget

Council delivery budget

Forecast Council delivery
$ 650m

S607 m

$616m

$553m
$ 550m $573m
$493 m 5488 m
$469m $ 465 m
$480m

$450m

Z
—_— 7 $433m
$390 m $305m e ———

390
$ 350m $371m DEEvm

$ 409 m

$250m

Planned delivery budget :

Council delivery budget :

Forecast Council delivery :

There has been stability of financial delivery year-on-year for projects CCC is responsible for
delivering (green line - total spend/total forecast), ranging consistently in a band between
$371m to $409m spend per annum over the previous four years (2018/19 to 2021/22).

The ELT performance target for capital financial delivery is based on all delivery CCC is
accountable for, regardless of funding source.

For this year (year 2 of the LTP 2021) the total programme budget set for CCC to deliver is
$469m (blue line). The February 2023 Financial Report forecast for capital financial
expenditure is $390m, which equates to 83% delivery. As noted above, this forecast includes
both core and externally funded works, but excludes Te Kaha and the remainder of Parakiore
funding, in line with the ELT performance goal.

In adopting the Draft Annual Plan 2023/24, $137m of capital has been rephased which has
changes the future year CCC delivery programme for 2023/24 from $753m (as at Annual Plan
2022/23) to $616m (black line).

In reflection of this the Council delivery budget the 2023/24 value has moved from $599m (as
at Annual Plan 2022/23) to $465m (blue-line, includes core and externally funded work,
excluding Te Kaha and remainder of Parakiore build funding.)

For more detail refer to the Financial Performance and Capital Programme Performance
reports.
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ELT Goal: Ensure capital planning for FY24 funding programme budgets allocated,
90% by 1 March 2023.

ELT Goal: Ensure capital planning for FY25 & FY26 funding programme budgets drawn
down, 90% by 1 May 2023.

5.13 Capital planning targets are intended to monitor the draw-down and allocation of future
capital funding programme budgets, in this case years 3, and 4 & 5 of 2021-31 LTP. This helps
the business plan and prepare for future capital project delivery, in order to effectively
implement the LTP.

5.14 84.2% of FY2024 funding programme budgets have been allocated (projects initiated) by 1st
March 2023 against a target of 90%. The PMO is forecasting this target will be met (noting that
while this is an end-February forecast, at the time of writing there were some adjustments and
finalisations to be made that PMO believes will move the 84.2% to achieving target.) Reporting
next month (March) will carry the full year-end value.

5.15 69.9% of FY2025/FY2026 funding programme budgets drawn down by 1st May 2023 against a
target of 90%. The PMO is also forecasting this target will be met.

6. Finance

6.1 The organisation is forecasting an operational surplus of $0.2m (after carry forwards of
$4.1m). For more information refer to the Financial Performance Report.

6.2 Capital expenditure variance at year-end forecast is at -16.9%. More detail is available in the
Capital Programme Performance Report.

Attachments /[ Nga Tapirihanga

No Title Reference Page

AL | LOS Exception Commentary February 2023 23/329087 24

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance / Te Whakatiiturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.
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Level of Service Exceptions
Forecast Period Ending: 28 Feb 2023
Deliver 'Community’ Levels of Service to target

& Levels of service which will fail to meet target.
© Levels of service for which intervention is required to meet target.

GOA Communities and Citizens
Citizens and Customer Services

Measure: LTP/AP22: 2.6.4.1 Citizen and Customer expectations for service response are delivered in a timely manner
O Target: Telephone enquiries have an average speed to answer of no more than 120 seconds
Actual: February: 171 seconds

¥YTD: 148 seconds

EQY forecast: 138 seconds.
Comments: Staffing constraints is the primary reason we did not meet our ASA service level this month. We are currently in

the process of onboarding new recruits.
Our latest group of new hires was split into two training groups, the first of which took their first phone calls on
Monday 27th Feb. The second group is currently onboarding and due to complete their training on March 10th.

Attrition has presented an ongoing challenge for us this financial year, with a high turnover of staff opting to
leave our unit for other opportunities. 26.4% of all permanent leavers in the last 12 months (up to Jan 23) had
less than 12 months tenure. Total turnover over the past 12 months is now 22.7%

February Answer Times:

% Calls answered in less than 2 minutes = 58%

% Calls answered between 2 -5 minutes = 21.4%

% Calls answered above 5 minutes = 20.6%

Remedial Action:  The following remedial actions were adopted throughout January and February in addition to aforementioned
actions from previous months:

Staffing on our face-to-face channel has been reduced to the minimum requirement at each site to enable
customer demand in our phone channel to be more effectively resourced.

Moncritical off-phone activities have been removed as a temporary measure whilst we await our new induction
group.

A front-end message has been utilised on our phone channel during peak periods of volume, encouraging
customers to email their enquiries as an alternate method of contact.

GOA Governance
Governance and decision-making
Measure: LTP/AP22: 4.1.29.2 Respond to requests for information held by Council in a manner that complies with the
legislative processes and timelines set out in the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987
(LGOIMA)
® Target: Provision of information is in accordance with LGOIMA principles and requirements - 99%
Actual: January Actuals
YTD we have received 594 LGOIMA requests 92 received in January
Comments: All responses were on time for February

Compliance is currently 98.99% (6 late out of 594 requests YTD)
Average response time 9.9 days (10.8 days in December and 12.7 days in January)
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GOA Regulatory and Compliance

Building Regulation

o

Resource Consenting

Measure:
Target:
Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22:9.1.1 Grant Building Consents within 20 days working days

The minimum is to issue 95% of building consents within 19 working days from the date of acceptance
62.9% of consents have been issued within 19 working days for the month of February 2023

54.5% of consents have been issued within 19 days Financial YTD

A positive increase in the number of building consents being issued in February which is pleasing

We continue to support the following processes to assist with reducing the heavy workloads;

focus on recruitment and additional external contractor support overtime options for BCA staff

increased communication (advising applicants of processing delays, utilising call first principles and adding
information on public communications meeting with home build companies and developers

Measure:
Target:
Actual:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 9.1.9 Audit Building Warrant of Fitness to ensure public safety and confidence

Audit 20% of building stock

15 Audits have been carried out for February (current percentage audited is approx 2.29% of the building stock)
124 Audits have been carried out YTD

We have initiated a monthly Territorial Authority (TA) QA Monitoring report to monitor our performance against
TA functions. A review of staff. We have initiated a monthly Territorial Authority (TA) QA Monitoring report to
monitor our performance against TA functions. A review of staff resourcing and utilisation was undertaken and
a business case drafted to increase resource in this area. The business case has been approved (4/8/2022) to
increase the number of staff within the BWoF area and recruitment has been initiated. Initially, the following
roles have been established;

2 x BWoF Administration Officer

2 x BWoF Building Officer

1 x Principle Building Official (with a focus on Building Compliance)

We are currently in the recruitment process and have filled the Principal Building Official role, with the
remaining roles soon to be advertised. This doubles the size of the current team which will help increase the
number of BWoF audits being undertaken.

The TA QA Monitoring report will continue to be the mechanism for monitoring progress on increasing the
number of BWoF audits completed (as well as monitoring and reporting on performance of all other TA
functions). resourcing and utilisation was undertaken and a business case drafted to increase resource in this
area. The business case has been approved (4/8/2022) to increase the number of staff within the BWoF area and
recruitment has been initiated. Initially, the following roles have been established.

Measure:

@ Target:

Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 9.2.18 % of notified resource management applications processed within statutory timeframes.

99% within statutory timeframes.

Mo applications were completed in February. The year-to-date result sits at 90% of applications processed
within the statutory timeframe (total of 10 application with one exceeding the timeframe).

At this stage, only one application has exceeded the timeframes. Due to the small number of applications, this
lowers the year-to-date result to 90%.

Mo remedial action is required at this stage since only one application has exceeded the statutory timeframe.

Measure:

Target:
Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22:9.2.1 % of non-notified resource management applications processed within statutory timeframes.

999% within statutory timeframes.

80% of non-notified applications were processed within the statutory time frames. YTD 73% have been
processing within statutory time frames. 99% is the target.

While compliance with time frames is still below target, year to date results have improved (from 72% to 73%).

Significant improvements have been achieved in lowering the backlog of applications and allocation day. With
current application volumes we expect to see continued improvement in processing time frames.

A number of process improvement have already been implemented.
Consultants will continue to be used where processing staff are over capacity.
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GOA Water Supply
Water Supply
Measure; LTP/AP22: 12.0.6 Percentage of real water loss from Council's water supply reticulated network
O Target: <= 25%
Actual: 27.6%
Comments: As at EO February 2023, there are 14,206,184 m3 water lost to leakage, based on a 5-yr rolling data.

Remedial Action:

Total annual pump station flow ending February 2023 is 51,501,762 m3 extracted from WaterOutlook report.
This comes to a percent leakage of 27.6%

All leaks reported under the Water Loss Contract have not been repaired by maintenance contractor, thus
resulting to no secondary tests for candidate zones. Most results for candidate zones are higher than previous
results.

The leakage rate is based on a 5-year rolling data. There is a reactive repair programme via third party provider
that fixes identified leaks.

To significantly reduce the leakage rate, a proactive leak repair programme must be done. This can be
accomplished by installing meters in each of the 200 zones so that there is accurate measurement of water
supply and consumption, and zones with the highest leakage rate can be prioritised for repairs. There is
currently a test zone for this set up in the Rawhiti area.

All leaks reported under the Water Loss Contract have not been repaired by maintenance contractor, thus
resulting to no secondary tests for candidate zones. Most results for candidate zones are higher than previous
results.

Measure:
O Target:
Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22:12.0.2.19 Proportion of residents satisfied with quality of Council water supplies
== 50%
Reflections and actions taken since April 2022 update on the Residents Survey Results

Work has progressed on reservoirs and tanks across the city with 17 reservoirs inspected, and minor repairs
completed, over the winter period.

The first application for an exemption from residual disinfection (chlorine) was lodged with Taumata Arowai in
September 2022. This was for the Brooklands [/ Kainga water supply zone.

Mext steps (in the next 6 months)

Work continues on prioritisation of tank and reservoirs for inspections next winter.

Design work in underway for major repairs and/or replacements of tanks and reservoirs.

The removal of chlorine from the network is likely to take at least 5 years to complete. The actual timeline is
difficult to asses until we get the response from Taumata Arowai on our first application.

Measure:
© Target:

Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 12.0.7 Average consumption of drinking water in litres per resident per day

==215

YTD is 267

February is a high consumption month and is above target. Will be weather and behavious dependant if the
target is met later in the year

Monitor, the excess water charges should help.
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GOA Wastewater Collection, Treatment and Disposal

Wastewater Collection, Treatment and Disposal

Measure:

o Target:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 11.0.1.16 Proportion of residents satisfied with the reliability and responsiveness of wastewater
services

== 65%

Reflections and actions taken since April 2022 update on the Residents Survey Results

The interim activated sludge plant has been commissioned at the Bromley wastewater treatment plant and the
quality of water in the oxidation ponds, and the ocean outfall discharge, has improved considerably. The odour
issues that have plagued the city for months have been resolved.

Next steps (in the next 6 months)

A report on the recommended option for re-instatement of secondary wastewater treatment at Bromley is
scheduled to go to Council by December 2022.

To meet our consent obligations, we continue with prioritisation of inspections and repairs to wastewater
laterals to reduce wastewater overflows due to inflow and infiltration.

GOA Parks, Heritage and Coastal Environment

Parks and Foreshore

Measure:
Target:
Actual:
Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 6.4.4 Overall customer satisfaction with the presentation of the City's Cemeteries.

Cemeteries presentation: resident satisfaction >=85 %.

Measure is annual, resident satisfaction survey (forthcoming)

bolstering of resources around key dates to lift maintenance levels, this has meant additional expenditure in

problem areas (gravetops, mowing)
Elements scoring poorly from previous year's survey results and comments have led to prioritisation of

improved signage and elements of our capital programme, we will continue to look at ways to improve the
presentation of our citv's cemeteries.

Measure: LTP/AP22: 6,8.4.2 Overall customer satisfaction with the presentation of the City's Parks

Target: Inner City presentation: resident satisfaction ==80%

Actual: January comments: New plantings by the Terraces are establishing with additional irrigation, monitoring the
public use of the river bank

Measure: LTP/AP22: 6.0.3 Overall customer satisfaction with the presentation of the City's Community Parks

Target: Community Parks presentation: resident satisfaction ==60 %

Actual: Actuals are resident satisfaction survey (annual) results forthcoming.

Comments: Following previous survey results, we analysed the results and verbatim comments and have undertaken steps

Remedial Action:

to address areas that surveyed poorly.
Continue to leverage our capital programme to target areas that were highlighted as drivers of unsatisfactory

through previous survey results and commments.

Measure:

Target:
Actual:
Comments;

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 6.8.1.6 Overall Regional Sports Organisation satisfaction with the standard of the city's Council
provided sports surfaces

Satisfaction >=75%

actuals off annual survey, yet to be finalised.

continue to partner with Rec and Sport colleagues to improve communication lines between operations and
sporting code(s) needs.

continue to partner with Rec and Sport colleagues to improve communication lines between operations and
sporting code(s) needs. Connecting Rangers with selected sports groups to streamline communication

between sporting codes and Council.

Parks Heritage Management

Measure:

© Target:

Actual:

LTP/AP22: 6.9.1.6 To manage and maintain Parks scheduled heritage buildings

Resident satisfaction with presentation of Parks scheduled heritage buildings:>= 55%

As previous: Reflections and actions taken since April 2022 update on the Residents Survey Results: We are
progressing the remaining Council owned and managed heritage building restorations both in partnership with
the private sector and internally managed and delivered projects. Repair of damaged heritage buildings
continues as provided for in the LTP. Key buildings this year include Old Municipal Chambers and Chokebore
Lodge.

Mext steps (in the next 6 months): Continue with Parks Heritage capital programme

Mext steps are to initiate project delivery planning for the Provincial Chambers.
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GOA Solid Waste and Resource Recovery

Solid Waste and Resource Recovery

Measure;
O Target:

Actual:

Comments:

LTP/AP22: 8.0.3 Customer satisfaction with kerbside collection service

At least 80% customers satisfied with Council's kerbside collection service for each year

78% customer satisfaction

Ongoing discussions with contractor to focus on retaining drivers along with introducing technaology to assist
drivers and provide better customer service

GOA Strategic Planning and Policy

Public Information and Participation

Measure: LTP/AP22: 4.1.9 We provide advice and support in community engagement, and consultation planning and

delivery, to teams across the organisation and to Elected Members
© Target: Percentage of residents who feel they can participate in and contribute to Council decision-making. 27%
(previous vear result, 26%, plus 1%)

Actual: Engagement on the draft Annual Plan is about to start so our focus is on that this month. We also have
notification of Plan Change 14 which is another significant consultation project for the Unit.

We continue to investigate different options for how we can engage more effectively - particularly online. This
includes trialing new ways of engaging on smaller community projects such as playgrounds.

Measure: LTP/AP22:4.1.10.1 We provide effective and relevant external communications, marketing and engagement
activities to ensure residents have information about Council services, events, activities, decisions and
opportunities to participate.

O Target: 67% of residents are satisfied that our communications, marketing and engagement activities are effective,
helpful, and relevant.

Actual: We are continuing to refine our communications, marketing and engagement tactics, using our learnings to
make incremental improvements across our communications and engagement channels. To date, we are
showine erowth across our web channels.

GOA Transport
Transport
Measure: LTP/AP22: 16.0.1 Maintain roadway condition to an appropriate national standard,
@ Target: ==5% of the sealed local road network is resurfaced per year

Actual: year-to-date delivery 2.0% (49.0KM}An increase in the deliveries is programmed toward the end of the sealing
season. Contractors have doubled and in some cases tripled their resources to expedite their progress toward
the annual programme targets. Despite that, the total delivery is projected to be between 3.5% to 4% of the
entire network.

Comments: There have been delays in the current year's delivery programme due to the expiry of the old maintenance

Remedial Action:

contract (2017-2022) and the commencement of the new one which will remain operational over the next 5 to
10 years. The new maintenance contract commenced on 1st October 2022. Due to the late start coupled with
initial technical issues, price increases in the new contracts, and implications of the North Island major flooding
events the target for resurfacing 5% of the network will not be achieved in this financial year.

The delivery programme for the financial year 2024 is being finalised. The programme will be right-sized with
the available budgets. The delivery target for the next year will be readjusted accordingly to reflect the final
programme,

Measure:
@ Target:
Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 10.0.6.1 Reduce the number of death and serious injury crashes on the local road network

<=100 crashes

FY¥23 Q3 (1 Oct 22 - 31 Dec 22): Actual crashes confirmed: 26 / YTD :80

Projection for the year: 107 (Unlikely to meet target ==100)

The overall YTD numbers have been increased by the inclusion of some historic crashes that had not previously
been in the statistics. This puts the overall run total above the target, so we would not expect to meet the target

this vear,
Remedial actions would be required to bring the crash numbers down regardless of target, however, the

remedial actions are unlikely to have an impact in the timeframes required by this reporting.
Staff continue to develop and deliver intervention programmes to increase safety outcomes on the network,
with a particular focus on vulnerable users.
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Measure:
@ Target:

Actual:

Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 10.0.2 Increase the share of non-car modes in daily trips

>=36% of trips undertaken by non-car modes

32.5%

Recent change to method and target: now based on the "Life in Christchurch™ Survey. Last data was gathered in
September 21 - not expected to get updated data until early 2023.

2021 Christchurch Residents Survey showed a decline in non-car modes. According to the survey, the non-car
mode share was 32.5% against the target of 36%.

The main decline was in Public Transport by 23% (1.3% decline in overall mode share) and in cycling by 10%
(1.8% decline in overall mode share) since 2020 results. The decline is attributed to lower trips overall in the
pandemic environment, particularly with the increased number of oi~fce workers working from home at that
time, and a large decrease in public transport use due to concern regarding close proximity travel with
strangers.

Public Transport share was down across the board for all trip purposes. Cycling was roughly the same for
education and work purposes but considerably lower for other trip purposes. Walking is slightly higher for other
trip purposes (excl. work and education) leading to slightly higher overall mode share.

Previously to 2021, the data had been trending higher, with the highest non-car share seen in 2020 at 34.9%.
This would suggest that a return to normal travel patterns in the post-pandemic environment may resultin a
significant improvement without further intervention. The raw data from cycle counters appears to support this
hypothesis.

Remedial actions to increase non-car mode share are:

- completion of the "Shovel Ready” projects will add significantly to the MCR network, which would be expected
to improve cycling numbers. The first of these (Rapanui-Shag Rock) formally opened in December 22

- focus on public transport: this has recently benefitted from central government's CRAF funding to bring
forward some of the broader PT Futures business case projects, and there is further funding available to
support the rollout in the CERF package)

- completion of bus lane projects (eg the recently completed Lincoln Road Stage 1 peak hour bus lanes)

- continued construction of local cycleway connections and other key active transport links. Over and above
Council's LTP programme, applications for further central government funding through the Climate Emergency
Response Fund (CERF) have been successful

- continued work on increasing the walkability level of service, particularly around new developments

Measure:
@ Target:

Actual:

Comments:

LTP/AP22: 10.5.41 Increase access within 15 minutes to key destination types by walking

==48% of residential land holdings with a 15- minute walking access

43%

Mo change since September 2021 due to reporting cycle (once a year), but due to staff turnover and the
complexity of the model it has not been possible to get updated data yet. Staff are actively working on solutions

to resolve this

Actual in FY22 showed a 9% decline from previous financial year result and was 5% less than the 48% target of
this FY.

The 9% decline from FY21 to FY22 was distributed as below:

5.5 %: Process refinement, where walking speed input is changed from 5km/hr to 4km/hr, resultingin a
reduction in walkable catchment size. This refinement makes the speed assumptions more demographically
inclusive and aligned to those used for the Spatial Plan.

3 %: Actual changes to the network with residential growth in inaccessible settings (i.e new subdivisions)

0.5 9% : Closure of a key destination (Redcliff's supermarket closure).

When 5.5% decline attributed to method change is taken out of consideration, the remaining 3.5% decline (i.e
48.5% against 53% target) suggests that we are unlikely to meet the target as we are unlikely to influence key
services (food, health, employment, education) to open in the unconnected residential areas within the
financial year.
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Remedial Action:

- Staff are working on methods to refine and re-run the model so an updated actual can be obtained, and
updated data should be available from the February or March 2023 reporting cycle. This will also give a greater
understanding of where the gaps in the network lie, so more focused interventions can be developed.

- Staff continue to contribute to the Christchurch Spatial Plan (The Otautahi Plan). Strategic policy, planning
and delivery staff, support and work towards greater integration between land use and transport which is
required to increase walkability access to key destinations.

- Staff continue to provide regulatory advice to private developments to ensure effective walking connectivity is
provided for proposed commercial and residential developments.

Within its indirect areas of influence, Transport Unit can:

Initiate focused communications and education. Whilst unlikely to change the results for the FY, it can improve
public awareness in the medium and long term.

For example the mapping used in calculating the walkable catchments can be made public to assist the public
in their decision making for where they choose to live. This would need to be prioritised amongst other
education and advocacy programmes.

In early Movember 2021, Transport staff presented at Christchurch Conversations, on the topic of 15 minute
neighbourhoods and shared the concepts and maps with the public. The maps have since been referred to by
local politicians and urban design professionals.

Measure: LTP/AP22: 10.5.2 Improve the perception that Christchurch is a cycling friendly city

Target: >=66% resident satisfaction

Actual: Perception Data is gathered through the annual resident survey completed annually normally March - April and
then first reported through ELT before release so generally rely on the results availability in May each year.

Comments: Perception Data is gathered through the annual resident survey completed annually normally March - April and
then first reported through ELT before release so generally rely on the results availability in May each year.

Measure: LTP/AP22: 16.0.8 Maintain the condition of footpaths

Target: ==81% footpaths rated 1,2 or 3

Actual: A citywide footpath condition rating has not been undertaken since 2017 due to a lack of operational budget
allocation.

Comments: Council has been collecting condition information with regard to footpath defects and issues through physical

Remedial Action:

observations by staff and maintenance contractors, tree root issues, and Customer Service Requests on an
ongoing basis. In addition, Council has collected a great deal of asset data with regard to the construction
dates, age, material details, etc. of the majority of footpaths everywhere on the network. Using this
information, a programme for footpath renewals has been provided with the objective of proactively
prioritising and targeting those footpath sections already in a poor condition or likely to degrade earlier than
others. The programme has been provided to the maintenance contractors for delivery. Due to capital budget
shortage and increases in delivery costs, the quantum of delivery (length of footpath renewals) is likely to be
lesser than the ideal targets.

A contract has been commissioned for a condition rating of more than 1,100km of footpaths. The work was
expected to begin in January and results be delivered by May 2023. Due to delays on the surveyor's side, the
work has been rescheduled to begin in March. The delivery date is still expected to be in May 2023,

In parallel, the University of Canterbury has been engaged to develop state-of-the-art technology to condition
assess footpaths more accurately and cost-effectively using image processing and artificial intelligence. The
work is expected to start in April 2023 and end by the end of 2023. This will include high-resolution cameras
mounted on buggies or scooters which can legally be ridden on footpaths and off-road or separated cycleways.
The in-house technology will have minimal costs compared to the existing condition rating methods and can be
used more frequently to undertake condition ratings.
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Measure;
O Target:
Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 16.0.9 Improve resident satisfaction with footpath condition

>=41% resident satisfaction

The previous 'Customer Satisfaction Surveys only gathered thoughts and emaotions, rather than facts that could
be used to create a positive change. Steve Guy - Maintenance Manager City Streets had a chance to add
questions into the last 'Life in Christchurch' survey to gather specific data.

The data gathered by that survey is now being used to help create programmes that target the needs of
residents. We are now planning roading and footpath work around all of the previous methods, as well as cross
referencing the new data from the survey to tailor our forward works and better meet the needs of residents.
We have focused on our Capital Road and Footpath resurfacing programme first, as these will have the greatest
impact on residents.

All footpaths that were raised by residents and met the requirements of our forward programmes have been
brought forward to be completed this financial year, so all of this will go towards raising the satisfaction levels.
Our footpath resurfacing is planned to start in April, after the road resurfacing season has ended.

We are also replying back to the people who provided the data and telling them what we are doing, and when.

Our footpath renewals will start in April once the resurfacing season has ended, so this will go a long way to
raising customer satisfaction with Council.

Measure:
O Target:
Actual:

Comments:

LTP/AP22: 16.0.10 Maintain the perception that Christchurch is a walking friendly city

>=85% resident satisfaction

Measured through Annual Residents Survey.

The 2022 Annual Residents Survey had a 70% satisfaction rating for the perception that Christchurchis a

walkine friendlv citv.
Reflections and actions taken since April 2022 update on the Residents Survey Results

In financial year 2021/22 footpath resurfacing was achieved along 23km of the network; this equates to less
than 1% of the network.

The work programme was developed using a combination of age data, customer service request (CSR)
information and information collected by our maintenance contractors.

Staff and contractors have trialled the use of trip stop construction in areas where tree roots are challenging,
this will allow for tree root growth without causing extensive damage to the path.

Measure:
© Target:
Comments:

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 16.0.3 Improve resident satisfaction with road condition

>=25% resident satisfaction

The previous 'Customer Satisfaction Surveys only gathered thoughts and emotions, rather than facts that could
be used to create a positive change. Steve Guy - Maintenance Manager City Streets had a chance to add
questions into the last 'Life in Christchurch' survey to gather specific data.

The data gathered by that survey is now being used to help create programmes that target the needs of
residents. We are now planning roading and footpath work around all of the previous methods, as well as cross
referencing the new data from the survey to tailor our forward works and better meet the needs of residents.
We have focused on our Capital Road and Footpath resurfacing programme first, as these will have the greatest
impact on residents.

All roads that were raised by residents and met the requirements of our forward programmes have been
brought forward to the 2023/24 financial year for resurfacing. This sees pavement repairs being completed this
financial year, so all of this will go towards raising the satisfaction levels.

We are also replying back to the people who provided the data and telling them what we are doing, and whe

We have a significant list of streets across the central and northern contract areas that are being targeted
reseals this season, which will go a long way to raise satisfaction with Council.
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Measure:
O Target:
Actual:

Comments;

Remedial Action:

LTP/AP22: 10.5.3 More people are choosing to travel by cycling

>=12,500 average daily cyclist detections

Snapshot taken on a monthly basis, based on 25 cycle count monitors around the city between July - Feb. The
total for the 2022 financial year to-date tracking at 11,272 average daily cyclist's detections with 13,551 cycle

detections recorded in February 2023 alone.
The average daily number of 11,272 recorded daily cyclist detections is marginally less than the target of

>=12,000 but tracking upwards despite low month of July which was an unusually wet month with several high
rainfall events. February recordings show 13,551 cycle detections. In addition, the below target value reflects
the impacts of Covid with more people working from home, although cycle numbers do appear to be increasing
again slowly, compared with the previous Covid affected year.

The continued delivery of the Major Cycle Routes programme, through CRAF and Shovel Ready funding will
assist in promoting the use of cycling as a viable alternative mode of travel to the car
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8. Financial Performance Report - February 2023
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/240484

Report of / Te Pou Russell Holden - Head of Finance

Matua: (Russell.Holden@ccc.govt.nz)

General Manager / Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
Pouwhakarae: (Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Finance and Performance Committee to be updated on
financial performance to February 2023, including the current year forecast, and receive
current treasury information.

1.2 Thisisaregular report that goes to the Committee on a monthly basis.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receive the information in the Financial Performance Report for February 2023.

3. Brief Summary

3.1 Thefinancial result for February shows a year to date operational surplus of $7.3 million. The
current surplus year end forecast of $0.2 million (after signalled budget carry forwards) is an
improvement of $1.4 million from the $1.2 million deficit forecast last month.

3.2 Thetotal capital programme continues to forecast an under spend, currently $51.9m.

3.3 Alltreasury risk positions are within policy limits.
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4, Operating Surplus

4.1

4.2

Last meeting, staff were requested to report back on steps undertaken to recover the forecast
deficit presented. The following comments on the process undertaken on a monthly basis:

4.1.1 Theforecastis a projection at a point in time, a position which will continually change
as new information and events come to light. The operational budget is a sizable $675
million, a move of $1.2 million amounts to only 0.2%. The risk remains that any adverse
events could negatively impact the overall position of Council.

4.1.2 To identify such events and provide timeliness of reporting for mitigation action, regular
forecasting and reporting at all levels in the organisation occurs to ensure issues are
identified, monitored and addressed by management on an ongoing basis. Material
risks are reported to and monitored by the executive team, with a view to managing the
financial outcome of the organisation to within that approved by Council.

4.1.3 The forecast changes this month relate to a mix of ongoing and some new items. The
movement is the result of an ongoing detailed review and examination on possible
savings across all Council activities. Staff have increased their focus on reviewing
positive variances to YTD budgets in order to correctly capture year-end forecast
variances. Some of these savings have become more certain as year-end approaches.

4.1.4 The key issue driving the forecast deficit last month, which remains an issue, is the
capitalisation of staff time. Several factors are driving this issue, including sickness, staff
turnover, and recruitment difficulty. This is currently impacting a couple of units and is
being actively managed to ensure process accuracy and minimise financial impact.

4.1.5 Linked to this is the reviewing of previous months to ensure accuracy in the allocation of
staff time to capital projects. This work has resulted in some costing corrections.

Following the above reviews, we are currently forecasting a surplus of $0.2 million (after carry
forwards of $4.1 million). The $1.4m forecast improvement from the $1.2 million deficit
forecast in January is mainly resulting from vacancies that are unlikely to be filled by year end
(8§1.2m), provisions in place that are no longer ($0.65m), and lower net interest costs ($0.2m).
These are partially offset by lower Resource Consenting revenues ($0.75m) where discounts
have been provided for not meeting statutory timeframes, noting that processing timeframes
continue to improve which will result in less revenue needed to be discounted in the last
quarter of the year.

5. Operational Expenditure and Revenue

5.1 This covers day to day spend on staffing, operations and maintenance, and revenues to fund
it.

5.2 Operational revenue exceeds expenditure as it includes rates revenue for capital renewals and
debt repayment. This revenue is referred to below as ‘Funds not available for Opex’ and
removed to show the operational year to date and forecast cash surplus or deficit.

$m Actual Budget Var Forecast Budget Var C:\;;y Var
Revenues (625.1)  (616.5) 8.6 (891.3)  (880.2) 111 0.9 10.2
Expenditure 463.0 4617 (1.3) 680.5  675.3 (5.2) 3.4 (8.6)
Funds not available for Opex 156.3 156.3 - 206.5 204.9 (1.6) (0.2) (1.4)
Surplus (5.8) 1.5 7.3 q (4.3) - 4.3 . 4.1 0.2 .
5.3  Brief summaries of revenues and expenditure are highlighted below.
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5.4 Revenues are $8.6 million higher than budget year to date, forecast to be $10.2 million higher
at year end.
5.4.1 Key drivers of actual and forecast variances to budget include: YTD Forecast
(after c/f)
e Higher Interest revenues (partially offset by higher debt servicing costs) $3.7m $8.0m
e Higher Transwaste dividends (early receipt to bring back from FY24) $1.9m $1.1m
e  Rates Revenues (2021/22 rating growth higher than planned) $1.8m $2.0m
e Waka Kotahi subsidies (offset by higher Transport emergency maintenance costs) $1.2m $0.7m
e EcoCentral Volume rebate received $0.8m $0.8m
e  Higher Building Consent volumes (offset by higher resourcing costs) $0.4m $0.8m
e Higher He Puna Taimoana revenues $0.5m $0.5m
e Lower Housing revenues (offset by lower maintenance costs) (50.2m)  ($0.7m)
e  Resource Consents (significant discounts - due to statutory timeframe not met)  ($0.8m)  ($1.0m)
e Lower Burwood Landfill revenues (§1.3m) ($1.8m)
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5.5 Expenditure is $1.3 million higher than budget year to date; and forecast to be $8.6 million
higher at year end after $3.4 million of signalled budget carry forwards.

5.5.1 Keydrivers of actual and forecast variances to budget include:

e Higher debt servicing costs (offset by higher interest revenues)

e Lower Capitalisation of staff time (net of lower personnel costs)

( )

( )

e Building Consenting additional resourcing (partly offset by higher revenues) ($1.4m)
e  Waste Collection Contracts ( )
( )

e  Transport maintenance (as a result of emergency works from July rain events)
e Lower Housing expenditure (partially offset by lower revenues)

e Internal Burwood Landfill revenues (from Council capital projects)

e Lower Recycling Processing fees

e Crown funded Water Transition expenditure timing

e Grants and levies (incl. EV& Vacant land remissions)

YTD

$2.8m
$2.0m

$1.3m

$1.2m
$0.8m
$1.0m
$1.1m
$1.6m
$2.4m

Forecast
(after c/f)

$0.6m

5.6 Funds not available for opex - items included in this category contributing to the variance are
Housing and Dogs (both non-rates funded), Capital Endowment funded projects, and Capital

grants.

6. Capital Expenditure and Revenue

$m Actual Budget Var Forecast Budget Var C;;zy Var
Core Programme 205.6 202.4 (3.2) 385.8 413.7 27.9 27.9
External Funded Programme 28.6 28.7 0.1 48.1 55.7 7.6 7.6
Less unidentified Carry Forwards (43.9) 43.9 43.9
Core/External Funded Programme 234.2 231.1 (3.1) 390.0 469.4 79.4 . 79.4
Te Kaha/Parakiore 79.1 55.1 (24.0) 131.3 103.8 (27.5) (27.5)
Total Capital Programme 313.3 286.2 (27.1) 521.3 573.2 51.9 51.9 -
Revenues and Funding (279.4) (263.4) 16.0 (445.2)  (410.6) 34.6 19.2 15.4
Borrowing required 33.9 22.8 (11.1) 76.1 162.6 86.5 . 71.1 15.4

Capital Expenditure

6.1  This covers the capital programme spend and funding relating to it.

6.2  Gross capital expenditure of $313.3 million has been incurred year to date. A further $208

million is forecast to be spent by year end.

6.3 The $521.3 million forecast spend is based on a Core/External Funded spend of $390 million,
plus forecast spend of $131.3 million on the Te Kaha and Parakiore projects.

6.4  Project managers have identified $35.5 million to be carried forward on specific projects in the
Core/External Funded Programme. The forecast includes an additional $43.9 million of
expected carry forwards yet to be specifically identified (based on actuals to date and

historical trend analysis).

6.5 Thereis currently a forecast spend of $108.1 million for Te Kaha this financial year (January
forecast was $140.8 million), compared to a budget of $78.5 million. The earlier forecast cost
will be covered by bringing forward Crown revenues budgeted in 2023/24.

6.6  Forfurther information on capital expenditure, please refer to the Capital Programme

Performance Report.
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Capital Revenues and Funding

6.7 Capital revenues and funding are a net $16 million higher year to date and forecast to be $34.6
million higher than budget before carry forwards comprising:

6.7.1 Revenues are $27.7 million higher than budget and forecast to be $47.4 million higher -
mainly due to higher development contributions ($20.2 million YTD / $24.4 million
forecast), and earlier receipts of Te Kaha Crown revenues ($12.9 million YTD - $29.6
million forecast) due to an earlier project spend. Partially offset by slower timing of
Shovel Ready revenues ($7.6 million YTD / $7.2 million forecast).

6.7.2 Lower Reserve drawdowns of $11.7 million year to date, forecast to be $12.8 million
lower - mainly due to some of the above development contributions being set aside to
fund future works ($13.6 million YTD and forecast); partially offset by higher Housing
Fund drawdowns of $1.9 million year to date ($0.6 million forecast) due to earlier capital

spend.

7. Treasury

Borrowing, Advances to Related Parties, and Bank Deposits

7.1  Council’s borrowing and treasury-related Advances are shown below:

Prior Year Current Yr-End Projected | Full-Yr Change
Gross Borrowing 2,100,915,000 2,340,515,000 2,245,515,000 144,600,000
Advances to Related Parties 637,588,162 786,317,962 761,317,962 123,729,800
Net Debt (excl. Cash) 1,463,326,838 1,554,197,038 1,484,197,038 20,870,200

7.2 Current debt levels are temporarily elevated due to the pre-funding of some large up-coming
maturities (to reduce liquidity risk). Net Debt by Jun-23 is expected to be only modestly higher
than at Jun-22, with higher Gross Debt off-set by higher Advances to related parties (mostly

CCHL).

Policy Compliance

7.3 All Treasury risks are within Policy limits, with minimal risk of breaches over the coming year:

Risk Area Compliance Plain-language meaning
Liquidity Risk Yes (cash availability)
Funding Risk Yes (spread of debt maturities)
Interest Rate Risk Yes (managing interest costs)
Counterparty Credit Risk Yes (not all eggs in one basket)

Funding & Interest Rates

7.4  Council’s projected funding needs, per financial year, are shown in the chart below, split
between the maturities of existing gross borrowing (green) and expected new borrowing

requirements (grey).
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Council Borrowing Requirements (Sm, per financial year)
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7.5 Council’s interest rate risk is managed to reduce the volatility of interest costs from year to
year. Most existing Council debt has been fixed for at least the next three years, which will
limit the impact of current higher interest rates on Council’s future borrowing costs.

Estimated average cost of funding, by financial year
FY23 FY24 FY25
|Rates-Funded Debt 4.9% 5.0% 4.8%

Attachments [/ Nga Tapirihanga

There are no attachments for this report.

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link
Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance / Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.
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Signatories / Nga Kaiwaitohu

Authors

Bruce Moher - Manager Corporate Reporting
Ryan McLachlan - Reporting Accountant
Steve Ballard - Group Treasurer

Annie Yang - Reporting Accountant

Approved By

Russell Holden - Head of Finance
Leah Scales - General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
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9. Capital Programme Performance Report February 2023
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 22/1682878

Report of / Te Pou Andrew Robinson, Head of Programme Management Office
Matua: (andrew.robinson@ccc.govt.nz)

General Manager / Lynn McClelland, Assistant Chief Executive Strategic Policy and
Pouwhakarae: Performance (lynn.mcclelland@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

11

1.2

The purpose of this report is to present to the Council meeting the monthly Capital
Programme Performance Report February 2023.

This report provides Elected Members with oversight on the performance of the Capital
Programme.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1.

Receive the information in the Capital Programme Performance Report to the end of February
2023.

3. Brief Summary

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The consolidated FY23 forecast for the CCC Capital component of the programme (excl. Te
Kaha and Parakiore) as reported by Project Managers is $428.7m. This is a decrease on last
month’s reporting ($438.6m).

The PMO forecast for the CCC Capital component remains at $390m this month (83% of
budget). This is based on programme analysis, including year to date actuals, historical trends
and the current outlook.

The major facilities, Te Kaha and Parakiore, are progressing and are reported in more detail
elsewhere. Significant expenditure is still forecast for Te Kaha in the next four months as site
activity ramps up. However, a reduction in early purchasing of roof steelwork has resulted in
an FY23 forecast decrease of $33m. A bring back is still anticipated in FY23, and the project
remains on track to budget for all years.

Both Matatiki (Hornby Service Centre) and The Court Theatre (Performing Arts) are well
positioned to advance significantly in FY23 with construction underway on both projects,
however some significant carry forward for the Court Theatre is expected to get alignment
between Budgets and construction schedules.

The Three Waters forecast is slightly up this month, from $160.8m to $163.8m (89% of budget
at end of February). Both Water Supply and Stormwater projects are forecasting good
progress, however some Wastewater projects are still reporting delays in contract award, but
are at or near award.

Transport PMs are reporting delivery at 88% of budget ($122.4m, a reduction of $10m
compared to the January forecast). YTD spend is lagging at $64.6m. Delivery on the ground is
increasing now that the summer construction season has started, and projects involving
KiwiRail infrastructure have reached milestones allowing physical works to proceed.
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3.7 Parks, Digital and the Otakaro Avon River Corridor (OARC) programme are all reporting
good progress against FY23 Budgets and some bring backs are likely to support strong
delivery targets.

3.8  Staff have been busy on the preparation of the Draft Annual Plan for FY24 with associated
briefings to Council to achieve a deliverable programme and the Draft was adopted on 28
February. An Interactive Budget Tool has been developed to communicate the Plan to the
community and will be made available as part of the Consultation Document.

3.9 Resource constraints remain with continued low unemployment and tight competition in the
employment market and infrastructure owners often competing for the same resources. This
poses a risk for deliverability.

3.10 Continued geopolitical instability remains a key risk and is having a continuing impact on cost
estimates through inflationary pressures across all areas of capital delivery.

3.11 Thereisan emerging risk relating to upcoming repair programmes the North Island, in
response to damage created by Cyclone Gabrielle in February 2023. With detailed
assessments of repairs and reinstatement costs yet to be completed, the impacts on market
capacity in Christchurch and market prices are not yet known. However, these may increase
the severity of existing financial and resourcing risks.

3.12 Whileitis difficult to make accurate predictions as to the time period within which these
broader issues outside of Council control will resolve, internal planning and risk mitigation is
based on the assumption that a return to normal is not expected in the short term. Recent
economic forecasts and historical indicators, continue to support cost pressures.

3.13 The attached Capital Delivery Report - February 2023 details the above and provides further
commentary across the Capital Programme.

Attachments /[ Nga Tapirihanga

No. Title Reference Page

Al Attachment to report 22/1700726 (Title: Capital Delivery Report | 23/340530 44
February 2023 - FINAL)

BJ Attachment to report 22/1700726 (Title: Capex Watchlist 23/340333 82
Report - February 2023 - FINAL)

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance / Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficient information about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
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(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Signatories / Nga Kaiwaitohu

Authors Andrew Robinson - Head of Programme Management Office

Greer Hill - PMO Administrator

Approved By Lynn McClelland - Assistant Chief Executive Strategic Policy and Performance
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Capital Delivery Report - February 2023

The Capital Delivery Report is a monthly update on the status of the capital programme in the current Financial
Year (FY23). The first section provides an update on the overall programme. Subsequent sections expand on the
performance of each major area of capital delivery.

Commentary on external funding sources is provided, although the report focuses on delivery overall,
regardless of funding source. Capital revenue is overseen by Finance.

Projects marked with a plus sign (+) are also included in the appended Capex Watchlist Report.

All financials have been updated on 2 March 2023.
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Capital Delivery Overview

Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
CCC Capital 469.4 428.7 235.7 91%
Te Kaha and Parakiore 103.8 1313 79.2 127%
Total 573.3 560.0 314.9 98%

The FY23 forecast position for the overall capital programme has reduced significantly this month. At 2 March
2023, the consolidated forecast is $560.0m, down from $603.3m in January reporting. This change is driven by:

- TeKaha: Areduction in early purchasing of roof steelwork has resulted in an FY23 forecast decrease of
approximately $33m. A bring back is still anticipated in FY23, and the project remains on track to budget
for all years.

Transport Programme: A number of projects have reduced FY23 forecasts this month. This has resulted
in a further reduction of $10m for Transport Programme forecasts this financial year.

For the CCC Capital component of the programme (excluding Te Kaha and Parakiore):

- The consolidated FY23 forecast is $428.7m (down from $438.6m in January reporting)

- Average actuals for FY23 to date are $29.5m / month. A spend of $48.2m / month would be required for
the remaining four months to achieve the year-end forecast

- Therefore, the PMO forecast for the CCC Capital component remains at $390m this month (83% of
budget). This is based on programme analysis, including year to date actuals, historical trends and the
current outlook.

Monthly Financial Time Line

‘——-ﬁ/‘\i - . v < ————

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

%

% L1

v
oo 0%
T8 I ms
IIII III.‘nnn

Monthly financials for the total capital programme (including Te Kaha and Parakiore) in FY23. Actual spend in
February returned to near FY23 Q2 levels, and achieved 90% of forecast for the month.
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Capital Delivery - Programme Commentary

The Draft Annual Plan 2023/24 was adopted by Council on 28 February 2023, with public consultation to
commence in March. The draft proposes a capital programme of $615.8m next financial year.

At 1 March, 90% of the FY24 capital programme has been initiated, meeting current performance targets.

The chart below shows the total FY23 budget for projects by phase. At 2 March, projects in the Design phase or
beyond have a total budget value of $465.2m in FY23 (81% of the overall programme).

Project Year Budget By Phase

=
0
n
m
(=]
-

Capital Delivery - Financial Commentary
The chart below shows the current financial position for each major area of capital delivery in FY23.

Overall Programme - Forecast Delivery (FY23)

oM 20M 4Mm 60M BOM 100 M 120M 140 M 160 M 180 M 200 M

Te Kaha and Parakiore _ l 127%
Matatiki: Hornby and Performing Arts Precinct . I 3%
oo =
Waste Management I I 1%
Parks - l 119%
OARC .l 115%
Recreation, Sports and Events I I 14%
Digital - l 119%
Other - I 87%

Current Year (FY 23):

. Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget 9% Forecast Result
[Corryforword or sovings/ {Proportion of current
yeor budget forecosted
2o be spent by yeor end]

Capital Delivery - Risks and Issues Commentary

Current programme level risks and issues that exist across the Capital Programme are briefly summarised in a
qualitative risk summary below. Individual project risk registers are managed on a case by case basis by Project
Managers.
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There is an emerging risk relating to upcoming repair programmes the North Island, in response to damage
created by Cyclone Gabrielle in February 2023, With detailed assessments of repairs and reinstatement costs
yet to be completed, the impacts on market capacity in Christchurch and market prices are not yet known.
However, these may increase the severity of existing financial and resourcing risks outlined below.

PROGRAMME QUALITATIVE RISK SUMMARY

RISK DESCRIPTION MITIGATIONS PROBABILITY  RESIDUAL
CATEGORY x IMPACT RISK
FINANCIAL » Inflationary « Good project planning using PM High x High
pressures and cost Framework
escalation « Estimation accuracy and
* Forecasting contingency provision
= Industry forecast awareness
PROGRAMME  ° Delays through « Good project planning using PM High x Medium
consents Framework
s Supply chain » Continued dialogue with
limitations Environment Canterbury
* Panel frameworks and supplier
partnerships
s Alternative materials & early
procurement
RESOURCE » Staff reltention& s Recruit & retain High x Medium
attraction ¢ CCC employment benefits &
e« Contractor/ conditions
Consultant ¢ Training & development
availability * Supplier relationships &
collaboration
HSE (Health, s Pandemic effects . Remn?te working preparedness. Medium x
Safety & on staff & resource  » Indwlldural HES Plalns an‘d Medium
Environment) . ::,:;th & Safety on maonitoring on project sites
]

Capital Delivery - Resources Commentary

There continues to be considerable competition in the market for skilled resources. This remains an issue both
within Council and external service providers and other client organisations.

As part of Council's ongoing communication of workload to the industry, information on significant projects is
provided to the New Zealand Infrastructure Commission (Te Waihanga) each quarter. This information is used
to update the National Infrastructure Pipeline. The next update is taking place in March.

Industry Forums will be held once the FY24 Draft Annual Plan is released for consultation to communicate this
with suppliers,
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Te Kaha and Parakiore Recreation and Sport Centre

Detailed reporting on these projects is provided elsewhere as they are led by Te Kaha Project Delivery Ltd and
Otakaro Ltd.

Financial Year Summary

sSm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Te Kaha 78.5 108.1 64.6 138%
Parakiore 253 233 14.5 92%
Total 103.8 131.3 79.2 127%

Monthly Financial Time Line

® ot ecast @Total Budget umulative Forecast @Cumulative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

1353%

$10M
SOM . 106% 86% | 64% \ 118% 65% | 99% \ 9% \ 0% 0% 0% 0%
\ug Oct Nov De a Fel Mar Apt Ma

“f

Ju /

Forecast @Actual Percentage
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Project Updates

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Te Kaha and Parakiore

oM 20M 40 M G0 M BOM 100 M 120 M

Te Kaha Canterbury Multi Use Arena (CMUA) — I 143%

Te Kaha Canterbury Multi Use Arena Site Decontamination (CMUA) - 100%

Parakiore Recreation and Sports Centre (Metro Sport Facility) - I 91%

Parakiore Recreation and Sports Centre Equipment (Metro) I 122%

Project

Te Kaha Canterbury Multi Use
Arena (CMUA) (+)

Parakiore Recreation and
Sports Centre (Metro Sport
Facility) (+)

Current Year (FY 23):

. Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
Carmyformard or sovings, Proportion of current
pear budge? forecosted

o b spent by yemor and

Progress

Te Kaha is in the Canstruction Phase. BESIX Watpac are making good progress
on-site on earthworks, ground improvement (using Rammed Aggregate Piers),
de-watering, site concrete and fabrication of reinforcing for the West Stand's
foundation pads and ground floor columns. The first five large concrete pours
for the foundation pads have taken place. Off-site the contractor is working on
procuring materials and subcontractors, and work continues on the detailed
design for the arena.

Project forecasts have been updated this month in line with revised cashflow
information received by Council. Areduction in early purchasing of roof
steelwork has resulted in a significant decrease in FY23 forecasts. The project
is still anticipating a bring back in F¥23, and remains on track to budget for all
years.

Parakiore is in the Construction Phase. The structure, external cladding and
roofing have almost been completed, and the current work focus is on internal
construction work and carpark. Otdkaro have reviewed the construction
programme. Global construction sector constraints and challenging ground
conditions have hampered progress. Construction is planned to be completed
at the end of 2024, with opening planned in early 2025 following fit-out.
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Matatiki: Hornby Centre and Performing Arts Precinct

Financial Year Summary

sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Matatiki: Hornby Centre 15.7 14.0 7.8 89%
Performing Arts Precinct 15.3 8.7 15 57%
Total 31.0 22.7 9.3 T3%

Meonthly Financial Time Line

.—-_____._.-_-—‘__-'_ = . -
@ Tota st @7 ; J mulat 15t @ i I

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

I il
8%

303% —
. 13% i 4% 103% 115% 1% 0% 0% 0%

Forecast @ Actual  Percentage

Negative actuals in July are a result of an FY22 accrual on the Matatiki project.

A processing delay resulted in lower than forecast actuals in February on the Matatiki project. February actuals will be
reflected in March results.
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Project Updates
Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Matatiki and Performing Arts Precinct

oM 2M 4M &M EM 10M 12M 14 M 16M 18M

Performing Arts Precinct - I 62%

Performing Arts Precinct Public Realm I 0%

Current Year (FY 23):
- Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
Corryforwand or sovings, Proportion of current
jpear budget forecosted
o be spent by pear end

Project Progress

The library roof and walls are well underway, and the pool hall roof structure
has commenced. Closingin the building is expected to finish in late July.
Supply times, resource competition, and design clarifications remain the main
project risks.

Matatiki: Hornby Centre (+)

Physical works are now well underway. The initial stage of reinforcing is
complete awaiting the first concrete pour. The site hoarding has been extended

Performing Arts Precinct (+)  to the final position within the road reserve. The review of technical
submissions continue, A key focus in the coming periods will be the
coordination required to lodge Stage 2 building consent.

Item No.: 9

Page 51

Item 9

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch

22 March 2023 City Council ==

Three Waters

Excludes Otakaro Avon River Corridor (OARC) three waters projects (refer to OARC section).
Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result

Three Waters (excl. OARC) 184.4 163.8 89.9 89%

Monthly Financial Time Line

4
/0
L BN ]

>

§5
$0
A in b ) Ap 3
®0 & ® o dgst un e Forecast @Cumulative Actual
Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast
s 109%
96%
ik % — 88% 87% 86%
"% I I
§5M
SOM . I I I I I 1% _ 1 0% 0%
Aug Sep oct dec an Feb Apr May un
Forecast @Actual  Percentage

Three Waters - Programme Commentary

* Delivery of the capital programme is tracking well against plan with a number of measures in place to
increase performance through the second half of the financial year.

e Highlight for February: Strong spend in February is of note, and is an encouraging start to the new
calendar year which is traditionally softer.
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Three Waters - Financial Commentary

*  The FY23 year-end forecast for Three Waters is $163.8m (89% of budget). This is a slight increase from
the February report ($160.8m, 87%). This is being driven by the reprieritisation of projects.

* January actuals of $14.4m achieved 96% of forecast. This is due to a small number of wastewater
projects not meeting projected forecasts,

» Average actuals for FY23 to date are §11.2m / month. To meet the year-end forecast, a spend of $18.5m
/ month is required for the remaining four months, There are a number or measures in place to help
achieve this. These include accelerating water projects by direct appointing contractors, and utilising
the maintenance contract to carry out capital works. In addition, there are a number of, not currently
forecasted, Infrastructure Provision Agreements likely to complete this year.

Three Waters - Risks and Issues Commentary

* The delays experienced due to consenting issues over groundwater and wetlands are impacting a
number of stormwater and flood protection projects. Staff continue to work with Environment
Canterbury on a consent strategy for these projects. The delivery teams are working to undertake
future year projects to maintain capital expenditure as planned.

*  The labour market is challenging for recruitment and the retention of specialist staff is given high
priority.

» Inflation - Likelihood of rising prices and more tendered prices being higher than the budget. The
Morth Island Flood Event may place more pressure on costs but is unlikely to affect local and regional
resources,

Three Waters - Resources Commentary

¢ Improvementsto procurement and management of programmes of works are being developed to
increase delivery, and allow us to be more agile in an ever-changing environment.

*  The new contractors panel (HDM 2.0) has been awarded to support streamlined delivery. The new
professional services panel will be awarded prior to 27 March 2023.

+  Existing resources are supporting growth and improvement work, while also completing Asset
Management Unit tasks and reactive requests from across the organisation.

» The many changes in the regulatory environment are placing additional demand on the planning and
asset management resources; this is centributing to bottlenecks in project planning and design phases
but programme adaptability is mitigating this as much as possible.
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Three Waters Project Updates

The Three Waters programme is made up of three activity areas: Wastewater, Water Supply and Stormwater,

Wastewater (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Wastewater

Current Year (FY 23):

B A ctuais

Forecast

Project

WW Picton, MNelson, Elizabeth, Lyndon,
Mandeville, Kipax, Kyle, Peverel, Burdale,
Seto Mains Renewals

WW Gloucester, Worcester, Hereford, Trent,
Mursery, Dearsley & Raglan Mains Renewals

WW Lyttelton Harbour Wastewater Scheme
(+)

WW Bradford, Norwood, Hunter, Malcolm,
Young, Woodbridge, Penrith, Cardiff et al
Mains Renewals

WW Ascot, Randwick, Flemington, Beach &
Bower Mains Renewal

E

T 1 i " TH A 1) o

3 -
& K
3 -
x

Forecast Underspend

| Budget % Forecast Result
Cormyformand or sovings

Proportion of current
vear budge! forecosled
to b zpert by pear end

Progress

Construction underway on Mandeville Street, Picton Ave and
Dilworth Street currently. No major risks / issues. Construction
forecast for completion early 2024. Carry forward indicated.

Tender completed. Construction to start in May 2023, Carry
forward indicated.

Lyttelton Harbour Project is in the final stages and Lyttelton
Wastewater Treatment Plant is no longer discharging to
harbour, all wastewater is passing through Simeon Quay to the
Christchurch Wastewater Treatment Plant via PS15.

Decommission of Lyttelton Wastewater Treatment Plant has
commenced, forecast completion March/April 2023,

Detailed design review completed. Project tender underway.
Construction expected to start April/May. Carry forward
indicated.

Construction progressing on Bower Ave. No major risks / issues.

Construction expected to be complete March [ April 2023.
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Most of the pipelaying is now complete. Mo major risks / issues.
WW Hayton Road Main Renewal Construction work is expected to be complete around February
/ March 2023,

WW Tome, Rutlan, Scotsto, Norfol, Benne,
May, Tavendal, Chapte, Lingar, Mathia,
Paparo & Claremo Mains Renewal

Project is now in the defects liability stage. This praoject was
completed $1m under budget.

WW Upper Totara, Puriri, Balgay, Milnebank, Construction in progress, completion due end of March.
Karamu, Field, Wharenui, Weka, Tui, Extension of time due to multiple emergency works and
Leinster & Bristol Mains Renewal weather delays. Carry forward indicated.

Site established. Current focus is on setting up bypass pumping.
There have been some delays with bypass document approval,
as well as unexpected findings relating to the existing
underground valve. Expecting to set up bypass pumping in
March 2023. Recent trial - PS69 pumping to P5104 to reduce the
flow to PS60, has worked.

WW Halswell Pump Station (Stage 2) (PS60)

WW W Edmonds, Randolph, Marcroft, Waork is now complete on all streets except for Randolph S,
Manning, Wildberry, Hopkins, Ferry & which is progress. Mo major risks [ issues. Expected completion
Okeover Mains Renewal around April 2023.

Water Supply (top 10 projects by F¥23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) -Water Supply

E
E
E
E
-
E
E
E
»
r
=t

WS Jeffreys Road Pump Station Upgrade (PS1076 _ ]
WS Suct Tank & Reservolr Remnewals . lh-
Pack, Gou y. Cressy, Pages, — R
WS Grahane, Powell, Pullond, Sunningvale, Bainton, F gan I lu-
WS Bridle Path, wk i ige, Dubdin, YL I I
WS Sefton, Pasooe, Webb, Walnut, Hutohe 1 W |, Ha I I
Current Year (FY 23):
-A:tuals Forecast Forecast Underspend IBudgel % Forecast Result
(Carryformwand or sovings, (Proportion of cumrent

pear budget forecosted
o be spent by yeor end

Project Progress

In order to connect new pipework to the water supply network, the
600mm diameter main will need to be shutdown. This can only

WS Eastern Terrace Trunk Main Renewal occur during the winter months. Works will take place during
winter of 2023. Forecast delivery complete December 2023. Bring
back indicated.
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WS Jeffreys Road Pump Station Upgrade
(PS1076)

WS Scruttons Road Pump Station to
Lyttelton Road Tunnel & St Andrews Hill
Road Mains Renewal

WS Sydenham Suction Tank Replacement

WS Suction Tank & Reservoir Renewals

WS Park, Governors Bay, Cressy, Pages,
Buxtons & Gladstone Quay Mains Renewal

WS Mains Renewal - Linceln Rd and
Hazeldean Rd

WS Grahams, Powell, Pulford,
Sunningvale, Bainton, Rolfe, Gregan,
Farrington, Hillsbo Mains Renewals

WS Bridle Path, Ticehurst, Hawkhurst,
Coleridge, Dublin, Selwyn, Brittan,
Charlotte J Mains Renewals

WS Sefton, Pascoe, Webb, Walnut,
Hutcheson, Bradford, Walsall, Hammond,
Willis & Dobs Mains Renewals

Project encountered some delays but is now progressing well.
Expecting to have pump station back anline for summer season
2023/24. Carry forward indicated.

Additional budget is required due to excess contaminated soils
encountered and a change request is currently being processed
under the delegations framewaork.

The project is behind schedule due to delays associated with the
manufacturing and installation of the stainless steel suction tank.
Progress of work is satisfactory. Piles and concrete foundation of
the tank has been executed. Completion of delivery is now
forecasted in Jan 2024,

This is an ongoing programme of work. Denton Tank complete.
Sockburn tank to restart in April 2023, Carry forward indicated.

Construction is currently underway. Gladstone Quay works started.
Extension of time expected with longer than anticipated permit
and approvals processes, Works are now programmed to be
finished April 2023,

Construction largely complete. Some minor electrical
commissioning works still ongoing.

Contract has been awarded. Work commencing in March. Carry
forward indicated.

Works expected to commence in March. Carry forward indicated.

Contract has been awarded, construction will commence in March.
Carry forward indicated.
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Stormwater (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Stormwater

SW Timibse ng Renewal - Marshland Rosd Cansl Reserve Drain (50

SW Duarry Boad Drain Conveyance mpsover vts & Sutherlands Road

SW Rossendale Infrastnecture Provision Agreement (IPA

Current Year (FY 23):
- Actuals Ferecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
carmfansand or sa1ings Proportion of curent
year budged forec osted
o B apEmt Oy T End

Project Progress

Dam construction continuing, earthworks are well advanced, control
structure also progressing. Establishment and maintenance continuing for
completed landscape planting. Targeting June 2023 for completion of civil
works, with control gate commissioning and landscaping to continue into
FY24,

SW Cashmere Worsleys Flood
Storage (LDRP 500) (+)

Project is making good progress and is on track to complete all deliverables
SW Eastman Sutherland and within budget. Some plants will be planted after project completion as
Hoon Hay Wetlands (+) 600,000 native, eco sourced plants {including 110,000 trees) cannot be
secured and planted within the project timeframe.

Multi-year, multi-stage Infrastructure Provision Agreement where Council
reimburses developer on stage completion. Phasing of spend is dependent
on developers timeframes, however Stage 2 basins are complete and
handed over. Bulk of reimbursement has been paid and final landscaping
will take place within the next 6 months. Phase 1 has been delayed due to
developer plan change.

SW Spreydon Lodge
Infrastructure Provision
Agreement (IPA)

Infrastructure Provision Agreement where Council reimburses developer on
completion. Phasing of spend is dependent on developers timeframes.
Construction in progress onsite. The bulk of the work (civil and professional
fees) is expected to be completed and invoiced before June 2023. Thereis
likely to be a further smaller payment for planting coming out in F¥24 to line
up with the planting season.

SW Styx Centre Cost Share

SW Knights Drain Ponds (LDRP Contractor has now mobilised to site to start site clearance. Construction to
509) take place FY23 /24,

14
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SW Cashmere Stream
Enhancement (Cashmere Road)

SW Timber Lining Renewal -
Marshland Road Canal Reserve
Drain (Stage 1)

SW Quarry Road Drain
Conveyance Improvements &
Sutherlands Road Culverts

SW Lyttelton Reticulation
Renewals (Brick Barrel)

SW Rossendale Infrastructure
Provision Agreement (IPA)

Stages 3 & 4 of Cashmere Stream are underway on site as planned. Funding
for the remaining works is available and good progress is being made,
Provided that weather conditions remain normal, the realigned stream will
be livened this year. There are some key dates to be achieved to meet
ecology related consent conditions (e.g., fish spawning season), making the
timing of this work critical to its success,

Stages 1 & 2 performing well.

Phase 1 (McSaveneys to Prestons) has been awarded. Construction has been
delayed to April based on the latest timber delivery dates. Phase 2 (Prestons
to Hawkins) is in progress. Focus is on design and engagement with the
landowners, once draft designs are sufficiently advanced to help inform
discussions. Engagement is intended to begin in May. Second phase will be
more difficult to design due to presence of endangered species.

Concept design almost complete. Key issue is lack of space in road corridor.
Detailed design on first section (required to separate storm water from
spring water) nearing completion.

Construction of batch two works is ongoing, with nine of eleven manholes
now complete. There have been some delays in confirming stakeholder
reguirements for the remaining two manholes, and some budget risk
remains. Estimates to be completed for remaining scope. St Davids Street
brick barrel replacement works expected to commence in March pending
confirmation.

Multi-year, multi-stage Infrastructure Provision Agreement where council re-
imburses developer on stage completion. Phasing of spend is dependent on
developers timeframes. Completion date of December 2023 is aligned with
LTP funding and developer’s expectation of completion.
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Transport

Excludes OARC transport projects (see OARC section) and waste projects (see Waste Management section).

Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Transport (excl. Waste 139.5 122.4 64.6 88%
Management and OARC)

Monthly Financial Time Line

@ Total Forecast @ Total Budget Cumulative Forecast @ Cumulative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

N 103% 107%
e 78%
S$10M 69%
60%
§5M
2% ’”‘d
$OM T 2% - 0% 0% 0%
Aug ep Oct o an Fet Mar Apr May n
Forecast @ Actual Percentage

Transport - Programme Commentary
At the end of February, actuals for the Transport Programme meet 52.8% of the FY23 forecast.

Some of the major projects in the Transport Programme have previously experienced delays, but are now
starting to pick up spend. For example, in February the Chipseal Renewals programme had actuals of $1.3m, and
Major Cycleway projects had combined actuals of $2.5m.

11 new projects were also added to the programme under the Transport Choices / Climate Emergency Response
Fund (CERF) programme this month.
Transport - Financial Commentary

Consolidated Project Manager forecasts for the Transport programme have continued to decrease over the last
month, from $132.4m in January reporting to the current forecast of $122.4m.
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Average actuals for the Transport Programme in FY23 to date are $8.1m / month. To meet the current year-end
forecast, a spend of 514.5m / month would be required for the remaining four months. It is anticipated that the
year-end forecast will further reduce in coming months.

Transport - Risks and Issues Commentary
The biggest risks to the delivery of the current forecast are:

* Morth Island Flood Event - Rehabilitation works on damage caused by the Morth Island Flood Event may
impact existing resourcing issues and extend KiwiRail design review timeframes.

* Resourcing - Projects are seeing delays due to a lack of specialist staff, both internally, and with external
consultants and contractors. Discussions are ongoing with external providers to support increased
delivery, especially early dialogue on Christchurch Regeneration Acceleration Facility (CRAF) and CERF
programmes.

e KiwiRail interface - This has improved in recent months, with works underway on Northern Line and
Halswell Junction Road. There remains significant spend tied up in these works so any change in KiwiRail
programme will have a significant impact on project progress.

* Costinflation - We are seeing new tenders consistently coming in higher than estimated causing project
delays and increased stress on project budgets. This is currently being managed through project
contingencies or the Change Request process.

*  Supply Chain issues - exposure to imported goods such as bitumen and LED lights could impact overall
spend and/or scope. This appears to be easing, and is being managed through earlier ordering of
materials where possible.

Transport - Resources Commentary

It is proving difficult to obtain specialist resource both internally and externally to service the programme and
this is impacting delivery performance. Staff are attempting to manage this through better forecasting and
working closely with key suppliers.

Supply chain risks are also being managed at a programme level, for example, by trying to involve contractors
early in planning renewals works so they can guarantee bitumen supply; or by using alternative procurement
methods such as Early Contractor Involvement and Design and Build to smooth resource requirements and
reduce construction risks.

Transport Commentary on External Funding

The Shovel Ready programme is made up of 5 Major Cycle Routes (MCR) and the Coastal Pathway. The Crown
are contributing total of $71.5m for the MCRs and a total of 515.8m towards the Coastal Pathway. Additional
funding if necessary is required to be sourced through Council. The programme is progressing well with all routes
moving towards or progressing with construction activities.

Christchurch Regeneration Acceleration Facility (CRAF) is a package of works including Public Transport (PT)
and Safety improvements across the city, plus road improvements in five areas. It is capped at 540m. See
appended Capex Watchlist report for further detail. Briefings to Community Boards and Council will take place
in March / April.

Streets for People is a fund from central government, administered by Waka Kotahi, for trialling street layouts.
Council have agreement to receive funding for two projects Gloucester Street and Haeata Connections which are
currently planned to be completed by end of FyY24.

Transport Choices is a package of funding from central government, administered by Waka Kotahi, under the
Climate Emergency Response Fund (CERF), to improve travel around schools and neighbourhoods, and to
improve access by walking, cycling and public transport. Waka Kotahi approved 14 projects submitted by
Council.
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The draft Annual Plan has allowed for 11 CERF projects (three projects have now been excluded). The programme
budget is $25.7m, with 90% of this funded by central government. Detailed design for the projects is to be
completed by September 2023, with delivery by June 2024,

Transport Safety (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Transport Safety

0 0.5 M "] 2.0 M 25M M M
Delivery Package - Tralfic Signals Renewals _ I B
Delivery Package - Minor Road Safety Improvements — I 102
Pound & Ryans Intersection improvement l | L
Road Safety Priorities Delivery Package (CRAF) [ I
Delivery Package - Tralfic Signal Cabling Renewal _ l 116%
Inner Harbour Road Improvement [Lyttelton 1o Diamond Harbou I 63
Marshs & Springs Intersection lmprovements. I Fa
Dyers Pass Corridor Guardrails Installation _ 2469
Evans Pass Road & Reserve Terrace Remedial Woris  [JJJ J 1000
Main North, Marshland & Chaney's Corner Intersection lmprovement l ' 13%
Current Year (FY 23):
- Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
Carryforwand or sovings, Propertion of currenl

year budget forecosted
o be wpen' by year end

Project Progress

Controller replacements completed. Four intersections and pedestrian
crossings currently being designed for full upgrade. Expected delivery in
March to June 2023. CCTV renewals paused until costs for intersection
upgrades confirmed. The FY23 budget is on track to be spent by the end of
the financial year (forecasts will be updated in March to reflect this).

Delivery Package - Traffic
Signals Renewals

This is a programme of projects to improve safety at high risk locations on
the network, The FY23 projects in this package are in scheming / design
phase. Thisincludes eight intersections and a crossing, with consultation

Delivery Package - Minor Road expected to take place this quarter. A carry forward is anticipated for the

fety | . . . .

Safety Improvements delivery of the intersection schemes after consultation and approval.
Consultation on school speed zones concluded in January and tender is
being prepared.

Pound & Ryans Intersection This project is in the early planning phase with the project team being

Improvement formed to start scheme design. Carry forward indicated.

This is a programme of projects to improve safety on the network being
funded by CRAF. 16 projects have been completed, and four projects
Road Safety Priorities Delivery  remain. Three projects are in the detailed design phase and are close to
Package (CRAF) (+) being tendered, these are Clyde/llam, Clyde/Greers and Briggs/Lake Terrace/
Marshland. Consultation on Cashmere/Centaurus/Colombo has recently
finished and a report is being presented to the Community Board in April. A
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Delivery Package - Traffic
Signal Cabling Renewal

Inner Harbour Road
Improvement (Lyttelton to
Diamond Harbour)

Marshs & Springs Intersection
Improvements

Dyers Pass Corridor Guardrails
Installation (+)

Evans Pass Road & Reserve
Terrace Remedial Works (+)

Main North, Marshland &
Chaney’s Corner Intersection
Improvement

carry forward is anticipated for construction of the remaining project next
financial year.

Programme is on track. Final designs of remaining sites complete. Forecast
delivery complete December 2024,

Design is in progress for the two next packages of high priority drainage
remediation sites far construction.

Construction complete and the project is in close phase,

Main safety barrier construction works completed in December 2022 within
budget as planned. Minor finishing and maintenance works are being
programmed for completion before winter by the maintenance contractor.

Currently finalising design on the first small preparatory works package of
drainage improvements towards the top of Evans Pass. Aiming to

commence this work in F¥23 Q4. Design is also being progressed on the next

larger work package and following stages of the delivery programme.

Investigation works are currently underway. Expecting to commence scheme

design in April 2023, Carry forward indicated.

Transport Access (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Transport Access

(Y] M 4 M GM M 10M 12M 4 M
Central City Projects ! tres i flili I I 10%
Carriageway Reseals - Asphalt - ' ||
Annéx, Brmingham & Wrights Comidor improssement . I il %
Mairehau Road Corridor Improvement (Burwood to Marshland I'I'
i wirch No ' Corridor Dowrstream EMects Delivery Packag . I'-"
Delivery Package - Reta bl |5 Benewals l l Pa
Current Year (FY 23)
-A:tuals Forecast Forecast Underspend IBudgeL % Forecast Result
Corryforwand or sovings, Proportion of cumrent
pear budget forecosted
o be spent by yeor and
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Project

Carriageway Reseals -
Chipseal

Halswell Junction Road
Extension (+)

Godley Quay Carriageway
Drainage and Footpath (+)

Central City Projects -
Gloucester Street
(Manchester to Colombao)

Condell Ave Street
Renewals

Carriageway Reseals -
Asphalt

Annex, Birmingham &
Wrights Corridor
Improvemnent

Mairehau Road Corridor
Improvement (Burwood to
Marshland)

Christchurch Northern
Carridor Downstream
Effects Delivery Package

Delivery Package -
Retaining Walls Renewals

Progress

Sealing season continues. Work programmes are in place with several
contractors. Completion dates range from February to May 2023, Additional
resource is being brought in some areas to support programme delivery.

Procurement phase for the new link road is ongoing. Overall red status
reflects ongoing risks relating to project costs and timeframes. KiwiRail design
works are progressing. Prior to works starting onsite there will be a period of
stakeholder engagement with the community.

Main road, footpath, rock mitigation and fibre installation will be completed
in time for the SailGP event 18/19 March 2023. Some additional works
including stormwater infrastructure, non-structural retaining walls and
landscaping will be completed following the event due to material delays and
seasonal issues for planting works, Carry forward indicated.

This project is proposed to be put on hold for one year to allow delivery of the
CERF programme. The project is supported by the Streets for People trial
which is yet to be approved.

This project is proposed to be put on hold for one year to allow delivery of the
CERF programme. It is currently in the scheme design phase. Carry forward
indicated.

All projects on track to meet projected expenditure.

Blenheim/Hansens/Annex Intersection upgrades are due to finish in April.
Annex Rd MCR cycleway design is dependant on the outcome of the process
with KiwiRail regarding the railway crossing design on Annex Rd. Currently in
the middle of the risk assessment process.

The project is in detailed design phase with key constraints such as narrow
road corridor and large drains. Scope was increased to include footpath on
Marshland Rd from Mairehau to SHT4, and pertion of land purchase at
intersection of Marshland/Mairehau.

Eight design tasks to be delivered. Amongst these, Cranford Street Bus Lane
and options for Flockton Street are high priorities. Options to be presented by
June.

Reserve Terrace retaining wall construction commenced in January and is
expected to be completed by the end of March 2023. Construction on Bridle
Path retaining wall to start April 2023. Procurement processes for the
construction of other prioritised retaining walls are progressing,
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Transport Environment (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Transport Environment

M, yCheway - NorWest Arc Route [Section 1) Univer sty to Ha - If'
M, Wl Ex Gl 1) Hel b e . I.||-
o eway - Northern Line § i - B
¥ i Mg 1 - Moo . I
M way - M l A Houl 5 A d W 15 . I T
Current Year (FY 23):
-!c'luals Forecast Forecast Underspend lBudgel % Forecast Result
Cormyfarmard or sovings Proportion of current
rear budge? forecosied
to be spent by peor end]
Project Progress

Detailed design for Section 3A {University to Jellie Park) 95% complete.

Majar Cycleway - Mor'West Detailed design for 3B {Jellie Park to Harewood Rd) 50% complete. Resource
Arc Route {Section 3) consent approval is needed prior to commencing construction and a resource
University to Harewood consent hearing is expected in mid-April. Carry forward in FY23 indicated and

additional budget requirements under review.

Arange of issues (e.g., service renewals, sensitive ecology and wildlife,
consenting) have impacted timeframes on this project. Project budget is also
atrisk and is being managed closely. Stage 1 up to Yacht club to be completed
March 2023, The revised timeline for the overall project is for completion of
delivery in April 2024.

Coastal Pathway & Moncks
Bay

The revised programme for remaining works has an indicative start date in
April 2023. This will create an unrestricted route from Carmen Road to the city
centre and will complete this section of the MCR. Efforts are being made to
mitigate the impact of construction through autumn and winter.

Major Cycleway - South
Express Route [Section 2)
Craven to Buchanans

Adelivery plan has been developed and contract documentation is being
progressed. Project dates will depend on interface with KiwiRail but effort is
being made to ensure physical works of the whole route progresses as much
as possible.

Major Cycleway - South
Express Route (Section 1) Hei
Heito Jones

Construction on both stages continues. Section 2C (The Tannery, Cumnor
Major Cycleway - Heathcote  Terrace, through Kennaway Reserve to Vaila Place) is 70% complete. Section
Expressway Route (Section2) 2D (Vaila Place, State Highway 74, Scuttons Road, Truscotts Road to
Tannery to Martindales Martindales Road) is 26% complete. Current forecast practical completion in
February 2025,
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Major Cycleway Northern
Line Route (Section 2)
Tuckers to Barnes & Main
Morth Road

Core Public Transport Route
& Facilities - South-West
Lincoln Road (Phase 1) (+)

Major Cycleway - Rapanui -
Shag Rock Route (Section 3)
Dyers to Ferry Road Bridge

Central City Projects - Antigua
Street Cycle Network (Tuam-
Moorhouse) (+)

Major Cycleway - Mor"West
Arc Route (Section 2) Annex &
Wigram Road to University

Construction to commence in April 2023. Some design issues for the corridor
sections are currently being resolved prior to construction starting. Railway
crossings to be upgraded June 2023.

Although construction finished early, there are three verandas which require
modification. These designs and agreements are with the property owners.
The post construction safety audit is due for completion. Bring back indicated.

Construction works completed ahead of time as of November 2022, Cycleway
is open to public. Currently in defects liability. Bring back indicated.

In final stages of detailed design. Work on agreements taking place with
Property and Legal teams. Orion Kiosk fire rating is required for new location.
Change request submitted for revised delivery dates. Current forecast
completion of delivery in March 2024,

Remaining construction package Section 2D Suva Street gutter renewals

commenced construction in January 2023. Current forecast completion of
project delivery July 2023,
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Waste Management
Financial Year Summary
Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Waste Management 5.0 3.6 1.5 71%
Monthly Financial Time Line
= u Aug ep t NO\ Dec ar Feb 3 A A J
@7 e @08 e umulative e ®Cu tive |
Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast
$0.6M 298%
251%
$0.2M 123% I 131%
61%
oy 7% w . l fed) wsq “! I%em I 0% 0% 0%
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov De ar Feb Mar Apr May un
Forecast @Actua Percemt A()€

Waste Management - Overall Commentary

Some key projects have been unable to progress beyond early planning this financial year, with dependencies
on completion of masterplans (e.g., Transfer Station Site Redevelopments) and Service Delivery Review
(Kerbside Service Enhancement). This has resulted in a low spend to date in FY23.

Waste Management - Financial Commentary

e Consolidated Project Manager forecasts for the Waste Management programme have decreased
further this month, from $4.2m in January reporting to the current forecast of $3.6m.

e Average actuals for Waste Management in FY23 to date are $182k / month. To meet the current year-end
forecast, a spend of 5524k / month would be required for the remaining four months. Itis anticipated
that the year-end forecast will further reduce in coming months.
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Organics Processing Plant (OPP)

Reporting on this project is being provided to Council separately.

Waste Management Project Updates (top 5 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Waste Management

0K 200K A00K, BO0K BDOK 1, 000K 1, 200K

Transfer Station Site Redevelopments I 4%

Bexley Closed Landfill Foreshore Remediation Project - I 11%

Umlkui'..lyl.|nt|1i||Fhllmlrjl.allul] — I 142%:

Kerbside Service Enhancement I I A%

Closed Landfill Aftercare Burwood - I 90%

Current Year (FY 23):

- Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
Corryforwand or sovings, Proportion of cumrent
pear budget forecosted

o be spent by yeor end

Project Progress

Transfer Station Site A masterplan for the site is being developed in 2023. This plan will
Redevelopments inform future construction works. Carry forward indicated.

Bexley Closed Landfill Foreshore Project complete with a 24 month defects liability (+ 12 months
Remediation Project optional) on landscape. Expect completion August 2023 or August 2024,

Remediation of the landfill cap underway. Erosion and sediment
control measures are in place, fill is being trucked in. Due to the site
topography and a significant amount of vegetation clearance required,
the exact volumes of capping material were difficult to determine.
Confirmation of capping material volumes due early March and
additional funds will be required. Works to be completed in FY23.

Onuku Bay Landfill Remediation

. . Awaiti h f th ice Deli Revi ion 1TA),
Kerbside Service Enhancement waiting t eo_u tclomeo the Service Delivery Review (Section )
Carry forward indicated.

Site restoration, final landscape planning, soils cover and pond

Closed Landfill Aftercare Burwood . )
reclamations angoing.
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Parks

Excludes OARC parks projects (see OARC section).
Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual

Parks (excl. OARC) 38.8 46.1 28.3

Monthly Financial Time Line

Forecast Result

119%

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

189%
133% 131%
118% 120%

o 9% 95%
§2M

5%
- l 7% u 0%

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jar Feb Mar Aps

SOM

Forecast @Actual  Percentage

Parks - Programme Commentary

0% 0%

Parks continue to follow a revised approach to the planning and delivery of the Parks programme. This

approach was successful in FY22 and project delivery to date in FY23 is progressing well.

Parks - Financial Commentary

The Parks programme is forecasting to deliver ahead of the FY23 budget, with actuals of $28.3m (73% of
budget) for the year to date. 47% of this actual spend is on the 10 largest projects in FY23 (listed below).

Parks - Risks and Issues Commentary

¢ Supply chain issues - Delays in receiving both domestic and imported goods.
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« Costinflation - Itis likely that scoped work costs will soon start to exceed project budgets. This may
prevent projects from progressing through to tender or construction without the need to alter project

scopes or increase budgets.

Parks - Resource Commentary

» Dedicated resources have been assigned to scope projects, assess deliverability and define the delivery
mechanism (through Community, Rangers, Parks Project Managers). Priority is on completing this
activity for FY23, with a wider focus on the next three years to enable a rolling programme of work in
canstruction for future years.

»  The development of the FY24 programme is well advanced with 96% of the projects initiated.

»  Community Boards have been sent lists of all Community Parks programmed renewals for FY24, 25 and
26. Staff will be attending workshops with the board to discuss this programme.

Parks Project Updates (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Parks

oM 1M M I am 1| 5 M
Red Zone Regeneration Southshore and South New Brighton Estuany | I l FoH
Linwood Park - Village Remediation - I AT
oiamand Harbour wihart Renewal ||| G 221%
Akaroa Whael Remnewal . I W
tiperes’ War Memaorial Eartheg Al -I rE
Hagley Park Planned Hard Surfaces Renewals . I &%

Project

Old Municipal Chambers (+)

Wga Puna Wai Car Park and
Access Improvements

Current Year (FY 23):

- Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend IBudge! % Forecast Result
cormyfansand or sovings (Propartion of current
year budge? forecosted
o B SpEnt Dy peav BN
Progress

Construction ongoing. A number of issues have impacted the schedule. A
new programme is in place with a completion date of September 2023 for
the base build. Council contribution remains capped.

This project is being run in conjunction with the separately-funded design
and build of the new Netsal Sports Centre building. The building
platform/enabling works is complete, building structural steel has been
installed, and precast and wall cladding underway. The first slab pour is
complete. The design for the CCC-funded external landscape and civil
works is also complete. There have been some delays in the processing
of the Stage 2 building consent and this may impact the overall Netsal
programme, Target completion is still late September 2023, with
potential for ~2 month extension.
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Waval Point Development Plan

(+)

Red Zone Regeneration-
Southshore and South New
Brighton Estuary Edge Erosion
Management (+)

Linwood Park - Village
Remediation

Lancaster Park War Memorial
Entrance Gates (Capex)

Diamond Harbour Wharf
Renewal

Akaroa Wharf Renewal (+)

Citizens” War Memorial
Earthquake Repair (+)

Hagley Park Planned Hard
Surfaces Renewals

The SailGP event site and Te Nukutai o Tapoa - Naval Point car park
upgrade works are complete. Some final elements to support site
security are in progress, and an overall tidy up of the site is taking place.
Planning and consultation for subsequent stages of work is also
underway. This includes a new sports / change facility, marine safety
improvements and pedestrian access to support the growth of
recreational uses for the area. Bring back of future year funding
indicated.

The subsurface survey report for midden sites in South Mew Brighton
Park has been issued and input received to inform design. Completion of
Southshore preliminary design in preparation for consent lodgement is
also underway. Engagement with key parties remains the biggest risk to
the programme; this is a key focus for the project team.

Physical works (earthworks, drainage, irrigation) are now well advanced
on site and on time for a planned sowing of the new field in March 2023,

Crack injection now 80% complete. The requirement to address the
porous concrete impacted the programme schedule. Construction tasks
are being brought forward where possible. Current expected completion
of construction end of March 2023.

Pontoon is in place; aluminium ramps and gangway to be installed. Work
has commenced on lifting decking and replacing stringers. Wharf upgrade
and repairs to continue until June 2023. Bring back indicated.

Warking on procurement of Lead Designer (Preliminary Design) and a
Design and Build Contractor. Expecting to release Lead Designer tender
to the market in late March 2023. Condition report of the substructure of
the existing buildings will provide maore certainty around scope and cost.
Carry forward indicated for FY23 due to procurement delays,

The central memorial is now fully complete with all statues reinstated.
Work has commenced on the platform area with the front granite steps,
piers and granite trim complete. A re-dedication ceremony was held on
17 February with Her Royal Highness Princess Anne in attendance.
Currently the project is forecast to be complete at the end of March. A
change request for the additional budget required in FY23 will be
prepared. Works to commence in a fortnight on the landscaping in
preparation for ANZAC Day.

Hagley Oval Carpark Renewal: Lighting design is in progress.
Construction planned October - December 2023,

Riccarton Morth Path: Construction planned April 2023 - June 2023.

27

Item No.: 9

Page 70

Item 9

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council -

Otakaro Avon River Corridor (OARC)

This section of the report covers OARC projects across three activity areas - Parks, Transport and Three Waters.
Financial Year Summary
$m Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result

Otakaro Avon River Corridor 9.7 11.1 6.2 115%

Monthly Financial Time Line

® Total Forecast @ Total Budget ® Cumulative Forecast @ Cumuiative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast
170%

125%

—_—
%
50%
- 1% 0% 0% 0%

Forecast @ Actua Percentage

123%
o 5% 67%
_JEY
S =
AUG Sef 1

OARC - Programme Commentary

Five parks design projects are well underway across the corridor. Concept designs are being progressed, and
ongoing engagement is occurring. Consent lodgement is planned for these projects throughout 2023, and this
remains on track. The projects are:

e City to Sea Pathway

e Wainoni Landing

e  Kerrs Reach Flatwater Hub

e Ecological restoration - Bexley Estuarine Wetland
e Avon Park re-development

A programme-level global consenting project to address the programme’s current consenting issues has been
established and is going through the funding approvals process.
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GARC - Financial Commentary

The FY23 forecast for the OARC programme has increased in recent months to $11.1m (115% of budget). The
increase is largely driven by three stormwater projects in the programme: SW Waitaki Street, SW Pages to
Bridge and SW Wainoni to Waitaki Stopbank. Each of these projects is indicating a bring back of funds for FY23,
due to good progress on field investigations, design and stopbank construction.

However, this progress is threatened by the ongoing water take issue (below). This issue, if not resolved, will
impact timeframes and costs for construction of the stormwater facilities and wetlands for these same projects.

OARC - Risks and Issues Commentary

Key issues and risks include the below, all of which are being actively managed:

+ Environment Canterbury’s interpretation of ground water take: This is the key risk for all projects
within the Regeneration Plan. The current position is that any exposing of groundwater is a passive
water take, and therefore a prohibited activity. Eastern areas are particularly affected, as groundwater
is very close to surface level. Efforts continue at multiple levels to resolve and unlock some of these
barriers to progress.

+ Contamination, including leachate to the river: Work continues on agreements with Environment
Canterbury around contamination within former road beds (coal tar), contamination of former
residential soils (asbestos, heavy metals) and potential discharge into the river of the same.

+ Orion Network: Work continues with Orion to determine the implications on the existing network of
the proposals within the Regeneration Plan, and costs associated with this,

s Cutffill balance: Future earthworks is a significant design consideration to minimise costs and
allocate community planting areas.

OARC - Resources Commentary

Projects underway are well resourced externally, but internal staff resources across multiple disciplines are
stretched to meet the amount of support that these projects require.

OARC - Commentary on External Funding

¢ The Christchurch Earthquake Appeal Trust (CEAT) allocated $5.5m worth of new funding, to go to the
fourth City to Sea bridge (at Dallington Loop), and the redevelopment of Avon Park to facilitate the City
to Sea Pathway. Invoices for the first progress payments have been issued.

» The remainder of the funding for Parks projects over the next four years will be covered by the $40m
CRAF fund that was allocated to the Corridor.

* Quarterly reporting on progress is being supplied to both funding providers.
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OARC Project Updates (top 10 projects by FY23 budget)
Forecast Delivery (FY23) - OARC
0.0M 0.5M 1.0M 1.5M 2.0M 2.5M 1,08 1.5M A0

Hakaro-Avon R |,'|-|{n||r1|:-|1n|||-'|'||||||y‘.||.||w\i".rl |.n||||||_|.'.~.l:(hf\,|l( _ I
Otakaro-Avon River Carridor City to Sea Pathway (OARC) -

Otakano-Avon River Corridor Ec ological Restoration (OARC) . I 6%
SW Flood Management Avon River Flood Modelling (OARC) | I 5%
Pages Road Bridge Renewal (OARC) . I A%
SWwWaikakariki - Horseshoe Lake (QARC) I I 28%
SW Pages Lo Bridge (QARC) _ 23506

SWWainoni to Waitaki Stopbank (OARC) .

Residential Red Zone - Asset Renewals (QARC) .

Project

SW Waitaki Street (DARC)

Otakaro-Avon River
Corridor Community
Spaces incl. Landings

(OARC)

Otidkaro-Avon River
Corridor City to Sea
Pathway (QARC)

Otakaro-Avon River
Corridor Ecological
Restoration (OARC)

SW Flood Management
Avon River Flood
Modelling (OARC)

Pages Road Bridge
Renewal (OARC)

LA

156%

Current Year (FY 23):

- Actuals

Forecast IBudget 4 Forecast Result

(Propartion of curnent

Forecast Underspend
[Carryfarwond or sovings)

paar budged forecos bed

1 b et By e and]

Progress

Current delay in Contract 3 (stormwater facility and associated landscaping] is
mainly due to groundwater take issue. Council and ECan are meeting regularly
to discuss and resolve. In the interim, stopbank construction is continuing, to
be completed by May 2023. An update on all aspects is expected by June 2023.
Bring back indicated.

Projects currently an track but likely to experience some overall delays due to
community/stakeholder engagement and consenting requirements. Bring
back anticipated.

Projects on track for design to be completed and consents lodged by the end
of FY23.

Projects are on track. Bexley Estuarine Wetland project is in early design
phase. Planting/restoration projects are in Dallington, Retreat Rd, Goodman
Terrace, Cedarwood Reserve and Chimera Crescent. Plants have been ordered
and will be installed next planting season (winter 2023).

Hazard studies and baseline modelling (stage 2) complete. Stage 3
assessment for the Avon catchment is in start-up. A reduction in scope for
Stage 3 has been approved. This is to consider only one option (the current
proposed engineering defence as included in the LTP) rather than all the
potential options. Delivery of Multi hazard for Avan is currently forecast for
early 2024,

Project is currently in scheme design phase. Overall red status reflects the

delivery timeframe and finalising scope of works {including cost estimates)
required to complete the project. When the scheme design is developed, a
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SW Waikakariki -
Horseshoe Lake (OARC)

SW Pages to Bridge
(OARC)

SW Wainoni to Waitaki
Stopbank (OARC)

Residential Red Zone -
Asset Renewals (OARC)

briefing will be held for the Executive Leadership Team, Community Board and
Council. This is currently anticipated for June 2023.

Delay in design and project delivery. Main issue relates to groundwater take
and contamination. Council and ECan are meeting regularly to discuss and
resolve. In the interim, further field investigation work is continuing to fully
understand all options and assist with consenting pathways, design, costs and
project viability. Expect an update on all aspects by June 2023. Anticipating
start of construction in September 2024.

Delay in design and project delivery. Main issue relates to groundwater take
and contamination. Council and ECan are meeting regularly to discuss and
resolve. In the interim, further field investigation and preliminary design work
is continuing to fully understand all options and assist with consenting
pathways, design, costs and project viability. Expect an update on all aspects
by June 2023. Bring back indicated.

Delay in design and project delivery. Main issue relates to groundwater take
and contamination. Council and ECan are meeting regularly to discuss and
resolve. In the interim, further field investigation and preliminary design work
is continuing to fully understand all options and assist with consenting
pathways, design, costs and project viability. Expect an update on all aspects
by June 2023. Bring back indicated.

Gate and perimeter security project in design phase. Delivery of materials due

to start in March. Project on track for completion in F¥23. Bring back
anticipated.
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Recreation, Sport and Events

Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result

Recreation, Sports and Events 10.6 7.8 3.7 74%

Monthly Financial Time Line

@ Total Forecast @Total Budget ® Cumulative Forecast @Cumulative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

131%

78% 79%
69% 66%
56%
A3%
B ER i
$0.0M 0% 0% 0% 0%
Aug Sep Oct Dec jan Feb May Jun

Forecast @Actual  Percentage

RSE - Programme Commentary

This year's programme will not be fully delivered due to consent and leasing delays as reported below.

RSE - Financial Commentary

The current forecast for the year indicates $7.8m (74%) of the current year budget of $10.6m will be spent. The
forecast underspend is largely driven by consent and leasing delays in two projects: the renewals and
replacement programmes at Pioneer and Graham Condon Recreation and Sport Centres. Carry forwards will
be requested.

RSE - Risks and Issues Commentary

There have been consenting delays at Pioneer Recreation and Sport Centre in relation to the use of
groundwater for heating. There are also ongoing supply chain risks for all the equipment purchase projects.

RSE - Resource Commentary

Staff resources are appropriate to performance against capital programme both this year and going forward.
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RSE Project Updates (top 5 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Recreation, Sports and Events

0.0M 0.5 1.0M 1.5M 2.0M 2.5M 3.0M 1.5M
Pioneer Renewals & Replacements - I 42%
Graham Condon Cycle Shutdown I I 61%
Pioneer Carpark Renewal I I 12%
Talora QEIl Renewals & Replacements - I 100%

Fitness Equipment Renewals & Replacements .

Project

Pioneer Renewals &
Replacements

Graham Condon Cycle
Shutdown

Pioneer Carpark Renewal

Taiora QEll Renewals &
Replacements

Fitness Equipment Renewals
& Replacements

I 102%

Current Year (FY 23):

- Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend l Budget % Forecast Result
Cormytarmard or sovings Proportion of current
rear budge! forecoiled
tor b ppenst By peor end
Progress

The contract for the ground source hot water bore has been awarded. The
contract for the associated pipework is out to tender. Planning is underway
for stadium heating improvements, i.e., no longer using diesel.

Plantroom alterations, new filters and mechanical plant are all currently
being designed. Early procurement will be required for A/C units and filters,
ensuring our shutdown program can be met. Further scoping meeting
booked with facility.

Physical works commencing late January 2023, with expected completion by
the end of March 2023.

Warks committed and due for completion in March.

47% of budget spent for year to date. Major bulk order has been committed;
delivery will be split over the next few months.
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Digital
Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result

Digital 23.2 27.5 18.0 119%

Monthly Financial Time Line

H
k 1)
9 L
)
¢
©

Attachment A

Aug ef ot NV De ) Fel Mar Ap

® Total Forecast @ Total Budget & Cumulative Forecast @ Cumulative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

116% 13%

105%
96%
$2M - s% | 8%
60%
SOM -
5% 0% 0% 0%
{ ) n Fet Mar r

u Aug OV ( ) va May

Forecast @Actual  Percentage

Digital - Programme Commentary

77% of FY23 budget spent to date.

Digital - Financial Commentary

91% of the FY23 budget is drawn down (or approved to be drawn down pending financial processing). The
remaining budget will be drawn down to projects within the next few months.

Digital - Risks and Issues Commentary

e Current portfolio level risks and issues are largely centred on resource availability and scheduling
conflicts due to resource and IT system environment constraints.

e APortfolio Delivery Risk Management Working Group is in place to address management of
dependencies, risks and issues across the Portfolio.
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Digital - Resource Commentary

»  Recruitment of permanent staff for vacant and key roles continues but is made increasingly difficult
with skill shortages and a competitive market. This has necessitated the engagement of contractors
and outsourcing where necessary to fill the vacancies while recruitment continues,

* Programmes and complex projects have increased demand for resources; contractors and fixed term
arrangements are being used to mitigate impacts.
Digital Project Updates (top 5 projects by FY23 budget)

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Digital

0.0M 05 10M 15M 20M 25M 30M 35M 4.0M 45M 50M

Excess Water Use (IT Project) _ 152%
IT Equipment Infrastructure & Device Replacements & Renewals _ I 100%
SAP Improvement Programme _ I 4%
Digital Citizen Experience - Identity Platform Service _ l 130%
SAP Improvement Programime - Assels - I 108%

Current Year (FY 23):

. Actuals Forecast Forecast Underspend I Budget % Forecast Result
(Carmyforward or sovings, Proportion of cunrent
year budget forecosted
o be spent by yeor and)

Project Progress
Excess Water Use (IT Project is in execute phase. Go-live took place on 19 February. Prior period
Project) (+) excess water billing is being run in batches to manage customer experience

throughput. Project is green (on track) overall, with one amber risk relating to
meter reader monthly read attainment. This is being managed daily. Bring
back indicated.

IT Equipment This is the standard annual capex line item for the renewal and replacement of

Infrastructure & Device IT equipment, including network equipment and computer hardware

Replacements & Renewals (desktops, laptops, monitors, phones, rugged field devices, tablets,
workstations and VDI units). On track in FY23. 58% of budget spent to date.

SAP Improvement Programme is plan phase. Overall status is amber due to resource constraints
Programme across all areas and critical path dependency on completion of the SAP
S4/HANA upgrade and system refresh initiatives. Status of sub-projects:

1) Core Finance & Planning workstream: Forecast completion of execute
phase March 2023

2) Procurement & Contracts workstream: Phase 1 {Self Service
Requisitioning) completing. Expected completion of planning for
Phase 2 (Contract and Vendor Management) March 2023

3} Assets project: Expected completion of planning April 2023

4) Accounts Payment Automation project: Progressing through
procurement activities.
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Digital Citizen Experience  The project is amber (at risk) overall due to issues around data governance
- Identity Platform Service  processes and owners, Options to address resourcing availability risks are
being considered. The project has three phases:

1) Registration and login of individuals as identities (execute phase) -
Build activities nearing completion. Work is being planned for
providing organisations with an identity. Forecast delivery complete
July 2023

2) Moving customer maintenance out of LASER to the Hybris Platform
{plan phase) - Forecast planning complete March 2023

3) First application called MyRates (plan phase) - Forecast planning
complete June 2023,

SAP Improvement Detailed design is on track. Additional budget requirements for planning
Programme - Assets phase are being confirmed. An elaboration document is under development;
this will establish project delivery timeframes, costs, scope and benefits.
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Other Capital

Financial Year Summary

Sm Budget Forecast Actual Forecast Result
Other Capital® 27.3 23.7 14.3 87%
* Includes all remaining FY23 capital: Libraries & Information, Sustainable City Growth & Property, Facilities & Asset Planning, Art
Gallery, Corporate Capital - Shares/Contingency, Community Support, Governance & Partnerships, Civil Defence and Emergency

Management, Technical Services & Design.

Monthly Financial Time Line

w

<
> —

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec an Feb Mar Apr May Jun

@ Total Forecast @Total Budget @ Cumulative Forecast @Cumulative Actual

Monthly Cashflow Actuals vs Forecast

$2M
1M
‘S l - ! ! .
8% ! 99% ! 100%
wont SEd ' sox 0% 0% 0% 0%
i g Sep Oct ec Jan Feb

Mar Apr May un

r

Forecast @Actual  Percentage

Other Capital - Programme and Financial Commentary

This final section of the capital programme is dominated by library collection and building renewals, housing
renewals, corporate property and fleet.

Other Capital - Risks and Issues Commentary

The same risks and issues that have been highlighted across the capital programme have an impact on the
delivery of Other Capital: supply chain, cost escalation and availability of resources (contractors).

Other Capital - Resource Commentary

There is currently a risk with contractor availability. This is being mitigated as much as possible by getting work
to market early, to allow some flexibility with the contractors’ work programmes.
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Other Capital Project Updates (top 5 projects by FY23 budget)

Delivery Package - Corporate Property Renewals & Replacements -

Rolling Package - Library Collection Resources _

Delivery Package - Housing Renewals

Forecast Delivery (FY23) - Other Capital

oM M iM IM aM 2M aM .

Delivery Package - Library Built Asset Renewals & Replacements - I 112%

Delivery Package - Fleet & Plant Asset Purchases .

Project

Rolling Package - Library
Collection Resources

Delivery Package - Housing
Renewals

Delivery Package - Corporate
Property Renewals
Replacements

Delivery Package - Library Built
Asset Renewals & Replacements

Delivery Package - Fleet & Plant
Asset Purchases

Current Year (FY 23):

B 2ctuals Forecast Forecast Underspend | Budget % Forecast Result
Cormformand or s0vings, Proportion of curreal
rear budget forecosted
10 b wpent by pear end
Progress

On track in F¥23 with 63% spent of budget to date. Some fluctuations in
the receipt of new titles due to changes in publishing dates and supply
chainissues.

Social housing renewals are managed by Otautahi Community Housing
Trust. Current focus is on upgrades/remodels at Wycola Courts and
Roimata Courts. Due to contractor and material issues some units will
not be completed until next financial year. Specific scopes have been
reduced to remain within budget. A planisin place to reduce the
overspend by the end of the financial year.

The corporate budget (excluding the heat energy allocation - see
below) is forecasted to be fully spent in FY23, with all projects on track
to be completed this financial year.

Civic heat energy procurement: Currently forecasting to spend
approximately 20% of the $1m budget in FY23. Final options analysis,
internal processes and key decisions have taken longer than
anticipated. A carry forward will be required to support the completion
of this work next year.

There are three library refurbishments taking place through the
financial year: Papanui (complete), New Brighton (currently in consent
process), and Upper Riccarton (to start in April).

Supply chain issues have continued to impact delivery timeframes.

Orders will be placed this year, but budget will likely need to be carried
forward, as some vehicles will not be delivered until next year.
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CHRISTCHURCH CITY COUNCIL - CAPITAL PROGRAMME WATCHLIST
February 2023

CPMS Data Updated: 2/3/23

Major Facilities

Time (Deviation from Baseline)

ST <30 days delay

31-60 days delay

BRI -6 days delay

Budget (Deviation from Baseline)

| Green [sRIEER

Forecast Overspend <5%

m Forecast Overspend =5%

FINANCIALS (All Years) STATUS
Current Current
Original Current
Project Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery Approved Forecast Budget Approved Current Actuals to Overall
Date Delivery Delivery Status Bud Forecast Date Status
Date Date get
Te Kaha Canterbury Multi (Execute)
Jun-25 Apr-26 Apr-26 BT1L.1M 6TL1IM 96.5M
Use Arena (CMUA) Construction ® un pr pr ® > > 3
Parakiore Recreation and (Execute)
Sports Centre (Metro Sport . [ ] Jan-20 Mar-25 Mar-25 [ ] $151.3 M 51513 M S141.8M
Facility) Construction

COMMENTARY

Te Kahais in the Construction Phase, BESIX Watpac
are making good progress on-site on earthworks,
ground improvement (using Rammed Aggregate
Piers), de-watering, site concrete and fabrication of
reinforcing for the West Stand's foundation pads
and ground floor columns. The first five large
concrete pours for the foundation pads have taken
place. Off-site the contractor is working on
procuring materials and subcontractors, and work
continues on the detailed design for the arena.

Project forecasts have been updated this month in
line with revised cashflow information received by
Council. Areduction in early purchasing of roof
steelwork has resulted in a significant decrease in
FY23 forecasts. The project is still anticipating a
bring back in FY23, and remains on track to budget
for all years.

Parakiore is in the Construction Phase. The
structure, external cladding and roofing have
almost been completed, and the current work focus
is on internal construction work and carpark.
Otakaro have reviewed the construction
programme. Global construction sector constraints
and challenging ground conditions have hampered
progress. Construction is planned to be completed
at the end of 2024, with opening planned in early
2025 following fit-out.
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Original Current Current Current
Project Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery s S Forecast e Approved Current Ll
Date Delivery Delivery Status Budget Forecast Date
Date Date
Matatiki: Hornby Centre & Performing Arts Precinct _
Matatiki: Hornby Centre (Execute) @ Apr-20 Feb-24 Feb-24 - §22.4M
) 4 Construction P ’
E t
Performing Arts Precinct (Execute) @ Jun-18 Nov-24 Nov-24 [ ] $53.0 M $53.0 M 55.5 M

Matatiki: Hornby Centre and
Performing Arts Precinct

Construction

Three Waters

WW Lyttelton Harbour {Execute)

STATUS COMMENTARY

Overall

Status

The library roof and walls are well underway, and
the pool hall roof structure has commenced.
Closing in the building is expected to finish in late
July. Supply times, resource competition, and
design clarifications remain the main project risks.

PMO Note: Detailed financial information is currently
withheld due to commercial sensitivity.

Physical works are now well underway. The initial
stage of reinforcing is complete awaiting the first
concrete pour. The site hoarding has been extended
to the final position within the road reserve. The
review of technical submissions continue. A key
focus in the coming periods will be the coordination
required to lodge Stage 2 building consent.

Lyttelton Harbour Project is in the final stages and
Lyttelton Wastewater Treatment Plant is no longer
discharging to harbour, all wastewater is passing
through Simeon Quay to the Christchurch

. Feb-19 Jun-22 Mar-23 60.5 M 589.5 M 56.8 M .
Wastewater Scheme Construction ® ® ? ? » Wastewater Treatment Plant via PS15.
Decommission of Lyttelton Wastewater Treatment
Plant has commenced, forecast completion
March/April 2023,
Resource consent to be submitted in March.
WW Akaroa Reclaimed (Execute) Completion of draft procurement strategy also
Water Treatment & Reuse Investigate @ Jun-16 Jul-29 Jul-29 D 5T45M 575.6 M 513.1M expected by end of March. Re-estimation of project
Scheme g to include draft resource consent conditions taking
place. Inflow and Infiltration renewals are complete.
CWTP Trickling Filter Project will be briefed following settlement of
5 Concept @ Jun-21 Jun-27 Jun-27 [ ] $14.0M 50.5M $0.0 M ol _ B
Renewal insurance claim.
Darn construction continuing, earthworks are well
advanced, control structure also progressing.
SW Cashmere Worsleys (Execute) Establishment and maintenance continuing for
. Apr-17 Jun-23 Jun-23 33.0M 33.3M 26.9 M completed landscape planting. Targeting June 2023
Flood Storage (LDRP 500) Canstruction ® P ® 5 > 5 P pep B Targeting

for completion of civil works, with control gate
commissioning and landscaping to continue into
FY24.
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TIME FINANCIALS (All Years) STATUS COMMENTARY
Original Current Current Current
. . Approved Forecast Budget Current Actuals to Overall
Project Title Current Phase Time Status | Delive Approved
! e | petivery | Detivery Status et Forecast Date Status
Date Date ge
Project is making good progress and is on track to
SW Eastman Sutherland complete all deliverables within budget. Some
and Hoon Hay Wetlands (Execute) plants will be planted after project completion as
Jun-24 May-25 Dec-24 39.8M 39.9M 31.7TM
{includes Eastman Wetland's Handover ® un ay & ® > ? ’ 600,000 native, eco sourced plants {including
(LDRP 528)) 110,000 trees) cannot be secured and planted

E within the project timeframe.
L
E The subsurface survey report for midden sites in
E South New Brighton Park has been issued and input
F | sW South New Brighton & received to inform design. Completion of

Southshore Estuary Edge Plan ® Jun-26 Jun-26 Jun-26 9 $6.5 M ST.OM 504 M Southshore preliminary design in preparation for

Flood Mitigation

Dyers Pass Corridor Safety
Improvements (includes

Transport and Waste Management

(Execute)

Guardrails, Cycle Safety and Construction ® Jun-19 Dec-22 Dec-22 ® S13.4M S13.4M $12.3M
Pedestrian)
Evans Pass Road & Reserve .
Terrace Remedial Works (Execute) Design ] Jun-19 Jun-28 Jun-28 ] 5245 M $24.5M 52.0M
Ha"swe;:‘::::;::" Road (Execute) Procure () Jun-16 Jul-24 Jul-24 ) $18.0 M $18.0 M $10.2 M
Godley Quay Carriageway (Execute] @ Jun-21 Oct-23 Oct-23 ] $5.3M $5.1M S3.6M

Drainage and Footpath

Construction

consent lodgement is also underway. Engagement
with key parties remains the biggest risk to the
programme; this is a key focus for the project team.

Main safety barrier construction works completed in
December 2022 within budget as planned. Minar
finishing and maintenance works are being
programmed for completion before winter by the
maintenance contractor.

Currently finalising design on the first small
preparatory works package of drainage
improvements towards the top of Evans Pass.
Aiming to commence this work in FY23 Q4. Design is
also being progressed on the next larger work
package and following stages of the delivery
programme.

Procurement phase for the new link road is ongoing.
Overall red status reflects ongoing risks relating to
project costs and timeframes. KiwiRail design works
are progressing. Prior to works starting onsite there
will be a period of stakeholder engagement with the
community.

Main road, footpath, rock mitigation and fibre
installation will be completed in time for the SailGP
event 18/19 March 2023. Some additional works
including stormwater infrastructure, non-structural
retaining walls and landscaping will be completed
following the event due to material delays and
seasonal issues for planting works. Carry forward
indicated.
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Original Current Current Current
Project Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery oL Forecast -l Approved Current S el
Date Delivery Delivery Status Budget Forecast Date Status
Date Date ge
. Although construction finished early, there are
re P Tr
R:uutl:& :::Ii:itie:nssp:::h (Execute) three verandas which require modification. These
. . - ® Jun-20 Oct-23 Oct-22 ] 57.0M 57.0M $6.5 M designs and agreements are with the property
West l'mmhlr oad (Phase Handover owners. The post construction safety audit is due
for completion. Bring back indicated.
Barrington, Lincoln & . ,
Whiteleigh Intersection (Execute) ® Jun-17 Oct-23 Oct-22 ® S1.5M $1.5M §1.4 M Post construction safety audit has been completed
Handover and may require some minor expenditure.
Improvement
Red status reflects changes required to
accommuodate the entry/exit to the Netsal
Wigram & Hayton {Execute) development at Nga Puna Wai and the associated
Intersection Improvement Investigate ® Jun-21 Jul-22 Aug-24 ® SLOM $2.5M $0-2M risk to project time and cost. New investigation and
= scheme design is underway, with three options in
£ development.
o
E' The area outside of the Old Post Office has now
= been constructed, with lighting replacement due
: r
g The Ca;::f:::‘:zuare& C;E:::::Ln ] Jun-21 Jan-26 Jan-26 @ S9.7 M §9.7TM S3.7M late March. The next stage (adjacent to the
g- Distinction Hotel and the Old Government
° buildings) is expected to start construction in June.
i+
t Lincoln Road Passenger Design team has been formed and property
a | Transport Improvements . purchases are proceeding. Issue with one critical
= E D Jun-21 -24 -24 9.6 M BM 1.2 M
E (Between Curletts & (Execute) Design @ un Sep Sep ® s 39.6 5 property purchase raised. Temporary design
= Wrights) solutions being investigated.
In final stages of detailed design. Work on
agreements taking place with Property and Legal
Central City Projects - teams, Orion Kiosk fire rating is required for new
Antigua Street:: cle location. Change request submitted for revised
Negtwurk [Tua:l (Execute) Design @ Jun-21 Aug-23 Mar-24 ] S3.7M $3.7TM S0.8 M delivery dates. Current forecast completion of
. . s
Moorhouse) delivery in March 202
PMO Comment: Amber status reflects forecast
delivery ~7 months behind approved delivery date.
Organics Processing Plant Plan ® un-31 Jun-26 T ) $39.6 M i Reporting on this project is being provided to
Development ' Council separately.
Construction ongoing. A number of issues have
(Execute) impacted the schedule. Anew programme isin
Old Municipal Chambers Construction [ ] Mar-23 Mar-23 Sep-23 ] 5113 M 511.2M $9.3 M place with a completion date of September 2023 for
OnStrueto the base build. Council contribution remains
capped.
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Project Title

Current Phase

TIME FINANCIALS (All Years)

Time Status

Original
Delivery
Date

Current
Approved
Delivery
Date

Current

Forecast

Delivery
Date

Budget
Status

Current
Approved
Budget

Current
Forecast

Actuals to
Date

STATUS

Overall
Status

Parks

Naval Point Development
Plan

(Execute)
Investigate

Jun-15

Aug-31

Aug-31

530.1 M

530.1M

513.6 M

Robert McDougall Gallery
Strengthening

(Execute)
Construction

Jun-26

Jun-26

Jun-26

5127 M

5127 M

50.0M

Red Zone Regeneration-
Southshore and South New
Brighton Estuary Edge
Erosion Management

(Execute)
Investigate

Jun-25

Jun-25

Jun-25

55.7 M

55.4 M

50.4 M

COMMENTARY

The 5ailGP event site and Te Nukutai o Tapoa -
Maval Point car park upgrade works are complete.
Some final elements to support site security are in
progress, and an overall tidy up of the site is taking
place. Planning and consultation for subsequent
stages of work is also underway. This includes a new
sports [ change facility, marine safety
improvements and pedestrian access to support the
growth of recreational uses for the area. Bring back
of future year funding indicated.

The Museum have now procured a contractor to
undertake Stage 1 strengthening of the Robert
McDougall Gallery. The Museum is planning to
commence strengthening works early 2023,

The subsurface survey report for midden sites in
South New Brighton Park has been issued and input
received to inform design. Completion of
Southshore preliminary design in preparation for
consent lodgement is also underway. Engagement
with key parties remains the biggest risk to the
programme; this is a key focus for the project team.

Akaroa Wharf Renewal

(Execute)
Investigate

Feb-23

Dec-25

Dec-25

5202 M

5202 M

$1.4M

Working on procurement of Lead Designer
[Preliminary Design) and a Design and Build
Contractor. Expecting to release Lead Designer
tender to the market in late March 2023. Condition
report of the substructure of the existing buildings
will provide more certainty around scope and cost.
Carry forward indicated for FY23 due to
procurement delays.

Citizens' War Memorial
Earthquake Repair

(Execute)
Construction

Jun-19

Jun-23

Jun-23

517 M

51.9M

517 M

The central memaorial is now fully complete with all
statues reinstated. Work has commenced on the
platform area with the front granite steps, piers and
granite trim complete. A re-dedication ceremony
was held on 17 February with Her Royal Highness
Princess Anne in attendance. Currently the project
is forecast to be complete at the end of March. A
change request for the additional budget required
in FY23 will be prepared. Works to commence in a
fortnight on the landscaping in preparation for
ANZAC Day.
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TIME FINANCIALS (All Years)

Original Current Current Current
Project Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery oL Forecast -l Approved Current S
Date Delivery Delivery Status Budeet Forecast Date
Date Date ge
i
Y, Lancaster Park (Execute)
= Jun-26 Jun-26 Jun-26 8TM 8TM 23M
i Redevelopment Construction ® un un un ® ? ? }
]
= Excess Water Use (IT (Execute)
= Jun-21 - - 6.1 M . 5.8 M
'E Project) Handover -] un Feb-23 Feb-23 ] s 56.1M s

STATUS

COMMENTARY

Overall
Status

The park has been open for sport and casual use
since June 2022, with the project moving steadily
through the remaining stages of work (buildings,
playground, visitor experience, landscaping). A
temporary Portacom toilet unit has been plumbed
in and connected to the sewer network and will
open for public use shortly. Construction of the
retaining wall around the Memorial Gates is about
to commence. Procurement planning for the
buildings is underway. Landscape planting and
irrigation plans for this planting season are being
developed.

Project is in execute phase. Go-live took place on 19
February. Prior period excess water billing is being
run in batches to manage customer experience
throughput. Project is green (on track) overall, with
one amber risk relating to meter reader monthly
read attainment. This is being managed daily. Bring
back indicated.
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CHRISTCHURCH CITY COUNCIL - CAPITAL PROGRAMME WATCHLIST
Christchurch Regeneration Acceleration Facility (CRAF) Programmes - Transport

This watchlist provides monthly high-level reporting on the CRAF programmes. Additional reporting is to be provided as follows:

- Quarterly progress updates to the Community Boards on the five areas and any public transport and road safety priority work in their area, starting in March / April 2023
- Six-monthly progress updates to Council on the seven programmes, starting in April 2023
- The Treasury have also requested six-monthly reporting, starting in April 2023.

Time (Deviation from Baseline)

TN <30 days delay

31-60 days delay
=61 days delay

TIME

FINANCIALS (All Years)

Budget (Deviation from Baseline)

TR o Track

Forecast Overspend =5%
Forecast Overspend =5%

Original Current Current Current
Programme Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery Approved Forecast Budget Approved Current Actuals to
Date Delivery Delivery Status Budget Forecast Date
Date Date =
CRAF Transport Access Programmes (Fiveareas) Ml |
Linwood and Woolston (Execute)
Roading & Transport . [ ] Jun-24 Jun-25 Jun-25 @ 56.6 M 56.6 M 50.2 M
Investigate
Improvements {CRAF)
New Brighton Roading & (Execute)
Transport Improvements . ] Jun-24 Jun-25 Jun-25 [ ] $6.6 M $6.6 M S0.3M
Investigate
(CRAF)
Riccarton Roading & (Execute)
Transport Improvements . [ ] Jun-24 Jun-25 Jun-25 @ $6.6 M $6.6 M 50.2 M
(CRAF) Investigate

STATUS

COMMENTARY

Overall
Status

This programme consists of eight projects. Waork is
underway to allocate resources to all projects, in
conjunction with reallocating projects to deliver
CERF. The majority of these projects require scheme
design, consultation and detailed design. The area-
wide speed restriction will be the first project to be
delivered. An update on the programme will be given
to the Board on 27 April 2023,

This programme consists of the Marine Parade
(Hawke - Bowhill) street renewal. Work is underway to!
allocate resources to this project, in conjunction with
reallocating projects to deliver CERF. This project
requires scheme design, consultation and detailed
design. Once consultation feedback has been
received, quick wins for the delivery will be identified.
An update on the project will be given to the Board on
27 April 2023.

This programme consists of 11 projects. Work is
underway to allocate resources to all projects, in
conjunction with reallocating projects to deliver
CERF. The majority of these projects require scheme
design, consultation and detailed design. An update
on the programme will be given to the Boards on 20
March and 23 March 2023.
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TIME

FINANCIALS (All Years)

COMMENTARY

STATUS

CRAF Transport Environment Programme

Programme - Public
Transport Network
Improvements
Programme (CRAF)

Plan

CRAF Transport Environment
Programme

CRAF Transport Safety Programme

Road Safety Priorities
Delivery Package (CRAF)

(Execute)
Construction

CRAF Transport Safety Programme

Jun-24

lun-24

Dec-25

Jun-24

Dec-25

Jun-24

Total

S5.0 M

S5.0M

5403 M

55.0M

$5.0M

5403 M

Original Current Current Current
Programme Title Current Phase Time Status | Delivery i Forecast LA Approved Current R
Date Delivery Delivery Status Budzet Forecast Date
Date Date g
E Richmond Roading & (Execute)
E Transport Improvements i ] Jun-24 Jun-25 Jun-25 () $4.1 M $4.1M $0.3 M
s Investigate
Ty (CRAF)
2
iy
g 9
23
¥
§ m—
£ Spreydon, Somerfield,
- Waltham & Beckenham (Execute)
lun-24 Jun-25 Jun-25 6.6 M 6.6 M 0.2 M
E Roading & Transport Investigate ® o o an ® > > »
(™) Improvements (CRAF)

50.6 M

523 M

Overall
Status

This programme consists of four projects. Work is
underway to allocate resources to all projects, in
conjunction with reallocating projects to deliver
CERF. The majority of these projects require scheme
design, consultation and detailed design. The area-
wide speed restriction will be the first project to be
delivered. An update on the programme will be given
to the Board on 9 March 2023.

This programme consists of 11 projects. Work is
underway to allocate resources to all projects, in
conjunction with reallocating projects to deliver
CERF. The majority of these projects require scheme
design, consultation and detailed design. The area-
wide speed restriction will be the first project to be
delivered. An update on the programme will be given
to the Board on 30 March 2023,

The budget has been drawn down into eight PT
projects, the programme was endorsed in December
2021. The funding allows for all projects to be
developed to a preferred option and for partial
funding of construction. One project scheme has
been approved by Council and is at detailed design
stage, The balance of the projects are at various
stages of scheme development.

This is a programme of projects to improve safety on
the network being funded by CRAF. 16 projects have
been completed, and four projects remain. Three
projects are in the detailed design phase and are
close to being tendered, these are Clyde/llam,
Clyde/Greers and Briggs/Lake Terrace/ Marshland.
Consultation on Cashmere/Centaurus/Colombo has
recently finished and a report is being presented to
the Community Board in April. A carryforward is
anticipated for construction of the remaining project
next financial year.
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10. Development Contributions Rebate Schemes
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 22/1608324

R f/TeP
eport of / Te Pou Gavin Thomas, Principal Advisor Policy (gavin.thomas@ccc.govt.nz)

Matua:
General Manager / Lynn McClelland, Assistant Chief Executive Strategic Policy and
Pouwhakarae: Performance (lynn.mcclelland@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Decision or Issue and Report Origin
1.1 Thisreport seeks a decision from the Finance and Performance Committee on whether to
extend the development contributions rebate scheme for social housing and, if so, whether
the scheme criteria should be amended. The report also asks the Committee to decide
whether staff should undertake further work on possible new rebate schemes.

1.2 Thisreport is staff initiated in response to the development contributions rebate scheme for
social housing expiring in December 2022 and also responds to Council requests for staff to
look at possible new rebate schemes.

1.3 Thedecision in this report is of low significance in relation to the Christchurch City Council’s
Significance and Engagement Policy. The level of significance was determined by the decision
being to extend a provision enabled by a previous decision and the finance impact for the
Council being minor.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Agrees that the development contributions rebate scheme for social housing is continued in
accordance with the revised scheme criteria (Attachment A).

2. Notes that the revised criteria provides for:
a. Scheme funding to remain at $2.5 million;

b. The scheme to continue until 30 June 2027, depending on funding being available;

C. A developer being required to register a covenant on the title of all properties receiving
a rebate that requires the development contributions to be paid if the property is to be
used for any purpose other than social or affordable housing;

d. A declaration is required from applicants stating they can’t access funding from any
other external source to cover the cost of the development contributions.

3. Agrees that no new development contribution rebate schemes are investigated further at this
time.

3. Reason for Report Recommendations Nga Take mo te Whakatau
Development contributions rebate scheme for social and affordable housing

3.1 Havingthe social housing rebate scheme continue enables the Council to achieve the
following:

3.1.1 Support the actions of the Council’s Housing Policy 2019
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3.2

3.3

34

o Develop consenting, rating and development contributions assistance policies to
support social and affordable housing

3.1.2 Support the Council’s Community Housing Strategy 2021

o Incentivise the community housing and private sectors

o Sustainably fund and/or support new Council and/or CHP [community housing
provider] units

The rebate scheme has received strong endorsement from community housing providers.
Many report that the scheme is a positive and proactive initiative by the Council to support the
community housing provider sector.

Some social and affordable housing developments do not require support from the rebate
scheme as the development is fully funded from other sources like the Ministry of Housing and
Urban Development, and some developers have chosen not to take up the rebate for other
reasons. In order to ensure that only developments that need the rebate can apply staff have
proposed introducing a declaration requirement to the scheme criteria.

Staff recommend the scheme continues with an amended criteria and with a fixed term life
and finite funding. This provides the Council with clarity regarding the support being given to
developers of new social housing and gives the opportunity for periodic review of the scheme
and, if necessary, the opportunity to further refine scheme criteria.

Other possible new development contributions rebate schemes

3.5

3.6

3.7

In October 2021, Council resolved* for staff to consider possible new development
contributions rebate scheme options. Staff have since looked into options for alternative
rebate schemes with respect to the following:

3.5.1 energy efficient housing - to promote achievement of third party building performance
standards

3.5.2 alternative housing - to support development of ‘alternative housing’ in the central and
immediate inner city

3.5.3 community facilities -to support community organisations providing community
facilities

Staff have assessed the possible new schemes and believe they are unlikely to influence
developer decision-making, particularly once the Council no longer takes development
contributions for three waters activities, as the value of the rebate will be considerably
reduced.

In the case of a possible rebate scheme for community facilities developed by community
organisations there are challenges clearly identifying which developments should or shouldn’t
receive a rebate. Assisting developments of this nature may be better achieved through other
mechanisms.

Alternative Options Considered Etahi atu Kowhiringa

Development contributions rebate scheme for social and affordable housing

4.1 Continue to operate the scheme using the current scheme criteria.
4.1.1 Advantages
¢ No changes are required.
1 FPC0/2021/00051
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e The Council continues to progress objectives of the Council’s Housing Policy 2019
and Community Housing Strategy 2021 through supporting the development of
social and affordable housing.

4.1.2 Disadvantages
e Developments that don’t need the rebate support could still claim a rebate.
e Council unnecessarily foregoes some development contribution revenue.
4.2  Discontinue the development contributions rebates for social housing development.
4.2.1 Advantages
e No development contributions revenue would be foregone.
¢ No administration requirements for Council.
4.2.2 Disadvantages

e Development contribution charges could be a barrier to development of new social
housing.

e The Council would not be using this policy lever to progress objectives of the
Council’s Housing Policy 2019 or Community Housing Strategy 2021.

e The Council would not be using this policy lever to progress community outcomes
related to appropriate and affordable housing.

Other possible new development contributions rebate schemes
4.3 Recommend the introduction of one or more new rebate schemes
4.3.1 Advantages

e Some developments may benefit from the rebate funding resulting in some
developments occurring that otherwise wouldn’t, some developments occurring
quicker than they otherwise would and some developments being of a larger scale
than they otherwise would be.

4.3.2 Disadvantages

e Three waters reform means the scheme(s) would lose meaningful financial benefit
for developers from 1 July 2024.

e Establishment costs for such a short scheme duration would be unreasonably high.

5. Detail Te Whakamahuki

Social Housing Rebate Scheme
Background

5.1 The Council established its development contribution rebate scheme for social housing in
2017 to give effect to an action from the Council’s Housing Policy 2016 to: “Develop consenting,
rating and development contributions assistance policies to support social and affordable
housing.”

5.2 The scheme criteria identifies the expected strategic outcomes of this rebate scheme as being

e Increase in social and/or affordable rental housing options.
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) Increased supply of a broad range of residential development - encouraging the
development of smaller housing options in response to the forecast increase in smaller
households, rising levels of rental tenure, and an ageing population.

5.3 Therebate scheme is open to accredited community housing providers and charitable trusts
with the provision of social housing being one of their objects. This means the Otautahi
Community Housing Trust can (and has been able to) access rebate funding.

5.4 Note that Kainga Ora and the Council are not eligible to gain accreditation as a community
housing provider and therefore cannot access the rebate funds.

5.5 Rebates are allocated at the time a qualifying development submits a complete application
for resource consent or building consent. The development contributions assessors then
prepare an assessment of development contributions required and advise the developer the
charges will be rebated when they meet the criteria for confirmation of a rebate, which is;

e the development has passed its first building inspection; and

e thedeveloper has registered a restricting covenant in the Council’s favour on the
title(s) which requires development contributions to be paid in the event the property
is used for any purpose other than provision of social housing.

5.6 The scheme has a financial limit of $2.5 million. This was considered an appropriate level of
funding that balanced a degree of certainty regarding access to the rebate for social and
affordable housing developers with the ability for the Council to periodically review its
commitment to the funding. The scheme criteria provided that it expired on 31 December
2022, again providing the Council with the opportunity to review its commitment to the
scheme.

Current balance of the scheme

5.7 Details of the scheme’s current balance are:

Social housing rebate scheme fund 2022

Fund limit $2,500,000
Confirmed Rebates $1,016,221
Number of developments with confirmed rebates 17
Average value of rebate per development $59,777
Number of units with confirmed rebates 116
Average value of rebate per residential unit $8,760
Rebates allocated but pending confirmation $534,251
Number of developments with rebates pending confirmation 6
Number of units with rebates pending confirmation 95
Remaining (unallocated) balance $949,528

5.8 Ifall developments allocated a rebate but which haven’t been confirmed were to receive a
rebate this would leave $950,000 in the scheme. Given the uptake of rebates since the scheme
was created in 2017 staff believe this is likely to be sufficient funding to last through to the
proposed closing date of the scheme of 30 June 2027.

5.9 Ifthe fundingis exhausted prior to closing of the scheme the Council can decide to extend the
funding at any time. The Council can also decide to extend the scheme beyond its closing date
ifit chooses.

What has changed?
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5.10 Since the social housing rebate scheme was created in 2017 the Government has introduced
new funding streams for providers of public housing and social housing, particularly for
registered community housing providers. There are a number of funding streams available
meaning many developments can be fully funded by the Government negating the need for a
development contributions rebate.

5.11 The Council then needs to decide whether to simply close the rebate scheme on the basis that
for some developments at least the rebate isn’t required, or continue to offer the rebate for
developments that don’t qualify to be fully government funded. To continue to make the
rebate available the Council could require that developers self-manage a screening process by
being required to sign a declaration that the development contribution isn’t funded or able to
be funded from another source.

5.12 The other key consideration stems from three waters reform. A significant proportion of
current development contributions are required for three waters infrastructure. When
ownership of three waters assets and responsibility for service delivery shifts to a water
services entity the value of a development contributions rebate based on current charges will
be approximately $4,000 to $7,000 per housing unit. The Council needs to consider whether
this level of assistance is meaningful and will result in facilitating provision of social housing.

5.13 The staff recommend the Council continues the social housing rebate scheme but with
amended scheme criteria requiring developers sign a declaration. It is recommended that no
additional funding be made available at this time as it is expected that the current funding is
sufficient to extend the scheme to 30 June 2027, the end of the period covered by the
Council’s next Long Term Plan. The Council can review the efficacy of the scheme at that time
and decide whether to continue the scheme and if so under what criteria.

Possible new rebate schemes

5.14 Atthetime the Council decided to close the central city residential rebate scheme staff were
asked to look at possible rebate schemes. At that time staff and elected members identified
the following types of development might be suitable for rebate scheme support:

5.14.1Energy efficient housing. This would see houses that meet a third party accreditation
standard for low energy demand, such as Homestar 6 and above receiving a
development contributions rebate.

The Government is in the process of raising energy efficiency standards for all new
homes to close to Homestar 6 standard and incrementally increasing minimum stands
so that by 2030 the minimum standard is similar to the current Passive Home standard.
This would require the scheme to be continually adjusted and eventually becoming
redundant.

When taking the significant reduction in development contribution charges resulting
from three waters reform into account staff don’t believe the scheme offers enough of

an incentive to influence developer decision-making to warrant introducing the scheme.

5.14.2 Alternative housing in the central city. This would support development of
“alternative housing” options in an alternative housing support area, comprising the
Central City and immediate inner city. This would be to support the Council’s Central
City Residential Programme (Project 8011). The types of housing this would target
includes:

e Papakainga housing for Maori communal or general living.

e Cooperative housing comprised of shared ownership (e.g. via a trust, including for
rental) and co-living.
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Other

e Shared equity housing developed by accredited progressive home ownership
providers (PHOs) and/or community housing providers (CHPs).

e Housing by other trusts or not-for-profit organisations comprised of mixed tenures
(i.e. both owned and rented units) or alternative tenures (e.g. leasehold, shared
equity, rent to own/buy).

It is very difficult to gauge the level of demand for these types of housing, while the
Council already supports some housing of these types through its development
contributions rebate schemes for social housing and papakainga housing.

5.14.3 Community facilities developed by community organisations. Community

organisations sometimes develop new community facilities to service local
communities. These might include sports facilities, community centres, drop-in centres
etc.

While development contributions charges for these types of developments are often
quite modest the organisations tend to be extremely cost-constrained so will look for
ways for the Council to assist. Often the Council will have provided grant funding prior
to being asked to waive development contributions.

Staff have looked at how such a scheme might be structured and believe operating a
rebate scheme for these types of developments is likely to be problematic in terms of
defining which organisations and developments should qualify and which shouldn’tin a
way that can be consistently applied the Council’s development contributions team.

Organisations are currently advised to apply for a remission of development
contributions under section 4.2.1 of the Council’s Development Contributions Policy
2021 which provides for the Council to provide a remission in “unique and compelling
circumstances”. In practice this has proved problematic for the Council to approve as it
has looked to avoid setting a precedent with respect to providing a remission.

Staff could investigate development of a decision-making framework for granting a
remission under the current policy provisions that allows for those provisions to be
utilised effectively.

5.15 Community views. When staff consulted with community housing providers on the Council’s

Community Housing Strategy, several noted the importance of the rebate in assisting with the
viability of their new housing builds, and as part of a sound policy approach to assist
community housing provision.

5.16 The decision affects all wards/Community Board areas.

Policy Framework Implications Nga Hiraunga a- Kaupapa here

Strategic AlighnmentTe Rautaki Tiaroaro

6.1

6.2

This report supports the Council’s Housing Policy 2019 and the Council’s Community Housing
Strategy 2021 by encouraging new social housing development by the non-government
community housing sector.

This report supports the Council's Long Term Plan (2021 - 2031):

6.2.1 Activity: Strategic Planning, Future Development and Regeneration

e Level of Service: 17.0.1.2 Advice to Council on high priority policy and planning
issues that affect the City. Advice is aligned with and delivers on the governance
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expectations as evidenced through the Council Strategic Framework. - Annual
strategy and policy forward work programme is aligned to Council Strategic
Framework, and is submitted to Executive Leadership Team, and Council as
required.

Policy Consistency Te Whai Kaupapa here

6.3 Thedecision is consistent with Council’s Plans and Policies.

6.3.1 Housing Policy 2019

6.3.2 Community Housing Strategy 2021

Impact on Mana Whenua Nga Whai Take Mana Whenua

6.4 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to ancestral land or a body of
water or other elements of intrinsic value, therefore this decision does specifically impact
Mana Whenua, their culture and traditions.

6.5 The decision involves a matter of interest to Mana Whenua and could impact on our agreed
partnership priorities with Nga Papatipu Rinanga.

6.6  Ngai Tahu has, through the Greater Christchurch Partnership, committed to developing a
Kainga Nohoanga Strategy which will provide direction for the provision of affordable housing
for Maori in Greater Christchurch. It is likely that at least some housing developed in response
to the Strategy will qualify for a development contribution rebate under the social housing
rebate scheme. The Council does also have a rebate scheme for development in the
Papakainga/ Kainga Nohoanga zones of the District Plan.

Climate Change Impact Considerations Nga Whai Whakaaro ma te Ahuarangi

6.7 New housing normally has lower energy requirements than older housing and normally has
less embedded carbon per housing unit.

Accessibility Considerations Nga Whai Whakaaro ma te Hunga Haua

6.8  Social housing is often designed and built to include specific accessibility features. Specific
design features are at the discretion of the developer.

Resource Implications Nga Hiraunga Rauemi

Capex/Opex Nga Utu Whakahaere

7.1 Cost to Implement - Development contribution rebates are revenue the Council agrees to
forego. This revenue would normally be used to fund growth infrastructure. Minor
adjustments can be made to the Council’s development contributions budgeted revenue to
reflect the impact of rebates.

7.2 Maintenance/Ongoing costs - The cost of administering the scheme is less than minor and is
funded from the normal operating budget of the development contributions assessment
team.

7.3 Funding Source - Ultimately the rebates are funding from rates.

Legal Implications Nga Hiraunga a-Ture

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report Te Manati Whakahaere Kaupapa

8.1 The Council is able to make this decision using the powers of general competence provided to
councils through section 12 of the Local Government Act (2002).
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8.2 The Finance and Performance Committee of the Whole has the delegated authority to make
decisions associated with development contributions other than adopting the Council’s
Development Contributions Policy.

Other Legal Implications Etahi atu Hiraunga-a-Ture
8.3 Thereisno legal context, issue or implication relevant to this decision.

9. Risk Management Implications Nga Hiraunga Turaru

9.1 Indesigning the rebate scheme and its criteria the following risks and mitigations have been
considered:

9.1.1 Risk - a developer may claim the rebate and then either use the development for
purposes other than for social housing or sell the property and the new owner uses it for
a purpose other than to provide social housing.

Mitigation - a developer must register a covenant against the title in the Council’s
favour that requires the payment of all rebated development contributions if the
property is to be used for purposes other than to provide social housing.

9.1.2 Risk - alarge development may claim a significant share of the rebate funding for the
scheme, potentially leaving other developments unable to receive a rebate.

Mitigation - the Finance and Performance Committee must approve individual rebates
in excess of $500,000. This provides elected members with effective real-time oversight
of the available rebate funding.

Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

No Title Reference Page

AT Development Contributions Rebate Scheme Criteria Social 23/274311 100
Housing 2023 - Draft

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.
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Click or tap here to enter header text.

Social Housing Development Contributions Rebate
Scheme Criteria (2023)

Christchurch City Council

Strategic rationale for scheme - what we want to achieve
Expected to contribute to achieving community outcomes:
Resilient communities
+  Strong sense of community
+  Safe and healthy communities
Liveable city
»  Sufficient supply of, and access to, a range of housing
« 21" century garden city we are proud to livein

Expected to contribute to achieving strategic priorities:
»  Enabling active and connected communities to own their future
+  Accelerating the momentum the city needs

Consistent with the strategic goals of:
= Christchurch City Council Community Housing Strategy 2021
»  Christchurch City Council Housing Policy 2017
= Greater Christchurch Urban Development Strategy (LUDS)

Expected impacts of this rebate scheme are:
* Increase in social housing options and availability
*  Residents have greater access to social housing if they need it

Criteria Description
Location(s) Any location within the Christchurch City Council territorial authority boundaries.
Type of development A social housing residential development that is required to pay development

contributions. For this scheme, social housing is defined as:

+ Mot-for-profit housing built and operated by a gualifying community housing
provider (see below], to help low income households and other disadvantaged
groups to access appropriate housing at a below market rent, This can be of a
supported nature such as emergency housing, or of a more general nature where low
income in relation to housing costs may be the main issue.

Type of developer and A community housing provider that is either registered as such a provider with the
operator Community Housing Regulatory Authority, or a registered charitable trust which has as
one of its objects the provision of social housing,

Funding declaration The developer is required to sign a declaration stating they don’t have access to
alternative sources of funding to pay the development contributions.

This requirement is to ensure the Council isn't providing funding via a rebate when the
development contributions could legitimately be funded from other sources such as the
Ministry of Housing and Urban Development.
Requirement for restrictive A restrictive covenant in favour of the Council must be registered against the property
covenant title(s). The covenant will reguire the full development contribution to be paid if the
conditions of the covenant are breached. The conditions of the covenant will limit the use
of the covenanted property to the provision of social housing only.

The Council will provide a covenant precedent which must be completed and registered
by the Council's solicitors at the developer’s cost.

The Council will only release the covenant from the land title(s) on payment of the
development contribution that has been rebated for the residential unit concerned.
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Extent of rebate
Trigger to receive notice of

eligibility for rebate

Trigger to receive
confirmation of rebate

100 per cent of development contributions required subject to the rebate and scheme
limits detailed below.

A complete resource consent or building consent application to develop social housing is
lodged with the Council on or after 20 December 2017,

A development contribution assessment is prepared when the complete consent
application is received by the Council. The developer will then be advised in writing of
eligibility and conditions for a rebate to be confirmed.

There are three requirements for confirmation of rebate:
1. Asigned declaration that the development contributions can’t be funded from
another source - see “Funding declaration” above
2. Arestrictive covenant in favour of the Council is registered on the development
title(s) - see “requirement for covenant” above
3.  First building inspection is passed (and rebate funding is still available).

For staged developments under multiple consents the trigger for the rebate being
confirmed will be determined by the Council's Development Contributions teaman a
case-by-case basis.

If the rebate scheme funding is exhausted or the scheme is otherwise closed before the
first building consent is passed, affected developers will be advised of the requirement to
pay the development contributions as required by their assessment.

Apportioning the value of the
rebate across multiple units

The total development contribution rebate will be allocated evenly to each residential
unit within the developmeant.

The value of the rebate provided will be recorded in the covenant registered on the title.

Rebate limit per
development

Total scheme funding limit

Extinguishing of all previous
demand credits

The maximum rebate for a single development is $500,000. Rebates in excess of this limit
are required to be approved by the Finance and Performance Committee of the Council
on a case-by-case basis.

A single development includes all staged development components.
42,5 million.

When the funding is exhausted no further rebates will be available unless specifically
provided for by the Council,

All previous demand credits associated with a lot forwhich a development contributions
rebate is provided will be considered to be extinguished.

This means in future the lot will hold enly previous demand credits associated with the
new development and only in accordance with the Council’s Development Contributions
Palicy in effect at the time of any future development.

Duration of scheme

This rebate scheme will expire at 5:00pm on 30 June 2027, or when the total scheme
funding is fully allocated, or when decided by the Council, whichever occurs first.

Transitional arrangements

The Social Housing Development Contributions Rebate Scheme is established under the provisions of the Council’s Development
Contributions Rebate Policy (2019].

The initial rebate scheme was adopted on 20 December 2017. Any development that met
the criteria for a rebate under the initial scheme but has not had the rebate confirmed
must meet the criteria contained in this version of the scheme criteria.

Adopted by the Finance and Performance Committee of Council on 22 March 2023

Effective from 1 January 2023
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11. Christchurch Foundation - Annual Report 2021/22 and Half Year

Report for the six months ending 31 December 2022,

Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/48834

Report of / Te Pou Linda Gibb, Performance Advisor, Resources Group

Matua: (linda.gibb@ccc.govt.nz).

General Manager / Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
Pouwhakarae: (Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

1.1 Thisreport provides the Christchurch Foundation's Annual Report for the year ended 30 June
2022, and its half year report for the period 1 July 2022 to 31 December 2022.

1.2 It has been written following publication of the Foundation's Annual Report on its website in
late 2022 and receipt of its interim report on 7 February 2023.

Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Notes the Christchurch Foundation’s Annual Report for 2021/22 and half year report for the
period 1 July to 31 December 2022; and

2. Notes that Council support funding to the Foundation ends at 1 July 2023.

Brief Summary

3.1 TheFoundation is not a Council-controlled organisation as defined in section 6 of the Local
Government Act 2002. However, the Council has the following interests in it:

e provides funding to assist it to meet administration costs incurred over its
establishment period, six years ending on 1 July 2023 - by this date the Council will have
funded around $3 million of establishment administration and operating costs;

e receives grants for community facilities and other assets; and
e on behalf of the local community, benefits from its charitable activities.

3.2 TheAnnual and Half Year reports are at Attachments A and B respectively.
3.3 The Chair of the Foundation’s board, Mr Humphry Rolleston is to stand down in April 2023.
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Financial outturn

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

When the Foundation set its budget in May 2021, it was in the context of ongoing uncertainty
about COVID-19 restrictions. The first six months of the 2021/22 financial year saw restrictions
continue, with progressive liberalisation (including international border re-opening) until
March 2022. The budget for the first half of 2022/23 was cautiously optimistic about the extent
of activity the Foundation could undertake, noting that global economic expectations were

unfavourable.

Between 1 July 2021 and 31 December 22 (18 months as per the attached financial reports),
key financial outcomes were the receipt of $438,000 from the Foundation’s UK sister entity for
the reinstatement of the Christ Church Cathedral and the commencement of new funding
streams of fees-for-service from third parties of $200,000 over the 18 months, and forecast to

be $225,000 in 2022/23.

At 30 June 2022, two of the Foundation’s partners - Southbase and Spark completed their
agreements for sponsorship funding for Turanga of jointly $200,000 per annum (Southbase
$50,000 per annum; in total $250,000 and Spark $150,000 per annum; in total $750,000). TSB’s

commitment was for 10 years at $150,000 per annum, which has five years to run.

The Foundation expects to break-even for the 2022/23 financial year.

Annual Report - 2021/22

Operating revenue and expenditure

Actual Budget | Variance | 2020/21 | Variance
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Operating revenue 637 690 -53 588 +49
Operating expenditure (754) (684) -70 (731) -23
Operating surplus/(deficit) (117) 6 -123 (143) +26

The costs and revenues are those that reflect the Foundation’s costs of doing business. It is
these costs that the Council has, to date made funding grants available to partly meet.
Operating revenue includes the Council’s grant of $350,000.

Half year report - 1 July - 31 December 2022

Actual Budget | Variance | 2021/22 | Variance
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Operating revenue 215 260 -45 280 -65
Operating expenditure (344) (383) +39 (264) -80
Operating surplus/(deficit) (129) (123) -6 16 -145

Between years, the Council’s grant has reduced by $75,000 and fees-for-service have reduced

by $25,000.

Note that the last page of the Foundation’s Half Year report (at Attachment B) records the
recipients of distributions since the Foundation’s inception.

Impact Report

3.11 The Foundation commissioned the development of a framework for the purposes of
measuring and reporting on the broader impact that its activities have on greater

Christchurch. Its first report has been published to its website at CF_Impact Report 2022
v2.6.pdf (christchurchfoundation.org.nz). It records the Foundation’s many and varied

activities undertaken for the expected benefit of Christchurch’s residents. However, it does
not evaluate the magnitude of change these activities have had which, at this stage of the
Foundation’s life cycle is too early. Evaluation is expected following the next Vital Signs

research project in 2024.
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3.12 Thelmpact Report identifies the activities that the Foundation undertakes, some of which are
of a facilitation, engagement and advisory nature, and others are more substantial in
philanthropic leadership and brokering giving. Following its Vital Signs research project in
2024, the Foundation is intending to include an assessment of the change it has created
through its programmes in its next Impact Report.

Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

No. Title Reference Page

AL | Christchurch Foundation - Annual Report 2021/22 23/332350 106

BL ™ | Christchurch Foundation - Half year report for six months 23/332337 125
ended 31 December 2022

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link
Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Signatories Nga Kaiwaitohu

Author Linda Gibb - Performance Monitoring Advisor CCO

Approved By Leah Scales - General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
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TRUSTEES & STAFF
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CHAIRMAN'S

REPORT

The Christchurch Foundation
has had another productive year.

7
Humphry Rolleston
Chair

Our financial statements

show an operational deficit of
$147,695 for the year under
review. This shortfall has been
funded from our cash reserves
which stand at $142,159 after
allowing for the year’s shortfall.

The Trustees are budgeting for
an operating surplus to June
2024. We continue to build new
commercial partnerships to
support The Foundation’s work.

The Christchurch City Council
also assists by providing essential
base funding for our operational
activities. This assistance

is greatly appreciated.

Annual Report

Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

The Foundation has raised $766,986 for projects
in greater Christchurch. Further gifts of $437,933
have been transacted through our sister Trust in
the UK for the Christchurch Cathedral Rebuild and
another $13,206 was facilitated by us and passed
on to various charitable projects.

The Foundation is now structured to efficiently
receive gifts from donors in the UK for projects in

greater Christchurch.

The Hon. Lianne Dalziel and
Andrew Turner are stepping
down as Trustees following
their decisions to retire
from local body politics.

Their vision for The Christchurch
Foundation and their

dedication to getting The
Foundation established has
been enormously important.

Thank you both for your input and
contributions to make Christchurch
a better place for us all.

Our management team of four
people ably led by Amy Carter
have a number of interesting
initiatives under way.

The Trustees have had our impact
independently reviewed by an
expert in this field. This review
has then led to us developing
and adopting a framework that
helps us measure and bench
mark our programme of work
and it tracks what impact we are
making. The first Impact Report,
and the independent review

are available on our website.

Humphry Rolleston
Chair

Item No.: 11

Page 108

Item 11

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council ==

Item 11

<
)
e
Q
€
=
(S
(4]
)
)
<




Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council ==

Item 11

<
)
e
Q
€
=
(S
(4]
)
)
<




Finance and Performance Committee

22 March 2023

Christchurch
City Council ==

Christchurch Foundation

Financial Statements

The Christchurch Foundation
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Privste Enesprisa

Annual Report

Contents

3 Dirgctary

4 Approval of financial statements

] Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expendes

7 Statement of Financial Poslbon
B Statement of Changes in Equity
] Statement of Cash Flows

1] Motas tothe Flnanclal Staterments

Financial Statements  Tha Chrisachurch Faundation

Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

kbmG

Private: Entarprisa
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Christchurch Foundation

Directory

The Christchurch Foundation
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Wature of Business

Funding charitable activities

Location of Business
Level 3, BNZ Centre
101 Cashel Street
Christehureh BILL

IRD Number

124-261-864

Accountants
KPMG - Enterprise
Level5

79 Cashel Street
Christehurch BOL1
Auditors

PWC

Level 4

60 Cashel Street
Christchurch 8011

Bankers

T5B
ANE

Deed Established

21 July 2017

Registration Date

E September 2017

Registration Number

CL54B645

Trustees

Andraws Turmer
Graham Dockrill
Humphery Rolleston
Lianne Dalziel
Paul Bingham
Paul Deavoll

Firancisl Staberenis The Cheistchunch Foundaties

Privste Enesprisa

Pagedol2l

Annual Report Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

Private: Entarprisa

Approval of financial statements

The Christchurch Foundation
For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Trustees are pleased to present the financial statements of The Christchurch Foundation for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Greham Dockrill
Trustes of the Christchurch Foundation

— "‘:
é%s (xu

Humphiry Rollestan
Trustee af the Christchurch Foundation

Dated: 8 pec(:,ﬁn bQ_) 2022

Financial Statemants  Tha Chrivicherch Fourdation Eigad of i1
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Christchurch Foundation

kPG

Privete EntETprisa
-
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expenses
The Christchurch Foundation
For the year ended 30 June 2022
i Mew Teolond Doliors
WOTES aad 21
Comprehensive Revenue and Expenditure
Fevenue from en fangs anaCTi L Fha A% M. 0Te
Riweriioe feam nor-cazhange Uramacoons s 858 258 3350004
Tedad Revenoe 1,142 688 3,387 008
Fiaht Vakow [l caa) on lowtstrments (5.288)
Enpenditure
WA IO UL r 490 810 5% RS
Opershing expehiss L T4 R0 TE.BD
Direct codts L] B&G.TET 2857373
Total Expensituit 1452, 28T 355707
Deficit) bof vt parios 404 G8T) {170,089)
Reconciliation of results lrem eperating activities to the surplus | |deficit) for the period
WOTES £ N
Reconciliation
ehcit o’ L Parbod [404,58T) (170,088
Men-Opersung ey
IRy et ot g Reectam (485.524) (2,531,584
Won-Dioerating Drect Costy B2 542 38870
Heon-Digergtimg Datributions of Funds Recsl ssd in Curmen? ol Prracis vesrs BB T4 2818817
Totsl Moa-Operating lems 257 M2 man
[Dalbcit) [ Surplhus fod DpeTations (147 555) 53,224
Fennnral yumEmenty "l TR T P il S Fage S ol 11

Annual Report

Statement of Comoruhenaive Revenue 300 Expinses

Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

kbme

Private: Entarprise
Rasults of Operating Activithes
HOTEE 03z a0
Operating Activities
Dperating Aevenus
Revenue from Pschangs Transactians 4 237514 20,318
Rewvenae froem Non-Exchange Transactions 4 411,000 728,578
Total Operating Revenus 648,514 748 207
[ —
Admministration Expenies T 480,610 538,723
Crparating Cxpenses 74,884 Td, 164
Direct Costs 1BA 855 T4 280
Distributions . T, Bok
Taotal Operating Expendiure T4, 490 EDE,073
{Defclt) f Surphus for Operations [106,979) 53,224
Lisss - Operational Revenue Uamferred 1o Pass Through Furds (@7,134) =
Lass - Profit from Events Transferred to Endowments Funds 4 14,582} -
Financizl Satemests  The Chrischurr Foundation Page ol 11
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Christchurch Foundation

Privete Endesprisa
- - - -
Statement of Financial Position
The Christchurch Foundation
As at 30 June 2022
i Wew Zogland Dolicrs
wOTES 0. 001 30 Jum a0
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cath Equivalents o 1,082 477 1231676
TH.O08 30
sgoryed Bevenue J
Aganynis Fgeeable " 12752 12250
TN 16,583
Propayrents
Total Cimrent Avuty 1,307 367 184299
oy Caprrard Aoty
Propecty, Plant and Fosipment 2506 ]
19 SA3T B
Intangibies
Cfer Fimarc al fssets 12 808,070 -
Total Son-Current Assets 514,103 1.9
Tetal Assens A ATa 2454 851
Liabilities _
Current Labiltses
ctounts Payable 49320 2.2
Actrued Expanditue 13 167, 148 40 609
Daleriad Revenan 5658 . TET
Pronvasarn lor doratan Fal 2172
PAYE Payable 8604 12418
B 659 6503
GET Payatle
Total Corrent LiabBite 204, 389 18
Total Lisbiities T64.389 192,193
g i 2 L]
Net Assets 1.857.08 22
Equity
S armmilated surphen or [ deficity) 1,857 .08 2,262 008
Total Loty 1,857,081 1,362,068
Fraia Paborents  The Uvrshusth bowsd ilod Page T ol i

Annual Report

Statement of Changes in Equity

The Christchurch Foundation
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

kbme

Private Entarprisa

tri M Tealand Dodlars
ADMINISTRATION — EWDOWMENT  PASS THROUGH
) RUNDS TUNDS Funps  TOTRL EQuITY
2022
Balance at 1 July 2021 284 854 28,282 1,543,832 2,282,068
Comprehensive Revenua and Expense for the year 20 {147,608) 17060 (278,202) {404,087)
Baalwnde 2t W0 June 2022 142,158 a6,272 1,688 850 1,887,081
AOM L TRATION ENDOWMENT  PASS THROLIGH
NOTE PUNDS FUNBE sups  TOTALEQUITY
2021
Balance at L July 2020 234,634 £1,038 2,174 501 2432187
Comprehensve Aevenug and Eepanse for the year 20 58,318 6,244 (230,856) (170,096)
Aalance st B0 June 3021 289,854 282 1,843,932 2,262 088

Financial Slatersents  Thie Chiachiuech Faundalien
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Christchurch Foundation Annual Report Financial Year Ending 30 June 2022

Privete EnteTprisa Private: Entarprisa
The Christchurch Foundation The Christchurch Foundation
in New Zealand Dollars 1. Reporting Entity
NOTES 2042 20d: The Christchurch Foundation [the *Foundation®) Is a public berefit (not-for profit) entity, domiciled in New Zealand and
registered under the Charities Act 2005, The financial statements have been prepared in accondence with the requirements of
Cashflow that Act:
Cash Flows lrem Activities The Foundation's main operation is to raise and receive monay to be applied eaclesively for charitable purposes that benefit the
Cash Recepts s 3,228,480 Christchurch community
Cash Paid for Distrbutions (e, 788 (2B26,413)
Cagh Paid to Suppliers and Employeas (B55,933) (801,708} 2. Basis of Preparation
(356,506} [401,633)
Tutal Cash Flows from Operating Actiuitles 18 { [a) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with New Tealand Genesally Accepted Accounting
Cach Flows from if Ao Livitics - e T practice ("NZ GAAP"]. They comply with Tler 2 PBE Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Regime (Mot-Far-Prefit]. The
Investment Income 247 L Foundatlon qualifies to report under Tier 2 as It has no public accountability and for the two most recent reporting perlods has
Purchasing Property, Plant, Euipment & ntangibles (2820 : had less than 530 million aperating expenditure.
561,21 =
Purchasing Inuestmant (861,331] The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Trustees on Bth December 2022,
Total Cath Plows from investing Activities Lt tl ] 17478
244 498 984,155 |b) Basis of Measurement
Nat [decraase) in cash and eash ouivalants ”": A . ! The financlal statements are prepared on the historical cost basls,
Cash and cash aguivalents at the beglnning of the periad 10 2,293 876 267810
Cash and cash egquivalents at the end of the period 1,082 477 L293.876 The financial staterments are prepared on an accrual basis,
|¢) Functional and Presentation Currency
Thie financial statements are presentad |n Mew Zealand dollars, which |s the functional and reporting currency of the Foundation
and all values are rounded to the nearest dodlar except where indicated otherwise.
1. Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies sat out bekow have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the period ended 30 June
2023,
(&) Revenue fram Exchange Transactions
Interest fncome
Interest income i< earmed for the use of cash and eash equivalents or any amounts dee to the Foundation.
Interest income Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense as it is earned. Interest income |s accrued
using the effective interest rate methad, The effective ‘mierest rate exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts thraugh the
expected life of the financis| asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method applies this rate to the principal outstanding
o derermine interest revenue each period.
Corpovote events/Workshop
Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which services are rendered, by reference to the completion of
Lhe specific transaction,
Himancinl Stnbemeris  The Christchurch Foundstion Pagedatl
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L

b] Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions )
Non-exchange transactions ane those whene the Foundation receives value from ancther entity (g cath or other assets]

without gving approcmately equal vilue in exchange

Infiows of ressurces from non-exchange transactions, other than services inind, that meet the definition of an asset are
recognised as an asset only whan:

. Il';pml-..mlemr_rmFud;tinrul'ruriwmirl.woflcmﬁ:bewﬁammupmrr:iil;pnd
= the fair value of the inflow can be measured relably.

Inflows of resources from non-gecharge transactions that are recognised as assets dre recognised # non-exchange revenue, t
the extent that 3 liakility = ot recognised in regpect to the same inflow.

Lighilithes ane recogrised in relation to inflows of resources from non-exchange transacions when there s a resulting present
obligation as a result of the non-enchange transactions, where bothc

e n';mmgﬁuu—wmufwmrnhudf-ngmm;rmwicbenr'irr-qrvi:epmeq:al.n'uwmmmdw
settie the obligation; and
B The amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Gifts, donotions ond bequests
Gifts, donations and bequests are voluntary transfers of assets including cash or other moneiary assets and goods indond that
the Foundation receves which are free from stipulations.

Gifts, onatians 2nd bequests are recognised as revenue when it 5 probabie that the fUture eConomic benefits or service
potential will fiow to the entity, and the fair value of the assets can be measured relizbly. Fo- gifts and denations, this s usually
upon receipt of the gift or donation. However, for bequests, a period of time may elapse betwoen l!‘!daa!hu"‘_:wlﬂll:ﬂl and
the entity receiving any assets - in which case the entity makes an assessment of whether the deceased person’s estate is
sufficient to meet all elsims on it and saticly 3l bequests. I the will is disputed, this is taken into CCOURT in Detemmining the
puh-mudmﬂmwmm.ﬁﬂx,mmh@uﬁnmpﬁrdum:uﬁrlﬂmuﬁ-edm
d“dﬂ.mhﬂﬂamﬂhﬂﬁuﬁﬁ‘mmm’wuﬁmmﬂuﬂ#ﬁ
on receipt. The donation, grant and fundralsing are recognised as nevenue on the satisfaction of the condition,
Sponsorship
Sponsorship income i recognised in the period the sponsorship is stipulated for.

Property, Plant L Equipment
ll-:—.;dpmpmg.waumu:ummmumdn cost bess accumulated deprecistion and impairment losses. Cost

Includes expenditure that is directly atributable to the 2cquisition of the asset. Where an asset % acquined through a
non-enchange transaction, its cost is measured at it fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is charged on a diminishing value basiz over the useful Ufe of the asset Deprediation is charged at rates caloulated
1 alieate the cost of valuaton of the asset less any €5timated residusl value over fts remaining usetul ife:

Computer Equipment: 50% - 6T%
Depraciation methods, useful ves 3nd residuz! valoes are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted if there is 8 change
in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of sarvice potential embodied in the asset.

[d) Tames )
The Foundation is a registered charitable organisation and b therefore exemgt from income tac

[=) intangibles )
Allintangible assets are stated at cost lost accumulsted amortisation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Where an asset is scquired in 3 non-exchange transaction or ril or noming| consideration the asset is inftially measured atits
Fair value.

Finarcial Sacoments  The Cheiich sy Foasdston Fage 1l o8l
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) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ewnzrship are retained by the lessor are classified as operating.
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprebensive revenue or expense on a straight
line basis ower the laase term,

| g} Goods and Services Tax

The Foundation became GST registered on 1 October 2018. The Staterment of Comprohensive Reven e and Expenditure has
been prepared and stated exclusive of GST, All items in the Statement of Financial Positon are stated net of GST, with the
excepthon of receivables and payables which include GST invaiced.

{h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash squivalents comprise cash an hand and cash at the bank, deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an
orlginal maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

[i) Accounts Receivable
Receivabilas are stated at estimeted realisabls value after providing against debts where the collection is doubtful. Bad debts are
writtan off during the period in which they are identified.

(i) Investments in equities, debt and managed funds

The Foundation has elected to classify and subsaquently measure these assets at fair value threugh surplus and deficit (FUTSD].
Financial assets in this category are subsequently measured at fair value with falr value gains and losses recognised In surplus of
deficit. Interest revenue and dividends recognised from these financial assets are separately presented within revenue,

(k) Shert and Long-Term Employee Benefits
The cost of all short-term employes banefits, such as leave pay, = recagnised during the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

4. Operating Activities

Dperating activities include all revenue and exgenditure directly attributable to the day to day manesgement and operation of
the Christchurch Foundation, This includes the administration of and the n.|n11lngnl' events for the Foundations charitable
funds, The profits from these events are then transfermed to the relevant charitable fund,

For the purposes of the non-GAAP reconciliaticn of results from operating activities to the surplus/ ideficit) for the period,

non-operating activities include all ather revenue and expendlture incleding pass through, endowments and profits from
events/projects that are not directly attributable to the day to day management and operation of the Christchurch Foundaticn,
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5. Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Ao it Shadkdeton Feend - 1377
Eumnis Revaruse [ 5217
Devidcnd IACOME §.083
Foes for Seqvics 150,045 -
Foreign Curmency Gain 234
el e 16 680 17537
oo Dy 315
Sundry Ineoime 8 -
Te A Patikd Fess for Senice 8 1553
Teral Rovenue from Exchangs Tranactions 284432 K0TS
I ]
Revenue from Non-Exch Transactions
Donations - Cash BEE1E 2262 T80
Apandry Shackleton Dondtins - Tl
VAo "y Pl Bonatioes 2,840 925
Granls 350 000 548, M6
Sponsarihep 415,000 SH4ET4
EF AowTnans 1.0 2.000
Total Beven.se from Kon-Fachange T-ansections 858,256 1348
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Services In-Kind

KPMG provided 5182, 708 of accounting services for $65,758 In the current pear, (2021: §131,248 accounting sendces provided for

$51,936)
Brannigans Consulting Limted provided 51,875 In pro bono recruitment senices in the current year. [2021: 540,000

Tavendale & Partners provided $9,438 in pro bone legal services In the current year.

Services inkind are not included in revenues as there is no enduring asset created from the recaipt as the benefit |s consumed

immad ately on receipt,

6. Donations Recelved on Behalf of Other Charities

During the year the Foundation entered inlo agency agreements to facllitate donations and distributicns tor the follewing

entities:

na ann
Agency Income and Expanse
Donatians _
Chrlet Church Cathedral Beinstatenrent Limited 437,833
Governos's Bay Jetty Restarstion Trust 2,665 .
Riccarton Bush Trust 4,030
Tia Ay Paii - Red Danald Trust 6,829 360 542
Total Donations 451,447 390,642
Tutal Benations (451,147) (309,543)

Oonations recetved on behalf of these charities have been fully distributed to the respective charities during the year and there

arm no remaining lability to pay to them at year and, (2021: nil liabality at year end)

= et il SR BMEALL The Crawistehureh Foundation
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7. Administration Expenses
1,258
Acconsrng | Finence 5758 Tk
arfit Fees 27.000 44,500
A rtisation 5447 10,905
Sepreciation 32 1,004
- @40 1589
AR 3
= k)
et Eapenae
a .20
Legal Exserees
Fal L]
s 24,074 50,887
Other Adm nRESTETION Expamses 240 '
Salkares 3SB.0TE 354 851
Syt riptinT 5043 15362
Total ion Expenies 450,610 538,035
AdmenFrTation
00z a1
&. Operating Expenses
A A 2083 & ASD
CET 4.5M 31082
eting
B42 15,308
Other Operating Expenses 3, B2 :L
Rest 21540 Al L]
; o 4 BTS 6141
Lir
T T4.895
Totsl Operating Expenses 4,980
mar ¥
9. Direct Costs
Distribnations 60T, TES 2824213
E 130 GET 53,112
venis
) 25,003
Saronger Greener Christthurch Expenses 50,000 o
U Estazlishment Cosls - Kot 16 15,525 15,340
s = 577
US Establ ot Coests - Mol 16 -
- 15
vitsl Signs Research Project Expenses 1
2487 -
Witana Project 1
Totad Direct Costs BEETET 1537373
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10, Cash and Cash Equivalents
WME S20.40%9 2,005,423

Biackbaud Merchant Services
Credit Card - Stall

Forelgn Currency |GBF)

JB Wiere Portfalio

Fatty Cash

TSE

Tatal Cash and Cash Fquivalents

145 48
1412 173
81 -

430 EDA -
5 25
113,067 208,208

1,082,477 2,201,876

a2 wa
11. Accounts Recelvable

Accounts Recshvables 127162 132,250

Luss - Prowision for Bad Debis = .

Toitad Accounts fecsiyable 1ar.is2 133,280

a2 a1

12. Other Financial Assets

Listed Shares 5B 4TR

Corporate Bonds 180,086

Managed Funds 64,806

Tatal Dther Firancial Assets BO8, 070 -

Falrvalue information has been obtained directly from quoted market price for listed equities and bonds, For management
funes the unit price was able to be obtalned through observable market Information and the Foundation has not been required
to adopt valuation assemptions or techniques to derive the falr value of the investment at the reparting date.

13, Accrued Expenditure

Arcried EXpenses
Holidey Pay
Total Accrued Expenditure

14, Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilithes at year end (2021: SMIl)

15. Operating Lease Commitments

w3 2021
05,785 34,588
11,569 8,111

107,148 40,659

Thit Foundation leases part of Level 3, 101 Cashel Street, Christchurch fram Chiristchurch N2, The lease was signed on 17 January
2018 with no end date, The lease is currently §1,500 per manth and can be terminated with one month's notice. (2021 52,000

per month]

Finercisl Statemescs  The Cheistchurch Foundation
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Notes to the Financial Ststements

Privete Enterprisa Private Entarprisa

023 200

16, Related Parties The Mayor of the Christehurch City Councll ("CCCY), Lianne Dalziel, and her deputy, Andrew Turner, make up two of the seven

Key Management Personnel Trustees at The Foundation and therefore CCC and The Foundation are considered to ba related parties,
The senior management group consists of the CEO. The total remuneration of the senlor management group and the number of
managers, on a full-time equlvalent basis, receving rermuneration In this category are: 0 2023
00 021 Income and Expenditure
: income
Remuneration Summary Donations & 75.438
Total Remuneration 18223 211,484
3 1 Grants 350,000 540,000
Number of Persons Total Income 350,000 615438
Related Party Transactions Distributions
During the year the Foundation recaived the following income and incurred tre following expenses from Brannigans Consulting Digtributions 363,000 352,500
Limited, Amy Carter's |CED) spouse Is a partner at Brannigans Consulting Limited Total Distributions 353,000 353,500
2o 2031 Not Income (Expenditure) (3,600) 261,938
Income and Expenditure During the year, the Foundation received the following Income on behalf of the Rod Donald Banks Penisula Trust (RDBPT} under
P a fee for service agreament in relation to the Te Ahu Patik project. The Donations, less the fee for service and transaction fees
Donations 17,156 4,874 were distributed to RDBPT, Andrew Turner Is o Trustee of The Cheistehurch Found ation and & Director of the ROBPT. Pau|
2500 2,000 Bingham is a Trustee of the Christchurch Foundation and the RDBPT.
Sponsorship ¢ .
w 1,650 -
Corpotate Evants
Yokl Lo 21,206 12,674 i o
Income and Ex ture
Expenses
minl : Inclusivit = (1,308) e,
:""‘"_‘ “"‘:‘:‘ Rxpiocies - fporty Wclsivty ) (20 Donations 0,625 383 461
ecruitment Fees
T - (2,215) Faes For Service 8 1,962
sl Epenses ' Total income 6,637 385,413
Netincome (Expenditure) 21,208 10,459
Expenses
During the year of the Foundation, there were no legal expenses Incurred. (2021: During the year the Foundation incurred the Transaction Fees 9 1,030
followdng exg from Simpson Grierson. Hugh Lindo (Trustee until 10/02/21) is a partner of Simpson Grierson,) Digtributions
Distributions 6,615 82 454
w2 w2 Net incoma (Expenditure) 4 T
Expenses
mma = D20 During the year the Found ation participated as a member in the Community Foundations of New Zealand Incorporated of which
Anvy Carter is & Trustee. The following subscription fees and conference costs were Incurred,
Total Expenses - 0,200
2002 2021
During the year the Foundation incurred the following expenses in relation to the establishment of separate Christchurch
Foundation entities In the UK and US. The purpose of these entities is to collect donations from New Zealand expatriates which Expenses
will be transferred to the Christehureh Foundation [NZ) to be used In line with the Chrstchurch Foundation's purpose Subseriptions 1338 .
Conferences 300 .
02 2021
Total Expenses 1,638 .
Expenses
UK Establishment Costs 16,526 16,340
US Establishment Costs - Lud
Total Expenses 15,525 18017
Financie Statements The Christehurch Fourdation Page 170l 2)
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A distribution was made to the One Mother to Another organisation of which Graham Dackrill is a trustee.
wn 2001
Expenses
Distributions 2000 .
Total Expenses 2000 .
17. Subsequent Events
There wete no subsequent events to the balance date when the financlal statements were signed.
18, Reconciliation of Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Surplus / (Deficit)
0 2
Cashflow Reconciliation
Surplus/[Deficit) for the yoor
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (404,967) (170,088)
Total Surphus/(Deficit) for the year (404,987) (170,009)
Non-Cash Mevements
Amortisation 5407 10,496
Depreciation 932 1,034
Investment income (9.247) (17.476)
290 .
Loss on Disposal
Total Non-Cash Movements (2,528) (5,447)
Movernents in Working Capital .
Increasa/(Decreass) in payables 20473 (106,009)
Incressef{Ducrease) in GST Payment 2,155 16,938
(Increase)/Decrease In Recesvables (75,927) (136,856)
Increase/[Decrease] In Investment revaluation 96,208 .
Total Movements in Working Capital 50,989 (226,087)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (366,526) (401,633)
19. Intangible Assets
2022 2021
Viebsite
Opening ook Value 10,594 21,988
Current Year Amortisation (5,497) (10,805)
Totsl Websits 5407 10,994

The Foundation developed and completed a website in 2019, The website provides access for the public to make electronic

donations to the Foundation and thercfore generates economic benefits.

Finuocidd Statements  The Christehureh Foundation
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20. Equity
)
2022
Opening Balance 2,262,088
Current year movemant
Administration funds (147 605)
Endowment funds ' 17,9600
Pans through funds (276,282)
Total Current year movement (404,007)
Balance s at 30 June 2022 1,857,081
L
2021
Opening Balance 2432167
Prior year movement
Admanistration funds 55,316
endowment funds 5,244
P s through fnds (230.659)
Yotal Prior yuar movemant (170,099)
Balance s at 30 June 2021 2,262,088

Putsuant to a directive from the Community Foundations of New Zealand, the Foundation has established the following
reserves during the prior year:

Adenini funds lated surphus)
Funds held for the running of the Foundation and not held for charitable distribution purposes,

funds
Donated funds held in perpetuity or with a donor-directed pay down period of three or more years from the date the donation Is
made.

Passthrough unds
Donated funds held temporarily by the foundation before being distributed to assigned charitable purposes

21, Provision for Conditional Donation

In the year ended 30 June 2021, the foundation received a condition tion of 2,071,172 of which $21,172 was not utliised by
year end. During the year ended 30 June 2022, 515,702 of these conditional danations were utilised and the remaining $5,470
was refunded to donors as they wers unable to be used for the specified purpose. The Foundation received no new conditional
donation (n the current year and the year end provision is nil, (2021: $21,172.)
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22. COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Mealth Organisation (WHO) declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic. For the Foundation this
Fas resulted in temporary deferral and cancellation of public svents during Alert Level 3 and 4 periods, but the Foundation has
besn able to carry on its operations as usual without any further disruptions.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Trustees of The Christchurch Foundation

Our opinion

In ouomopwon, the accompanying financial statements cf The Chrisichurch Foundation (the
Foundation), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Foundation as at
30 June 2022, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime.

What we have audited

The Foundation's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

the statement of comprehensive revenue and expenses for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (I1SAs
(N2)) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion

Independence

We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (including International Independence
Standards) (New Zealand) (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

Other than in our capacity as auditcr we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Foundation.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other informaticn comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we cbtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, PwC Centre, 60 Cashel Street, PO Box 13-244, Christchurch 8141 New Zealand
T: +64 3 374 3000, www.pwe.co.nz
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Responsibilities of the Trustees for the financial statements

The Trustees are responsible, an behalf of the Foundation, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure
Regime, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Brror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Foundation's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
Foundation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (NZ2) and |SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board's website at

hitps:/fwww. xrb. govt.nzfassurance-standards/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-8
This description forms part of our auditor's report

Who we report to

This report is made solely to the Trustees, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. Tothe fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Foundation and the Trustees, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Simon
Kirkpatrick.

For and on behalf of:

PAcumededrao _opes.

Chartered Accountants Christchurch
8 December 2022

Annual Report
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FUELLING .

PROSPERITY

We passionately believe that the flow-on
effect from focusing on helping fuel the
prosperity of our clients significantly
contributes to ensuring that our
communities, and ultimately our country
and all New Zealanders, will enjoy a
more prosperous future.

Christchurch
City Council s
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Gompilation Report

Reporttothe CEO & Trustees of The Christchurch Foundation ("the Foundation”)

scope

We have prepared the biannual report for the 6 months ended 31 December 2022 based on information provided by you, and in accordance with our
engagement letter dated 11 July 2022,

Responsibilities

The biannual report has been prepared based on information provided by the CEQ and the Foundation. The CEQ and the Foundation are solely
responsible for the information upon which the biannual report is based.

Disclaimer of liability
We have compiled the biannual report in accordance with the limited procedures agreed in our letter of engagement dated 11 July 2022,

As part of our engagement, the CEQ and the Foundation has provided records, information, documents and explanations on which we have relied. Our
procedures do not involve verification or validation procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed. We do
not accept any responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and other information the CEOQ and the Foundation has supplied
to us or for the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the financial information compiled on the basis of those records and information. We also do not
accept any responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, an adequate internal control structure and the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies within your organisation. In addition, the CECQ and the Foundation are solely responsible to users of the financial
information we compile.

hll _,.4;_ —a

én\s \(

KPMG - Christchurch
Dated: 26 January 2023

KPMG

Frwvale Enlerpnss
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Statement of Financial Performance

- Consolidated

The Christchurch Foundation

For the 6 months ended 31 December 2022

KPMG

Private Enterprise

JUL-DEC 2022 JAN-JUN 2022 ¥TD BUDGET VARIAMCE PRIOR ¥TD

Revenue

Ambassadors Club 40,000 [40,00:0)

Business Club 11,250 11,250 49,598 [38,748) 2,500

Danations 103,105 7,033 103,105 103,105 85,223

Endowment Establishment Gift 1,000 1,000 5,000 (4,000) 1,000

Events 21,107 72,281 21,107 - 21,107 12,689

Fees for Service 50,036 75,046 50,036 62,500 [12,454) 75,000

Grants 100,000 175,000 100,000 100,000 175,000

Sponsorship 458,000 [37,158) 458,000 505,000 [47,000) 449 658

Te Ahu Patiki Fees for Service - - B

03 Gin Sales 11,650 11,650 11,650

Total Revenue 756,148 292,201 756,148 762,498 (6,350) 801,077
Less Distributions

Distributions 438,849 70,659 438 849 350,000 48,849 627,130

Total Distributions 438,849 70,659 438,849 350,000 88,849 627,130
Other Income

Dividend Incame 16,077 B,636 16,077 - 16,077 447

Fareign Currency Gain 23429

Interest Income 15,166 9,163 15,166 2,448 12,718 7,517

Realised Currency Gains (2} (2} - (2

Sundry Income 217

nrealised Gain / {Loss] o {11,351) (100,947) {11,351} - 11,351) 5,659

Total Other Income 19,890 {59,718) 19,390 2,448 17,442 13,840
Gross Surplus (Deficit) 337,189 161,825 337,189 414,948 (77,757) 187,788
Expenses

Accounting f Finance 24,294 35,004 24,3594 39,000 [14,706) 30,754

Administration Expenses - (13) - 21

Audit Fees - 27,000 14,500 [14,500)

Bank Revaluations 1 1 1

Conferences - 500 [500) 300

Consultant Support 263 450 263 - 263

Contractors 25,002 25,002 25,002 25,000 2

Depreciation / Amortisation 2,544 3,324 2,544 2,544 3,105

Entertainment 2,360 965 2,380 1,170 1,130 2,162

Events 6,273 111,284 6,273 4,000 2,273 9,703

Fund Manager 2,493 (2,499)

General 2,717 1,853 2,717 2,400 317 2,399

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the

attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart

The Christchurch Foundation
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Statement of Financial Performance - Consolidated

KPMG

Private Enterprise
JUL-DEC 2022 JAN-JUN 2022 ¥TD BUDGET VARIAMCE PRIOR YTD
Insurance 2,168 2,091 2,168 2,178 il 1,849
Interest Expense 15 15 - 15
Legal Expenses 5,000 (5,000)
Loss on Disposal 250
Marketing / Advertising 4,952 10,406 4,952 16,250 (11,298) 6,227
FPhone [ Computer | Software 19,346 17,186 19,346 15,880 3466 10,631
Rent 10,698 10,820 10,698 10,820 {122) 10,820
Salaries 183,047 200,264 183,047 192,008 19,049) 157,812
Ei:;‘i:ﬁ'ee fier Christchurch 25,002 25,002 25,002 25,000 2 24,998
Travel 25,303 7,042 25,303 15,550 9,753 2,532
UK Establishment Costs 863 15,525 BB3 1,500 (6,638)
‘éf:pale'?isge:s Research Project 1,500 11,500)
Waitaha Project 575 2,488 575 575
03 Gin Expenzes 8,331 8,331 - 8,331
Total Expenses 343,755 490,986 343,755 383,364 (39,6239) 263,613
Net Surplus (Deficit) [6,566] (329,161) (6,566) 31,562 (38,128) [75,826)

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the

attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart

The Christchurch Foundation
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Statement of Financial Position - Consolidated

The Christchurch Foundation

As at 31 December 2022
31 DEC 2022 30 JUN 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Accounts Receivable 9,674 94 B55
Accrued Revenue 219 75,009
Cash and Bank 704,897 643,868
GST Receivable 14,003
JBWere Investment Portfolio [Cash Portion) 26,978 EECRC]
Other Receivables 32,297
Prepayments 11,521 22,729
Total Current Assets T6T,292 1,307,367
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2,608 2,536
JBWere Investment Portfolio 1,231,114 806,070
Website 4,123 5497
Total Mon-Current Assets 1,237,845 314,103
Total Assets 2,005,137 2,121,470
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 16,631 58,923
Accrued Expenditure 28,333 107,148
Deferrad Revenue 109,658 89 658
G5T Payable . 8,659
Total Current Liabilities 154,622 264,388
Total Liabilities 154,622 264,388
Net Assets 1,850,516 1,857,082
Equity
Administration Funds
Administration Funds - Allocated 75,000 25,000
Administration Funds - Unallocated 14,034 117,159
Total Administration Funds 89,034 142,159
Endowment Funds
Female Entrepreneurs Fund 16,002
General Fund - Where It's Meeded Most 19,098 15,901
Pride Fund 31,630 28 337
Women's Fund 3,756 2134
Total Endowment Funds 70,483 46,272
Pass Through Funds
Alexandra Shackleton 795 T35

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the
attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart The Christchurch Foundation
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Statement of Financial Position - Consolidated

KPMG

Private Enterprise
31 DEC 2022 30 JUN 2022
CBD Activations [815) (815)
Earthguake Memaorial 73,316 73,316
Education Fund 1,525,037 1,547 224
Female Entrepreneurs 53,593
General 10,000 10,000
GenGive 1,400 6,400
Green Philanthropy Fund 5,523 250
Lantern Fund 100 100
Sports Inclusivity Fund 832,268 71,673
Turanga [B4,658) (53,545)
Wamen In Sport 14,242 13,252
Youth Hub 137
Total Pass Through Funds 1,690,998 1,668,650
Tatal Equity 1,850,516 1,857,082

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the
attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart The Christchurch Foundation
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KPMG

Private Enterprise
Statement of Cash Flows - Consolidated
The Christchurch Foundation
For the 6 months ended 31 December 2022
JUL-DEC 2022 JAN-JUN 2022 ¥TD PRIORYTD
Cash Flows from Operations

Cash receipts 1,042,268 896,030 1,042,268 T4l1,822

GST Refund / (Payment) (53,651) (10,123} [53,651) (21,764)

Payments to suppliers and employees (441,300) (455,576) (441,200) [295,029)

Distributions [492,554) 936,064 (492,554) [278,645)

Total Cash Flows from Operations 54,763 (505,739) 54,763 146,384
Investing Activities

Cash payments for investing activities (17,229) (7,734) [17229) {1,301,514)

Dividend Income 16,077 3,023 16,077 447

Interest Income 14,955 7,548 14,955 TATH

Unrealised Gain [ {Less) on Investments (7,537) (T,537)

Total Investing Activities 6,266 2,836 6,266 {1,293,589)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash 61,030 (502,303) 61,030 (1,147,205)
Bank Accounts and Cash

Opening cash 643,868 1,146,771 643,868 2,293,976

Closing cash 704,898 643,868 704,398 1,146,771

Net change in cash for period 651,030 (502,903) 61,030 {1,147,205)

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the

attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart The Christchurch Foundation
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Private Enterprise

Statement of Financial Performance - Operations

The Christchurch Foundation
For the 6 months ended 31 December 2022

JUL-DEC 2022 JAN-JUN 2022 ¥TD BUDGET VARIAMCE PRIORYTD
Revenues
Ambassadors Club - - - 40,000 [40,000) -
Business Club 11,250 - 11,350 49,399 [38,749) 2,500
Danations - - (27,134)
Endowment Establishment Gift 1,000 . 1,000 5,000 (4,000) 1,000
Events 1,835 52,942 1,835 - 1,835 7,445
Fees for Service 50,036 75,046 50,036 52,500 [12,464) 75,000
Grants 100,000 175,000 100,000 100,000 175,000
Sponsarship 108,000 42,500 108,000 155,001 [47,001) 15,000
Te Ahu Patiki Fees for Service - - B
:\::Jer:ten‘s Fund Panel Discussion 1535 i 1,535 . 1535 B
03 Gin Sales 11,650 11,650 11,650
Total Revenues 285,306 355,488 285,306 412,500 {127,194) 248,819
Other Income
Interest Incame 3,428 1,138 3,428 2,448 980 1,135
Sundry Income - - 217
Thinker In Residence - - - 35,000 [35,000) -
Total Other Income 3,428 1,138 3,428 37,448 (34,020) 1,352
Gross Surplus 288,734 356,626 288,734 449,948 {161,214) 250,171
Expenses
Accounting / Finance 24,204 35,004 24,294 39,000 [14,708) 30,754
Administration Expenses - - T
Audit Fees - 27,000 - 14,500 [14,500) -
Conferences - - - 500 {500) 300
Consultant Support 263 450 283 - 263
Contractors 25,002 25,002 25,002 25,000 2 -
Depreciation / Amaortisation 2,544 3,324 2,544 2,334 1390) 3,105
Entertainment 2,360 9565 2,360 3,000 1640) 2,162
Events 4,473 111,284 4,473 4,000 473 9,703
Fareign Currency Gains and Losses 3 1) 3 - 3 -
Fund Manager - 2,492 (2,499)
General 2,619 1,853 2,619 2,400 219 2,399
Insurance 2,168 2,091 2,168 2,178 " 1,849
Interest Expense 15 . 15 - 15
Legal Expenses - 5,000 15,000)
Loss on Dispasal - 290 -
Marketing / Advertising 4552 10,406 4,952 17,500 [12,548) 5,121
Phone [ Computer / Software 19,346 17,188 19,346 15,880 3 466 10,631
Rent 10,698 10,820 10,698 10,820 (122) 10,820

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the

attached Compilation Report on page 3,

Blannual Repart The Christchurch Foundation
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Statement of Financial Performance - Operations

KPMG

Private Enterprise
JUL-DEC 2022 JAN-JUN 2022 ¥TD BUDGET VARIANCE PRIORYTD

Salaries 183,047 200,264 183,047 152,096 (%,049) 157,812

Stronger Greener Christchurch 25,002 25,002 25,002 25,000 bl 24,998

Expenses : !

Travel 25,303 2,042 25,303 15,550 9,753 2,832

UK Establishment Costs 363 15,525 BE3 7,500 16,638)

Vital Signs Research Project R 1,500 1,500)

Expenses

Waitaha Project 575 2488 575 575

032 Gin Expenses 3,331 8,331 8,331

Total Expenses 341,859 490,998 341,859 386,854 (44,995) 263,494
Net Surplus (Deficit) (53,125) (134,373) (53,125) 63,004 (115,219) (13,323)

These financial statements have been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement and should be read in conjunction with the

attached Compilation Report on page 3,
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 38, Vero Centre, 48 Shortland Streat
Auckland, New fealand 1010

web site waww, jowere.co.nz

Portfolio Asset Allocation Report - Account 57803 - The Christchurch Foundation (15 March 19 Fund){DIMS AC)
- as at 31 December 2022

Cost Value (NZD) Current Value (NZD) Portfolio %
Mew Zealand Equities 356,569.84 340,954.00 2110%
hustralian Equities 298,968.09 287,457 .94 22.85 %
Offshore Equities 242 065.36 225,709.59 17.94 %
Mew Zealand Bonds 216,678.22 212,23357 16.87 %
Offshore Bonds 133,094.56 119,870.32 9.53 %
Property 54 579,87 44 888.35 357 %
Cash 26,975.99 26,977.55 214 %
Portfolio Total 1,328,881.88 1,258,091.32 100.00 %
NZD FX Rates

AUD 09324

CAD (0.8565

CHF 05848

DKK 44043

@ 3601-New Zealand Equities EUR 055824

@ 3600-Australian Equities GEP (15257

(2 3603-0ffshore Equities HKD 4930

() 3602-Mew Zealand Bonds JPY 83.4061

@ 3604-0ffshore Bonds MNOK [.2759

@ 2605-Property NZD 1.0000

@ 3539-Cash SEK 6.5842

SGD 0.8477

5] 06322

This: documenk is intended for personal reference only 1t is not intended for crculation 1o, ar use by, amy thisd parky withme sxpress pamission of JEWem (NZ) Pty Lid, an Australian incorporaberd company registenad in New Zaaland (*JBWars™)
JEVere and its related entities distribinting this document and gach of their respectivg dirpctors, officers, employees and agents |“the JEWane Group”} beligwe that shg infoemation containgd in shis documan is comacs and shat amy gstimates,
apinicn, sonclesons of regmempndations containgd in this dogumend arg: igagnrah by beld or mads as a1 the plation Howgwgr np wananty is madg as te the acewacy o reBahiliy of any estimates, opinions, conclusions,
resoemenditions [which may changs withaul natice) or nther nformation contained in this decument amd, i m exlerk pemitted by e, the JEWGre Group disclaims all liatility and responsitility for any direct or indinect logs ar
clamaags which mary be suffered by 2y recipient Srough redying or acticg o amthing comaened or omitted fr sement whethar that lnss o damage is camsad by any faullor ssgligance on the part of the JEWars Geoup or ofherwisa, This
cisclzimen doas ot affent your rights under the Consumar Guarantees Art 1992, if applicable 1o you
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Commentary

This commentary will focus on material variances reported in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Performance as well as any other notable transactions in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (pages 5 - 9).

Analysis of Financial Performance

Ambassadors Club / Business Club

The annual budgets for the Ambassadors Club and Business Club are $100k each. This reflects the goal of having 10 Ambassadors Club members and 40
Business Club members by the end of FY2023 whe will each contribute 510k pa and $2.5k pa respectively towards the Foundation's operations. For the
purpose of the budget, this income was spread evenly over the 12 month period. To date, there are six Better City Business Club members.

Donation revenue received year to date is $103k. Note that no provision was made in the 2023 budget for donations.

Fees for Service

The annual budget for Fees for Service is $125k. This includes $100k from ECan for the costs of running the Green Philanthropy Fund, and $25k for the
running and establishment of the Selwyn Fund. So far $50k has been recognised from ECan. The variance showing is merely a timing variance.

Grants

Year to date, $100k in Grant Revenue has been received. The total budgeted grant revenue for FY2023 is $200k. This is expected to be received from the
Christchurch City Council in quarterly instalments,

Sponsorship

‘Year to date, $458k in sponsorship revenue has been recognised. This includes $350k in Sponsorship for Thranga, $100k for Meridian for Stronger Greener
Christchurch, and $8k for operations to support the Patrons Fund launch. There is currently an unfavourable variance to budget of $47k ¥TD.

03GIN Sales and Expenses

As of 31 December, the Foundation have seld 117 bottles of gin bringing in gross revenue of 511,650, Taking into account that some of the expenditure is for
300 bottles, $5,426.53 is the preliminary profit to date that is expected to be transferred to the Green Philanthropy Fund.

KPMG

Frwvale Enlerpnss
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Commentary

Analysis of Financial Performance (Continued)

Distributions

To date, the Foundation has made distributions totaling $15.1 million {including funds raised and distributed under agency agreements). YTD distributions are
$439k. Other than the expected Turanga distribution, distributions were not included in the FY2023 budget. A summary of the Foundation's lifetime distributions
can be found on the final commentary page of this report.

Unrealised Gain / (Loss) on Investment/Currency

Under Other Income, unrealised gains and losses on the JBWere investment portfolio are being tracked. As at 31 December 2022, there is an unrealised loss
of 583k (which is made up of (372k) in prior years and ($11k) YTD) which is approximately (6.4%) of the initial $1.3m investment.

Conferences / Legal Expenses / Marketing & Advertising

These expense lines show favorable variances against budget due to the budgeted annual expenditure being spread evenly over the 12 month period, these
variances are due to timing and the remaining amount will likely be incurred later in FY23.

Events

Events currently shows an unfavourable variance against budget due to the budgeted annual expenditure being spread evenly over the 12 month period.
These variances are due to timing of when the events oceur, with three large events being held to date. (Corporate Futsal Tournament, Women's' Fund High
Tea and the Green Philanthropy Fund launch).

Travel

Travel currently shows an unfavourable varance against budget of $10k. For the purposes of the budget, the annual expenditure has been spread evenly over
the 12 month period. In reality, Travel expenses are likely to be incurred in lump sums throughout FY23, therefore, the current variance is only due to timing.
Ower July and August 2022, The CEO travelled to the UK to visit the UK charity and to continue to build strong relationships abroad with expats in the UK.

Salaries

Salaries in Decembear 2022 were in line with budget. For reporting purposes, annual leave is reported in the month in which it is accrued rather than the month
that it is taken.

UKEstablishment Gosts

This expense line is to track the expenses incurred in the establishment of the UK entity. A total provision of $15k has been made for the UK Establishment
Costs in the FY2023 budget.

KPMG

Frwvale Enlerpnss
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Commentary

Analysis of Financial Position

Accounts Receivable

Of the $10k outstanding receivables, $9.5k relates to Operations and $0.5k relates to Women's Fund.

Accrued Revenue

Included in accrued revenue is TSB interest income to be received 31 March 2023,

Prepayments

Included in prepaid expenditure of $11.5k is prepaid insurance, subscriptions, travel and computer software licensing. These expenses are transferred to the
Statement of Financial Performance in the month the expense is realised.

JBWere Investment Portfolio

This line item tracks the market value of the JBWere Investment Portfolic which contains an initial investment of $1.3m of the OPOC Education Funds, Please
see page 26 of this report for a breakdown of the investment,

Accrued Expenditure

Accrued expenditure of $31k includes holiday pay, the December Spark invoice and an iPhone and a Samsung phone being paid via a 24 month interest free
payment plan,

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue of $110k reflects adjustments to move portions of the Meridian and Tlranga sponsorship from FY23 to FY24 when it is deemed to be
“garned”. Note that this causes Tlranga to appear negative within the equity breakdown.

Equity
Equity is broken down on the Statement of Financial Position to show the balances of each of the funds that make up the Foundation's total Equity balance.

Operational reserves are split out from allocated operational funds under the "Administrative Funds” heading. Please note that TGranga appears negative within
the equity breakdown due to the deferred revenue adjustment.

KPMG

Frwvale Enlerpnss

[tem No.: 11 Page 142

Item 11

Attachment B



Finance and Performance Committee

22 March 2023

Christchurch
City Council s

Commentary

Distributions

Since inception, The Christchurch Foundation have made the following distributions totaling $15,085,163 as of 31 December 2022:

« 544,960

+ 7,135,400
« 5209057

- 5287 628

« 54,000,366
«  $45.000

+ $480,000

+ $153,371

+  $389,038

« $15,000

«  §1.,768,887
+ $26,000

+  $59.589

- %4102

« §25,048
5437932

« $11,230

« $2,555

KPMG

Frwvale Enlerpnss

Ta various charities and organisations through business partnerships.
Our People, Qur City - Victims Fund.

Cur People, Qur Cily - Education Fund.

Our Peopla, Our City - Community Support Fund.

Qur People, Our City — Other (Distribution of large donations from various individuals and entities).
In Countdown grocery gift cards for the victims of the March 15" attacks.
Ta St John for two ambulance vehicles.

Towards Sporis Inclusivity projects.

To the Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust (for Te Ahu Patiki).

To the Town Hall.

Ta Taranga.

To the Women's Fund grant recipients.

In other general distributions.

From the Earthquake Memorial Fund.

To varlous causes via the Generation Give program.

Chnstchurch Cathedral Reinstatement Limited.

Riccarton Bush Trust.

Governors Bay Jetty.

Item No.: 11

Page 143

Item 11

Attachment B



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council s

KPMG

Private Enterprise

Item 11

Thank you

Sam Carson
Director, Private Enterprise
Thomas Mills

Manager, Private Enterprise
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12. Council-controlled organisations - Half year performance
reports for the six months ending 31 December 2022
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/18332

Report of / Te Pou Linda Gibb, Performance Advisor, Resources Group

Matua: (linda.gibb@ccc.govt.nz).

General Manager / Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
Pouwhakarae: (Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

1.1 To review the half year performance reports for the period 1 July-31 December 2022 for the
following Council-controlled organisations (CCOs) - Civic Building Ltd, Local Government
Funding Agency, Riccarton Bush Trust and Te Kaha Project Delivery Ltd.

1.2 Thisreport has been written following receiving the CCOs' half year performance reports for
2022/23.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receives the half year reports for the period 1 July-31 December 2022 for the following
Council-controlled organisations:

Civic Building Ltd
Local Government Funding Agency
Riccarton Bush Trust

Te Kaha Project Delivery Ltd.

3. Brief Summary

3.1 The halfyear reports were received on time - on or before the due date of 28 February
pursuant to section 66(2)) of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA).

3.2 Contentrequirements are provided for in section 68 of the LGA - the information necessary to
enable an informed assessment of the operations of the CCO and its subsidiaries by including
a comparison of performance against the SOl and an explanation of any material variances
between that performance and the SOI. It must also state the dividend, if any, authorised to
be paid by the CCO.

Civic Building Ltd (Attachment A)

Half year report

3.3 The company’sincome is generated mostly from the Council’s finance lease payments for
occupancy of Civic Building, less the costs of servicing the loan advanced by the Council for
purchasing the building.
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Actual SOl target | Variance | Lastyear | Variance
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue 2,204 2,162 +42 2,218 -14
Expenses 2,109 1,944 -165 2,256 +147
Net profit before tax 95 218 -123 (38) +133
Total assets 51,861 57,191 -5,330 56,493 -4,632

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

During the six month period, CBL repaid debt and equity principal of $4.5 million. The
transaction was not forecast in the SOI as the board had not, at that stage decided to make
the repayment. The flow on effect is a reduction in interest payable on the borrowings and to
reduce the occupancy lease payments. The repayment of loan principal has reduced the value
of total assets as shown in the table above.

Against both SOl targets and last year’s outturn revenues variances are immaterial at +1.9%
and -0.6% respectively. Variances under 5% are below the commentary threshold.

Against the SOl target, expenditure is higher by $165,000 reflecting an extra month’s
insurance payment of around $23,000 which missed the prior period to which it belonged, an
increase in rates of around $57,000 (6%) and increased interest costs of $87,000 on the loan
from the sharp rise in market rates compared with those forecast. This notwithstanding the
lower loan principal on which interest was calculated.

Against the same period last year, expenses are lower by $147,000 which reflects seven
months’ of insurance payments (versus five months in the prior year) of around $46,000 and
lower interest costs of $186,000 due to repayment of loan principal and equity.

Non-financial performance targets continue to be progressed in the ordinary course of
business.

Local Government Funding Agency (Attachment B)

3.9 TheLGFAis owned by the New Zealand Government (11.1%) and 30 councils (88.9%).
Christchurch City Council, and eight other councils all have equal shareholdings of 8.3% each
and the remaining 14.2% is held by 22 other local authorities.

3.10 Itsfinancial performance for the half-year compared with the half year to 31 December 2021 is
shown in the table below. The LGFA did not provide interim targets in its SOl or its half year
report. For guidance, the full year targets are shown in the last column.

Target Actual Lastyear | Variance Full year
target

$m $m $m $m
Net operating income 5.6 9.7 -4.1 12.2
IssuanFe, on-lending and 45 38 0.7 9.4
operating expenses
Net profit 1.1 5.9 -4.8 2.8
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3.11 Actual revenue and expenses are just under 50% of full year targets, and the LGFA’s
assessment is that it is likely to meet its full year targets.

3.12 Against the prior year’s half year performance, net profit is significantly lower (circa 81%)
which was anticipated in full year SOl targets. This is due to a combination of sharp rises in
interest rates in the market and an increase in the size of the liquid asset portfolio to meet
demand for short term financing (the more liquid the assets, the lower the interest rates).

Target Actual Lastyear | Variance
$b $b $b
New lending (long term) 1.8 1.6 +0.2
3.13 | New lending (short term) 0.5 0.4 +0.1 Total
Total lending to participating councils 15,751 13,513 +2,238 lending
to participating councils is ahead of last year’s by $2.2 billion of which $1.82 billion was new
long term lending and just under $0.5 billion was short-dated.
3.14 Non-financial performance targets have all been met except one - “meet reduction targets

outlined in the carbon reduction management plan”. LGFA advises that it is currently working
on translating the target into annual carbon reduction plan targets.

Riccarton Bush Trust (Attachment C)

3.15

The Trust is a charitable trust, incorporated under an Act of Parliament in 1914. The Riccarton
Bush Amendment Act 2012 provides that the Trust must provide a financial plan to the Council
annually for review and approval. The Trust administers 7.8 hectares of native bush and
Riccarton (historic) House.

Actual Sol Variance | Lastyear Variance
target
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue 465 284 +181 327 +138
Expenses? (631) (284) -347 (422) -209
Surplus/(deficit) (166) 0 -166 (95) -71
Trust Fund Balance 16,100 - - 13,702 +2,398

!target does not include non-cash expenses such as depreciation.

3.16 Against the SOI target, the deficit is higher by $166,000 made up of:

e Higherrevenue by $181,000 largely due to the Council grant of $161,000 for painting
Riccarton House, visitor income and café commission from more visitors than expected
post COVID-19 of $8,800 plus one-off rental received from a film company of around
$4,700 and the impact of higher interest rates of $3,700; and

e Higher operating costs by $347,000 of which $167,000 was the costs incurred for
painting Riccarton House, $152,000 for depreciation which is not included in the SOI
target as it is non-cash, building maintenance to Riccarton House of $7,100 as a result of
repairs discovered during the painting programme, around $13,000 in salary and wage
pressures and $6,000 for grounds and trees’ maintenance. The latter is a timing issue
that will come into line in the second half of the year.

3.17 Against the 2021/22 half year, the deficit is higher by $71,000 made up of:

e Higherrevenue by $138,000 largely due to the Council grant of $161,000 for painting
Riccarton House, donations and visitor revenue of $20,000, film company revenue of
$4,700 and donations of $6,000 for the bush enhancement project, offset by the impact
of a one-off capital grant in the prior period of $10,000 and a lower Council operating
grant of $47,000; and
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3.18 Non-financial performance targets have all been met except one relating to bush

Te Kaha Project Delivery Ltd (Attachment E)

e Higher operating costs by $209,000 from Riccarton House painting costs of $167,000,
repairs and maintenance to the House of $19,000 revealed as being required during
painting, depreciation charge of $10,000 due to uplift in valuation of the House and
increased bush and grounds’ maintenance costs of $13,000, in part relating to the cost
of the four yearly tree survey and in part a timing issue which will even out by year end.

enhancements - “replace board walk and improve interpretation and infrastructure”. This

project has been delayed as a result of a longer than anticipated planning process and

ambitious targets but is due to start on the ground shortly.

3.19 TeKaha Project Delivery Ltd is the governance body tasked with commissioning the design
and construction of Te Kaha. The responsibility and accountabilities for the final design and
construction of Te Kaha are held with the Council’s Capital Delivery - Major Facilities Team

3.20

3.21

which reports to the Council monthly.

Actual SOl target Last year
$000 $000 $000
Revenue / Expenses 151 165 121
Operating surplus/(deficit) 0 0 Not reported

The actual revenue and expense is lower than the SOl target by $14,000 which is a timing issue
between an equal spread of forecast remittances and the actual timing of invoicing from the

directors.

Non-financial performance targets - have all been met or are in progress in the ordinary

course of business.

Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

No. Title Reference Page

AL | Civic Building Ltd - Half year report for the period 1 July-31 23/330105 150
December 2022

B4 | Local Government Fu nding Agency - Half year report for the 23/330199 162
period 1 July-31 December 2022

c8® | Riccarton Bush Trust - Half year report for the period 1 July-31 | 23/330115 182
December 2022

DU® | TeKaha Project Delivery Ltd - Half year report for the period 1 23/330219 194
July-31 December 2022

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable
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Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatuiturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Signatories Nga Kaiwaitohu

Author Linda Gibb - Performance Monitoring Advisor CCO

Approved By Leah Scales - General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
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‘C B Civie Bullding Limited

Civic Building Limited

Unaudited Half Year Financial Statements

For the six months to 31 December 2022
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Civic Building Limited
Background

These are the unaudited interim financial statements of Civic Building Limited ("the Company”)

The Company is a Council Controlled Trading Organisation as defined by Section 6 of the Local
Government Act 2002. Accordingly, the Company has designated itseif as a profit oriented entity for
the purposes of New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS)
reporting as a Tier 2 for-profit entity.

The Company is a party along with Ngai Tahu Property (CCC-JV) Limited to the Christchurch Civic
Building Joint Venture (CCBJV), an unincorporated joint venture which has developed and now
maintains the Christchurch City Council's Civic Building on Hereford Street.

The financial statements of the Company are for the six months ended 31 December 2022. The
financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 February 2023.

Directors

The persons holding office as Directors of the Company for the six months to date and at 31 December
2022 were;

James Gough (Chairperson)
Sam MacDonald

Item No.: 12

Page 151

Item 12

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee
22 March 2023

Christchurch
City Council ==

Civic Building Limited
Commentary

Financial Performance

Revenue decreased for the six months to December 2022 compared to December 2021 due to lower
finance lease interest revenue, caused by more finance lease principal being repaid, reducing interest
every year. The lower revenue figure was partially offset by increased interest income.

The reduction in finance costs between December 2022 and December 2021, were due to the
repayment of the principle of $3.8 million and the lower interest rate charged by CCC. Other expenses
were higher than last year, mainly caused by higher insurance expenses and increased rates expense.

Financial Position

Total assets had a decrease of $4.6 million compared with last year due to the decrease in cash and
cash equivalents from the loan repayment.

The decrease in total liabilities in December 2022, was also a result of September loan repayment.
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Civic Building Limited

Statement of Service Performance

The following lists the financial and operating performance targets set by the Company in its Statement
of Intent for the year to 30 June 2023 and reports on progress to date against these targets.

Financial Performance Targets:
Income

Interest - finance lease

Interest - other

Other income

Expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses

(Loss)profit before income tax
Taxation
(Loss)profit after income tax

Ratio of Shareholders Funds to Total Assets

Capital Structure
Uncalled capital

RPS shares

Borrowings from Council
Finance lease asset
Total assets

Variance Commentary

Six months ended 31 December 2022 Full year
Target Actual  Variance Target
$000 $000 $000 $000
1,540 1,553 13 3,080
88 47 41) 175

534 604 70 1,068
1,639 1,726 (87) 3277
305 383 (78) 609
218 95"  (123) 437
(85 27 82 (110)

273 7 68 (205) 547

4 7% 9.1% 4 4% 4. 7%
Six months ended 31 December 2022 Full year
Target Actual  Variance Target
$000 $000 $000 $000
10,000 10,000 - 10,000
6,188 5 252 (936) 6,188
53,888 50,324 (3,564) 53,888
37,762 38,444 682 37,762
57,191 51,861 (5,330} 57,191

Actual income is higher than plan mainly due to higher recovery of property expenses, partially offset
by lower interest income from bank deposit due to lower interest rate than anticipated.

Expenses are higher than plan mainly due to the in increased interest rate on borrowings. Also higher

insurance and rates expenses.

The total asset balance was less than planned due to loan repayment. Also lower of finance lease

receivable.
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Civic Building Limited
Operational Performance Targets

Objective and Strategy
Meet the financial targets
contained within this SOL.

Manage the investmentina  Ensure the Civic building is
managed in accordance with the
management agreement.

commercially astute and
prudent manner.

Environmental Performance Target

Performance Target
The Civic Building was
standard in terms of

environmental and energy
sustainability.

These benchmarks will report on
water use, energy efficiencies
and waste output for Civic
Building will be determined in
202223 in line with the
sustainability goals for the
company and the REGGE
reporting framework.

Performance Measure

Budgeted key performance
indicators are met or exceeded.

Performance Measure

Work continues on the
designed to achieve a high development of appropriate
performance measures in line
with the sustainability goals for
the company and the REGGE
reporting framework.

Actual Result

Actual operating profit were lower
than targets.

The building is being managed to
a high level ensuring building
services are maintained and
improved.

The waorking relationship with the
JV has improved and continues to
develop with closer working in the
past 8 months.

In the increased cooperation a few
building related failures have been
claimed on the JV insurance and
the potential usage of the sinking
fund is being considered in the
next 6 months.

A few issues from construction
have also been raised and CCC
will work closely with the JV
around the required work to bring
these elements up to standard.

Performance to date

Final option analysis is being
carried out to confirm the new
heat energy source and plant for
the building.

Once the new plant is installed the
new baseline of energy
consumption will be identified
This has been worked on during
the last 6 months with internal
processes / consultations and
other considerations taking place
during this time.

The City Care contract has KPI's
in to ensure key contractors
reduce waste produced in their
operations
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Civic Building Limited
Social Performance Target

Performance Target

Maintain Te Hononga to meet
or exceed New Zealand
Standard NZS 4121:2001
Design for access and
mobility — buildings and
associated facilities and
Christchurch City Council's
Equity and Access for People
with Disabilities Policy.

Performance Measure Performance to date

Commission an access audit in  Investments into bringing the

2022/23 pursuant to NZS 4121.  building up to NZ standard has

Develop an improvement plan to continued - in early FY24 all

address material issued raised in appropriate recommendations

the access audit. from the access audit will be
completed.
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Civic Building Limited

Statement of comprehensive income for the six months ended 31 December 2022

December December
2022 2021
$000 $000
Revenue 2204 2,218
Finance costs 1,726 1,812
Other expenses 383 344
2,108 2,256
Profit before income tax a5 (38)
Income tax expensel(income) 27 (11)
{Loss) / profit for the period 68 (27)
Other comprehensive income 35
Total comprehensive income 103 (27)

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Civic Building Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the six months ended 31 December 2022

Balance at 1 July 2021

Profit/(loss) for the 8 months to 31 December
2021

Other comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021

Profit/(loss) for the 6 months to 30 June 2022

Other comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2022

Profit/{loss) for the 6 months to 31 December
2022

Other comprehensive income
Preference shares repayment

Balance at 31 December 2022

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Share Retained Other
Capital Earnings Reserves Total
$000 $000 $000 5000
6,188 (10,502) 471 (3,843)
(27) (27)
28 28
6,188 (10,529) 499 (3,842)
(67) (67)
33 33
6,188 10,596) 532 (3,876)
68 68
35 35
_ (93%8) (938)
___ 5252  (10,528) 567 (4,709)
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Civic Building Limited

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Finance lease receivables
Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Other financial assets
Investment property

Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities
Borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Barrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Capital and other equity instruments

Retained earnings
Reserves
Total equity

December December
2022 2021
$000 $000
1,584 4,656
4,765 4538

169 151
6,517 9,345
500 400
6,400 6.400
38,444 40,348
45,344 47,148
51,861 56,493
183 304
128 70
311 ar4
50,324 53,888
5,935 6,073
56,250 59 961
56,570 60,335

_ (4,709) (3,842)
5,252 6,188
(10,527) {10,529)
567 499
(4,708) (3,842)

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Civic Building Limited

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating revenue

Subvention received

Interest received

Insurance proceeds received

Payments to suppliers

Receipts / (Payments) for remedial works
regarding earthguake claim

Income Tax Expenses

MNet GST movement
MNet cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Payment for investment property
Maturities of term deposits

New term deposits

Met cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Loan repayment

Interest paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Statement of cash flows for the 6 months ended 31 December 2022

December
2022

$000

3,046

(613)

2,432
72

500
428

{4,500)
(1.691)
(6,191)

(4,186)

5,770
1,584

December
2021

$000

2,932

25

(396)

2,561

7

(400)
(417)

(1,908)
{1,908)

270

4,387

4,657

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Civic Building Limited

Notes to the interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022
Statement of Compliance

These are the unaudited interim financial statements of the Company for the six months ended 31
December 2022.

The interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ |AS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting and New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice as appropriate for Tier 2 for-profit
entities. They comply with the Tier 2 for-profit accounting standards.

As the Company has elected to report under Tier 2 for-profit accounting standards, it has applied

disclosure concessions, where available. The criteria under which the Company is eligible to report
under Tier 2 for-profit accounting standards are as follows:

(a) the Company is not publicly accountable; and

(b) the Company's total expenses for the period being reported are below the $30 million
threshold for Tier 1 reporting.

The interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the
annual financial statements. As such, these should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual
financial statements as at 30 June 2022,

Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the intenm financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Company's annual financial statements as at 30 June
2022

Contingencies

The Company had no contingent liabilities on 31 December 2022 or 30 June 2022

Events subsequent to balance date

There were no significant events subsequent to balance date reguiring disclosure or that would
materially affect these financial statements.
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LGFA

New Zealand Local

Government Funding Agency

Te POtea Kawanatanga a-rohe

24 February 2023
Dear LGFA Stakeholder
LGFA 2022-23 Half Year Report

Please find attached a copy of the Half Year Report for the six-month period to December 2022, A
copy is also available for download on our website www.lgfa.co.nz.

We are pleased to highlight another positive six-month period for LGFA including the following

1. Increased lending to council and CCO borrowers
By 31 December 2022, LGFA had a market value of loans outstanding of $15.75 billion. We
lent 51.82 billion over the six-month period which was the second highest amount on record.
We added two new councils and two new CCOs to bring the number of member councils to
seventy-seven and the number of member CCOs to three.

2 A focus on sustainability.
We launched our Climate Action Loan (CAL) product for council and CCO members in
December 2022 that will incentivise borrowers through a lower loan margin if they have a
GHG emission reduction plan in place and are meeting the reduction targets.

We have approved a further three projects as eligible for Green, Social and Sustainable (GSS)
loans over the six-month period, bringing the number of eligible projects to five across five
councils. Councils receive a discounted borrowing margin for eligible projects.

Sustainability remains important at LGFA as noted with the CAL product launch and ongoing
dialogue with councils relating to GHG emission reporting and reduction.

3. A financial position tracking to forecast.
Net Operating Profit for the six-month period was 51.1 million, which is lower than the
comparable prior period but in line with our SOI forecast. We expect a lift in profitability
during the next six-month period. LGFA has $18.14 billion of assets and Shareholder Equity of
5104.45 million as at 31 December 2022,

4. Working with our stakeholders.
We have been assisting Central and Local Government with the Three Waters Reform
programme to ensure a smooth transition of debt from councils to the proposed new Water
Services Entities in July 2024,

We continue to receive the support of our growing investor base. It is pleasing to see the
amount of LGFA bonds held by offshore investors grow to a record $5.09 billion as at 31
December 2022 as well as domestic banks, institutional and retail investors increase their
holdings. Having a diverse investor base for LGFA bonds helps provide certainty of access to
markets for our council and CCO borrowers.

Mew Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited
Auckland Level 5, Walker Wayland Centre, 53 Fort Street
Waellington Lavel 8, City Chambers, 142 Featherston Street

PO Box 5704, Lambton Quay, Wellington 145 | Phone +&4 4 974 4530
Igfa.co.nz
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A further highlight was LGFA being voted by market participants as the KangaNews New
Zealand Debt Issuer of the Year award for 2022.

Finally, we appreciate the support of all our stakeholders and thank you for your contribution and
assistance over the past six months.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any comments or questions.

Kind regards

v -
WO

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive
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Message from the Chair
and Chief Executive

The six-months to December presented a challenging period for
financial markets, with LGFA's operating performance over this
period subdued due to the volatile markets. Despite the difficult
conditions, LGFA continued to deliver value to members and our
investor base while meeting our financial targets. Highlights over the
period included launching our new Climate Action Loan product for
members and being awarded the KangaNews New Zealand Debt

Issuer of the year.

Financial and Operational Performance

LGFA's total interest income for the six-month period
to December 2022 of $312.9 million was o 68.4%
increase over the 2021 comparable pericd (51859
million), while net cperating profit of $1.1 million for
the six-month peried decreased 81.3% on the 2021
comparable period (559 million).

Net operating profit was significantly lower than

the comparable period a year agoe due to the sharp
rise in interest rates combined with increased
holdings of liquid assets, This outcome was expected
and forecast in our Statement of Intent (SCI) last
wyear. Both net interest income and operating

profit were slightly ahead of the S0l forecast and
we are forecasting an improvement in financial
performance in the second half of the financial yvear.

Expenses have been managed under the SO

budget over the past six months, Lower fees relative
to budget for the NZ Debt Management standby
facility and lower NZX and legal fees relating to
issuance were positive. These savings were offset

by higher legal costs relating to considering the
implications from the proposed Three Waoters Reform,
the development of new sustainability initiatives,
including related consultancy costs.

The financial strength of LGFA was affirmed by Fitch
Ratings who maintained our domestic currency credit
rating at As+in October 2022, Qur AAA rating from
S&F Global Ratings was affirmed in March 2022 and
remains the same as the New lealand Government.

04 LGFA Holf Year Report 2022 Message from the Chair and Chief Executive

Borrowing activity

LGFA issued $1.76 billion of bonds over the past six months
and outstandings now total $17.84 billion (including $110
billion of treasury stock) across 11 maturities ranging
between 2023 to 2037 The average term of our bond
issuance during the six months at 4.37 years was
significantly shorter than the prier year period.

LGFA has the largest amount of New Zealand

dollar (NZD) bonds on issue after the New Zealand
Government and our individual bond tranches

are amongst the largest and most liquid NZD debt
instrurnents availakle for investors, Secondary market
activity in our bonds continues to rise, assisting
investors' access to our bonds throughout the year.

The performance of LGFA bonds over the past six
manths has been soft with LGFA bond spreads to

New Zealand Government Bonds (NZGBs) and spreads
to swap in general maoving wider in line with global
high grade markets, Spreads widened between

3 basis points (bps) and 25 bps to NZGB and between
7 bps to 12 bps to swap over the six-month periad. The
inclusion of the NZGEs into the World Government Bond
Index was also positive for the perfermance of NZGBs
relative to LGFA bonds, Qutright yvields on LGFA bonds
rose between 157 bps (2024 maturity) and 75 bps (2033
maturity] over the six-month pericd.

LGFA was voted by market participants as the
KangaMews New Zealond Debt Issuer of the Year award
for 2022 and we want to acknowledge their support.

Itis also pleasing to observe the increased participation
by offshore investors over the post six months as NZD-
denominated investments have become relatively

rmore attractive for investors. We estimate that offshore
Investors have increased their holdings of LGFA bonds
over the past six manths by 55638 million to a record $5.09
billion {or 301% of LGFA bonds on Issue), while domestic
institutional and retall investars hold 33.2%, domestic
banks 28.2% and the Reserve Bank 8.5%.

Lending to the sector

LGFA was established in 2011 to provide long-dated
borrowing, certainty of access to markets and to
reduce the borrowing costs for the local government
sector. The original 31 shareholders including the Crown
remain as shareholders. Over the past six months,

we added two councils and two Council-controlled
organisations (CCOs) as members, with Dunedin

City Council and Environment Southland joining as
guarantors and Westland Holdings and Dunedin City
Treasury joining as CCOs. Total membership is now 77
out of the 78 councils in New Zealand and three CCOs.

Long-dated lending to council and CCO members
over the six-month period was $1.82 billion provided to
51 members. This was the second highest amount lent
over a rolling six-month period and was just below the
amount of loans made during the six-month period to
September 2020. Our estimated market share of total
council borrowing of 89% was above forecast and the
third highest annual average on record. The average
tenor of long-dated borrowing by councils of 5.6 years
over the six-month period was in line with prior periods.
Short-dated lending for terms less than 12 months
continues to be supported by councils. As at 31
December 2022, LGFA had 5493 million of short-term
loans outstanding to 30 council and CCO members,

Qurrole in assisting Local and Central
Government

The local government sector continues to face a
period of change and uncertainty having to deal with
climate-related events, rising cost pressures and the
Central Government-led initiatives relating to the
proposed Three Waters Refarm Programme and the
Future for Local Government Review.

LGFA is assisting on an as-required basis, both
Central Governmeant and our council members, as
they work through the proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme, The Government's proposed Three Water
Reform Programme will be the largest change to the
local authority sector in recent yedrs.

LGFA continues 1o assist the local government sector-
led initiative in developing a Ratepayer Financing
Scheme that may provide some financial relief to
ratepayers,

New Zealand
Issuer of the Year
for 2022

Thank you to our investors,
intermediaries and market
participants for their support.

Meassage from the Chair and Chief Executive LGFA Half Year Report 2022 05
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06 LGFA Holf Year Report 2022 Message from the Chair and Chief Executive

New products and initiatives

We launched Green, Social and Sustainable (GSS)
lending in October 2021 and over the past six months
have approved three further projects as being eligible
for GSS loans, bringing the number to five loans
across five councils. As at 31 December 2022 we have
undertaken $101 million of GSS Loans to three councils.

We launched Climate Action Loans (CALs) for councils
and CCOs in December 2022. A CAL provides o
discounted loan margin to those councils with a
Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Plan in place and
who are meeting their targets.

Increasing focus on sustainability

Sustainability plays an important part within the local
government sector and at LGFA. We have undertaken
several initiatives over the past year, including
maintenance of CarbonZero certification from Toitu
Envirocare, actively marketing our GSS loan product
and establishing CALs.

We reviewed the Climate Change Emergency
Declarations and responses by Councils and a copy
of the report is available on our website: Review of
Climate Emergency Declarations and Responses

by Councils

Acknowledgments

The Agency's work cannot be implemented without
the support of our staff, fellow directors, Shareholders
Council, New Zealand Debt Management (NZDM) and
Central Government, all of whose efforts should be
acknowledged.

John Avery, one of LGFA's foundation directors, retired
in November 2022, and we would like to take this
opportunity to sincerely thank John for his invaluable
contribution to LGFA since 2011

We believe LGFA's future remains positive and look
forward to working with all stakeholders.

o

\m#-;eé g ke A | /—‘T__)\’\TL
e , \'lg’& ==,
Craig Stobo Mark Butcher
Chair Chief Executive

Pedestrian bridge, Waikanae River, Otaihanga Domain.

Kapitl Coast District Council. Ph Dy Mar
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Performance
against objectives

Governance, capability and business practice

LGFA is committed to best practice corporate governance to ensure its long-term sustainakility and success.

Objectives Our performance to 31 December 2022

Demonstrate best practice
corporate governance.

LGFA is committed to demonstrating best practice corporate
governance and we report annually on our compliance with the eight
core principles underpinning the NZX Corporate Governance Best
Practice Code.

Our 2022 Annual Report, released on 30 August 2022, is the most recent
report with commentary on our compliance with the NZX Code.

Set and model high standards of
ethical behaviour.

LGFA has adopted a formal Code of Ethics, incorporating its Conflicts of
Interest and Code of Conduct policies, which sets out the standards and
values that directors and employees are expected to follow.

Ensure products and services
offered to participating borrowers
are delivered in o cost-effective
manner,

LGFA prepares annual operating budgets and monitors progress against
these monthly. Our performance against our financial performance
targets for the six months to 31 December is summarised below under our
performance targets.

Be o good emplover by providing
safe working conditions, trdining
and development and egual
opportunities for staff,

LGFA is committed to being o good employer and we report aur
employment practices annually in our Annual Report,

Qur 2022 Annual Report is our most recent report outlining our health and
safety and wellbeing practices and policies, including compliance with
the Health and Safety at Work Act, diversity and inclusion and capability
and development,

LGFA Half Year Report 2022 Performance against objectives

The statement of service performance provides a summary of LGFA's performance for the first
half of the financial year against the objectives and performance targets set out in the LGFA
Statement of Intent 2022-23 (SOI)

LGFA objectives and performance targets for 2022
encompass our shareholders’ foundation objec

our strateg

Governance, capability and business practice

Optimising financing services for local government

Environmental and social responsibility

Effective management of loans

+ Industry leadership and engagement

Qur quarterly reports to sharehold

formance targets. The reports for the quarters’ ended September and December

Performance targets

Comply with the Sharehalder
Foundation Polices and the Board-
approved Treasury Policy at all
times.

ves and guide the

-23 fall within the following five strategic priorities which

A Board and management in determining

provide more detail on our performance against objectives and

2022-2023 target

Mo breoches.

dre available on the

Our performance to 31 December 2022

J No breaches.

Maintain LGFAs credit rating equal
to the New Zealand Government
sovereign rating where bath
entities are rated by the same
Rating Agency.

LGFA credit
ratings equivalent
to NZ Soveraign.

J Our ratings remain equivalent to the New
Zealand Government for both S&P Global
Ratings and Fitch Ratings.

Fitch Ratings upgraded our long-term forelgn
currency credit rating to AA+ on 16 September
2022. 5&P Global Ratings offirmed our domestic
currency credit rating at AAA in February 2022,

LGFA's total operating income for
the period to 30 June 2023.

> 812.2 million.

J On target to meet by 30 June 2023
$5.651 million as at 31 December 2022,

LGFA's total operating expenses for
the period to 30 June 2023,

< 59.4 million.

J On target to meet by 30 June 2023
54.542 million as at 31 December 2022

Performance against cbjectives LGFA Annual Report 2022 9
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Optimising financing services for local government

LGFA's primary objective is to optimise the terms and conditions of the debt funding it provides to participating
borrowers. Amongst other things, LGFA will achieve this by delivering operational best practice and efficiency
across our lending products and services.

Objectives How we measure our performance

Provide interest cost
savings relative to
alternative sources of
financing.

Comparison to other high-grade issuers - secondary market spread to swap (bps)

80
70 /
60 /

50 / s
40 , *

30

20

10-

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 203

— LGFA «++++ Sypranational, sovereign and agency issuers (Average)

=~ Bank (Average) Source: LGFA

Supranational, sovereign and agency issuers

Kainga Ora (AAA) KBN (AAA)

Asian Development Bank (AAA) Rentenbank (AAA)

|ADB (AAA) World Bank (AAA)
International Finance Corp (AAA) Nordic Investment Bank (AAA)

Banks

BNZ (AA-) Westpac Bank (AA-)

Performance targets

Share of aggregate long-term
debt funding to the Local
Government sector,

2022-2023 target

> B80%

Our performance to 31 December 2022

v

89% as at 31 December 2022 (compared to
historical average of 75% since 2012),

Total lending to Participating
Borrowers,

> $15,004 million

v

On target to meet by 30 June 2023,
$15,751 million as at 31 December 2022.

Conduct an annual survey of
Participating Borrowers who
borrow from LGFA as to the value
added by LGFA to the borrowing
activities.

> B5% satisfaction
score

v

100% satisfaction score in August 2022
Stakeholder Survey.

Successfully refinance existing
loans to councils and LGFA bond
maturities as they fall due.

100%

100%

Offer flexible short
and long-term
lending products that
meet the borrowing
requirements for
borrowers.

LGFA provides members with short term loans (less than one year), long term loans on
either a floating or fixed rate basis (between one year and April 2037), Green Social
and Sustainable Loans and standby facilities.

« Over the six months to 31 December 2022, our members borrowed $1.82 billion in
163 long term loans across maturity dates ranging between 2023 and 2033, with
December quarter lending being the second highest on record.

» As at 31 December 2022 there were 45 short term loans totaling $497 million.
« As at 31 December 2022, standby facilities totalled $682 million across 13 members.

Deliver operational
best practice and
efficiency for lending
services.

Over the six months to 31 December 2022, LGFA operations staff successfully:
« settled 842 new trades with a gross value of $9.97 billion,

« processed 6,067 cash flows with a gross value of $15.0 billion, and

« rate set 4,305 existing trades.

There were no LGFA settlement errors over the six months.

Ensure certainty

of access to debt
markets, subject
always to operating
in accordance with
sound business
practice.

There was strong activity in LGFA bonds in both the primary market (tender or
syndicated issuance) and secondary market (between banks and investors). Over
the six months to 31 December 2022, we issued $1.76 billion of primary bonds and
secondary market turnover totalled $5.14 billion. Secondary market turnover of $3.1
billion over the December quarter was at the second highest on record.

LGFA Half Year Report 2022 Performance against objectives

Meet all lending requests from
Participating Borrowers, where
those requests meet LGFA
operational and covenant
requirements.

100%

100%

’ l-
~
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P
. {y? Waikare fiVerpath:

v -
«Hamikton City Coungi

-

:
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Environmental and social responsibility Effective management of loans
LGFA recognises the risks inherent in climate change for councils and supports Mew Zealand's shift to o low- LGFA will ensure its loan book remains at a high standard by ensuring it understands each participating
carbon econamy. LGFA will exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard to the borrower’s financial position. LGFA manages its assets within an appropriate risk management fromework to
interests of the community in which it operates and by endeavouring to accommodate or encourage these ensure shareholder value is not compromised.

when able to do so.

Objectives How we measure our performance
Objectives How we measure our performance

Proactively monitor and review Over the six menths, we reviewed council agendas and management
Assist the local government sector  Over the six months, we approved GSS loans to Hutt City Council for the each Participating Borrower's reports on an angoing basis for all members on the LGFA borrower
in achieving their sustainakbility Maenae swimming pool, Whangarei District Council for the Civic Centre, financial position, including its watch-list.
and climate change cbhjectives. and c:pproved_our first eligible project for social lending for Christchurch financial headroom under LGFA we have received compliance certificates for LGFA covenants from all
City Council's Otautahi Community Housing Trust. policies. of our members with debt outstanding ot June 2022 and no council has
In total, to date we have approved five GSS loans with a combined Andalyse finances at the Council requested that they be measurad on o greup basis. Some certificates
dpproved value of 5543 million, with 3101 millien of leans drawn down group level where appropriate have been provided based upon unaudited financial statements given
to date. and report to shareholders. the delays in providing final audit signoff due to audit shortages.
On 1 December 2022, we lounched Climare Action Loans (CALs) Endeaveour to meet each We metwith 30 borrowers over the six months and are on target to meet
which provides councils with a discounted loan margin if they have participating borrower annually, with all members by 30 June 2023,
implemented a Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Plan and meet thair including meeting with elected
emission reduction targerts., officials as required, or if
LGFA completed research on which Mew Zealand councils declared requested.
a climate emergency over 2019-2020 (16 out of 78), their subsequent
responses and any opportunities for LGRA, A copy of our report is
available from our website: Review of Climate Emergency Declarations Performance targeats 2022-2023 target Our performance to 31 December 2022
and Responses by Councils
- — - - - — Review ecach participating 100% J On target to meet by 30 June 2023
Improve sustainability outcomes In 202, LGFA directors commitied to reducing our carbon emissions borrower's financial position under
within LGFA. over time, with our target of cutting per employee emissions by 30% by LGFA policies.
2030, comparad with a 2018/19 base year. We are currently working on
translating this target into annual carbon reduction plan targets. Arrange to meet each 100% o/ ©Ontarget to meet by 30 June 2023.
Participating Borrower at least
annually, including meeting with
Performance targets 2022-2023 target Our performance to 31 December 2022 elected officials as required, or if
requested.
Comply with the Health and Safety Mo breaches J Mo breaches.
at Work Act 2015,
Maintain Toitd Carbon Zero Carbon-zero J Toitd Met Carbon-zero recertification approved
certification. certification 1 October 2022,
maintained.
Meet reduction targets outlined Reduction targets x We are currently working on translating this
in our carbon reduction met, target into annual carbon reduction plan
management plan. targets.
Increase our G55 lending book. Two new J Three new participating borrowers approved
participating for G383 lending.
borrowers enter
into GSS loans.
Ensure Annual Report is prepared 100% ,/ 2022 Annudl Report prepared 1o meet the
in compliance with applicable GRI requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative
Standards. (GRI) Standards (core option).
Meet all mandatory climate 100% ,,, Voluntarily comply with GRI standards (core
reporting standards. option).
Undertaking development work on meeting
Climate Related Disclosure requirements.,
12 LGFA Haolf Year Report 2022 Performance against objectives Performance against objectives LGFA Half Year Report 2022 13
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Industry leadership and engagement

LGFA will take a proactive role to enhance the financial strength and depth of the local government debt
market and will work with key central government and local government stakeholders on sector issues,

Objectives How we measure our performance

Take a proactive role to enhance
the financial strength and depth
of the local government debt
market and work with key central
government and local government
stakeholders on sector and
individual council issues.

Assist the local government sector
with significant matters such

as COVID-19 response and the
proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme.

Support councils and CCOs in

the development of reporting
disclosures of the impacts of
sector activity on climate change.

This year we have introduced two new webinars for members:
+ LGFA Quarterly Update
« An Economic and Financial Market Update by BNZ

These inaugural webinars were well attended by participants and will be
formalised as ongoing quarterly events,

Over the six months we met with Treasury, the National Transition Unit
and Policy teams at DIA (and their advisers) regarding proposed Three
Waters Reform, working actively on issues relating how to the transition
of council debt on 1July 2024, as well as the borrowing options for the
Water Services Entities (WSEs) following transition. The Water Services
Legislation Bill was introduced to Parliament in December and, in
consultation with key stakeholders, we are considering the contents

of the Bill and what potential role LGFA could play under the proposed
Three Waters Reform Programme.

LGFA has provided input into the Ratepayer Financing Scheme (RFS)
project managed by a group of councils with advice from Cameron
Partners. If successful, the RFS could offer temporary financial relief to
ratepayers via rates postponement. LGFA is not contributing financially
to this project but providing intellectual capital and assistance.

We are continuing work on initiatives to reduce compliance and
documentation requirements for members when they borrow.

Met with Chair of the Review into the Future for Local Government.

LGFA Half Year Report 2022 Performance against objectives

Performance against objectives LGFA Half Year Report 2022
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Financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income

For the six months ended 31 December 2022 in 50005

Unaudited Unaudited

six months ended  six months ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Interest income 312,883 185,886
Interest expense J07R04 176,709
Net interest income 4 4,979 9,178
Other operating income 5 &71 526
Total eperating income 5,651 9,704
Operating expenses & 4,542 3,769
Net operating profit 1,108 5,935
Total comprehensive income 1,108 5,935

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements,

Due to rounding, numbers prasented in the financial statements and associated notes may not add up
precisely to the reported totals.

The Board of Directors of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited authorised these
stotements or issue on 24 February 2023,

16 Financial Statements

Statement of comprehensive iINCOME..........iii s 16
Statement of CRANGES IN @QUITY .o sssessees s eeseesssmssssssess s 17
Statement of finaNCial POSITION ... e
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Statement of changes in equity

For the six months ended 31 December 2022 in $000s

Note Share Retained Total equity
capital earnings
Equity as at 1July 2021 25,000 69, T4y Qiy, Tisly
Net operating profit 10,673 10,673
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,673 10,673
Transactions with owners - -
Dividend paid on 3 September 2021 (857) (857)
Equity as at 1July 2022 25,000 79,559 104,560
Met operating profit 1,108 1108
Total comprehensive income for the year 108 108
Transactions with owners - -
Dividend paid on 2 September 2022 (1,218) (1,218}
Unaudited closing balance as at 31 December 2022 17 25,000 79,450 104,450
ot
Craig Stobo, Director Linda Robertson, Director
Board Chair Chair, Audit and Risk Committee

Financial Statements LGFA Annual Report 2022 17
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Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022 in 5000s

Note Unaudited as at Audited as at
31 December 2022 30 June 12022

Assets
Financial assets
Receivables 1,895 360
Cash and bank balances 64,921 158,033
Cash pledged as collateral 337,009 76
Marketable securities 1,312,958 1,491,148
Deposits 504,359 462,865
Derivatives in gain TT470 94,767
Loans a8 15,751,420 14,041,908
Non-financial assets
Prepayments 1150 852
Other assets 9 nz 156
Total assets 18,141,294 16,250,167
Equity
Share capital 16 25,000 25,000
Retained eamings 79,450 79,560
Total equity 104,450 104,560
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions 10 95,576 45,066
Bills n B36.949 562,803
Bond repurchases 12 108,077 3,67
Derivatives in loss 1,717,479 1,206,175
Bonds 13 15,146,187 14,015,862
Borrower notes 14 331,468 283,80
Mon-financial liabilities
Qther liabilities 15 708 as0
Total liabilities 18,036,844 16,145,607
Total equity and liabilities 18,141,294 16,250,167

These statements are 1o be read in conjunction with the notes 1o the finoncial statements.

18 Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows

For the six months ended 31 December 2022 in $000s

Unaudited

six months ended
31 December 2022

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Unaudited
six months ended
31 December 2021

Cash applied to loans 8 (1,639,024) (1,427.636)
Interest paid on bonds issued (228,725) (215,363)
Interest paid on bills issued (10, 088) 1,591)
Interest paid on borrower notes {131) (212)
Interest paid on bond repurchases (1,738) (254)
Interest received from loans 224,165 76952
Interest received from cash & cash equivalents 2,596 1,031
Interest received from marketable securities 13,570 5,624
Interest received from deposits 5,897 2,206
Met interest on derivatives 2,274 136,753
Cash proceeds from provision of standby facilities &71 526
Payments to suppliers and employeeas (5317 (3927
Net cash flow from operating activities 18 (1,636,047) (1,425,888)
Cashflow from Investing Activities

Purchase of marketable securities 206,657 (594,958)
[Purchase)/maturity of deposits (462937 (185,743)
Purchase of plant and egquipment - -
MNet Cashflow from Investing Activities (256,280) (780,701)
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash proceeds from bonds issued 13 1,477,890 2,096,802
Cash proceeds (outflows) from bills issued i Viady [75,367)
Cash proceeds (outflows) from bond repurchases 76,195 158,143
Cash proceeds from borrower notes 41,598 35,509
Dividends paid 1.218) (857)
Cash applied to derivatives 130,604 (25,240)
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,799,215 2,188,991
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash (g3.02) {17,599)
Cash, cash equivalents at beginning of year 158,033 391,835
Cash, cash equivalents at end of year &£4,971 374,236

These statemeants are 10 be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Statements LGFA Half Year Report 2022
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Reporting entity

The Mew Zealand Local Government Funding
Agency Limited (LGFA) is a company registered
under the Companies Act 1993 and is subject to the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002,
LGFA is controlled by participating local authorities
and is a council-controlled organisation as defined
under section & of the Local Government Act 2002
LGFA is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in New Zealand.

The primary cbjective of LGFA is to optimise the

debt funding terms and conditions for participating
borrowers.

The registered address of LGFA is Level 8, City
Chambers, 142 Featherston Street, Wellington Central,
Wellington 6011

These financial statements were authorised for issue
by the Directors on 24 February 2023,

2. Statement of compliance

The interim financial statemeants are for the six
months ended 31 December 2022 and are to be read
in conjunction with the annual report for the year
ended 30 June 2021

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and in compliance
with NZ 1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

3. Basis of preparation
Measurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on o
historical cost basis modified by the revaluation of
certoin ossets and liabilities.

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual
basis,

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless separately identified. The functional currency
of LGFA is New Zealand dollars.

Foreign currency conversions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are
translated into Mew Zedland dollars using exchange
rates applied on the trade date of the transaction,

Changes in accounting policies
There have no changes to accounting policies.

20 Financial Statements

Early adoption standards and interpretations
LGFA haos not early adopted any standards.

Standards not yet adopted

LGFA does not consider any standards or
interpretations in issue but not yet effective to have a
significant impact on its financial statements.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
bank accounts and deposits with an original maturity
of no more than three months.

Cash provided by LGFA as security for financial
arrangements remains a financial asset of LGFA and
is recognised as cash pledged as collateral in the
Statement of Financial Position, separate from cash
and cash equivalents

Purchases and sales of all financial assets are
accountad for at trade date.

At each balance date, an expected credit loss
assessment is performed for all financial assets and
is calculated as either:

« Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months, where
no significant increase in credit risk has arisen
since acquisition of the asset, or

« Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible over the expected life of the
financial asset, where a significant increase in
credit risk has arisen since acquisition of the asset,

Impairment losses on financial assets will ordinarily
be recognised on initial recognition as a 12-month
expected loss allowance and move to a lifetime
expected loss allowance if there is a significant
deterioration in credit risk since acguisition.

Financial labilities

Financial liakilities, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially ar fair value less transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method,

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
bath initially and subsequently at fair value, They
are reported as either assets or liakilities depending
on whether the derivative is in a net gain or net loss
position respectivealy.

Fair value hedge

Where a derivative qualifies as a hedge of the exposure
to changes in fair value of an asset or liability (fair value
hedge) any gain or loss on the derivative is recognised
in profit and loss together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or liability.

The carrying ameount of the hedged item is adjusted
kv the fair value gain or loss on the hedged item in
respect of the risk being hedged. Effective parts of
the hedge are recognised in the same area of profit
and loss as the hedged item.

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost,

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis at
rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation of
an item of property, plant and equipment, less any
estimated residual value, over its remaining useful life.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise software and project
costs incurred for the implementation of the treasury
management system. Capitalised computer software
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the software (three to seven
years), Costs associated with maintaining computer
softwdre are recognised as expenses.

Other liabilities

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to saldries and wages, annual
leave and other similar benefits are recognised in the
profit and loss when they accrue to employees.

Revenue

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective interest
rate method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The
mathod applies this rate to the principal outstanding
to determine interest income each period.

Expenses

Expenses dare recognised in the period to which they
relate.

Interest expense

Interest expense is accrued using the effective
interest rate method,

The effective interest rate exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of

the financial liability to that liability's net carrying
amaount. The method applies this rate to the principal
outstanding to determine interest expense each period.

Income tax

LGFA is exempt from income tax under Section 14 of
the Local Governmeant Borrowing Act 2011

Goods and services tax

All items in the financial statements are presented
exclusive of goods and service tax (GST), except for
receivables and payables, which are presented on a
GST-inclusive basis. Where G5T is not recoverable as
input tax, then it is recognised as part of the related
Qsset or expense.

The net amount of G5T recoverable from, or payable
to, the IRD is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as a net operating cash flow in
the statement of cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.

Segment reporting

LGFA operates in one segment being funding of
participating borrowers in New Zealand.

Judgements and estimations

The preparation of these financial statements
requires judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts. For example, the fair value of financial
instruments depends critically on judgements
regarding future cash flows, including inflation
assumptions and the risk-free discount rate.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates and these estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Where these judgements significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial statements they
are described in the following notes.

The financial statements as at 31 December 2022
include estimates and judgements of the proposed
Three Waters Reform Programme on LGFA's financial
position and performance. Whilst there has been no
material impact on the estimates and judgements at
the date these financial statements are authorised, itis

Financial Statements LGFA Half Year Report 2022
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nated that there is significant uncertainty with regards
1o the medium and long-term effects of COVID-19, as

4. Net interest income

in $000s Unaudited

six months ended
31 December 2022

Interest income

well as the outcome of proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme on the local government sector.

Unaudited
six months ended
31 December 2021

Cash and cash equivalents 4,098 1,036
mMarketable securities 18,342 4,259
Lease liability 16 -
Deposits 9,668 3129
Derivatives - 30,015
Loans 280,759 AT 447
Fair value hedge ineffectiveness - -
Total interest income 312,883 185,886
Interest expense

Bills 10,088 1,591
Bond repurchase transactions 1949 319
Lease liability - 5
Derivatives 665,245 -
Bonds 224,425 173,439
Borrower notes 5196 1,355
Total interest expense 307,904 176,709
Net interest income 4,979 2,178

5. Other operating income

As at 30 June 2022, LGFA had provided credit standby facilities totalling $662 million to selected councils.

As at balance date, there were no drawdowns outstanding under the facilities.

in 5000s Unaudited

six months ended
31 December 2022

Standby facilities fee income &71

Unaudited
six months ended
31 December 2021

526

Total other operating income &7

22 Financial Statements

526

6. Operating expenses

Issuance and on-lending expenses are those costs that are incurred as a necessary expense to facilitate the

ongeing issuance of LGFA debt securities.

in $000s Unaudited

six months ended
31 December 2022

Issuance and on-lending expenses

Unaudited
six months ended
31 December 2021

Approved issuer lewy ' 343 325
Rating ogency fees 333 324
MNZDM facility fee 652 250
Legal fees - issuance 205 225
MZX 367 390
Trustee fees 55 51
Regulatory, registry, other fees 106 68
2,062 1,633
Other operating expanses
Information technology 341 399
Consultants 127 95
Directors fees N3 212
Insurance 47 43
Legal fees 156 51
Other expenseas 230 136
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit 55 55
Advisory services - -
Personnel 1,312 1,145
2,481 2,135
Total operating expenses 4,542 3,769

1. The amount of Approved Issuer Levy is a function of the number of the offshore holders of certain LGFA bond

maturities,
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7. Hedge accounting

LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowing, lending and investment activities and uses interest rate
swaps to manage this risk. For hedge accounting purposes, LGFA has designated these swaps in fair value
relationships to its fixed rate borrowings, loans and investments.

The following table shows the gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk for fair value hedge relationships.

in $000s Unaudited six Unavudited six

months ended months ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Hedging instruments - interest rate swaps 329878 520,010

Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (329,876) {520,010)

Ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss from fair value hedges - -

The gains or losses on the hedging instrument (interest rate swaps) and the hedged item (bonds, loans and
investments) are mapped to the same fair value account. For this reason, the statement of comprehensive
income will only report any ineffectiveneass arising from the fair value hedge,

24 Financial Statements

8. Lodans
in S000s Unaudited as at 31 December 2022 Audited as at 30 June 2022
Short-term loans ' Loans Short-term loans Loans
Ashburton District Council 7064 79,152 12,048 78,898
Auckland Council - 3,629,211 - 5,413,415
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 25,465 167970 25,651 167,241
Buller District Council - 20,027 - 20,015
Canterbury Regional Council - 75,366 4,018 75,214
Carterton District Council - 14,772 - 14,762
Central Hawkes Bay District Council 1.0m 28,168 2,024 2007
Central Otago District Council 10,083 5,050 5,024 -
Christchurch City Council - 2,285,660 2,017 2,036,724
Clutha District Council 7547 37580 3,932 32,394
Far Morth District Council - 71,895 - 71,822
Gisborne District Council - ms72 - 86,095
Gore District Council 8,573 35,263 6,035 29,631
Greater Wellington Regional Council - 636,734 - 576,343
Grey District Council 3944 26,781 3,980 267
Hamilton City Council - 726,508 - 633,049
Hastings District Council - 275,067 - 237990
Hauraki District Council - 52,432 - 43,132
Hawkes Bay Regional Council - 46,141 = 37992
Horizons Regional Council NFé2 49,831 1984 49,771
Horowhenua District Council 21187 131,653 n.00 127,395
Hurunui District Council 8,073 34,307 B,033 30,47
Hutt City Council - 303,302 - 256,607
Invercargill City Council 36,004 L8763 12,845 68,725
Invercargill City Holdings Ltd 18,459 58,438 22,076 68,354
Kaikoura District Council - 5,341 - 5331
Kaipara District Council - &4, 425 - 4,229
Kapiti Coast District Council - 23751 - 236,28
Kawerau District Council - 2,005 = =
Mackenzie District Council 2,018 8,080 10,002 -
Manawatu District Council Mn,570 TI3e 1,559 77,725
Marlberough District Council 47,553 107,324 37,325 100,289
Masterton District Council - 56,244 - 50,260
Matamata-Piako District Council - 45907 - 38,191
Melson City Council - 171,371 - 140,581
Mew Plymouth District Council 10,084 216017 - 170,350
Morthland Regional Council - 14,148 - 14,147
Oportiki District Council - 3,067 - 7.073

1. As at 31 December 2022, 52,415 million of loans are due to mature within 12 months. This comprises all short-term

loans and 51522 million of loans.
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22 March 2023
in 50005 Unaudited as at 31 December 2022 Audited as at 30 June 2022 9. Other assets
Short-term loans* Loans Short-term loans Loans Unaudited as at Avudited as at
in 5000s
1D mber 2022 30 ne 2022
Otago Regional Council 26,793 73,682 66,715 LB8,443 31 Decembe -
Otorohanga District Council - 4,028 - 4,028 Right-of-use lease asset nz 156
Palmerston North City Council - 213980 - 187,872 Total other assets nz 156
Parirua City Council - 178,148 - 172,335
ueenstown Lakes District Council 55,703 401978 50,275 241,015 A
= 10. Payables and provisions
Rangitikel District Council - 19,158 - 19,157
Rotorua District Council 53,600 275,679 &3n2 245,298 in $000s Ynaueited as at Audited as at
31 December 2022 30 June 2022
Ruapehu District Council 8,037 29,588 8,020 29,557
Selwyn District Counci| . 85725 - 75,343 Loans/purchases to be advanced 95,000 44,000
South Taranaki District Council - 13,050 - N2.566 Trade creditors 185 800
South Waikato District Council 4,954 34,204 4,874 346,071 Credit provision 139 161
Southland District Council B 165900 - 16,899 Other provisions 252 105
South Wairarapa District Council - 26,631 - 26,537
Stratford District Council - 32,359 8,027 26,299 Total payables and provislons 95,576 el
Taranaki Regional Council 3963 19.632 - 14,587
Tararua District Council 2,013 55,670 . 51244 1. Bills
Tasman District Council 24,295 235,580 26193 198,180 Ul'lﬂuditad as at Face value Unnmurtisgd Accrued Total
Taupe District Council - 17,208 - 125,522 31 December 2022 in $000s premium interest
Tauranga City Council - 761,621 - 648,528
99 &ty 13 January 2023 145,000 (139) - ks, 861
Thames-Coromandel District Council - 73,665 - 73,365
2 February 2023 25,000 (78) - 24923
Timaru District Council 29108 152,022 28,724 136,516
10 F 202 L0 7 - 79,
Upper Hutt City Council - 95,766 - 91,421 Y Tt 80,000 (337) be3
waikato District Council - n0g47 - 95,454 17 February 2023 20,000 (107) - 19,893
Waikato Regional Council - 25,202 - 2520 28 February 2023 50,000 [348) - 49,652
Waimakariri District Council - 1,473 - 170903 10 Mareh 2023 70,000 (538) - 69,462
Waimarte District Council - 3,534 - - 15 March 2023 50.000 (£38) _ 49 5b4
Waipa District Council 26,030 154,231 25,530 124,377 P — 52,000 (504) _ 51,496
Wairoa District Council - 1,102 - 10,062
5 April 2023 25,000 (265) - 24,735
Waitaki District Gouncil (WD) 6,503 31,201 5491 20583
Waitoma District Council 4027 26160 4017 26,092 12 Apni 2023 20,000 (234) - 19,766
wellington City Council - 1195968 - 967101 18 April 2023 15,000 (191) - 14,809
West Coast Regional Council - 11,396 3,761 5,616 10 May 2023 15,000 (245) - 14,755
Western Bay Of Plenty District Council - 70,687 - 70,366 7 June 2023 25000 (522) - 24, 478
Westland District Council - 30,050 - 29933 14 June 2023 50,000 (1108} - 48,896
Westland Holdings Ltd - 2,405 - -
Whakatane District Council - 108,433 - 86,396 Sl 42,000 (s.051) - 436,960
wWhanganui District Council 7,544 99907 7,523 99,522
Whangarei District Council 947 183,505 9572 182,813
Fair value hedge adjustment - (43,218) - {36,337)
Total loans 493,505 15,257,915 478,385 13,563,522
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Audited as at Face value Unamortised Accrued Total 13. Bonds
30 June 2022 in $000s premium interest Bonds on issue do not include $1100 million face value of issued LGFA bonds subscribed by LGFA and held as
treasury stock, Refer Note 12: Treasury stock and bond repurchase transactions,
7 July 2022 15,000 = (%) 14996
13 July 2022 70,000 - (30) 9970 Unaudited as at Face Value Unamortised Accrued Fair value
31 December 2022 premium interest hedge
19 July 2022 35,000 - (33) 34,967 in $000s adjustment
4 August 2022 25,000 = (33) 24967
Fixed interest bonds
10 August 2022 80,000 - {1&67) 79,833 -
15 April 2023 1,830,000 9127 21,568
19 August 2022 20,000 - (50) 19.940 15 April 2024 2108,000 a62 10064
30 August 2022 50,000 - (20 49799 15 April 2025 2,409.000 (45,646) 14196
9 September 2022 &8,000 - (298) 7,704 15 April 2026 2,055,000 (52,395) 5,605
14 September 2022 100,000 - (538) 99,462 15 April 2027 1,881,000 78,421 18138
19 September 2022 27,000 - (120) 26,880 15 May 2028 1,573,000 (59.559) 400
6 October 2022 25,000 - (128) 24,852 el il 1,362,000 60.236) 4599
15 May 2031 1,000,000 (&2.471) 2921
9 November 2022 25,000 - (238) 24,762
14 April 2033 1,350,000 34,731 10,255
7 December 2022 25,000 - (329) 24,67
. . . . 15 May 2035 400,000 2,096 1558
Total bills 565,000 - (2,197) 562,803 15 April 2037 770,000 [2517) 3,300
Total bonds 16,738,000 (160,188) 97,415 {1,529,039) 15,146,187

12. Treasury stock and bond repurchases

Periodically, LGFA subscribes for LGFA bonds as part of its tender process and holds these bonds as treasury Audited as at Face Value Unamortised Accrued Fair value
stock. LGFA bonds held by LGFA as treasury stock are derecognised at the time of issue and no liability is 30 June 2022 premium interest hedge
recognised in the statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2022, 51100 million of LFGA bonds had been in $000s adjustment
subscribed as treasury stock.

LGFA makes these treasury stock bonds available to banks authorised as its tender counterparties to borrow Fixed interest bonds
under short-term repurchase transactions. The objective of the bond lending facility is to assist with improving

o ) ) 15 April 2023 1,830,000 25,117 21175
secondary market liquidity in LGFA bonds. Bonds lent to counterparties are disclosed as a separate stock
lending liability on the face of the statement of financial position. 15 April 2024 1998,000 5,625 9458
15 April 2025 1,679,000 (13,379) 9714
in $000s Unaudited as at Avudited as at -
31 Decomber 2023 P —— 15 April 2026 1,815,000 (31,599) 5728
15 April 2027 1,751,000 #5460 16,577
L il 2 4054 15 May 2028 1,270,000 (53,384) 3,650
15 April 2024 - 1456 20 April 2029 1,362,000 (21,893) 4,019
15 April 2025 9,512 6,773 15 May 2031 850,000 (19,807) 2,443
15 April 2026 893 5,395 14 April 2033 1,290,000 43,486 9,622
15 April 2027 159672 . 15 May 2035 400,000 2,166 1,533
15 May 2028 - = 15 April 2037 730,000 {12,837) 3,072
20 April 2029 15,416 7,390 Total fixed interest 14,975,000 8,962 86,989 (1,185,774) 13,885,177
15 May 2031 8,223 - Floating rate notes
14 April 2033 - 4,566 14 October 2022 130,000 (7 692 - 130,684
15 May 2035 - 818 Total bends 15,105,000 8,955 87,681 (1,185,774) 14,015,862
15 April 2037 34,017 5,272
Total bond repurchases 108,077 31,67
28 Financial Statements Financial Statements LGFA Half Year Report 2022 29
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14. Borrower notes

Borrower notes are subordinated debt instruments which are required to be held by each local authority

that borrows from LGFA in an amount equal to a fixed percentage of the aggregate borrowings by that local
authority. The fixed percentage is 2.5% for loans issued from 1July 2020. Prior to this date, the fixed percentage
was 1.6%.

LGFA may convert borrower notes into redeemable shares if it has made calls for all unpaid capital to be paid in
full and the LGFA Board determines it is still at risk of imminent default.

15. Other liabilities

in $000s Unaudited as at
31 December 2022

Avdited as at
30 June 2022

Lease liability nz 156
Accruals 596 694
Total other liabilities 708 850

16.Share capital

As at 31 Decermnber 2022, LGFA had 45 million ordinary shares on issue, 20 million of which remain uncalled.

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each ordinary share. Ordinary shares have a face
value of $1 per share.

30 Financial Statements

17. Shareholder information

Registered holders of equity securities

As at 31 December 2022

As at 30 June 2022

Minister of Finance and Minister for Local Government 5,000,000 na% 5,000,000 n
Auckland Council 3731960 8.3% 3731960 B.3%
Christchurch City Council 3731960 B.3% 3731960 B.3%
Harnilton City Council 31731960 8.3% 3,731.960 8.3%
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 3,731958 B.3% 3.731958 B.3%
Greater Wellington Regional Council 3731958 B.3% 3731958 B.3%
Tasman District Council 3,731958 8.3% 3731958 8.3%
Tauranga City Council 3,731958 B.3% 3.731958 B.3%
Wellington City Council 3,731.958 B.3% 3,731958 8.3%
Western Bay of Plenty District Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731,958 B8.3%
Whangarei District Council 1,492,764 3.3% 1,692,784 3.3%
Hastings District Council T4, 392 1.7% 746,392 1.7%
Marlporough District Council 400,000 09% 400,000 09%
Selwyn District Council 373096 0.8% 373,196 0.8%
Gisborne District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hauraki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Horowhenua District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hutt City Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Kapiti Coast District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Manawatu District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Masterton District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
MNew Plymouth District Council 200,000 O.4% 200,000 0.4%
Otorohanga District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Palmerston Morth District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
South Taranaki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Taupo District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Thames-Coromandel District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waimakariri District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waipa District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.0%
Whakatane District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Whanganui District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Total 45,000,000 100% 45,000,000 100%
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18.Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flow from operating activities

Unaudited six
months ended

in $000s Unaudited six
months ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Met profit/{loss) for the period 1,J08 5935

Cash applied to loans (1,639,024) 1,427.636)

Non-cash adjustments

Amortisation and depreciation 2,643 (3.955)

Working capital movements

Met chaonge in trade debtors and receivables (378) 13
Net change in prepayments (298) (319)
Net change in accruals {98) 73
Net Cash From Operating Activities (1,636,047) (1,425,888)

19. Related parties

Identity of related parties
LGFA is related to the local authorities set out in the Shareholder Information in note 17.

LGFA operates under an annual Statement of Intent that sets out the intentions and expectations for LGFA's
operations and lending to participating borrowers.

Shareholding local authorities, and non-shareholder local authorities who borrow more than $20 million, are
required to enter into a guarantee when they join or participate in LGFA. The guarantee is in respect of the
payment obligations of other guaranteeing local authorities to the LGFA (cross guarantee) and of the LGFA itself.

Related party transactions

LGFA was established for the purpose of raising funds from the market to lend to participating borrowers. The
lending to individual councils is disclosed in note 8, and Interest income recognised on this lending is shown in
the statement of comprehensive income.

The purchase of LGFA borrower notes by participating borrowers, Refer note 14,

The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management) provides LGFA with a committed credit facility and is LGFA's
derivatives counterparty.

31 Financial Statements

Directory

Rarangi tauwaea

Postal address

P.O. Box 5704, Lambton Quay
Wellington 4145

General enquiries
lgfa@lgfa.conz

Office hours

Maonday - Friday, 9am te Spm
Except Public Holidays
Staff e-mail addresses

firstname lastname@lgfa.co.nz

Phone +&4 4974 6530
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RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH
PUTARINGAMOTU

Unaudited half year report to 31 December 2022

RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH
PUTARINGAMOTU
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Background

These are the unaudited interim financial statements of the Riccarton Bush Trust (“the Trust”). The
financial statements of the Trust are for the six months ended 31 December 2022, The financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Trust Board on 22 February 2023.

The Trust was formed by an Act of Parliament and operates and manages Riccarton House and
grounds together with Riccarton Bush. The key objectives of the Trust are to:

protect and enhance the indigenous flora, fauna and ecology of Riccarton Bush;
conserve Deans Cottage, Riccarton House and their grounds with Riccarton Bush and the
Deans family history; and

* encourage public use and participation of the reserve and to infarm visitors about the natural,
Maori and colonial heritage of Christchurch.

Trustees
The persons holding office as Trustees for the year to date and at 31 December 2022 were:

Bob Shearing (Chairman)
Bob Lineham

David Norton

Tim Deans

Pippa Ensor

Nigel Harris

Shirish Paranjape

Mark Peters

Marie Pollisco

State of Affairs

For the six months ended 31 December 2022 the Trust incurred a deficit of $165,990; compared to a
deficit of $93,848 for the same period last year.

Total income (including interest) was 5464,663, against the target of $5283,500. Higher revenue was a
result of the recognition of $161,416 income from the revenue in advance for the exterior painting
of the house. The trust also received 54,676 venue hire income for filming, a total of 54,803 from
donations and 51,216 rat baiting reimbursements during the period, These income were not
budgeted due to their unpredictability.

Rent received from the The Quarters (ex Local) was according to the budget. Commission from The
Quarter’s (ex Local) café was $1,714 or 5% higher than the target while Independent tours and doors
sales were slightly higher than the budget. This is as a result of increased number of visitors in the
bush and grounds due to ease in Covid-19 restrictions.

Operating expenses (excluding depreciation and project cost) were 5477,982, higher than the
budget of $283,500. It includes $166,956 for the exterior painting of the house which started in June
2022. The budget for this project was setup in the previous years. Excluding expenses incurred
related to the exterior painting of the house, operating expenses were 527,500 or 10% higher than

the budget.
RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH gﬂ
PUTARINGAMOTU
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Operational highlights

Two New Zealand funded films were shot onsite this year. We had up to 60 people on site
for the two day shoot and over 30 for the second shoot. The Trust developed filming
guidelines based on CCC protocols and they worked well. The crews were respectful, and
lines of communication was good. It will definitely be worth considering hosting a film crew
of this size again.

We placed a focus on marketing with increased print advertising. Our numbers have
increased over the first half of last year by 15%. Evidence indicates the most common way
visitors are hearing about us is through word of mouth and Trip Advisor. We continue to be
the 5th popular place in Christchurch for things to do.

We hosted representatives of the All Blacks and Riccarton High School for tree planting
opportunity in Pataringamotu/Riccarton Bush. 15 Totara trees were planted.

The pump and bore liner were replaced on the Bush Irrigation System and this has improved
significantly our efficiency with watering and compliance with our water right conditions.
The Trust supported Predator Free Riccarton with building and distributing rat traps for
residential properties.

The relationships between the Trust and tertiary and community organisations has gone
from strength to strength.

The exterior of the House was fully repainted and a number of remedial works carried out at
the same time. The remedial works included replacing rotting timber weatherboards and
veranda joists and decking.

Kidsfest saw the Trust hosting over 820 people as part of the Nightlife Lantern tour.
Heritage Festival House tours ran from the 9 to 23 October with over 70 participants.

On a more sombre note, Brian Molloy passed away in |late July aged 91. Brian was the driving force
behind the reinvigoration of Putaringamotu/ Riccarton Bush. Brian first joined the Trust in the 1970s
and retired in 2015.

RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH
PUTARINGAMOTU
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Six months ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

5 $

Revenue from operations 76,082 62,098
Other revenue 388,581 264,619
464,663 326,717

Employee benefits expense 171,642 162,625
Depreciation and impairment 151,946 142, 484
Projects cost 725 2,518
Other expenses 306,340 114,412
630,653 422,039

Net deficit for the period (165,990) (85,322)
Gain on asset disposal 1] 1,474
Total comprehensive expense (165,990) (93,848)

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial
statements,

RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH @
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Statement of changes in equity
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Total comprehensive expense for the six months to 31 December 2021
Balance as at 31 December 2021

Total comprehensive expense for the six months to 20 June 2022
Gain/{loss) on property revaluation
Balance as at 30 June 2022

Tolal comprehensive expense for the six months lo 31 December 2022

Balance as at 31 December 2022

*Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense.

** Equity changed from 31 December 2021 half year report due to audit corrections on 2021 asset

revaluation.

Trust Funds ACR&E* Total equity
$ $ $
13,268,015 1,088,773 14,357,788
- (03,848) (93,848)
13,269,015 904 925 14,263 940
(90,005) (90,005)
2,805,153 2,805,1 5:;
16,074 168 04,920 16,979,088
- (185,980) (165,990)
16,074 168 7388930 16,813,098

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial

statements,
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Inventories

GST receivable

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assels

Total assets

Current liabilities

Payables under exchange transactions
Provisions

Finance lease liability

Income in advance

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease liability
Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Trust funds

Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense

Total equity

31 December 2022 30 June 2022
$ $
136,998 364,785
63,235 8,335
- 24 225
1,327 1,667
6,582
208,142 399,012
16,674,215 16,799,523
16,674,215 16,799,523
16,882,357 17,198,535
29,384 23,496
31,794 25,172
1,101 2,201
0 161,609
62,289 212,478
6,970 6,970
6,970 6,970
69,259 219,448
16,813,098 16,979,087
16,074,168 16,074,167
738,930 904,920
16,813,098 16,979,087

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial

statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Trustees, which authorised the issue of the financial report on:

Date

22 February 2023

Chairman (Bob Shearing)

5 sl
:O‘)?Jf: o "ﬁ‘{

Manager (Shona Willis)
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Statement of cashflows
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Six months ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and donations 06,218 89,395
Contributions from Christchurch City Council 182,500 230,442
Interest income 4,051 686
Payments to employees and suppliers (476,746) (293,346)
Net GST movement (3,158) (4,119)
Met cash flow from operating activities (197,133) 23,058
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (29,013) (76,033)
Net cash flow from investing activities {29,013) (76.033)
Cash flows from financing activities
Establishment/(Payment) of finance lease (1,641) 5,198
MNet cash flow from financing activities (1,641) 5,198
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equival (227, 787) (47,777)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 364,785 359,607
Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 136,998 311,830

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial
statements.
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

Statement of Objectives and Performance
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

The following lists the financial and operating performance targets set by the Trust in its Statement

of Intent for the year to 30 June 2022 and summarises the Trust's performance against the
objectives for the period to date.

Financial Performance Targets

Six months ended 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2023
Actual Target Variance FY Target
$ $ $ $
Operating Revenue 464 663 283,500 161,163 567,000
Less Operating Expenses 477,982 283,500 (194.482) 567,000
Operating surplus (deficit) before depreciation (13,319) - (13,319} -

The above targets relate to operating revenue and operating expenses and do not include
depreciation and project costs of 5152,671.

Performance Targets

The Statement of Intent initially had a target to identify the contribution the Riccarton Bush Trust
makes to the Council’s community outcomes through the delivery of its activities and services. This is

no longer seen as a separate target but rather each target contributes to identified community

outcomes.

1. Monitor Health and Safety practices in accordance with adopted policy to meet the
requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015

Community Community facilities and public places are safe, healthy, and welcoming
Outcome

Performance | e Reportto each Board meeting

Measure + Target results for all Trust activities, of:

o Serious Harm incidents =0
o Accident=1
o MNear Misses =3

Performance Met
Health and Safety Report submitted to each Board Meeting
Serious Harm incidents = 0
Accident =0
Near Misses = 2

RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH gﬂ
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2. Monitoring and management of rodent activity in Riccarton Bush

Community Unigue landscapes and indigenous biodiversity are valued and stewardship
Outcome exercised.
Performance Effective management resulting in ohservable decrease in activity
Measure
6-monthly assessment of rodent activity completed
Performance Met
&6-monthly assessment of rodent activity completed in November 2022. Minor
activity noted.

3. Bush Enhancements - Replace Board Walk and Improved Interpretation and Infrastructure

Community * QOur heritage is a taonga and should be collectively valued and protected,
Outcome celebrated and shared.
+ Sites and places of cultural significance are respected and preserved
* Arts, cultural, sporting and recreational opportunities are available to all
our communities.
* People have equitable access to open and green spaces across the city
and district.
* Unique landscapes and indigenous biodiversity are valued and
stewardship exercised.
Performance | Full Working drawings completed by October 2022
Measure Complete fundraising by December 2022
Works Commence by June 2023
Performance Not Met — in progress
Resource Consent Granted September 2022

4. Encourage public interest, use and participation and promote the natural and cultural
heritage values of the site.

Community
Outcomes

& Qur heritage is a taonga and should be collectively valued and protected,
celebrated and shared.
Sites and places of cultural significance are respected and preserved.

*  Arts, cultural, sporting and recreational opportunities are available to all
our communities.

+ People have equitable access to open and green spaces across the city
and district.

& Unique landscapes and indigenous biodiversity are valued and
stewardship exercised.
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# Celebration of our identity through arts, culture, heritage, sport and
recreation.
Performance | 1. Inform the public and relevant interest groups about on-going activities of
Measure the Trust,

2. Provide a quarterly report to the Board that detail the number of visitors that
come to Riccarton Bush and Grounds. The reports will include marketing and
sacial media summaries as well as year to date comparisons.

3. Include in the 6-monthly and annual reporting to Council information on
numbers of participants across the variety of Riccarton House and Bush
offerings and provide comparisons over time as that information is compiled.

Performance | Met:

1. The public and relevant groups obtain infermation on the Trust activities via
the quarterly newsletter. In December it was delivered to over 700 residents
with a further 100 emails to family members, Board and Council members
and interested suppaorters. Regular postings on Facebook and our website
also provides up to date information. In addition, we have brochures and
posters on site and with our other business partners.

2. Quarterly Visitor Reports were presented to the Board at the September and
December Board Meetings.

3. Number of Participants Across the Variety of Riccarton House Offerings:

This report provides details on the visitors that had visited Riccarton House &

Bush from July to December. It captures the visitors that take tours or attend

events. It also captures the recorded numbers of casual visitors that use the café

or grounds, who walk around the Bush and visit the Cottage.
Participation in Each of the Activities
Café
Events ™
Cottage .
Community Groups [
Bush Walks I
Guided Tours ™
0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000

W Participation in Riccarton House and Bush Activities Jul/Dec 2022/23

W Participation in Riccarton House and Bush Activities Jul/Dec 2021,/2022
A significant and pleasing increase in tour numbers as groups and overseas
visitors returned to take tours. A YTD increase of 111% compared to 2021/2022.
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Various community groups use the grounds, this data is not a full representation
as it depends on the groups being sighted and approached. These groups include,
educational, health, community and film. A YTD increase of 66% from the
previous year. Self- guided educational groups were the highest type of
community groups visiting.
Events increased by 26% compared to the previous year with the return of
weddings and corporate Christmas events.
Total Participating in Activities
iy
2 A e |
1st Quarter T =
0 10000 20000 30000 40000 S0000 60000 70000
W 2022/2023 W 20212022
The ¥TD increase in the total participation of the various activities is 15%
compared to the same period in 2021/2022.
5. Commit to meeting the goal of becoming net carbon neutral by 2030
Community Each person and organisation acts to reduce their impacts on the environment
Outcome and minimise greenhouse gas emissions and waste.
Performance | Work with Council staff to identify what is required to enable this outcome.
Measure
Performance | Ongoing
Initial discussion commenced. Currently gathering data to present to CCC,

Notes to the interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022

Basis for preparation and Statement of Compliance

These are the unaudited interim financial statements of the Trust, The Trust operates under the
Riccarton Bush Act 1914 and is a Council Controlled Organisation under the Local Government Act
2002. The Trust manages property in Riccarton. The property consists of Riccarton historic house,
cottage and grounds, a residential house and conservation bush.

The major source of income is from an operating levy and an additional grant received annually from

the Council and from grants and donations and rents from use of the properties.

The primary purpose of the Trust is to:
= protect and enhance the indigenous flora, fauna and ecology of Riccarton Bush;

RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH gﬂ
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST

* conserve Deans Cottage, Riccarton House and their grounds with Riccarton Bush and the
Deans family history; and

* encourage public use and participation of the reserve and to inform visitors about the
natural, Maori and colonial heritage of Christchurch.

On this basis, the Trust is considered a public benefit entity for purposes of financial reporting.

The interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared in

accordance with PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and New Zealand generally accepted

accounting practice. They comply with the Tier 2 PBE standards.

As the Trust has elected to report under Tier 2 PBE standards, it has applied disclosure cancessions,

where available. The criteria under which the Trust is eligible to report under Tier 2 PBE Standards

are as follows:

(a) the Trust is not publicly accountable; and

(b) the Trust's total expenses for the period being reported are below the $30 million threshold for
Tier 1 reporting.

The interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the

annual financial statements. As such, these should be read in conjunction with the Trust’s annual

financial statements as at 30 June 2022.

Significant Accounting policies

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

There have been no significant changes in accounting policy since 30 June 2022,

Significant related party transactions

The Trust requires the Council to contribute a significant amount of funds towards its operating
costs to deliver its objectives as specified in the Riccarton Bush Act.

During the six months to 31 December 2022, the Trust received $182,693 (2021: $230,442) in
operational grants and levies from the Council.

The Trust owes Council 5nil as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Snil).

The Council owes the Trust Snil as at 31 December 2022 {2021: 5nil).

Contingencies

The Trust has no contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

Events subsequent to balance date

There were no significant events subsequent to balance date requiring disclosure or that would
materially affect these financial statements.
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Te Kaha Project
Delivery Limited

Unaudited half year report to 31 December 2022
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Registered Office 53 Hereford Street
Christchurch
Directors Barry Bragg
Richard Peebles
Stephen Reindler
Wynton Cox
Jane Huria
Bankers Bank of New Zealand
Auditors Audit Mew Zealand on behalf of the Auditor
General Christchurch
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Actual
Dec-22
Notes
Revenue
Grants - Governance & Early Works 151,481
Total revenue 151,481
Expenses
Consultants Fees 20,871
Advertising
Management services -
Audit fee 2,844
Insurance -
Corporate Subscriptions 185
Catering -
Recruitment Fees -
Legal Fees -
Staff Travel 617
Promotions 17
Freight And Courier Costs, Transport 45
Service Contracts 5(b) 126,902
Sundry expenses
Total expenses 151,481

Surplus / (deficit) before tax -
Tax expenses -
Surplus / (deficit) after tax -

Total comprehensive revenue and -
expense

The accompanying notes form part of and are to read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited
Statement of Movement in Equity
For the period ended 31 December 2022

MNotes

Opening equity 1 July 2021
Share Capital

Accumulated Profit/(Losses)
Closing equity 30 June 2022

Share capital
Accumulated Profit/ (Losses)

Closing equity 31 December 2022

The accompanying notes form part of and are to read in conjunction with these financial statements,

Actual
Dec-22

(2)

(0)

(0)
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

Current assets
Bank

Receivables

Total current assets

Total assets

Current Liabilities
Payables

Total current Liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Equity
Share capital
Accumulated losses

Total equity

Y

Directdf
R7) Februa 3

The accompanying notes form part of and are to read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Notes

Actual Actual
31-Dec-22 30-Jun-22
154,449 83,438
154,449 83,438
154,449 83,438
154,449 83,438
154,449 83,438
154,449 83,438
(0) (0)

Director

A7 February 2023

-

0

o
oQ
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited
Statement of Cash flows
For the period ended 31 December 2022

Motes

Cash flows from operating
Receipts from grants
Payments to suppliers

Total cash flows from operating

Met cash flows
Opening bank

Closing bank

The accompanying notes form part of and are to read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Actual
31-Dec-22

69,074
(69,974)
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited
Statement of Service Performance
For the Six months ended 31 December 2022

Performance Measures/Targets

Objective and Strategy

Performance Measure 2022/23

Performance December 22

Reparting to Shareholder

Meet all Local Government Act (LGA)
and Council reporting deadlines.

FY22 Audit complete. Continue to
meet CCC reporting requirements.

Value-add opportunities
identified, assessed, and
harnessed

100% of Value-add opportunities
identified, assessed, and harnessed

Opportunities of interest are shared
with relevant project partners
(Venues Otautahi (VO), BESIX
Watpac (the Design & Construct
|D&C) Contractor), CCC & Project
Team). VO leading the investigation
of these opportunities.

Close engagement of CMUA
Froject Delivery Board in
design

Project Management Plan
[PMP) developed, and
alignment maintained

Future proof the venue within the
project cost envelope, to ensure it is
fit for purpose for a changing event
landscape.

Alignment with PMP maintained.

D&C Contractor is contracted to
deliver Fit for Purpose facility and
consider/make provision as
appropriate for a wide range of
future events e.g. eSports. WO, CCC
and specialist design reviewers are
also involved in each step of design
sign-off, Detailed Design due to be
complete first quarter of CY 2023,

Project Execution Plan (PEF) for the
D&C contract phase is being
redrafted / updated for review by
the Project Team and sign-off by the
Board in 2023 year.

Procurement and Contract
Management

100% compliance with relevant
legislation, the Council
procurement policies, and codes of
practice.

All procurement managed or
approved by CCC Procurement.

Management of Project
Programme

PCSA - report against programme
and 50% probability and 85%
probability position.

Regular programme updates
provided by D&C Contractor and
consultant team. Board reviews this
at monthly Board meetings.
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Objective and Strategy

Performance Measure 2022/23

Performance December 22

Provision of information to
support the Council’s
Formal Assurance (CFA)
points

Aligned with CFA points.

Council approvals obtained on all
major project decisions including
project scope, budget, and sign-off
of the Preliminary and Developed
Designs. Te Kaha project updates
also presented regularly to the
Finance & Performance Committee.
CCC also have advisors at the Board
meetings.

Stage Gate reviews
completed

The TKP is delivered on or
below budget

Stage Gate reviews completed and
recommendations addressed.

PCSA contract within approved
budget/DE&C contract within
construction budget,

Peter Neven appointed as
Independent Assurance

Expert. Treasury approval obtained
for Assurance Point 2 (Final
Procurement Assurance) and
Assurance Point 3 (Developed
Design Project Plans Assurance) as
required by the Funding Agreement
with the Crown. Next Stageway
review will be Readiness for Service
(prior to opening). CCC are
members of the Project Team and
attend Board meetings. All required
reviews to date achieved.

PCSA phase completed in August
within approved budget. D&C
Contract/additional budget
required was reported to Council on
14 July 2022 and approved. D&C
Contract executed between CCC
and BESIX Watpac (BW). Project
currently underway and on budget.
Budget and progress reviewed
monthly by Project Team and
Board.

Capital expenditure
decisions optimise capital
budget and long-term
whole-oflife costs (ie being
the measure of resilience).
Operational costs and other
matters duly considered

Capital and whole of life costs
optimised. Operational implications
considered.

Y0 have completed whole-of-life
cost assessment which was
presented to Council in July 2022 as
part of the D&C contract
recommendation. Achieved.

Support any efforts by
Council or VO opportunities
for third party
contributions, including
other funding partners and
Sponsors

Third party funding opportunities
supported.

Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited to
provide support to CCCand VO in
any approaches to be made for
Third Party funding.
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Objective and Strategy

Performance Measure 2022/23

Performance December 22

Clear sustainability
standards developed for
the project during the PCSA
and D&C phases

Monitor project sustainability
outcomes,

Sustainability targets agreed with
BW and reported on monthly,

Framework for health,
safety, and wellness is
implemented to ensure all
involved directly or
indirectly with the project
are kept safe and well

Health, safety, and wellness
framework reviewed.

BW have a comprehensive Health,
Safety and Wellbeing plan. This is
reported on monthly and discussed
with the Project Team and Board.

Critical hazards are
managed effectively.

Baseline lag indicators are
monitored to ensure safety
for all

For all work, the programme of
critical risk inspections carried out
on schedule and report that the
critical controls are in place and are
effective. Board have approved the
Health & Safety Charter.

No serious harm incidents during
both the PCSA and D&CA phases.

TRIFR less than 10.0 per 1,000,000
hours worked on the project.

Health and Safety Audits being com-
pleted by CCC. Project Team com-
plete Health & Safety site visits and
review performance on a

regular basis. Board have approved

the Health & Safety Charter.

Lag indicators are measured and
reported monthly to the Project
Team and Board.

Indicators are measured and
reported to the Project Team and
Board.

Shareholder informed of
major issues as soon as
practical. The major issues
being project status against
major milestones, high
value opportunities, and
high consequence risks,

100% compliance with reporting
requirements outlined in SOl and
major issues are raised on a no
surprises basis

Regular Board and Board
Committee meetings with reporting
and minutes. Shareholder included
in reporting and Board meetings.
Reporting to shareholder on major
consequential risks on a no
surprises basis if likelihood or
consequence escalates.

Council, Venues Otautahi
and Key User

Factual updates provided, within
agreed timeframes, to all significant
stakeholders in the project.

Regular Board and Board
Committee meetings including VO
and CCC. VO responsible for leading
liaison with significant key user
stakeholders and keeping them
informed. Te Kaha Project Delivery
leading neighbour consultation,
Mana whenua consultation and
general community updates.

Engaging with the
community taking into
accountits diversity and
the need for inclusion of a
wide variety of people with
various needs.

Implement communications and
community engagement strategy.

Quarterly community meetings
scheduled. Regular updates
provided via website, emails, letter
box drops.
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Objective and Strategy

Performance Measure 2022/23

Performance December 22

Cultural connection

Build connection with name
through implementation of
communications and community
engagement strategy.

Ngai Thahuriri providing cultural
advice and cultural narrative to
project. Monthly updates reported
to Project Team and Board.,

Project managed to budget,
time and quality

Council approval of recommended
D&C contract. Project managed to
budget, time and quality.

Project being managed to budget,
time and quality approved by
Council on 14 July 2022, Monthly
reports and Board meetings review
budget, programme and design.

V0 signs off on the design
as being fit for operator’s
purpose

TKP reflects the cultural
narrative of our city

V@ maintains oversight throughout
D&C phase to ensure alignment.

Engage with Matapopore to ensure
cultural narrative incorporated into
design.

Y0 involved in all stages of design
approval, Food & Beverage
Verification Certificate provided by
V0 as part of PCSA phase,

Engagement with Ngai Taahuriri for
cultural advice and cultural
narrative is ongoing.

Project risk register is up to
date and risks are actively
managed (including
financial, delivery and
reputational risks)

Risks are actively managed.

Monthly risk workshops and
updates to risk register and project
Quantitative Risk Assessment
(QRA). Ongoing and being achieved.

Where commercially viable
local procurement of
services and products

D & C phase services and products
procured locally.

Targets for local procurement and
Maori/Pacifica employment agreed
with D&C Contractor. D&C
Contractor procures local products
and uses local consultants and
subcontractors where commercially
viable.
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Financial Information
Actual Budget
Six Month to Six Month to . Budget
sol 31 December | 31December | V213N | Ey 7023
2022 2022
FY2022/23 Operaling Cost 151,481 165,000 13,519 330,000

Actual operating costs is slightly under budget for the six months ended 31 December 2022, This is
largely due to timing of spending and budget variation.

The project completion date has changed from F¥26 to FY 27 along with a budget increase
bringing total project delivery budget to $2,085,879. Current project forecast is in line with budget.
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Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited

Motes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Reporting Entity
These are unaudited interim financial statements of Te Kaha Project Delivery Limited (the
Company).

The Company is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is domiciled in New Zealand. The
Company is a Council Controlled Organisation as defined by section 6 of the Local Government Act
2002.

The Company was established to deliver the development of the Te Kaha Multi Use Arena for the
Council and is fully funded by Council.

Accordingly, the Company has designated itself as a public benefit entity for the purposes of New
Zealand Financial Reporting Standards (NZ PBE). The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP). They comply with NZ PBE and other applicable financial
reporting standards as appropriate for Tier 2 public benefit entities.

As the Company has elected to report under Tier 2 PBE standards, it has applied disclosure
concessions, where available. The criteria under which the Company is eligible to report under
Tier 2 PBE Standards are as follows:

(a) the Company is not publicly accountable; and

(b) the Company's total expenses for the period being reported are below the $30 million
threshold for Tier 1 reporting.

The Interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the
annual financial statements. As such, these should be read in conjunction with the Trust’s annual
financial statements as at 30 June 2022,

3 Commitments for expenditure

There were no commitments for expenditure that were not otherwise accrued at 31 December
2022,

4 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There were no contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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5 Related-party transactions

(a) Christchurch City Council

Council is the ultimate controlling party of the Company. The following transactions were carried
out with related parties during the year:

The Company entered into a management services agreement with the Council to undertake
accounting, payroll and other associated functions. The Company reimburses Council for the
gross cost of the associated expenditure.

Pursuant to the management services agreement, the position of Chief Executive officer
(previously Project Director), is seconded to the Christchurch City Council for the duration of the
project. The Christchurch City Council makes payments to the employee directly and accounts for
employee taxes and other obligations including superannuation, ACC and annual and sick leave
provisions,

All transactions occurred on normal trading terms and conditions.
(b) Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel includes the Directors and the Chef Executive Officer.

The Company paid Directors fees of $126,902 in the six months to 31 December 2022.

Actual

Six Months to
31 December

2022
Director fees
Bragg. Barry Mr 39,375
Peebles, Richard Mr 18.667
Reindler, Steven Mr 22,500
Cox, Wynton Gill 22,500
Huria, Jane Christine 23,861
Total fees paid to directors 126,902
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13. Venues Otautahi - Half year performance report and interim
financial statements for the six months ending 31 December

2022

Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/18229

Report of / Te Pou
Matua:

General Manager /
Pouwhakarae:

Linda Gibb, Performance Advisor, Resources Group

(linda.gibb@ccc.govt.nz)

Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
(Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

1.1  This report provides Venues Otautahi Ltd's (VO's) half year performance update and interim
financial statements for the six months ending 31 December 2022.

1.2 This report has been written following receiving VO's half year (interim) performance report on

28 February 2023.

2. Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receives Venues Otautahi ‘s Quarter 2, 2022/23 performance report for the period 1 July to

31 December 2022.

3. Brief Summary

3.1 VO’sperformance report is at Attachment A and its unaudited financial statements are at

Attachment B.

3.2 VO has complied with section 66 of the Local Government Act 2002 which requires a Council-
controlled organisation (CCO) to report on the organisation’s operations to its shareholders
within two months after the end of the first half of each financial year (by 28 February).

Financial Performance

3.3 Thefollowing table presents VO’s operating performance for the six months to 31 December
2022, as discussed in its performance report. It shows a major improvement in operating
profitability following the difficult COVID-19 affected years from March 2020 to March 2022.

Actual Budget | Variance | Prioryear | Variance
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Operational outturn (1,001) (1,907) +1,142 (1,166) +165
Council subsidy 2,025 2,025 0 1,967 +58
EBITDA 1,024 118 +906 801 +223
Actual Budget | Variance | Prioryear | Variance
Number of events 253 197 +56 109 +144
Number of visitors 327,988 | 200,000 | +127,988 | 150,531 | +177,457

34
Little
needs

said about VO’s improved performance, at the EBITDA level, other than to note that its
variance against last year includes around $1.8 million of the Government’s COVID-19 wage
subsidy, leave support and resurgence support.
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3.5

The performance report focuses on operating performance; it excludes uncontrollable and
fixed overheads. However, the half year financial accounts record the full surplus/(deficit)

before income tax, which is reconciled as follows:

2022 2021

$000 $000
EBITDA (performance report) 1,024 801
Transfer out (below EBITDA) COVID-19 Government (13) (1,839)
support
Plus interest revenue 178 12
Surplus before other n?n-exchange revenue and 1,189 (1,026)
other expenses (financial statements)
Transfer in of COVID-19 Government support 13 1,839
Capital grant from CCC 3,654 0
Depreciation/amortisation (4,353) (4,089)
Interest expense (on legacy debt) (585) (570)
Surplus/(deficit) before tax (81) (3,846) 3.6

EBITDA from the performance report largely characterises VO’s discretionary operating
performance - where it can make a difference by choosing various actions. The better it does
at this level in financial terms, the more it can contribute to meeting the overhead costs that
are shown below EBITDA. The costs below EBITDA cannot, on a business as usual basis be

influenced by VO.

3.7 The difference between EBITDA in the performance report and Surplus before other non-
exchange revenue and other expenses in the financial statements reflects a different way of
allocating costs and revenues to report discretionary performance as opposed to financial
reporting accounting rule requirements.

3.8 The most relevant performance measures for the Council are the first set of EBITDA numbers

(which include the government COVID-19 support since it was for the purposes of revenue that
would have been received had COVID-19 restrictions not displaced it).

3.9 The Council’s operating grant does not cover all the ownership costs relating to the
Christchurch Arena and Town Hall. VO itself meets around one third of these costs from its
operational profits.

Non-financial performance targets

3.10 Alltargets have either been met year to date, or are on track to be met by full year. One of the
targets met at the half year point is 40 events receiving the community rate. It is difficult for
VO to cap the community rate, but nevertheless there is a cost that comes with providing
discounts which ultimately impacts its profitability (5110,000 reflecting the incremental costs
of utilities, cleaning and repair and maintenance due to wear and tear).
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Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

1 July-31 December 2022

No. Title Reference Page
A82 | Venues Otautahi - Half year report 1 July-31 December 2022 23/346708 210
B4 | Venues Otautahi - Half year financial statements for the period | 23/346707 221

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).

Signatories Nga Kaiwaitohu

Author Linda Gibb - Performance Monitoring Advisor CCO

Approved By Leah Scales - General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
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O1CHIEF EXECUTIVE
REPORT

Vaenues Otautahi canlinuss to perform strongly at the halfway point of the inancial yaar. With the last two years
severely impacted by Covid-19 the com pany is on track for 2022-23 to be the first full year nfln—\ding since 2018-
18, when the Christchurch Town Hall reopanad

With 263 events delivered in the first half of the financial year, versus a budget of 187, and ovar 327,000 guests
welcomed to the venues, it is heartening to see the desire for the community to come together, after such a long
panod of volatility and forced separation from one another,

Tha event forecast for the remainder of the year is alao strong and, on this basis, Venues Otautahi is axiger:tirlg_
to welcome around 600,000 Buests to the venues by end June 2023, well in excess of the company's annual
14!51-1 af 400,000

With operating income $206k higher than target for the first three months of the year and an EBITDA surplus of
S1m against a target surplus of $18k the business has a good foundation for the remainder of the yoar ahead.

A stronger financial performance also allows the ability for the business to continue to offset around 32 of the
fixed costs associated with maintaining the safety, compliance, and opearational functionality of the venues, not
coverad by the Council operating subsidy ourrently received by the company.

Tha estimated regional economic impact of events held across the portfolio of Venues Otautahi venues of
£14.47m vear to date, demonstratas the impact of a number of significant events held in the first half of the
financial year,

Events including The Killers and The Wiggles at Christchurch Arena, Six&0 and The All Elacks at Orangetheory
Stadium, and the T20 International Tri Series Cricket at Hagley Oval are all contributors to this strong growth.
With the expectation Elton John in January will contribute between $6m and $7m to the local economy and with
a strong event forecast including Cirque du Soleil, Venues Otautahi is well on track to surpass our estimated

F30m pasitive cantribution far 2022-23,

Calebrating and sourcing local has continued to underpin the Venues Otautahi food and beverage philosophy
with T8% of food across the venue portfolio sourced from the Canterbury region. This is a direct contribution of
avor 3930k to local $L|pp|iﬂr$ year to date, well on track to the estimated $1.7m contribution for the full year.

With commercial viability underpinning the local procurement strategy, the business has also maintained an over
10% reduction in costs of goods sold versus costs under the outsourced catering model prior to April 2020

Community access to and connection with their venues remains a core priority for Venues Otautahi and with 40
events hosted in the venues so far this year by local community groups or individuals attracting a community
discount valued at over $110k, we are well in excess of cur annual target of $60k,

In Q2 2022-23 and in preparation for the opening of Te Kaha in April 2026, Venues Otautahi have commenced
the two phased process of development and execution of the commercial strategy for the new venue. Phasae one,
cue o concluda in February 2023 will identify and value all commercial assets at Te Kaha and phase two, due to
commence in April 2023, will develop and execute the sales strategy for all commercial assets. The cvent
attraction strategy for Te Kaha will be developad and will commence execution at the latter end of the 2022-23
financial year.

\.l’[—er1un—.ﬂ;f}[ﬂu[;—'|hidurlng,ﬂh-!qu;-\rler and in concurrence with the commercial activation have continued intensive
engagemant in the detailed design process to ensure Te Kaha delivers the key design fundamentals of
operational functionality, commercial viability, guest experience, accessibility and inclusivity, sustainability, and
multi-usé functionality,

Sustainability is also a critical foous of Venues Otautahi in 2023 financial year with caring for the environment
using thoughtful and sustainable methods and always acting with future generations in mind a strategic priority.
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The waste management packaging strategy for the business focuses on compostables, reuseables and to a
smaller degree recyclables. In the first quarter of 2022-23, Vanues Otautahi engaged in a partnership with a
now waste management provider to seek to develop and implement landfill diversion rates of aver B0% and amc
fooused for the remainder of the 2023 financial year on building sustailabiltiy initiatives that drive the
achivement of new targets set for the business’s operations and assets.

Venues Otautahi also has a target of carbon neutrality by 2030. In support of achieving this goal the company
entared a formal partnership with Toitd Envirocare, a specialist provider of business sustainability services, to
seok certification across all Venues Otautahi venues through the Toitd Environmental Managemeant
Accreditation Programme, It is the company's goal to achieve gold Enviro-Mark accreditation for the full suite
of venues by mid -2023.

It is also Venues Otautahi's goal to be an accredited B-Corporation by mid o late-2023. B Corporations, or B-
Corps are businessas that meat high standards of social and environmantal parformance, accountability, and
transparency.

Certified B Corps, envision a batter economic system where businesses can banafit |sr:|||3|-n_ communities, and
the planet, Thﬁey choose Iung-term investments over quick wins, and measure their success based on the
positive impact they create.

With people, (.'t:llﬂl'l\ljr'li‘i‘_," and the environment at our core, Venues Otautahi feel :-iligned with the ;J|1i|<_‘1.f-u]phiew‘1|'
E-Corp and are axcited about the opportunity to embark on this journey. In achieving this aspiration Venues
Otautahi will be the or Ihfl' B-Caor pror ation vanue in New Zealand.

With major tickated events [k-‘liwlllllt'. the most ﬂ:Bmhr:;uﬂ social, cultural, and economic benafit for the
C'&lltelhlll‘}f Rta;;{i-:jn and with Yenues Otautahi venues those best positioned in the city to deliver, our focus will
continue to be on attracting these events now and in the future.

With continued strong perfformance for the year to date, Venues Otautahi rermairn optimistio for tha future hut
prepared for a challenging economic environment. Venues Otautahi has a wonderful, committed, and
motivated team focusad not only on dalivering an outstanding and unigualy local guest and client axpariance,
but also on caring for the W\I'lllii!—'\..i-ind making them the pride and delight ::-fi;\.-mvmmam! for this reason we ara
well positioned to achieve the aspirations we all have for the Venues Otautahl business.

28 February 2023

Chief Executive Date

Caroline Harvie-Tearc

Item No.: 13

Page 214

Item 13

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee
22 March 2023

Christchurc

City Counci

h @
il ==

O2 FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The consolidated operating income is gk higher than targat for tha six-month period to 31 December 2022
with 253 events held compared to a budget of 197 events across all venues in the first six months

EBITDA is $1 million against a target surplus of $118k far tha six-month period to 31 Decamber 2022, A positive

variance of $006k as shown balow:

3 Dec 2022
Actual

$000

Operating income 707
Operational grant 2025

Operating expenses {4911
Overheads & fixed costs (5, 797)

3 Dac 2022
Target

$000

8,181

2026
{4,143}
(5,845}

N Dec 2022
Variancea

$O00

1526

{768}
145

30 June
2023
Target

H000

1564873
4,060
{7,732}
(12.068)

EBITDA 1,024

e

B0

(177}

Below iz a graphical reprasentation of the actual |:nur1't:||r1lu|1::t.~ to 31 December 2022 with the positive
returns for event and venue opearations r.Jﬂ'.'ﬂ&eliinE{Ihe asgat managemeant, maintenance, and fixed costs

across the venue p(:riﬁ)lio_
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Income Statemeant for the siv months ended 31 December 20122

Income
Vanue rental and avant revanua
Food and baverage

Grant revenue received from Council

Gaovid-19 Wage Subsidy and
Resurgence Support Paymant
(Extraordinary)

Cther

Less Expenditure

Food and bovorage
Events and hosting costs
Facilitics

Administration and other

EBITDA

Doc-22
YTD
Actual

£000

13

1953
772

3,159
2939
1618
3033
10,748

1,024

Dec-22
YTD
Budgot
$000

1,722
10,208

2890
21
2082
3,028
10,088

18

YTD
Aot ve Bud
Varianco

£000

13

231
1,666

906

Dee-2
¥TD  Ful

| Year

Actual Budgaot

$000

1233
1812
1967

1,838

1286

$000

AT

T3
4080

3,385

7967 19,623

1499
1,765
1273
2634

54519
4,165
3989
6,126

7185 18,799

a0

{177)

Although the event and hosting costs are higher than budgeted, reflecting the different mix of events
including community events held during the period, this has been offset by higher food and baverage
revenue with 253 versus a budget of 197 events.

40 events received the community rate and Venues Ctautahi hosted 17 major events in the first six
months of tha year

Below is a breakdown of events held across all venues for the first six months of the year:

Venue

Air Force Museurn of New Zealand
Christchurch Arena

Christchurch Town Hall

Hagley Oval Pavilion
Orangetheory Stadium

Outside Venue

TOTAL

Total ¥YTD

12

ad

154

1l

14

1

263

Budget YTD
14
3

o
7

197

Variance

Tha po$iti\re variancea a;;',ainﬁl, budget reflects a quicker return of events across all venues.
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03 OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE TARGETS

OBJECTIVE &
STRATEQY

PERFOMANCE MEASURE

PROGRESS AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2022

Economio Impact

Attract and manage events that
generate pasitive financial
impact contributing to a
Prosperous Economy, Liveable
City and Strong Community as
is defined under the Council
strategio framework outoomes

Contribute direot aoconomio
benefit to the region® through
implementation of looal
procurement strategy whers
commarcially viable

Soocial and Gultural Impact

Maximise visitor spending by holding at
Izast 14 major boketed events at Venues
Otautahi venues' Events Economics
Tool? used to estimate visitor spending
on a sample of major events

T5H% of food and beverage product lines
procured from Canterbury

Venues Otautahi has exceeded the annual target
of 14 with 17 major events held in the first half of
the financial year, Major events in the last quarter
included the Black CGaps T20 Tri-scrics in
Ogtober (T matches) and 00! vs India in
November 2022, Fast Five Netball Series,
Football Ferns v Korea Republic (2 games), The
Killers, S0 and the White Ferns v Bangladesh in
December 2022

Venues Otautahi focus remains strongly on
continuing to celebrate and souroe looal with T9%.
of all facd sourced from Canterbury supphers far
the period 1.July to 31 Decamber 2022

Maximise attendance at Venues
Otautahi venues which
contributes to a Liveable Gity
and Strong Community Council
strategic framework outoomes

Guests to venues exceed 400,000

Total attendance to 31 December 2022 anross
all venues was 327,988 (Q2:178,524)

Develop and implemsnt a
pricritisation framework to
reflect non-disoretionany
community benefit events.

Enhanos the physical assats
and guest experience through a
deeper connection with our
Otautahi cultural heritage

Prioritisation framework developead

Develop an engaged and collaborative
working relationship with Ngai TO&hurini

Venues Otautahi developing a close working
relationship with Ngai Taahuriri through the Te
Kaha project with the intention this extends to
supporting the company's journey Lo enhancing
the physioal assets and guest experience
through a deeper connection with aur Otautahi
oultural heritage in the future.

Make venues available to
support local communily
groupsfindividuals

At least 40 evenis receive the community
rals.

Venues Otautahi has met the annual target of
Al al. Lhes hallfway point in the year wilh 40
community groups already having recaivad tha
community rate in the first half of the financial
WA
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22 March 2023
OBJECTIVE & OMANCE MEASURE PROGRESS AS AT
STRATEGY P 31 DECEMBER 2022
Client and Guest Experience

Client Net Promoter Socore (NPS*)

Achieve greater than 45 NPS* during
the year

Achieve greater than 45 NPS*during

A Chent Net Promoter Score of 62 was achieved in

the sccond quarter of FY22/23

| A Guest Net Promoter Score of 56 was achieved in

Guesl NPS? lhe year tha sscond quarler of FY22/23
People and Relationships
? Atarget of achieving greater than 45 NPS' tor
J m m 1
Employes NS ::i de :: data Yoo NP targst Venues Otautahi staff has been established for the
ne FY22/23 year.
Asset Care

Ensure assets are maintained at a
suitable level for general use at all
vehues.

The Asset Management Plan (AMP} is
reviewed and updated annually, and
asset maintenance is compliant with the
AMP timetabie.

The annual review of the AMP will be undertaken in
March 2023 in line with the annual budgeting
prooess. The operational capital programme is on
track. \with some rephasing of items across AMP
requircd as a result of the impacts of Covid-19 on
supply chain and significant progress made in
delivering the asset managemcnt plan at
Christchuroh Arena, the oapital AMP is forecast to
be back on track from aarly 2023.

Health, Safety and Wellbeing

Maintain a comprehensive health,

Continuously improve the heaith, safety,

The focus of the quarter from a health, safety and
wellbeing perspective has been on reviewing Lhe
Venues Otautahi health and safety management

safaty, and wellbeing strategy and g strategy system with a partioular focus on critical risk and tha
identification and mitigation of psychosooial risks,
an emerging risk in the current environment.
Digital Transformation
An Information and Technology strategy roadmap
Reimagine the Venues Otautahi . ‘ was developed in FY22/23, The Cigital
business through digital Develop dighsl¢ mation Strategy | transformation Strategy is In progress pending
transformation approval by the Venues Otautahi Board in Q4
2022423
Te Kaha Multi Use Arena
Venues Otautahi continued intensive engagement in
| the final stages of detailed design in the second
Provide operator advice to the | quarter of the year. Stakeholder workshops across
design of the Te Kaha and ensure all aspects of design attended and contributed to

the operational fundamentals are
reflected in the design of the new
venue

Operator engagement in the design and
early construction phases of Te Kaha

with the Venues Otautahi Chair and Chief Executive
alsa conlinuing governance involvement as Direclor
and Advisor respeotively on the Te Kaha Project
Delivery Board.

Maximise the social, oultural and
economic impact of Te Kaha for the
people of Canterbury

Develop and commence activation of
the commercial strategy for Te Kaha

Page 9 of 11

The identification and valuation of all commercial

| assets commenced in second quarter of 2022-23,

The development and exeoution of the sales strategy
to commence in early 2023,
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OBJECTIVE
ESTRATEGY

Te Kaha Multi Use Arena (Cont.)

| PERFOMANCE MEASURE

PROGRESS AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2022

Engage and connect the community and
key stakeholders with Te Kaha through
communications, stakeholder
engagement and brand identity

Develop and commaence activation of the
communications, stakeholder engagement
and brand development strategy for Te
Kaha

Te Kaha venus communications strategy
developad, Te Kaha venue brand,
narrative, launch video and website
released publicly in August. All
slakehulders re-engaged in the project
by Venues Otautahi with the next phase
of detailed design presentations to
commence in early ta mid-2023,

Sustainability

Contribute to reduging the City's carbon
Fanlprinl

Establizh GHG emission, energy, solid waste
and water management plans through to
2030

Develop procuramant requirements for our
suppliers to have GHG emission, energy,
solid waste and water management plans

Engage with an independant verifier to
acquire internationally recognised industry
best practice environmental and carbon
certification,

Partnership with Toitl formalised in first
ouartar of 2022- 23 to support Venues
Otautahi in establishing plans through to
2030 and to achieve gold Enviro-Mark
certification by mid-2023, New waste
management partner selected to supporl
establishment and achievement of
planned target of B0% land fill diversion
ratos.

Partnership with Toitd formalised in first
quarter of 2082 23 to support Venues
Otautahi in establishing sustainability
procurement targets.

Partnership with Toitd formalised in first
quarlar ol 2029- 24 to support Venues
Ortautahi to achieve gokd Enviro-Mark
pertification by mid-2023,

Governance

Repaort to Shareholder

Meet all Local Government Act (LGA) and
Council reporting deadlines.

| 1 Major Events are defined as follows:

Arena: Event attendance > 5000

Stadiumn: Ticketad eventa other than Super Rugby and NPC games
Hagley Owval International cricket or large ticketed matches such as the Black Clash

z Event Economics Tool

All Local Governmant Act (LGA) and
Council reporting deadlines met

The evant aconomics tool estimates the economic benefit derved from major events held in Venues Otautahi venues
For major events supported by ChrstohurchNZ validated economic benefit data is provided

3 Rogion defined as:

Christchurchf/Canterbury  This can include National or infternational suppliers if their point of ongin is Canterbury

A Net Promoter Score

Any Net Promoter Score above Ois ‘good’ and means that your audiencs is more loyal than not.
A soore above 20 is considerad 'favourable’.
Anything above B0 is excellant and means your organisation has considerably more satisfied customens than dissatisfied ones.

An NPS score above B0 is World Clases and means customers love you and your company generates a lot of positive word o% mz _th

referrals
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Daslfiniticosn of Guoests for NPS

Vierues Otautabs defines a guest for the caloulatson of the gusst et promoter soons as follows:

Guests attending ticketed events, ticketed through Venues Otautahi's ticketing provider and
Ouaata ||||(1||l|l|’|E Major events Bupported h-r' Christohunshbg ':_E:uur.l MNPS inaludsd i svant aosonomic

Ly ML)
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FOR THE SIXMONTHS TO
31 DECEMBER 2022
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0.1 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Venues Otautahi's mission is to attraot, plan and deliver events and take care of the venues in a sustainable,
commercially prudent manner with the aim that the economie, social and cultural benefits deliver a compelling
return on investment relative to the whole of life costs of developing, maintaining and operating the venues.

With 263 events delivered in the first half of the year, versus a budget of 197, and over 327,000 guests welcomed
to the venues, it is heartening to see the desire for the community to come together, after such a long period of
volatility and foroed separation from one another.

The event forecast for the remainder of the year is also strong and, on this basis, Venues Otautahi is expecting to
weloome around 600,000 guests to the venues by end June 2023, well in excess of the company’s annual target
of 400,000.

Financial results summary as follows:

The Company recorded an interim net operating surplus of $1.19 million for the six months to 31 December 2022
ocompared to a net operating deficit of $1 million for the same period last year.

Six months to  Six months to  Year ended

31Dec 2022 31Dec 2021 30 June 2022

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
$000 $000 $000

Revenue from exchange transactions 9,921 413 10,313
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2138 2,080 4,276
Operating expenses 10,869 7,218 16,680
Neot operating surlpus/(deficit) 1,189 (1,026) (1,082)
Other revenue from non-exchange transaotions 3,667 1,830 7,148
Other expenses (4,038) (4,660) (0,361)
Operating surlpus/(deficit) before tax (81 (3,846) (3,306)
Income tax income from operations 660 1,077 4172

Net surplus/(deficit) 560 (2,769) 868

Directors
The persons holding office as Directors of the Company for the financial year to 31 December 2022 were:

Qill Cox (Chair)
Tim Scandrett
Brent Ford

Susan Goodfellow

For and on behalf of the Board 4

2% Fobiac, 3923

DIRECTOR

(

DA Eoboivery 003

DIRECTOR DATE
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0.2 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Six morthsto Sxm—:nﬁ:_‘;ew;rdea
31Dec2022 31Dec 2021 30Jme2022

(Unaudited) (Uraudited) (Audited)
$000 $000 $000

Revenue fromexchange transactions 29921 413 10313
Revenue from ron-exchange transactions 2138 2080 4275
Experses 6,262 3824 0255
Personrelcosts 4607 3303 6425
Surplus /(deficit) before other non-exchange reverue, other expenses
poshe Siia 1180 (1026) (1092)
Other nronrexchange rev erue
Government Covid-19 subsiiies and resurgence support payments 13 1539 12906
Courcilcapital grant 3654 - 5242
Total other non-exchange reverue 3667 1839 7148
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortisation 4353 4080 8175
Finarcecosts 835 582 1154
(Gain)/Loss ondisposal of assets - (2) x
Total other expenses 4068 4,660 2361
Surplus/(deficit) before incometax experse @ 38486) {3308)
Income tax 650 1077 4172
Surplus /(deficit) from operations for the year 559 (2769) 288
Other comprehersive revenue and experse
Net movement on property valuations - 24728
Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation reserve - - ©o24)
Total other comprehensive revenue and expense from operations - - 17804
Total comprehersive reverue and experse 569 (2769) 18671

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these

financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Asset Accumulated

Capital | Y P / Total
Reserve (deficite)
$000 $000 $000 $000

Balarceat | July 202 244636 14 540 (T4301) 184,785
Total comprehensive reverue and experse for the period
Surphus/(Defic k) for the year (2769) (2760)
Total prot i we and experse for the period - (2769) (2769)
Balanceat 31 Dy ber 2021 (Unaudited) 244636 14540 (77,50) 1o
Balanceat | July 2021 244636 14 540 74391) 184,785
Total comprehersi we and expense for the period
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year a88 2868
Other comprehensive revenue and expence, net of revenue and
expenoe tax
Net movement on property valuations 24728 24728
Deferrec) tax movemert taken to revaluation reserve 6.924) 6.924)
Total comprehensive revenue and expence for the year 17804 &8s 18671
Balarceat 30 June 2022 (Audited) 244 636 3344 (13/24) 208456
Balanceat 1 July 2022 2446836 32344 (1324) 206456
Total comprehersive revenue and experse for the period
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 569 569
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the period 569 569
Balanceat 31 D ber 2022 (Unaudited) 244636 R344 (72.9855) 204025

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these

financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022
k N  3Dec22  3NDec2l  30An2
(Uraudited) (Uraudited) (Audited)
B B $000 $000 $000

Currert assets
Cashandcashecquivalerts 7509 7404 7275
Trade andother recenabies 1966 6666 680
Ot her financial assets 7000 - 6000
Irvertories 430 208 25
Other current assets 863 m 82
Total current assets 7168 15139 14206
Nonourrert assets
Property, plart &equipment 22018 210200 231887
Intangible assets 22 143 383
Deferredtax assets 14 855 1,799 Mmr
Total non-current assets ) RSl I 244205 22142 246475
Total assets 261464 237282 260,
Currert liabilities
Trade andother payalies 2472 2819 2267
Employee entitlements 59 484 83
Currert tax payables - (48) -
Teotal current liabilities B 2901 10257 2820
Nonrourrert liabilities
Trade andother payabies 1752 1 1,799
Borrowings 15885 15885 15885
Deferrecitax kabilities - - S 3BaN 2922 3881
Total liabilities 5740 55265 57315
Net assots 204,025 182017 2084565
Equity
Capital and other equity instruments 244636 244 636 244636
Asset revaluation reserve w1344 14,540 32344
Acoumulated surpluses/(deficits) (12985 (77)50) T3m4)
Total equity 204025 B0 208455

For and on behalf of the Board

éjﬁéi 2 Ei ooy I3 Clj/(j)j 2o Ely : 20)

Date Director Date

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these
financial statements.
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0.3 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Sixmorthsto Sixmorthsto Yearended

31Dec2022 31Dec 2021 30June2022
(Unaudited) (Uraudited)  (Audited)
$000 $000 $000

Cashflows from operating activities
Receixs fromcustomers 9,202 4188 10451
Subvertionreceived 1500
Courcil operating gront 2025 2025 4080
Government wage subeicly arcl resurgence support pay ment 13 1,839 1,908
Payments tosupphers and employ ees (R2.543) 8664) (18,008)
Net GST movement 278 @ 0
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (935) (7085) 1819
Cashflows fromirvesting activities
Purchase of investments 7.000) (14,000)
Councilcapital grart 3654 5242
Pre-poid lease rertal revenue 134 134 134
Paymer for propenty, plant & ecuipment (1193) 686) (2068)
Interest received 153 6 I
Sale of property, plant & ecuipment 0 n
Maturity of invest ments 6,000 2000 10000
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1748 1474 (604)
Cashflows from financing activities
Interest anclother fimance cost o paicl to refatec party (5719) (579) (1154)
Net cash provided by (used in) firancing activities (579) (579) (1,164)
Net increaseincash and cashequivalents 24 00 61
Cash anclcash equivalent s at beginning of year 7275 7214 7214
Cashand cash equivalents at end of yeor 7500 7,404 7275

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these

financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared in
accordance with PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and New Zealand generally accepted acoounting
practice.

The interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2022

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these interim financial statements are consistent with those
in the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Capital Commitments

The Company had the following significant capital commitments relating to acquisition of property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2022:

- Buildings $1,091,000 (81 December 2021: nil)

Contingencies

The Company had no material contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil)
Events subsequent to balance date

There are no material events known to the Directors ocourring after balance date that would have a significant
impact on the interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022.
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14. Christchurch City Holdings Ltd - Half year report and financial
statements for the Group for the period 1 July-31 December

2022
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/199911
Report of / Te Pou Linda Gibb, Performance Advisor, External Reporting and
Matua: Governance, Resources (linda.gibb@ccc.govt.nz)
General Manager / Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
Pouwhakarae: (Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Information Update and Report Origin

11

1.2

The purpose of this report is to provide Christchurch City Holdings Ltd's (CCHL's) Quarter 2,
2022/23 'traffic lights' performance report for its group and Interim Report (and financial
statements) released to the market on 28 February 2023. It also provides Christchurch
International Airport Ltd's (CIAL's) Interim Report and financial statements which were
released to the market on the same day.

This report has been generated following receiving the reports on 24 February 2023 within the
timeframe required by section 66 of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA).

Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Receives Christchurch City Holdings Ltd’s ‘traffic lights’ performance report for Quarter 2
2022/23 (1 October-31 December 2022) and Interim Report for the half year (1 July-31
December 2022); and

2. Notes Christchurch International Airport Ltd’s Interim Report for the half year (1 July-31
December 2022).

Brief Summary

Interim Report

3.1

3.2

CCHL’s Interim Report for the six months ending 31 December 2022 was issued to the NZX on
28 February and is at Attachment A. It presents the group’s half year financial outturn in
comparison with the same period in the prior year (2021). Refer to page 44 of the Interim
Report for a break-down of financial performance by subsidiary.

The group’s performance for the half year has been a marked improvement over the prior
year. The prior half year had been subject to a two week nationwide lockdown and extended
level 3 and 4 restrictions in Auckland and surrounding areas from August to December.
However, the group’s profitability reflects, among other things a quicker return to pre-COVID-
19 levels of business driven mostly by CIAL, Enable and City Care.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The following graph shows the profitability trend since pre-COVID-19 (note that financial
profitability is only one component of CCHL’s returns). Note that Orion’s returns are for nine
months, all others are six months.

CCHL Group - NPAT December half year 2019-2022
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The turndown in Orion’s profitability is the impact that the default-price-quality regulation
has had on its ability to profit.

The following table shows each subsidiary’s profitability against its six month target, the same
period in the prior year and the full SOI forecast for the year ending 30 June 2023:

CCHL Group NPAT December half year 2022

Orion CIAL Enable City Care EcoCentral

30
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1
1

NPAT Sm
U O »n
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CCHL sub5|d|ary company

M Half year to Dec-22 M Budget Half year to Dec-22
Half year to Dec-21 M Full year SOI target 2022/23

The Interim Report notes that the group has, over the half year faced the challenges of rising
interest rates, inflationary pressures, and resourcing constraints. Nevertheless, in aggregate it
has achieved profitability that is 16.4% ahead of the half year budgets, almost 70% of the full
year SOl targets and almost 50% ahead of the prior half year.

Against SOI targets- profitability exceeds what were reasonably conservative forecasts due
to uncertainty of future impacts of COVID-19 on the group’s activities.

CIAL, Enable and City Care have achieved the greatest increases in profit against SOl targets -
CIAL from swifter recovery of passenger numbers to near pre-pandemic levels in the case of
domestic travel, Enable from increased customer connections and the ongoing benefits of
strong cost control generated to help manage potential COVID-19 impacts back in 2020/21
and City Care from overhead efficiencies and the acquisition of the Spencer Henshaw group
finalised in September last year.
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3.9 Inthe same period in the prior year (July-December 2021) performance has improved for the
same reasons as against budget, but also including the impact of the COVID-19 restrictions
that occurred in the prior period. These were two weeks of nationwide level 4 lockdown and
ongoing level 3 and 4 restrictions affecting Auckland and surrounds through to December.
This had the greatest detrimental impact on CIAL and City Care (which generates around one
third of its revenue in Auckland) as can be seen by the green bars in the above chart. Enable
has continued to grow its connections annually to almost 147,000 (at 30 June 2022 143,300).

Dividends

3.10 CCHL advises that there is no change in its forecast dividend payment to the Council for
2022/23 of $32.4 million. All CCHL subsidiaries (other than City Care) are projecting payment
of dividends to shareholders (including minority shareholders) to be in line with SOI targets
totalling $85 million. As part of its agreement with CCHL for the Spencer Henshaw acquisition,
City Care is not required to make a distribution this year (its target for which had been $4.1
million). This does not affect the quantum of dividend that CCHL will pay to the Council.

Balance Sheet

3.11 Total assets are valued at $5.4 billion, an increase of $180 million over 30 June 2022 year-end.
This was largely due to ongoing infrastructure and property investment across the group.

CCHL group - quarter 2 ‘traffic lights’ performance report

3.12 CCHL’s Quarter 2 ‘traffic lights’ performance report against Statement of Intent (SOI) targets
for the quarter 1 October to 31 December 2022 is at Attachment B.

3.13 The Quarter 2 performance report indicates several areas across the group where
performance against full year SOl targets has become uncertain. Explanations are provided in
the report. Of most note are:

e Lyttelton Port’s target of conducting a bio-diesel trial in its plant is no longer achievable
and it is instead looking to electrification for long-term emissions reduction. This will
not impact LPC’s timeline by which it expects to become net neutral in emissions.

e Enable has a target of no more than three total recordable injuries and no serious harm
injuries. This financial year so far there have been two, but these have been minor.

Christchurch International Airport Ltd

3.14 CIAL also released its Interim Report to the NZX on 28 February. Itis at Attachment C. As
noted above, CIAL’s financial performance largely rests with the quicker than expected return
to almost pre-COVID-19 levels of air travel, particularly in the domestic market. The financial
return is characterised by a 50% increase in operating revenue and an accompanying 10%
increase in operating costs. Of the $7.7 million increase in expenses, $3 million is financing
and interest costs, with the remainder direct operating costs.

3.15 The following chart shows how little expenditure changes as passenger numbers change,
(within at least current broad demand and supply levels):
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Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

No. Title Reference Page

A8E | Christchurch City Holdings Ltd Interim Report and financial 23/315484
Statements for the half year 1 July-31 December 2022

236

half year 1 July-31 December 2022

B0 T | Christchurch City Holdings Ltd Quarter 2,2022/23 Traffic Lights | 23/315438 296
Report
c8® | christchurch International Airport Ltd Interim Report for the 23/315457 309

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatiiturutanga a-Ture

(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficient information about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
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CHAIR’S REPORT

As we reach the mid-way point of the 2023 Financial Year, the focus of the Group is very much
on looking forward. Many of the challenges of the post-COVID environme cluding inflation
and supply chain disruption, remain stubbornly persistent. Falling business confidence and slowing
economic grewth also signal further pressures, which will once again test the combined and
diversified strength of the Group.

But ther

roptimism as we the longer term. &s our city re-engages with the world, there is a

a that the region is 11 dermic activity. Throug umrmar, Otautahi

Chr

s ch has been buzzing with visitars, : Lytteltan and internationa

ars negin

in nrumbers at Christchurch Airport. The return of m r, lilke the Sail GF event which will take place in

March, alsc show the region is ready to shrug off the restrictions o

e Strategic Review

sment of our portfolio of ass nd how best it o

are not only providing the best possible returns to our commu

or the organisation that can respond to the challenges and epportunities of future de

public will alsa have

v to share their views on any proposed outcomes from the review, which Council has

confirmed will be considered as part of the next Long Term Plan.
he review also reinforced the importance of communication across the oup, with the Council and our broader

comrmunity. This is something we expect to build on over the coming manths

coking ahead, we're also om bers of the Group continuing to show leadership and innovatio orm the intarma

recognition of the kng ] h Airport has developed to tackle climate change, to EcoCent
develogrment of resources ready for changing glebal demand, to Orion's future energy strategy, Lyttelton Port Company's

ity and Citycare's increased focus on al ho ort, across the

(LPC} investments in expanded container ca

I:_;I'.','|..|'. LT .'J"(J.If'll!-i'-'lll.";l".—{ are preparing {Kn] a 'I’_'!lz'-f [Lalaat=1at:

wnd en a personal note, 1d like zo thank Paul Silk for ping into the Acting

4 CCHL Interim Report 2023
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e of CCHL. These will

the process of selecting a

p support the fut

before the Beard commen

s undertaken in the Strategic Review, while al

complementing the professional expertis

the Board has available. As the new Board is established, | would also like to pay

tribute to former Chair Jere and Counciller [

Jame

s Mayor Lianne Dalz and Andrew Turner, who
left the Board during the reperting period, for their services to the arganisalion over a number of yedrs

Overall, it is an exciting time for the organisation. Althe

h there may be headwinds forecast for the eco

nomy, | believe
st decade CCHL has repeatedly demonstrated the real strengt
e lock forward, the q

through that, the cppertunities to engage mo

f its diversified model and prudent, independent

over the la

approach. As w ran

ths

ould only be enhanced by the eventual outcome of the review process, and

e widely with our community

As we o print, our thoughts are with all t e affected by Cyclone (
ek

t communities in needa. | his has INc

of the Auckland Anniversar end fl

an partic

1 working
pr e staff, vehicles and equipment - including s, the Airport managing

additional passengers and providing support for those stranded overnight, and C

ter tackling some of the major

water management issues. We will continue to assist with the immediate needs of ffected communities as we also foc!

Group an the challenges of a changing climate

ALEX SKINNER

Interim Chair

CCHL Interim Report 20
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Conceptual framework which is intended to inform our journey to fully integrated reporting.

WHAT WE DO OUTCOMES/MEASURES
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NET PROFIT
AFTER TAX:

99.3

swillion HY 23

36.4 SaeN oo

SOl
TARGETS:

i;“E;:mmm
2023
sahi;;mmm.

2024

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
ORDINARY DIVIDEND:

32.4

Y23
SOl Target

NET DEBT/NET DEBT
PLUS EQUITY:

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS/
TOTAL ASSETS:

GROUP RESULTS

The Group delivered a strong result in the six months to

31 December 2022 as the Group's business operations that were
previously impacted by the pandemic largely returned to pre-
pandemic levels. The airport, in particular, benefitted from the
strong recovery of the tourism sector with domestic passenger
numbers returning closer to pre-pandemic levels, and the port
saw the return of cruise ships in October 2022. Citycare'’s
property and water businesses also delivered strong results,
particularly as the Spencer Henshaw business was acquired

on 2 September 2022.
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GROUP RESULTS

The Group recorded a net profit for the six manths ended 31 December 2022 of $55.3 million, compared with £38.4 million
in the equivalent period last year, an increase of $18.9 million or 52%. Total cperating revenue for the Group fer the six
rmcnth per'iud was BE97 millian (.'ur'lpan’;'d to 3521 millien for the same period last year, an increase of 176 million or 34%.
The increased Group operating revenue and net proft were mainly driven by the airport's post-pandemic recovery and
Citycare's property and water businesses along with a gain on sale of the Springs Road property.

CIAL delivered a $29.8 millien or 45% increase in operating revenue and a $16.0 million net profit cempared te a break even
positicn in the same period last year, a very strong result given increased cperating and interest costs impacting the entire

Group, Citycare also delivered a strong result with a $123.6 million or BE% increase in operating revenus and a $7.8 million

increase in net profit, 4 8 times the prior comparative period

Oricn, LPC, Enable and EcoCentral continued to provide solid results despite the challenges of rising interest rates,
inflationary pressures, and resourcing constraints affecting the entire Group. Operating revenue at Orion, LPC and Enakle
increased by 5122 million or 8%, $8.1 million or 10%, and $6.0 milion or 13% respectively however Orion’s net profit dropped
by 354 milion or 26% due to upwaerds cost pressures. Under the Commerce Commission’s Default Price Path, Orign is able
to recover CPl {Consumer Price Index) adjusted revenue relating to these higher costs in future years.
Group assets increased to $5.4 billion from $5.0 billion, mainly due te the:

ongoing capital programmes at Orion and LPC;

continued investment in the property development prograrmme at CIAL; and

valuation uplifts en Oricn's network assets and CIAL's investment property portfolio at last year end.

Consequently, overall Group net azsets have increased to $2.5 billion frem $2.1 billion.

PARENT RESULTS

Tha Parent recorded a net proht for the six months anded 31 December 2022 of $33.3 million, comparaed with 522 2 million
in the equivalent period last year. Total opersting revenue for the Parent for the six month pericd was $46.1 million compared
to $41.4 millien for the same period last year

The increased Parent operating revenue and net profit were mainly driven by dividends received from EceCentral and CIAL
during the period whereas no dividends were received from these subsidiaries dunng the same period last year
Parent assets increased to $4.0 billion from $3.8 killion, mainly driven by:

the valuation uplift on the Parent's investments in Orion and CIAL at last year end:

F56 rnillion en-lending to Citycare for its Spencer Henshaw acquisition; and

E50 millien on-lending te Orion to replace axisting bank funding

Az a result, Parant net assets have increased to 2.7 billion from $2.5 billion

PARENT DIVIDENDS

Dividends of $45.8 million were received during the period from Orion ($28.6 million), LPC {$6.6 million),

Enable ($6.0 million}, EcoCentral ($2.5 million}, and CIAL {$2.1 millien). Whilst no interim dividend has been paid

te Christehurch City Council in line with tha statemant of intent, CCHL is on track to meat its full-year commitment
of $32.4m

10 CCHL Interim Report 2023
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PROMOTE BOARD DIVERSITY

37:

FEMALE DIRECTORS
As at 31 December 2022

As at
35 0/0 31 December 2021

GOVERNANCE: FOUNDATION

At the heart of CCHL’s operation is the prudent and professional
oversight of Christchurch City Council’s infrastructure investments.
In this role, CCHL recognises the vital importance of these assets to
the community and the region. This is measured not only in terms
of the financial returns they provide but also the contribution they
make to economic development and social wellbeing. CCHL uses
best practice standards of monitoring, reporting and decision-
making to not only oversee but also add strategic value to the

work of the Group.
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STRATEGIC REVIEW

After almost three decades since CCHL was established, in 2021 Christchurch City Council determinad that it was timely
to review whether our purpose and strategic objectives were still appropriate, given the current and future challenges the
[.'it}l' dana IEEICH dare f{:i(_'l[lg.

Releasad to the public in early Decernber 2022, the strategic review faund CCHL is a “significantly under-utilised asset
of the Council and oity retepayers” and that "significant value could be added by taking a more active approach to asset
rmanagermeant.”

The report by Northington Partners recornmended Councillors approve key pieces of work to achieve this:

Council develop a clear value strategy in relation ta building and utilising incoms or value from CCHL, and

that CCHL be requested to scope and develop detailed business cases which fully consider the costs and benehits of
adopting a more active approach to managing the poertfolio; including rebalancing and returning capital to Council

The repert to Ceuncil also recommended several other operaticnal improvemnents in relation to improving the relationship
and engagement with Council{CCHL and its subsidiaries whilst maintaining its core purpose of providing an independent
non-political buffer betwean the Council and its commercial companies

Couneil voted to receive the report on 7 December 2022 and investigate a shift from a passive to active managemeant
approach.

Thiz work will take up to 12 months and be considered as part of the next Long Term Plan 2024-34, where the community
will be able te provide their input inte any patential cutcomes.

BOARD APPOINTMENTS

In accepting recommendations from the strategic review, Council also acknowledged the recruitment of the Board of
Directors and Exacutive of CCHL would need to consider the experience and skill zet required to support the development,
evaluation and implemeantation of the new strategy. In daing so it alse resolved that the number af Councillor directars of
CCHL ke reduced from four to twa, while providing for up to six independent directors_ including the Chair.

An appomtments committee has been established to undertake the appointment process for the two Councillor directors,
a mew COHL Chair and up to four independent directers. The Councillar director appeintments were confirmed on
1 February 2023, with the Chair to be appeinted in sarly March, and the indapendent directors dug to be appainted

by April 2023

INTEGRATED REPORTING

Like CCHL, other members of the Group are on the integrated reporting journey. Ultimately this apgroach will enable the
whole Group to provide a mare comprehensive view of the impacts of our activities, and the benefits they bring to our
community,

In September 2022, LPC released its first full report under the integrated reporting framewoerk. It alzo added a new pillar
to the organisation's Leading the Way strateqy, Manakitanga {hospitality) and Kaitiakitanga {guardianshig), which reflects
the Port's cormmitment to positively impacting the local community and protecting the natural ervirenment

DEVELOPING TALENT

For gur fifth bi-annual Associate Director Programme, CCHL has made nine new appointments to boards within the CCHI
group of companies or entities within the wider CCC family. Participants are assigned as an Associate Director for an
18-moanth term

The Associate Director Programme was implemented to enhance the governance capability of senior leaders and offer
ermerging directors the opportunity to accelerate thewr boardroom experience. The latest appointments bring the number of
people who have been through the programime to 41,

14 CCHL Interim Repert 2023
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HUMAN: PEOPLE

Central to the Group’s success are our people.
The Group’s role is to help ensure they have the structure,
resources and support to work for the-good of our community.
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The CCHL Group and the boards and management teams of its subsidiaries continue to focus on attracting and retaining
the best talent at every level of the organisation.

After an extensive local and international search, the Board of Christchurch International Airport appointed Justin Watson

as Chiaf Executive. Justin tack aver the role on 1 Jlanuary and previously was the airport’s Chief Aeronautical and Commercial
Cifficer. Justin's wide commercial experience included working for Tounsm New Zealand to market Mew Zealand on the
glebal stage.

EcoCentral has also strengthened its management capabilities this year with the establishment of a People, Capability
and Safety Manager as well as a Commercial Manager

Citycare Water's commitment to developing high-performing talent has gone from strength to strength in 2022 with help
from traiming partner, Connexs. By the end of 2022, over 100 active trainees from across the country were undertaking
water infrastructure qualifications, 70 of whom were completing Level 4 or above apprenticeship qualifications.

This reflects a significant uptake in what has fast bacome a successful training programme,

Cur approach as a group to encouraging diversity includes a focus on providing equal opportunities for people to develop
their careers through every stage of their lives.

Enable is now tepping-up primary caregivers’ paid parental leave payments 1o 100% for the first 26 weeks of their parental
leave, while Orion is providing additional benefits to primary carers and partners, as well as flaxible return to work support,
including transition coaching, so employees can focus on what's most important as they expand their whanau

Wearking together acress CCHL has magnified the strengths of the Graup. It is also enabling individual subsidiaries to draw
on the broad range of resources and sxperience across the organisation

Since 2020, CCHL has been using a shared human capital platform {Te Whariki). Te Whariki allows us to utilise the scale and
diversity of the Group to create an ecosysterm that supports information sharing, mentoring and collaboration, transforming
the way we work and developing the human capabilities needed for the future.

Te Whariki has baen providing a strong sense of connaction across CCHL and its supperting arganisations. In tatal, the
Group has over 1300 Te Whariki users {including Council staff who joined the platform in 2022) - up 300 over the same
period last year - with 900 people using the platform each maonth. Increasing levels of engagement also point to the growing
success of the platferm. For the six menths te December 2023, Te Whariki has seen an 80% increase in enguiries, a 90%
ingreasa in mantorng activity and an 87% |ift in cross-organisation collaboration

Another key focus for the Group is maintaining and protecting safe and suppartive working enviranments. LPC has made a
numbar of significant health and safety improvements since launching its Safaty Reset in July 2022 This has includad rolling
aut the port's Life-Saving Commitments, Critical Control Verification Audits and a new Permit to Work system
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Across the CCHL Group, work continues on ensuring the city’s
key infrastrueture is well managed and contributing to the
economic prosperity and wellbeing of our community.
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REACHING INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

With the end of COVID-19 restrictions, Christchurch and Canterbury have been re-engaging with the world, Tourism
forms an impaortant part of the region's econemy, and both Christchureh Airport and LPC have a vital part to play in
t'.uppm‘ting the sector's |ur1g-ter'm grr.}wth.

In Orcteber, cruise vassels returned to Lyttelton for the first time since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic
The opening of LFC's new, one-of-a-kind cruise berth also marked the first time that large vessels have been here since
the Canterbury earthquakes

Despite cngoing disruptions caused by the pandemic, international trade is also increasing. The Group takes a long-term
view of the opportunities for local businesses that engage with international export markets, and continues to invest in
infrastructure that supparts its develocpment.

LPC iz now more than halfway through its eastern development programme to expand the Lyttelton container terminal,
which will boost capacity from 500,000 to 620,000 TEUs par year. LPC will also add a new container yard, four new reefer
towers, new truck receival and dispatch lanes, and a new straddle workshop. LPC alsa completed the major upgrades ta its
Dry Dock facilities - the only civilian dry dock in Mew Zealand - including electrical network upgrades, improved ighting and
new crew and contractor amenities.

Christchurch Airport is alse seeing a beost in air cargo services. During January, China Airines scheduled sight dedicated
BTTTF freight aireraft betwaan Taipsi and Chrstehurch te take high value exparts, including live labstars, live aysters,
chilled salmen and fresh cherries, into Asian markets. Air New Zealand is also operating five 787 passenger aircraft cut of
Christchurch as freight-only flights to the United States and Asian markets each week until the end of March.

MAINTAINING KEY SERVICES

Many of the services managed by the Group are essential to the city, providing vital rescurces for our community.

In August, Orion and Transpower commenced building a new $58m Grid Exit Point (GXP) to mest record growth in
Central Canterbury’s electricity demand. It is the largest single network investrment project in Orion’s 10 year plan.

The new Norwood GXP will increase Orion's capacity te draw down power from the national grid by 200MW, or 25 per
cent. Maintaining netwark reliability and resilience are also key factors driving the build. The naw GXP s expectad to be
comrmissioned by Movember 2023

The Colombo Moorhouse utility underpass is one of many hidden assets in Christchurch that Citycare Water maintains.
Built in the 1950, this ene-of-a-kind tunnel carries the trunk main 450-millimetre water pipes in the city network, plus
ralecammunications and broadband flbre cables, elactricity and a decommissioned gas line, Maintaining this unigue asset
requires a complex safety system, which includes abzeiling harmesses, radic telacommunications, a spotter and a cantrol
person, and gas monitoring. In 2023 the underpass will be upgraded with a new water main to replace the aged cast iron
pipes alongside the remeval of the redundant gas main.

ENHANCING LIVEABILITY

The Group's approach to its infrastructure network also includes enhancing the liveability of the city, and the opportunities
for global participation through technelogy.

Enable ig bringing the thrills and exciternant of March's SaillGP event on Te Whakaraupé/Lyttelton Harbour right into the
heart af the Otautahi city centre as the presenting partner of the New Zealand Sail Grand Prix live site - an actien-packed
fan zene,

Enable's ultra-fast, super reliable network will be vital 1o daily operations for the event itself, with connections on its world
leading fibre service providing the critical infrastructure needed to transmit racing data from hydro-foilling catamarans to
athletes and coaching staff, while also connecting tearms working across on-land and on-water oparations centras. Qutside
of the event village, Enable will help to bring the city to life with activations and entertainment at the New Zealand Sail
Grand Prix live site - a free fan zone located in the grassy area in front of Te Fae.
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RESPONDING TO CHANGE

In response to the impacts of the pandemic and growth in demand across the region,

the Group is focused on reflecting

changes in both local and international trade

o meet the exacting standa market, EcoCentral's Materials
April 2022 The v

een (to complement the one installed in 20

he internationa ing facility u

tor, and an addn

has seen a huge increase in the quality of material being

produced in the plant with very high-grade s : separation of plastics and paper products being sorted to the international

standard (0.5% contamination)

Providing three waters solutions that meet the needs

clus

ers requires a genuine and Ic -term enge ith the community. (

agemen

sustainable is the job o

Small Waters team. This group excel at delivering bespeoke solutiens, including

L‘L"\'L"D’JIHL} and maintaining rainwater and bore-water-based systems nsure access to potable water and to meet the

irrigation needs of these small and rural communities
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LIVING WAGE:

100°

CCHL Group employees
by 31 December 2022

SOCIAL: MANA

Our social capital reflects the broad role CCHL has to play
across our region. As intergenerational guardians of key
infrastructure assets, we also use our collective strength to
support abroad range of opportunities that enhance access to
services, increase liveability and protect the environment.
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TARGETED SUPPORT

For our most vulnarable, we are able to make differences - large and small - that help make our region a more welcoming
and inclusive place.

Airports can be busy and confusing places, but fer people with hidden disabilities they can be simgly overwhelming

In Octebar 2022, Christechurch Airport joinad the Sunflower Lanyard scheme, a programma for people whe would like a littla
more assistance without having to ask for it. The arport is offering free lanyards for people with a non-wvisible disability to
indicate the wearer would like additional support, assistance or a little more time.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Across the Group, our people are also engaged with a vanety of local initiatives and activities that benefit fram not only
additional suppart but also the skills and experience of our team

he EcoShop leads the reuse function within EcoCentral and has also provided support for a number of social enterprise
and support agencies. EcoShop has provided a large number of care packages of furniture and household appliances to help
support peaple live with dignity.

In 2022, Citycare Water's support of the Tread Lightly Drain Game enabled more than 3,205 students te learn how their
daily actions and lifestyle choices have an impact on the world they live in. & mchile environmental classroom which visits
primary and intermediate schools in the Auckland region, the Tread Lightly Drain Garme explores the difference between the
stormwater and wastewater systerms, whare the different drains lead to, and the effects that pollutants, contaminants and
rubbish entering the different systerms have on freshwater and marine environments

The airport is also currently processing applications for the latest round of its Community Fund. The Community Fund
iz a combination of Christchurch Airpert's financial contribution and donations collected in wishing wells around the airport.

he Fund supports projects that demonstrate a focus an sustainability, satety and wellbeing, and innovation. Community
Funds are gifted twice a year, and applications for the current round close on 31 March

Orien, LPC and EcoCentral celekrated the next generation of leaders in our region by sponsoring the GirlBoss Awards
Focused on recagnising young women creating change in their communities, Crion sponscred the science, technology,
enginearing and mathematics (STEM) award and LPC and EcoCentral the volunteering category.

MAXIMISING RESOURCES

The Group is also inding ways to utilise our resources to support the community in unigue ways. Enable, has partnered with
a local children's gardening group to plant and grow flower gardens on an empty site on a residential street that houses cne
af their Central Offices (CO's) in Christchureh East

Citycara Property's Structures and Landscapa team also donated their time, equipment, and volunteer hours to prepare the
chosen site far construction of the Mairehau Community Garden in 5t Albans. Citycare Property has also provided support
and assistance to community garden projects in New Brighton, Avondale and Riccarton.
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GHG EMISSIONS
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g

INTEGR ATED REPORTING BY:

2024

NATURAL: SUSTAINABILITY

CCHL has recognised that climate change will be one of the most
significant challenges our community and region faces in the coming
decades. By setting a range of targets for efficiency, decarbonisation and
best practice, CCHL is demonstrating its long-term commitment to not
only address.the Group’s.impacts on the environment, but to also show
leadership in the fight against climate change.

Item No.: 14

Christchurch
City Council ==

Page 264

Item 14

Attachment A




Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council ==

A good example of climate change leadership is not only being recognised locally, but also internationally. Although

18,500 kilornetres apart, Christchurch and Hamburg Airports have recently signed a partnership to werk on infrastructure
for the use of greer '1}rdruger| i aviation. The two airports are s|'i—1rir1g their kr'uwledge and wur'kirlg tugether towards the
goal of achieving complete elimination of carben dioxide emissions, and actively preparing for and promoting tha future use
of green hydrogen as an emission-free energy carrier in aviation.

Hamburg Airport CEQ Michael Eggenschwiler says Christchurch Airpart is widely considered a global leader in the transition
aof airports and aviation to a lowsr carban future,

Closer to home, EcoCentral is also making it easier for Cantabrians to make good choicas with their unwantad items

This year EcoCentral has continued its Battery Return Scherne at the Resource Recovery Centre (RRC) and also partnered
with AgRecovery for a pesticide and weed spray containers take-back, and 5R Glass Recyeling to trial colour separated glass
recovery. In 2023, in partnership with SeveBoard, EcoCentral will undertake a trial of Tetra-pak container returns at the
RRC. The organisation has also extended acceptance of clothing to all three RRCs and expanded the clothing range at

the EcoShop.

Reflecting the significance of Te Whakaraupo/Lyttelton Harbour area, LPC 15 continuing to demonstrate its commitment
to acting as a guardian of the local environment, in partnership with the local commmunity,

LPC partnered with Kaikéura Ocean Research Institute to cornplete its annual penguin survey to identify existing and

new penguin nesting sites, Mesting season is a particularly vulnerable time for the White-flippered Penguin/Marara, which
is found only in Cantarbury, LPC's Environment team works hard to protect them against predators and keep Port activities
away from their nesting sites. The organisation alzo lsunched its predator control work around the Port with pest traps
now installed in the Battery Point area.

Spanning 54 hectares, the Waimakariri Upstream Berm Transitien Project is a three-year, native restoration and
enhancement project Citycare Proparty is currently undertaking on behalf of Envirgnment Canterbury (ECan). The project
iz designed to improve biediversity within the catchment area through a staged programme of pest weed control, access
clearing and planting of more than 12 000 native plants - with the objective of retaining, supplermenting and increasing
the existing native plant population.

Orion has signed a 35-year native forestry carbon sharing agreement with Wairewa Ranunga based near Little River,

The agreement is to recloak and restore arcund 280 hectares of native forest over the next 10 years. Orion will plant over
350,000 trees and the forest will sequester around 75,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide. While the partnership iz primarily
driven by carban sequestration, there will be many co-benefits such as improved biadiversity, supparting local jobs, helping
prevent soil erosion and improving the water quality flowing into the beaches of Turnbledown Bay and Magnet Bay

Citycare Property's Open Spaces Maintenance (O5M) staff have adapted the use of steam asz an envirenmentally friendly
and effective waed control method.

Citycara Property has two specially-equipped thermal weed contral trucks = part of the O5M contract for Christchureh City
Council - that are used for controlling weeds growing on footpaths and in gutters. As well az being used for thermal weed
control, the same equipment can also be used to steam-clean playground equiprment and te remove graffiti, giving Citycare
Proparty an array of oplions when it comes to enviranmentally friendly measures for maintaining community assets
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GROUP STRUCTURE

Christchurch
City Holdings
Limited

Citycare s>
Group "-.‘.:

Christchurch City Holdings Ltd (CCHL) is the commercial and investment arm of Christchurch City
Council (Council). It was incorporated on 12 May 1993 to act as the holding company for the
Council’s commercial investments. As a result, it is a council controlled organisation under the Local
Government Act 2002

The company is responsible for managing the Council's investment in eight fully or partly-owned trading companies — Orion
MNew Zealand Ltd, Christchurch International Airport Ltd, Lyttelton Port Company Ltd. Enable Services Lid, City Care Ltd, RBL
Property Ltd, EcoCenfral Ltd and Development Christchurch Ltd. Six of these are 100% owned, the other two are majority
owned by CCHL, being Orion (10.725% owned by Selwyn District Council) and Chrisichurch International Airport {25% owned
by the Crown).
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

UNAUDITED INTERIM
CONDENSED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These interim condensed financial statements are for Christchurch Cify Holdings Group (Group) and
Christchurch City Holdings Limited (Parent). The Group comprises Christchurch City Holdings Ltd
and the entities over which it has control or joint control.

Christchurch City Holdings Ltd is registered in New Zealand under the Companies Act 1993. The directors are
responsible for ensuring that the Group and Parent interim condensed financial statements present fairly in all material
respects:

- the financial position as at 31 December 2022, and

» the financial performance and cash flows for the six month period ended 31 December 2022

The directors consider that the interim condensed financial statements of the Group and Parent have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgments and estimates, and
comply with New Zealand equivalent to International Accounting Standard N2 |AS 34 as appropriate for profit-oriented
entities.

The directors consider that proper accounting records have been kept, which enable, with reasonable accuracy, the
determination of the financial position of the Group and Parent.

The directors have pleasure in presenting the interim condensed financial statements of the Group and Parent for the
six months ended 31 December 2022.

The Board of Directors of Christchurch City Holdings Limited authorises these financial statements for issue on 28
February 2023.

For and on behalf of the Board.

Ao == s B

Alex Skinner Mike Rondel
Interim Chair Director
Christchurch Christchurch

28 February 2023 28 February 2023
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2022

Non-current assets

Invesiment in subsidiaries - - - 3,330,543 3,182,411 3,330,543
Property, plant and equipment 4,127,962 3,776,096 4,062,088 196 219 208
Invesiment property 735,734 871,977 T22 763 - - -
Advances 1o subsidiaries - - - 550,400 444,400 444 400
Loans and ather financial assets 111,045 38,114 84,689 49,323 27,389 41,529
Infangible assets 93,440 26.921 24,963 - - -
Debtors, inventory and other assets 15,305 21.840 13,426 - - -
Right of use assets 32,180 36.925 31,049 axr M 381
Finance lease receivable 36,669 3|02 38,200 - - -
Total nen-current assets 5,152,335 4609785 4,978 363 3,930,789 3,654,810 3,817,041

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0442 183,727 64,859 27,600 125,048 9,400
Debtors, inventory and other assels 158,754 121,155 142,957 2862 1,333 a72
Caontract assets 37,256 26412 4,302 - - -
Finance lease receivable 2,363 2.233 3,460 . .
Advances lo subsidiarias = = = = 10,000 10,000
Loans and other financial assats 9323 9.010 18,290 774 - 7.000
MNon-current assets held for sale - 866 10,051 - -

Current tax asset = 7.500 8,834 = -

Total current assets 278,168 350,903 273,853 3,236 136,381 27,372
Total assets 3 5,430,503 4,960,688 525221 3,962,025 3,791,191 3,844,413

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings: 9 1,600,965 1679919  1.388601 356484 911,938 708,385
MNet deferred tax lizbilities 435,182 374,325 420,959 - - -
Provisions and other lizbilities 21,858 29188 11,763 - 12,210 3,783
Lease labiites 66,420 69,159 66,248 282 409 351
Total nen-current liabilities 2328454 2152601 1.877,5T1 856,766 824,557 712,559

Current liabilities

Borrowings a 407,000 538,700 758,795 351,000 329,700 425,000
Creditors and ather labilities 165,839 129,080 113 925 6,210 4,532 5,544
Previsions and other llabllitles - 1,364 47573 ] B2 &7
Contract liabilitios 114 6,937 10,891 - -

Lease liabilities 6,793 9,838 B,332 67 -

Current tax liabilities 3.2 - - - - -
Total current liabilities 591,037 665,919 940,516 357,316 334,314 430,631
Total liahilities 3 2,919,491 2,838,520 2,818,087 1,214,082 1,258,871 1,143,190
Net assots 2,511,012 2122168 2,434,134 2,747,943 2,532,320 2,701,223
Equity

Capital and other equity instruments 94,144 04,144 4, 144 94 144 94,144 94,144
Resorves 1,038,836 a17.186  1.023.616 2597698 2410283 2,684,303
Retained sarnings 841,946 835,537 BEE, 738 56,101 27,893 22,776
Parent entity interest 2,074,926 1,746,867 2,004,498 2,747,943 2,532,320 2,701,223
Non-controlling interests 436,066 375,301 420 636 - -

Total equity 251,012 2122168 2,434,134 2,747,943 2,632,320 2,701,223

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these interim financial statements.
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

& months

Operating revenue 696,525 520,610 1,055,651 46,105 41,422 65,588
Other gains 003 2,067 29492 T2a - 158
Total revenue and gains 703,528 522677 1,115,143 46,830 41,422 65,746
Operating and other expanses 501,601 356,082 745 564 2,060 2,125 4 E29

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,

amortisation and impairment 201,927 166,595 368,579 44,770 39,207 61,117
Depreciation, amortisation and impaiment 81,351 77,312 148,364 45 47 a2
Earnings before interest and tax 120,576 89,283 2. 15 44,725 39,250 61,025
Finance income 30T 1,383 2,037 11,486 6,656 14,447
Finance cosls 43,967 35,562 71,976 22.886 16,718 35,301
Met finance costs 40,596 34,178 69,939 11.400 10,063 20,854
Met profit before tax 79,680 55,104 151,276 33,325 20,187 40,171
Imearme Lax expense 24,426 18,752 30,658 . . .
Profit{Loss) after tax from continuing operations 55,254 36,352 120,618 33,325 29,187 40,171
Net ProfitiLoss) after tax 55,254 36,352 120,618 33,325 29,187 40,171
Profit for the period attributable to:
Owners of the parent 48 504 34,151 102,096 33,3256 20,187 40,171
Mon-controding interests 5,660 220 18,522 - - -
55,254 36,352 120,618 33,325 20,187 40,171
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that will not be recycled to profitiloss:
Revaluation of assels {1.183) 4 231,960
Revaluation of carbon amissions units - - 1.035 - - -
ltems that may be recycled to profitlloss in future:
Fair value gains an equity investments - - - - - 148,132
Fair value gains an cash flow hedaes 29670 42 04 118,886 13,3495 16,782 44 669
26,487 43,645 351,883 13,395 18,782 192,801

Imcame tax (expenseyoredit relating to other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 24,050 34,687 283,151 13,395 18,782 192,801
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 70,304 71,039 403,769 46,720 47 969 232972

(4,437) (8,958) (68,732)

Total comprehensive incomae is attributable to:

Cramers of the parent 70,428 63,171 340,302 46,720 47,8963 232,972
Mon-confrodling interests B.ETE 5,868 63,467 - - -
79,304 71,039 403,769 46,720 47,969 232972

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these interim financial statements.
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - GROUP

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

B months

8q

Hedging Retained  holdars o
earming parant

Opening Balance 94,144 981,602 42,014 886738 2004498 420636 2434134 2,052,793 2,051,353
NPAT . . - 49,584 49,504 5,660 55,254 36352 120,618
ﬂﬂ;“’"“hg"s'“ - &7 15,153 5614 20,834 3,216 24,050 34,687 283,151
Dividands paidipayable - . - - . (2,426) (2,426) (1,664)  (21,113)
Issua of shareslother - - - - - - - - 125
Closing Balance 94,144 981,668 5TA67 941,946 2,074926 436,086 2511012 2122168 2,434,134

PARENT

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Opening Balance 94,144  2,565.338 18,965 22776 2701223 . 2.701,223 2,484,351 2,484,351
MPAT - - - 33,325 33.325 - 33,325 29,187 40,171
ﬁt;i;:“"”’”"”"“'”” 13,395 - 13.395 - 13,395 18,762 192,801
Dividends paldipayable . . - . . . . = (16,100)
Closing Balance 94,144 2,565,338 32,360 56,101 2,747,943 - 2,747,943 2,532,320 2,701,223

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these interim financial statements,
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating actlvities

6 monlhs

Dac

12 months

30 Jul

Receipts from customess and olher sources 64,549 525409 1,042,773 . - -
Imberest received 1,948 708 1,907 11,138 6,658 14,447
Dividends received - - - 45,844 41,422 65,588
Payments to suppliers and employees (514, 460) (378,973}  (771.863) (3,718} (2.297) {4,023)
Interest and cther finance costs paid {41,467 [35,2082) {T0,605) (21,882} (16, 760) (34, 258)
Income tax paid (10,380) [14,845) {11,808) - 173 -
Subvention payments - {12,858)
Cthar - a4
Nl cash provided by operaling aclivilies 120,190 9E 207 178224 31,382 28,134 41,754
Cash flows from investing activities
Fayment for imvestment securities {7,000) (2,000} - - -
Procesds from sale of investment securities 6,000 - -
Advances made to external parties - (181} (17} [181)
Amaunts advanced to related parlies = = = (96, 000) - =
Payment for property, plant and equipmant (134.388) (100,779}  (175.567) - 3 (4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 21,060 10,770 B.437 -
Payment for intangible assets {3,058) (285) (6,032} - -
Fayment for acquisition of busineas {70,055) - - - -
Payment for investiment properies (4,704) (10,653) (20,212} -
Payment for investment inta bank depaosits - - (217,000) (193,000)
Proceads from bank deposits maturing - - 205,264 - 186,000
Other - (B20) 5.718 - {288)
Met cash used in imvesting activities (192,141)  (103,748)  (199,391) (86,179} [184) {7.282)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Bomowings 531,008 B15, 368 391,584 386,000 530,000 200,000
Repayment af borrowings (448.178)  (6V4,000)  {332,651) (320,000)  (435,000) (210,000}
Repayment of |sase liabilities {1.872) (3,502} [6.796) - - -
Dividends paid - equity holders - {16,100} - (16,100)
Dividends paid - non-controlling interests {2,428) (1,664) (4,157} - -
Met cash provided by financing activities 77,534 136,222 31,680 76,000 a5,000 (26,100%
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,583 129,381 10,513 11,203 124,010 8,362
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 64, E59 54,346 54,346 16,397 1,038 1,038
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period T0,442 183,727 64,850 27,600 125,048 9,400
The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these interim financial statements.
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Christchurch
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

n REPORTING ENTITY

Christchurch City Holdings Lid (CCHL) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Christchurch City Council, formed for the purpose of holding
investiments in subsidiary trading organisations. The company was incorperated on 12 May 1983, and commenced operations on 14
May 1993

CCHL is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act. The
reporting currency used in the preparation of these financial statements is New Zealand dollars.

CCHL is an issuer for the purposes of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 as its issued debl securities are listed on the New
Zealand Debt Exchange (NZDX)

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements comprise CCHL and its subsidiaries (Group) and CCHL (Parent).
The unaudiled condensed consolidated interim financial statements are for the six manths ended 31 December 2022, The financial

slaternants wera authorised for issue by tha CCHL Board of directors on 28 February 2023, The Board of Directors has the power to
amend the financial statements after issue,

Balance
date

Group Ownership Shareholders

Parent Business
Christchurch City Holdings Ltd Holding Company 100% Christchurch City Council 30 June
Subsidiaries CCHL % NCI Holder NCI %
Orion Mew Zealand Lid Eleciricity metwark 89.275% Sehwyn District Council 10.725% 31 March
Chrislchurch International Airporl Lid Airporl 75.0% Minister of Finance 12.5% 30 June
Minister for State-Owned Entarprises 12.5%

Lyttelton Port Company Ltd Port 100% 30 June
Enable Services Lid Broadband metwork 100%. 30 June
City Care Lid Contracting 100% 30 June
REBL Property Lid Invvestment Property 100% 30 June
EcoCaniral Lid Wasle recycling 100%: 30 June
Devalopment Christchurch Lid Holds land assets and 100%: 30 June

an invesiment in the

Christchurch

Adventura Park
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

E BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Mew Zealand Eguivalent
to International Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting (NZ |1AS 34) as appropnate for profit-oriented entities. The report
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022,

The balance date of all subsidiary companies, ather than Orion Mew Zealand Lid which has a balance date of 31 March, is 30 June.
The interim report therefore includes the results of Orion New Zealand Ltd for the six months ended 30 September 2022, and the
results of all other subsidiaries for the six months ended 31 December 2022,

Section 461(3) of the Financial Markets Conduct Act requires the reporting entity and all its subsidiaries to have the same balance
date. As noted above, Orion Mew Zealand Ltd {Orion) and its subsidiary have a 31 March balance date. CCHL applied for and
received an exemption from this obligation from the Financial Markets Authority until 27 August 2023,

The accounting policies as published in the annual repor for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been consistently applied in
determining the earmings and cash flows for the six months ended 31 December 2022, and the financial position as at that date,

S:'gniﬁcant changes dun’ng the j.‘.'E'ﬂOd,'

Pandemic recovery

The Group's business operations that were praviously impacted by the pandemic have largely retumed to pre-pandemic levels. In
particular, CIAL has benefitted from the strong recavery of the tourism sector,

Spencer Henshaw acquisition

During the penod, Citycare acquired 100% of the total shares of the Spencer Henshaw Group of companies (SH Group), consisting of
Spencer Henshaw Lid, SW Scaffolding Litd and Panmure Property Holdings Ltd, for an Enterprise Value of $71m, including $6.8m
held in escrow in relation to warrant issues, and $3m of contingent consideration.

The Spencer Henshaw Group provides a full range of property repair, maintenance and upgrade services to governmeant and
commercial organisations.

The acquisition gives Citycare a strong market position in the Social Housing sector, which is a segment within Citycare Property's
Social Infrastructure strategy. Citycare’'s acquisition of SH Group will support it to re-engage with the social housing sector by
leveraging SH Group's experience and capability in this area. SH Group is aligned to Citycare's core values by demonstrating care for
people and communities, and being a leading NZ-owned facilities maintenance service provider.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

B SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the CCHL Group have been identified in accordance with NZ IFRS 8, Operating Segments. The Group's
operating segments are identified on the basis of the nine significantly different businesses whose individual operating results are
received on a quarterly basis by the Group chief operating decizion maker (CCHL Board) to assess and monitor performance. The
Group's operating segments are unchanged since the last annual repaort.

The nine reportable segments are as follows:

i) Orion Mew Zealand Ltd (Orion) — owns and operates the electricity distribution network in Christchurch and
central Canterbury.

il)  Christchurch International Airport Ltd (CIAL) — provides airport facilities and services to airline and airport
users at Christchurch Intermational Airport, holds investment property (land and buildings) from which it generates
rental income.

1iil}  Lyttelton Port Company Ltd (LPC) - primarily involved in providing and managing port services and cargo
handling facilities aver three sites in the Canterbury region.

iv] Enable Services Ltd (Enable) — owns and operates the ultra-fast broadband fibre network across greater
Chrigtchurch and parts of Waimakariri and Selwyn Districts.

v} City Care Ltd (Citycare) — provides construction, maintenance and management services for water and property
infrastructure sectors throughout New Zealand.

vi}  RBL Property Ltd (REL Property) - holds investment property (land and buildings) since 7 December 2020
fram which it generates rental income, and previously provided transport services in the urban bus sector
primarily in the Canterbury region.

vil) EcoCentral Ltd (EcoCentral) — manages the processing of refuse and sorting of recycling throughout
Canterbury.

viil) Development Christchurch Ltd (DCL) — holds land assets to enable development projects and acthaties for
Christchurch City and an equity share in Christchurch Adventure Park.

ix)  Christchurch City Holdings Ltd (Parent) — does not trade in its own right, its primary assels are its investments
in and advances o its operating subsidianes.

Major customers:

Revenue from Christchurch City Council amounted to $50 million (December 2021: $53 million) mainly from sales by Citycare,
EcaCentral and Orion (refer to note 11). All group assets are domiciled and operated in New Zealand. The Group's revenue from
external custamers by geographical location are not allocated to operating segments as they are not reported at a Group level.

Segment reporting explanation:

1 Revenue from external customers reflects the revenue of each separate segment excluding revenue earmed from
other group entities.

2 Segment profit{loss) represents the actual profitloss) of each segment

3 Parent Total non-current assets and Total assets includes advances to subsidiaries and the investments held in
subsidiaries which have been measured at fair value as at 30 June 2022 par independent valuations completed
by Delvitte. Thase have been eliminated on consolidation and recognised in ‘Other’.

4 Capital expenditure and investments in Parent relates to equity investments in subsidiaries. These have been
eliminated on consolidation and recognised in "Other’.

5  Intra-group transactions between segments have been eliminated on consolidation and recognised in ‘Other’,
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

3. Segment information

RBL Eco
Parent Crion CIAL LPC Citycare  Property  Central
$'000 5000 £'000 5'000 $'000 £'000 000
For the six months ended 31 December 2022 {unaudited)
Sagmant revanus 46,105 171,164 96337 81,033 52,936  266.963 398 22,844 2 650 (53,905} 696,625
Inler-segment ravens (46.105) 2,997} - 15} {4) (4.262) {232) 12B0) 53 905
B TG = 166,167 96,337 81,028 52,832 262681 3498 22,8612 2370 = 696,525
CUBlDMEns
Interast income 11466 17 128 T05 238 301 22 111 237 (10,176} 3,071
Irleresl sxpangs 22 BEB 7,138 14 637 2,090 6,152 1,165 = 72 = (10,176} 43,867
Depreciation and \ \ " n -
1 4 4, TET, 1 1 1,361
amartsalion (45) (26,679} 121.449) (B420)  (14,284) {5.7TBT) (2,501) (1B6) {81,361)
Met realizations,
revaluations and 725 m 51 5 5.823 8 - T.003
impairments
Taxation expense . (6,089} {6.247) (3,960 (5,836) (1.717) (78] (503) E (24,426)
f S
e 33,326 15,122 18062 12116 13764 9211 195 1310 (B) (45843} 55254
aperations
Profit{lass) fram . ~ - ~ ~ ~
discontinued operations
Segment profitiloss) 33325 15122 16,062 12,118 13,764 2,211 195 1,310 (8) [45,843) 55,254
Total non-current assats
{excluding derivalives 3,803,710 1436572 2112699 GEE2IE 741075 108491 17,000 22,225 16,627 (367G 545) 5063669
and deferred tax)
Total assats 3962026 1522886 2162108 663647  TH4411 191 638 15,043 35,883 32142 (3.923.280) 5430.503
Total liabslities 1,214,082 726,510 755508  ETO442 306,800 120,181 153 23,757 2,104 (580,226) 2819481
TR > o8, 494 21,542 23467 = 4 384 5,778 = 114 475
asgels

RBL Eco
Parent Orion ClAL LFC Enable Citycare Property Central Other
£'onn 5000 000 5'000 7000 $'oon 5000 $000 5000
For the six months ended 31 Decembaer 2021 (unaudited)
Segment revenues 41,422 156,219 66,512 52,963 46,963 143,321 344 22,364 EREN (46,695 5200610
Inler-segment rewene {41422 {606} (3400 {24} {3.B25) - {188} (260) 46,695 -
ff:fj’:::"m satamal 157,613 66172 B2963 46333 139.496 344 22186 4917 520,610
Inlerasl income 6,656 = 14 653 ki3 an 4 17 22 16,157} 1,363
Intarast expansa 16,718 5,894 11.686 1,737 5,461 220 - - 16,157} 35,562
Depreciation and . ’ "
amortisation 47 (27,226} (21.139) (T.7a9) (13335 (5412) 12,147 (16T) 77.312)
Mat realisations,
revvalyaliore and - 2,050 s 12 2 0BT
MpAIrnenls
Taxation axpense - 17711} 116) [4,7496) (4,433 1616) {629) 1556) 1 {18.752)
Profl from continuing 29187 20,563 A 1zadl 124 1.582 (I86) 1616 1576 (41412 36352
aperations '
Profiti{loss) from ) ~ .
discontinued oparafions
Segment profitiloss) 29,187 20,563 41 12,441 11,124 1,582 |366) 1,616 1,576 (41,412) 36,352
Total non-current assels
{excluding derivatives 3659218 12658601 1,951.581 LETEE3 V26,006 51,374 16,210 12,821 17,017 (3634412 4,593.470
and defarrad tax)
Tolal assels 379,191 1.319158  1,974.496 590373 761,388 128,971 19,814 23,832 29,748 (LETE284) 4,360 GEE
Total liabilites 1,258,671 628,172 TE2.087 226,850 388,880 65,357 1,861 10,818 1.664 (507,030} 2838520
Addilians to non-current - 43280 11972 B084 4981 7846 2932 59,192

a58818
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For the six months ended 31 December 2022

3. Segment information

Parent

Orien
5

ClAL
3000

Citycare

3000

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RBL
Property
5000

Eco
Central
§'000

For the year ended 30 June 2022 [audited)
Sagment ravenue 65,588 313,015 138,807 161,698 84,590 308,242 7 43 462 5817 (76,3400 1,065 651
Ilir-aegment revenye (65,568) [1,481) [266) 1) 1a3) _ (B.432) z (an7) [112) 76,340 =
[OEGETET 111,524 138,541 161686 04,547 299,810 771 43,085 5,705 1,085,651
AR lTI B S
Ilerest moome Th,ad7 3 &0 126 210 272 T4 B9 103 [13,269] 2,037
Inferes! expense (36,301} {12.113) 124, 445) {1.736) (11,068} 43%) (204} - 13,329 (71,5976)
Depreciation and .

7 14 7 1 4
e 92} {55,376) (35,845  (14.834) (27,350)  (10,908) |4,385) (341 7 (148, 364)
Ml realisations.
rewaluations and - a2 47,340 ar 10 3,052 625 250 4,707 56,113
impairmsnts.
Taxalion expanse {12.984) 2.04% {7978 (B,897} (1,738) (5B 1911} (1,288} 1,162 (30, 658)
Segment profitfiloss) 40,171 35,139 58,765 18,775 22,504 3,714 462 2,335 3,258 (64, 505) 120,618
Total non-current Sssels
(excluding derivatives ATATETE 1406331 2113444 550622 T3Z638 40,045 17.002 18,149 165,804  (3.774,163) 4917545
and dafarred tax)
Tolal assels 3644413 1483500 7148601 621451 751483 135203 18651 30074 51,035 (3.814,388) 5752 221
Talal liabillies 1,143,190 G20 BED 74,119 243804 391,569 73,047 i) 17 410 1,231 (507.233) 2,818,087
:::E'l‘t':”‘ e nan-currant 2 94113 24579 54514  GBS08 6449 10,341 135 {2} 259,639
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

REVENUE

4a Disaggregation of revenue
Orion CIAL Enable Citycare  Property DCL Intragroup
$'000 $'000 5000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

For the six months ended 31 December 2022 {unaudited)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Electricity Distribution 120,424 - - {3,001) 117 423
Airporl Services - 47 6597 - - - 47 6T
Part Sarvices - - a4 581 - - - B9 581
Gross

talecommunications - - 49,652 - 4 49,548
LEVENUE

Construction contract - B 50,721 50,721
Jevenue

Conlracling 32,207 - 211,601 {4.282) 239,526
Wasle and recycling _ . R . B . . (232) 18,149
services

Sale of goods 8,068 - 1,623 4,641 2,650 {281) 20,965
Total revenue from

contracts with 161,689 47,697 89,581 51,275 266,963 2,650 (7,800) 634,710
Lustemers

Other operating revenue

Ranl and Leasa incomea = 17,608 1,452 = = 19,061
Rantal Income from B 23471 R B 108 B 23,868
Invesiment property

Othver 2,475 7,560 = 1,661 = = 18,885
Total other operating 9475 48,640 1,452 1,661 - 398 . - 61815
JeVenue.

Segment revenue 171,164 96,337 1,033 52,936 266,963 398 2,650 {7,800) 606,525
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

4, Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers

six months ended 31

Orion
£'000
December

Enable
$'000

Citycare

£'000

REL
Property
$'000

Eco
Central

£'000

DcL
$'oo0

Intragroup
£'000

Electricity Distribution 120,358 - - - - - (606} 120,382
Airport Services 34 B53 - - - - - - 34,853
Port Services - 81,563 - - - - 81,563
Gross
telacommunications - 43,881 - - - (24) 43 85T
E\-enue )

onstruction contract 41133 41133
rsvanue
Coniracting 26,048 - - 98,203 - - - {3,825) 120426
Wasf‘e and recycling - 21,139 {198) 20,941
sarvices
Sala of goods 6,827 - 1,429 3,985 - ald 2,343 (Z2B1) 15,247
Total revenue from
contracts with 153,863 34,853 81,563 45,310 143,321 - 22,083 2,343 14,934) 478,402
Qther operating revenue
Rent and Leass income 14 650 1,400 - - 344 - 334 - 16.733
.Ram.a.l Income from 12.040 j (338} 11701
investmenl properiy
Other 4,356 4,969 1,653 - - 281 2,515 13,774
Total other operating

4,356 31,659 1,400 1,653 - 344 281 2,854 {329) 42,208
Jeveius
Segment revenue 158,219 66,512 52,963 46,063 143,321 344 22,364 5197 (5,273} 520,610
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

4, Revenue

RBL Eco

Orion ClAL : Enable Citycare Property Central DCL Intragroup
$'000 $°000 §°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $000 $'000

Far the year ended 30 June 2022 (audited)

Revenue from contracts with customars

Electricity Distribution 230,365 - - - - - - - (1.491) 228,874
Airport Services - 54,909 - - - - - - - 54,909
Port Services = = 161,699 - = = = = {1} 161,608
Grmoss
telecommunications - - - a8 478 - - - - (43) 88,435
C truct ract

QNSLrUCtion contra 101,324 i i i i 101,324
revenus
Caontracting 53,626 - - - 197,298 - - - (8.432) 242,492
Waste and recycling 35,351 . {407} 34,944
SBnVices
Sale of goods 12.961 - - 3,185 7.736 - 7.778 4,505 - 36,575
Total revenue from
contracts with 296,952 54,999 161,699 1,673 306,358 - 43,128 4,905 (10,374) 948,341
Lustomars
Other operating revenue
Rent and Lease incoma 468 14,640 - - - 761 - B659 [378) 16,150
Rental income from
investment propary 41,699 - - . - ) ) i} 41,699
Other 15.585 27 469 - 2917 1.884 10 333 253 - 48,461
e aaTICER AT 16,063 83,808 - 2,417 1,884 ™ 333 812 [378) 106,310
Io¥enug
Segment revenue 313,015 138,807 161,699 94,590 308,242 m 43,462 5,817 (10,752) 1,055,651
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD WITH OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Profit for the period 55,254 36,352 120,618 33,325 28,187 40,171

Addi{less) non-cash items

Depreciation, amoisation and impairment 81,351 TTaz 148 364 11 a7 az
(Gainsosses in fair value of investment property - - (468,154) - - -
{Gains)osses in fair value of biological assets {&) (12) - - - -
fi?:::::?:es in fair value of desivative financial (4.472) (20501 (2.124) (725) . 77
Met forgign exchange (gains Mlosses - - 18 = - -
Deferrad tax charged!{credited) to incoma 4 738 2084 2,380 - - -
Intarnal labour allocated to PPE & Intangibles - - 5674 = - -
CIP loan fair value adjusiment - - - = - 20
Other (4.695) 12.532) (6.100) = 21 1333)
80,262 4812 100,058 (714) ] 237

Addiless) items classified as investing or financial

activitios
(Gain)foss on disposal of non-current assets (5,828) 12.179) {7,285) - - -
Mowement in capital creditors/{debtors) (1,598) 10,640 {407) - - -
Other (40) 131 {2,501) - - -
(7.464) 8592 {10,203) - - =
Addi{less) movement in working capital items
Debtors, inventory and other current asaets {19,847 {7.00&) (d4,614) [1.888) (488) {128)
Mon-current receivables, prepayments and other (1.879) 290 9,379 - - -
Creditors and other liabilities 9,037 (36,738) £33 GE0 459 1,468
Contract liabiliies (2,777 (432) 3,522 - - -
Provisions and other liabilities 518 32 062 {O63) - - B
Current tax liahbilities 3.281 - - - - -
Other current liabilities (9,290) (11,464) = - (31) -
Mon-current provisions and other liabilities 13,084 (2B3) {411) - - -
Met changes in net asseis and liabiliies (7.862) (22 549 (32,2459) 1.224) (61) 1,346
Mei cash from operating aclivities 120,190 98 07 178,224 31,382 20,194 41,754
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

ﬂ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclesed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

31 December 2022

Fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets. Quoted market price represents the fair value
determined based on guoted market prices in active markets as at the reporting date without any deduction for

fransaction costs.

Fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices). Financial instruments that use
valuation technigues with only cbservable markef inputs include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange

contracts not traded on a recognised exchange.

Fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. The
fair values of unlisted investments that do not have an active market are based on market data that is not

observable,

unaudited)

£'000

Financial assets measured at fair value

Imvestmeants in
subsidiaries
Dertvative financial
instruments

USD loan

80,191 10,606 79,585

22,244 - 22,244
112,435 10,606 101,829

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Dervative financial
instruments

Met assets/ (liabilities)
at fair value

3,588 - 3,589
3,500 - 3,500

108,836 10,606 98,230

Leved 1 Level 2

Lewel 3

5000

3,230,543

27,853

22 244
3,380,640

3,380,640

27,853

22,244
50,097

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed

Fixed Interast borrowings
Fixed Rate Loans from
CCC, maturing < 1 year
Fixed Rate Loans from
CCC, maturing 1-2 years
Fixed Rata Loans from
CCC, maturing 2-5 years
Fixed Rate Loans from
CCC, maturing > 5 years

527,592 284758 242,834

70,749 - 70,749
43,067 = 49,057
21,261 - 21,261
25,300 - 25,300

603,950 284758 409,201

541,859

70,000

49,000

21,000

30,000

711,850

284,758

¥0,749

43,067

21,261

25,300

451,125

284,758

70,749

48,057

21,261

25,300

166,367

295,284

0,000

49,000

21,000

30,000

465,284
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

6. Financial instruments

31 December 2021 (unaudited)

12

5'000

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments in subsidiarie - - - 3,182,411 - - 3182411
Derivative fi ial
ervative financia 16,316 16,316 5,591 5,501 .
instrurnsents
USD loan 21,798 - 21,788 21,798 - 21,798 -
38,114 - 38,114 3,209,800 - 27,388 3182411
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
beans fram Extemal 25,123 . 25123 12,210 - dzzio .
parties
25123 - 25,123 12,210 - 12,210 -
Net assts! (liabilities) 12,991 - 1299 3,197,590 - 15179 3,182,411

at fair value

Fair value

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed

Fixed Interest borrowings 613,521 457 430 156,081 601,819 457,430 457 430 - 450,438
E'é“cd :’::11:::;'15 1"':;; 9,968 - 9,988 10,000 9,088 - 9,988 - 10,000
Eié? :Z:ir&:;m; :gm 62,568 - 62,668 £0,000 62,668 62,688 - 60,000
N :aa:ir';::’f_:::;m 57,132 - sTam 54,500 57,132 - s - 54500
E‘é“cd ::‘:1:::'15;';;5 44,795 - 44705 45 500 44,795 - 44705 - 45500
788,124 457430 330,604 771,818 632,033 457,430 174,603 - 620,438
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

6. Financial instruments

30 June 2022 (audited)

Fair value (UE Level 2

$'000

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in

Fair value

000

el 1

5000

subsidiaries 3,330,543 3,330,543
!Jcml'alwc flinancial 83,230 B 83,230 R R B _ B
ingtruments
USD loan 22 (66 - 22 066 22,066 22,066 -
85,296 - 85,206 - 3,352,609 - 22,066 3,330,543
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Darivative financial
" 7.182 - 7,182 - 3818 - 3819 -
7,182 - 71862 - 3,819 - 3,819 -
MNet a_isauts.r (liabilities) 78,414 . 78,114 . 3,348,790 - 18,247 3,330,543
at fair value

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed

Fixed Interest borrowings 537,333 430415 47 918 - EG0,000 439415 430,415 - - 450,000
Fiwed Rate Loans from
T e s 70,743 - 70,749 - 70,000 70,743 - 70,749 - 70,000
Fixed Rate Loans from

8,500 - 8,900 - 9,000 8,590 - 8,900 - 9,000
COC, matering 1-2 years
Fixed Rate Loans fram

1, - 1, 1, 1, 1, 1,
CCC, maturing 2.5 years 61,328 61,328 61,000 61,328 61,328 1,000
PECAGEID Lo 25,200 - 25300 - 30,000 25,300 - 25300 - 30,000
CCC, matwring > 5 years

703,700 439,415 264,285 - 720,000 605,782 439,415 186,367 - 620,000

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels dunng either the current or prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

SHARE CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

& months & montha 12 manths

Fully paid ordinary shares 894,143 84,143 94,143
Partly paid redeemable preference shares 1 1 1

94,144 ad,144 4,144
Dividends declared on fully paid ordinary shares - - 16,100
Cents per share - - 33

There were no movements in shares during the reporting period. CCHL has on issue:

« 48,090,528 (December 2021: 48,090,528) fully paid ordinary shares to Christchurch City Council, carrying one vote per share and
the right to dividends.

« $1,500,139,000 (December 2021: $1,500,138,000) of redeemable preference shares, paid up to $1,390, to Christchurch City
Council. Mo further calls have been made on these shares. Dividends are only payable to the extent that the shares are paid up.
CCHL may elect to redeem the whole or any part of the shares. The shares do not carry any right to conversien into ordinary shares
in CCHL. The shares have no par value.

IMPACT OF SEASONALITY

There were no material cyclical impacts on the Group during the period.

n BORROWINGS

Unsecured:
Commaercial Paper 145,000 170,000 -
Bonds and floating rate notes B16,853 E26.819 970113
Loans from external parties 613,926 BTE,600 672,238
Loans from related entities 632,200 538,200 486 200
2,207,985 2209618 2,128,601
Secured:
Loan from extermnal paries - 3,000 785
9,000 195
Tatal current group borrowings 407,000 538,700 759,195
Total non currant group borrowings 1,800,985 1,679,919 1,369 601
Total group borrowings 2,207,985 2,218,619 2,129,396
COHL Imterim Repart 2023 B3
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

9. Borrowings

Christchurch City Holdings Ltd

Nature of Borrowings
Commercial Paper

Fixed Rate Bond (face value)
Floating Rate Notes

Related Parly Funding - Current
Related Parly Funding - Non-current

Tatal Related Party Funding

Undrawn Bank Facility

Orion New Zealan
Nature of Borrowings
Bank Loans

US Private Placement floating rate notes

Urnidrawn bank facllity

Christchurch Internaticnal Airport Ltd

Mature of Borrowings

Eank facilty

Fixed Rate Bond (face value)
Unidrawn bank facility

Lyttelton Port Company Lid
Mature of Borrowings
Bank and overdraft faciliies

Undrawn bank facility

Enable Services Ltd
Nature of Barrowings
Bank facility

City Care Lic

Nature of Borrowings
Unidramn bank facility

HAwg rate - Maturity
4.63%; Jan23 to May23
3.30%; Novad o Novag
4.72%; Apr23 ta Jun2h

5.15%; Apr23 to Oci23
4.64%; Aprad 1o Sepdz

nia

Awvg rate - Maturity
4.26%; Nov2ZE io Dec2d
4.38%; Sep28 io Sepld

Newa2

Avg rate - Maturity
d.d%; May23 to Mov27
5.01%; May24 to May28
Dec2d to Juldé

Avg rate - Maturity
5.31%:; Jul25 to Jul26
n'a

Avg rate - Maturity
1.37%; Dec24

Avg rate - Maturity
nia

145,000
300,000
136,000

166,000
466,200

632,200

100,000

250,000
140,000
56,000

211,000
250,000
64,000

51,000
74,000

1.926

10.000

170,000 65,000
450,000 450,000
85,000 135,000

159,700 170,000
376,500 316,200
536,200 486,200

100,000 100,000

243 600 268,500

140,000 140,000
41,400
433,000 323,000

150,000 250,000
67,000 127,000

9,000 15,000
117,000 110,000
15,000 10,300
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

m SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

10a Capital Commitments

Praoperly, plant & eguipmant 43,580 51,195 58,224
Eleciricity distribuficn network 78,152 27,068 72,685
Investment Property 11,359 8,086 1,693
Intangible assets - 244 245

133,081 BE.GO3 134 047

10b Additions of Non current assets

Additions

114,475 99,192 258,639

The additions of property, plant and equipment reflect the capital programmes of Orion, LPC and CIAL

10c Contingent liabilites and assets

Citycare's performance bond facilities increased from $11.4m at 30 June 2022 to $14.5m at 31 December 2022, All other contingent
liabilities and assets of the Group as disclosed in note 20 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 are materially the
same as atl 31 December 2022

CCHL Imterim Report 2023 55
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 31 December 2022

m RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

G months 12 months 6 months 6 months 12 months

30 Jun 22 3 2 3 30 Jum 22

Transactions between CCHL group entities and
Christchurch City Council (CCC)

Dividends paid/payable to CCC - - 16,100 - - 16100
Interest paid to CCC 9,663 5,762 12,789 9,663 5,762 12,789
Services provided to CCC B0,342 £3.281 111,146 42 - -
Services provided by GCG (including rent and rates) 8.107 10,286 18,302 - 36 B0

m EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

There were no significant events subsequent to balance date requiring disclosure up to the date of authensation of these financial
statements.

568 CCHL Interim Report 2023

Item No.: 14

Page 291

Item 14

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch
22 March 2023 City Council ==

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Investor Centre

CCHL's website, www.cchl.co.nz, enables Bondholders to view information about the Group, including Sals, annual reports for CCHL
and its subsidianes and announcements.

Bondholder Interest Payments

Interest is paid semi-annually on each bond, based on its maturty date, until redemption.

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services Limited is the registrar with responsibility for administering and maintaining the Bond Register.
Computershare can be contacted directly:

Computershare Investor Services Limited
Private Bag 92119

Auckland 1142

Level 2, 159 Hurstmere Road

Takapuna

Auckland 0622

Telephone +64 0 488 8777

Email enquiry@computershare.co.nz

Managing your Bondholding online

To view and update your bondholder details please visit www.investorcentre.cominz.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 31 December 2022

Bondholder Distribution and Holdings

In line with clause 3.7.1 of the NZX listing rules, the following table details the spread of bondholders as at 31 December 2022 (lotal
Bonds on issue):

Holders
1 1o 4,989 0
5,000 1o 9,998 24
10,000 Lo 49,939 163
50,000 to 99,999 20
100,000 to 498,999 25
500,000 to 9948 999 g
1,000,000 and over 33
Total 273

Total Bonds on issue

Rank

-

[CR - RENRE. W S Y

20

Name

BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES (MZ) LIMITED - NZCSD <BPSS40=

ANZ BANK NEW ZEALAND LIMITED - NZCSD <NBNZ40=-

WESTPAC NEW ZEALAND LIMITED - NZCSD

MATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED - NZCSD <NNLZ90=

BNF PARIBAS NOMINEES (M2} LIMITED - NZCSD <COGNAC=

CUSTODIAL SERVICES LIMITED <A/C 4

ANZ FIXED INTEREST FUND - NZCSD <PNLI0>

HSBC NOMIMNEES (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED - NZCSD <HKBMA=-

FNZ CUSTODIANS LIMITED

CITIBANK NOMINEES (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED - NZCSD <CNOMAD=

ANZ WHOLESALE NZ FIXED INTEREST FUND - NZCSD

TEA CUSTODIANS LIMITED CLIENT PROPERTY TRUST ACCOUNT - NZCSD
=TEACAD>

FORSYTH BARR CUSTODIANS LIMITED <1-CUSTODY=>

JEWERE (NZ) NOMINEES LIMITED =NR USA A/C=

COMMONWEALTH BANK OF AUSTRALIA - NZCSD <CBAANZ=

NZPT CUSTODIANS (GROSVENOR) LIMITED - NZCSD <NZPG40=

NZ LOCAL GOVERNMEMNT FUNDING AGENCY LIMITED - NZCSD <MZCLEAR
LGFA4D=

S0UTHERN CROSS MEDICAL CARE SOCIETY - NZCSD <5CMCA0>
WESTPAC BANKING CORPORATE NZ FINANCIAL MARKETS GROUP -NZCED

<WPACAO=
HEBC NOMINEES [NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED A/C STATE STREET -NZCED
<HKEMN45>

Total Top 20 Helders of Bonds
Total Remaining Holders Balance

58 CCHL Interim Report 2023

Units

[1]

146,000
3,519,000
1,267,000
5,258,000
5,324,000
284,486 000
300,000,000

Units:

35.501,000
25.500,000
25.000,000
23,933,000
18,875,000
16,388,000
14,250,000
14,088,000
12,317,000
42,104,000
10,350,000

10,012,000

8,135 000
6,550,000
6,421,000
6,400,000

5,343,000
4,500,000
4 416,000

2,811,000

263,091,000
36,909,000

0.00
0.05
1.17
0.42
1.75
1.77
9483
100.00

% Units
11.83
8.50
833
T.a8
6,33
546
4.75
4.70
4.1
4,03
345

334

27
2.18
2,14
213
1.78
1.50

147

0.97

87.70
12.30

Item No.: 14

Page 293

Item 14

Attachment A



Finance and Performance Committee
22 March 2023

Christchurch
City Council ==

DIRECTORY

Registered Office

Level 1, 151 Cambridge Terrace
Christchurch

Directors

A M G Skinner (Interim Chair)

C A Evans

B J Bragg (appointed 8 Sep 2022)

M P Rendel (appointed 8 Sep 2022)

5 L Templeton (automatically retired 8
Jan 2023; reappointed 1 Feb 2023)

5 T MacDonald (appointed 1 Feb 2023)
J B Smith (retired 3 Oct 2022)

J T Gough (retired 28 Aug 2022)

L A Dalziel (retired 10 Cct 2022)

A D Turner (retired 1 Fab 2023)

Management

P Silk - Acting Chief Executive
(appointed Sep 2022)

T Boyd - Chief Executive (resigned Sep
2022)

T Rowell - Chief Financial Officer

5 Ballard - Treasurer

Bankers

Westpac Institutional Bank, Auckland
Bank of New Zealand, Christchurch
ANZ New Zealand Ltd, Wellington

Auditor

Audit New Zealand on behalf of the
Auditor-General

Christchurch

Contact Details

Christchurch City Holdings Ltd
Level 1, 151 Cambridge Terrace
P O Box 1151 Christchurch 8140
Telephone: (03) 941 8475

Email: infoi@cehl.co.nz

Website: www.cehl.co.nz

Supervisor

Public Trust

Level 9, 34 Shortland Street
Auckland 1010

Telephone: OB00 371 471

Email: cls.enguirg@publictrust.co.nz

Group contact details

Orion New Zealand Limited
565 Wairakel Rd

PO Box 13886 Christchurch 8141
Telephone: (03} 363 9398

Email: info@oricngroup.co.nz
Wabsile: www.orlongroup.co.nz

Christchurch International Airport Limited
Top floor, Car Park Building, 30 Durey Road
PO Box 14001 Christchurch 8544

Telephone: (03) 358 5029

Wabsite: www.christchurch-alrport.co.nz

Lyttelton Port Company Limited
41 Chapmans Rd, Woolston
Private Bag 501, Lyttelton 8841
Telephone: (03) 328 8198

Waabsile: www.lpc.co.nz

Enable Services Limited

Level 3, 93 Cambridge Terrace
Christchurch 8013

PO Box 9228, Tower Junction, Christchurch
Telephone: (03) 363 2062

Email: supparti@enable.net,nz

Website: www.enablenetworks.co.nz

City Care Limited

110¢c Orchard Road

P O Box 7869 Christchurch
Telephone: (03) 941 7200
Website: www.citycare co.nz

EcoCentral Ltd

Level 1, Baigent Way, Middleton
PO Box 6320, Christchurch
Telephone: (03) 336 0080

Email: admin@ecocentral.co.nz
Website: www.ecocentral.co.nz

RBL Property Ltd

Ci- Christchurch City Holdings Ltd
Level 1, 151 Cambridge Terrace

P © Box 1151 Christchurch 8140
Telephone: (03) 941 8475

Email: info@ecchl.co.nz

Waebsite: wwa.cchl.co.nz

Development Christchurch Ltd
Ci- Christehurch City Heldings Ltd
Level 1, 151 Cambridge Terrace

P © Box 1151 Christchurch 8140
Telephone: (03) 941 8475

Email: info@cchl.co.nz

Waebsite: www.cchl.eo.nz
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. Christchurch
‘ ‘ l. City Holdings
] Limited

Report for Council

Date: 24 February 2023

To: Dawn Baxendale, CEO, Christchurch City Council
From: Toni Rowell, CFO

Subject: CCHL Quarterly Performance Against Sols — Q2 FY23

Background & Purpose
This report provides a summary of quarter-end performance against SOI targets for CCHL Group
entities (including CCHL Parent) for the period ending 31 December 2022 (Q2 FY23).

The summary is in the form of a “dashboard” report for each entity.

Please note that:

e Dashboards should be published on the Council’s website within one month of the date of this
report, in compliance with section 66(5) of the Local Government Act 2002.

e This report (ended 31 December 2022) is the Q2 FY23 report for all entities except Orion, whose
31 March balance date makes this their Q3 FY23 report.

Recommendation
That the Q2 FY23 Quarterly Performance Against SOIs Report be received.

Kot U

Toni Rowell
CFO
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CCHL Parent
Parfarmance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Uneetain

‘Will ot be achieved

Annual Target to be assessed ab year-ond

Firuncial

Quarter Ended 31-Oec-22

20| Measure

i
j

an - Vo

Parent

O i nads (Sm|

D ksl il (5]
Rebwrn on equity (%]

sharahulder funcsotsl st (5]
Mt Prolit After Taw

Rebwrn on nvested capital ()

Mt debt ko ERITE flimes)

Mot debt/net didba plus equity (%)
Intarast cover ftimash

Mevenue growth 3

Te b padd in Jure 2073
Annual measure

Annual measure
AR FE AU

Anraal Figasurg

RS SEFATAIc Alignmant with the Cauncil' SEEATAgC prirites.

Regularky receive a strategic performanoe report detaibng financial, market
arvl perfarmance updates from subsidiaries.

Management meet with cperating subsidiary management regularly to
resiew current performance and strategic focus arcas

Raceivg bissinass plans fram each opevating subsiliany by 31 May sach
year.

Jperabng subsichary Chair ard CEO will meet with COML Board #t least
arnisally

Encourage group parbcipation in Te Whirik, Sustainability Working Grown,
PO Group, CEQ Group, Chers and Awdit Committee Chairs mestings.

CCHL wall consider any recommendaions of the Strategic Review when
arailable.

i
01 M L ntan
Actwe engapement with its sperating subsadissies and s sharchaolder to LOE issuad 1o all subs in Februarg 2003 - noting 30 day extension ta 301

timeline:
Received on time fram all subs

Cuarterly meetings held with all subs

Tracking ta plan - dus 31 May 2003

O track - all subs have miet with CCHL Bosrd inprevicus 12 manths
Good participatian across Grown, through mentar pragramme, steady
incressed uptake inusers on Te Whanki, regulsr SWG meetings and

meetings of CEQ/CFD grogs
Wiark programme now undernway

01

Thie COHL Groug uses the Te Whdriki platfarm in at laast feur projects per
annum to explore, test, pikat, trial or implement new technologies or
minovitne work prachces acrogs the Group.

Miapor matters of urgency are reparied 1o Coundl at the earliass
‘appeartunity urder s e surprises’ palicy within the constramts of
commercial sensitivity and N2X listng requirements.
Matters of material impact ane disclessd i bee with COHL framewark far
cortinuous disclosure.

‘CCHL Group nbpi will listen ta and understand, through inbemial and
external engagement, the expectations of iwi and hapu in the desgn and
nliary af He Huanii Maor CCHL (M Patfveys for COHL)

‘CCHL Group will actrely share learnings and participate in relevant
coenmunity farume sssocated with this mahi.

COHL will estanlish b £ross-company leadership team [CCHL Group ripal Lo
averses the dewelopment a programme of work designed fo accelerate and
=mbad Matauranga Maari, Te &6 Maon, Tikanga Maari ard Te Reo Maon
i ways Uil are sppropriate foe each buseess, The progress of the
pragramims: will be proactively made visible across each entity and the
CCHL Board.

CCHL Group nopil will leverage the capability across the COHL Group 1o
design and swmouts metiatees within a programme of work wehich serves 1o
wnhance gltural understanding sl campetendy,

Camgiketed

O rack - all matbers ciculates a5 "no sungrises” as and when required

Cngaing - in comgliarce

Completed - wader work programme undersay scross Group

Cingoing - part of annual wark programme

Completed and group working together

Pusle
501

CCHL wall encourage and pnable grown collaboration to develop market
lkeading copability development, diversty ard indusian, and talent
mmanagemerl sirategies and palicies.

(CCHL wall continue to suppert and encouwragn the use of Te Whirkd as a
means of developing. leveraging, and shanng buman resources throughout
e Group,

CCHL Group will show active mprovemset in continumg to work towards
wniplamsntieg the lhimg wage for all disect eenployees and all regular and
angoing suppliers, induding investing in traming and staff develogment
BrORFETITETS,

The process followed for each appointment to a subsidiary company board
s transparent, fully documented and in line with approved palizies and
pracedurag.

‘CCHL to pravide input into the Councid’s palicy an the appointment and
rermuneration of direetors — schedubed for review prior bo the 2022 lecal
Biody elections,

(CCHL wall actively promate ard report an board diversity as part of its
appointment process and inchude the process undertaken as part of its
approval of appaintments with Council.

(CCHL wall misn ta craasing our damsity on aur boascs aad report on
ipragress as part of owr annual reporbing to cur shareholder.

LCHL wall encourage s subsidiaries to report on and work to show a
marrowieg of tha gan batwesn 1he Righest ard lnwest ramuanesation in
ach company.

Thi autcames of tha independent baand effectiveness revaw underaken
i late 2021/ early 2022 to be included inthe COHL Strategic Rewiow
findings.

The Chair wll actively monitor and spprose any development
wedguirements far the Beard.

CCHL wall hiold regudar meetings with and provide support ta existing
Assapiate Directons theoughout the programmea,

CCHL wall estabilish an akimel pragrarmnme far all previaus Associate
Dvrectors and Intern Dinectars.

Cngaing

ongaing

Liing wage achimwed, now working o achioue living wage for all regular
ongoing suppliers across the Growp

Gngaing - in comalarce:

Ongaing - in comalarce:

Ongaing - actively manitored and reported inannual report

Cngaing - actively manitared by all subs and reparting has commanced
fram F¥22

Comgieted - pravidad to Norhegion Pannses and considarad when their
final recommendations werne made

CNMBDING - in comgliarde
First workshops for 2022015 AD programme schedule for March 2003

Alumnae event postponed n 2022 to March 2023 due to COVID
rustrickians

01

c A Fan-perlormante

CCHL Groug fand each subsidiang will pubbsh anual indsgendesily
werified GHG Emission MmAEntory accoring to 150 14068 best practice.
CCHL Group {and cach subsidiarg will commit to reduce emissions, shead
ar in alignment with, sckence-hasad reductien targets te limitng warming
1o 1 Bdegrees,

LCHL Group and subsidiary progress inrelabon 1o science-based tagets
'will ha reperied annualy.

CCHL Group {and each subsidiarg) will prepare GHG amissans raductian
managemaent plan, including recommendations to accelerate
decarbonisaton, and 8 tmeline 1o achiewe net sero GHG emisuons.

CCHL Sustanabibly Working Group (SWG) will 1ake & pringipled apprasch
o enadle @ just transiton with respect to our 2030 and 2050 GHG
=missions reducticn targets, which consders smarcnmantal, socisl, and
ELOPHITEE IMpatls

(CCHL Group will smsess and disclose climate change risks, compliant with
Mew fealand Chmate Rk Disclasures reporting standards. Ths will nclude
publishng our first COHL Group Climate Bisk Beport algned wath Fr24.
reparting

CCHL SWG [including Courcll regresentatives) will develop and overses the
pragramme of work imcluding governance oversight ard warkstream
nplementation, simed #1 sicelerating Groug progiess.

CCHL SWG will cantinue to callabarate in programmes, shane learmings and
successes with others, including the wider community. This will be
separted hack ta CCHL Bosrd, includng the impacted LINSDGs.

CCHL SWEG will investigate and adept leading biodiversaty frameworks to
wdentily impacts and dependencess, which could asa21 the Groug 1o
develop a biodiversity inventary, and start developing bicdrersity action
mlan.

The WG Growp will contnbute toward the sistainakility content for an
tegrated reporting iramawerk aver the next W years.

Camgiketed

Actioned - all subsidiaries have published reductions targets in bne with
this measure

Cingoing - part of Annwal and Inkeren reporting

Uriderway, RFP in the market 1o appoint consultant to delver Group plan
by Gl P23

Ongaing - good partcipation and decisions and actions taken by SWG align
to apresd Tol

Wéark i urderwey, howesver in eary stages and further guidance is
expeiled fram KRB - Y24 reporting Larget will be met

Cingoing - work programme established and actively manitored atross
SWG

COngaing - SWE presented to December 2022 CCHL Board messting

Wark 15 urderway, in earky stages {in line with SWG work programme)

Cingoing - good colaborstion with OCHL on the
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Orion New Zealand Ltd Guarter Ended 1.Dec-22

Perlarmance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Uncertain

Will ot be achiesed

Annual Target to be d at year-=nd

Financial

SOH Measure Targst Trathing Comment am nan-perormands

Matwark delvary ravenue 33

Other reverue |Sm] AR

Farnings bafare intarest, tax, deareciation a& amortisations (Sm) 112

Earnings befare interest and tax {Sm] 47.7

Interest axpensa [Sm) 14.5]

cant reasen far this reduction is the additional 53.5m of accauwnting

met profit after tas |$m) i depreciation fallpwing the 5130m revaluation of cur distributian system,
land and biiildings as st 31 Maich 2022, after the setting of our Sol targsts.

Divdends a2

Debit (3] (including Transpower finance leases) 508

Equity [3m) =¥ The revaluation increased equity by 555m.

Equity 1o total assets (%) 40}

et profit after tax [ equity 33

Divadend yield (H) 4.7

Return on ireested capital (3) 4

Qperating mangs (%) 2.7

Dbt to EBTDA (times] 4.1

et gearing (%) 43

interest cover (times) 32

Rewenue growth (%) 6.5

ERITDWA growth [%] (4.3)

Network Reliability

S0 Measure Target Traching = an nan-pe; =

50001 - planmed ELEN

DI - unplarsed B4.71

4401 - total minutes per customer 124 35

SAIF1 — planned 015

Z80F1 — unplanmed 103

SAIF1 - todal purber of intermspticns per custamer 115}

Health & Safety

SO Meassire Target Tracking Comment on nai-performands
There have been three Connetics cable strikes which couldd have led to

Events that did or could have resulted in serious injury Lo Onon Group serious njury. Cannetics has """“?“' its process for warking sraund

employees A or less wndlerground cabbes resulting in an increased u.se of wpdro and air
=xcavation methods to mitigate jobysite spedfic cable strfoe risks.
Conpetics’ Breaking Ground Procedure was updated acoordngly,

Events that did or could have resulted in serious injury to Onion service Ther= has besn one svent this year where an ur-insulated tool was wed

providers while pruning vegetation inside the minimum approach distance (MAD]

4 or bess) This was reported to us by one of our vegetaton contractors. We have
worked with the coniractor to ensure they are aware of the rules ard
required safety procedures in future,

Events that dicd or could have resulted in serious injury To the public, = Mo events
excluding car versus pale incoderts
Re-irmaging the Mituire petwank
S0 Measure Target Tracking = on non-pe; e
Wertar Metening has indicated that it may have data tous by June 2023 but
e are ned confident of this timing. On the plus gde, the combination af
Galn S0CRSs t0 CLEtOMET s smart meter data metar data recatved from ane (arger retallar and L sensars we hawe
deployed, alang with the work we are doing with some other innavalors,
ara gnabling us to make progress in this space
Integrate data from our law voltage network int our Systems Dielays acourring as we lack to establish integratian ints an aparcariate
“madern data plattarm’.
‘Workeng ug a flexibiity trial in Greenpark, near Lincoln. Desigred 1o defer
Trial nan-traditional network soltions rap!tal.ippnd Wr.: are shartly issuing expressions of intarest ta glunl
MNesibility 1o providers, for them Lo use alernate non-netwark salutions 1o
delay natwark build - ag, battary starage ar photovaltale generatian
Customer inspired
SO0 Maasura Target Tracking Comment an nan-pericrmance
The anrual customer percoptsans research exercise is underway and aver
et Promater Soare 0| Thie ext Tasd wiseks, we'll be asking around B00 custonmers what they think

Continue to devedop aur new Custemer Relationshe Management platform
(CRM}

about Driam and ur semdce.

Congent enhancements and Dutage Notilications have been relessed, amd

the Custamer Support team ane achwely processing planned outage

nedifications. Connections is continuing apace with detailed design sessions.

On time & Budget

Item No.: 14

Page 298

Item 14

AttachmentB



Finance and Performance Committee
22 March 2023

Christchurch
City Council ==

Further develap aur customer and caommunity angagement programmed to
pivwe greater vosce 1o our sakehobders” views in aur decigion making

Hudd genuine relatianships with lacal rénanga
Comtinue our community suppeert and align with our Group Strategy

“Bang tha Table" ankne platfarm, is new avallable and is baing used for aur
firs1 public engagement on the Bromley 1o Milten Cable by,

Orien is continuing its engagement threugh He Huanai Maari COHL
Comtinuing 1o Tacus suppart on sctions that support the strategy

Lewd and grow
Target Tracking ‘Comment on non-performance

S0 Measure

Establizh an Energy Hub and Enengy Futures Lab to facilitate sector Energy Hub established st EPIC, Lab focus iz on collaboration for an

collaboration equitable transitioning the region, with reps from 16 organisations
particpating m a workshop which ientified a high appetite far
collaboratian, and next steps to progress thes, We are abse a founding
riemiber of the ¢ress-sector FlaxFarum, whizh was estabished in late 2021,
has gasned significart credibaty and traction including Central Govt co
funding for the nest phase,

Hewiew and enhance the Orion Energy Accelerator programme te mun for a Teams have new been selected for the programme and efficad Day 1 launch

second year with tearns i Twesday 18 October.

Establish a renewable energy service and advisary offerings

Conretics to deliver vew praducts and services

Accabarating

SO0 Measure Target [ an nan-p

Entsance our resmaieration amework Comnpleting Remeration playbook and diversity and indusion activitsas
wndler - prartising Gender Pay Gap. Gender Tick accreditation on track.

Supgort our leaders - Orion Powerful corversations series have been trialed. Develeping a Orion Group
leadershin framewark 034,

Supgert our leadess - Conmetics

Create opporturdties for our people to grow Trialling Learning & Development ramewoek

SUPHOA COHL'S Futline of Actiity initistie ‘Wi hava priontised othar activity ta support whian activity kicks off

Enerey Acadamy to aciaivsaie Industry capability davelopment Energy Academy heve received 5500k ina ressarch and developrent grant
1o dewelop a quest based platfarm far skills exchange. 'Wa have devaloped
partrarshaps wilh Te Pukenga, N20A, MBIE and industry 1o ax perniment wilkh
ricroslgarning and industry designed leaming pathaays. Our comamaunity
programenes, LUKD & LIMOZ64 hawe been well supparted by bath
industry and energy sactar workers. M5S0 have signad an agreament with
Energy Academy Lo be imdted to ow workshops with industry snd have
contributed 350k to the partrership for 3 manths.

Powering the Low Carbon Econamy

SO0 Maasura Target Traching = an 1]

Achieve our carban reduction targets Great progress being made an vehicle fued emissans and fleet emassion
redudtions. Increased air travel Snce COVID restrictions have liled and
some SHa emissions mean the business is tracking abose s FY23 carbon
Brudger

Measure and reduce eur Scape 3 carban emissans Filgt project completed an measurement of embedied carbon ina
substation and 116y overhead feeder, with both projects set up in the
Mcata platfarm to allow future designs te be compared in terms of
emission savings. Six manths of real time data on commuting emissions. has
been collected using the Ecofica app, with incentwes to encourage mode
shift.

Migrate process heat wsers awsy from fossd fuelz 'Woek underway Lo dreamline the pracess heat aplian exploration process.

Plant indigenous forest to affset emissicns 14,ha planted in 21,000 seedlings this planting seascn,

Conretics to establich a robust erironmental managemant system

Preduce Task Force an Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCFD) report .

Dirall reporl progredsng through apgrovals prooeis

Qur key prajects

SO0 Measure Target [ an nan-p

Construit a few Grid Exit Point and zone substation 8t Morwood and
associated BAKY lines

Replace cur end of bfe 11kV switchgear at Heathcote 2one substation with
radern vacuum breakers

Bt and Commission a new Tone substatesn st Miltan Street and conmect it
werth new BEEY ELPE cables to existing GEkY sub-transmission netwark at
Aromley tane

Wi are of Track with this project. the GXP planned 1o be complete in Moy
2023 and the necessary asseciated BakV lines to be completed by March
2024,

‘Wi are on track ta hawe this preject completed by 20 Apnl 2023, This size
and complexity of this site has meant that the delivery will be one manith
Izter than identified in the S01

W are now on Lhe critcal path for delivery and uncerairnty arcund &
confirmed cable route could impact this progect. A% this stage we still
rembin an track o deliver this by 31 March 2024,
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Christchurch International Airport Ltd Guarter Ended 1.Dec-22
Perlarmance against Statement of Intent targets
On track
Uncertain
Will ot be achiesed
Annual Target to be d at year-=nd
Financial
SOH Measure Targst Trathing Comment am nan-perormands
Tatal Revarue 1854 Abicwe Fargcast (1F passerger rastart
ERTOAF 105.5
EBTF B1.7
MPAT 58
ERITDAF [ Revenue 56.9
RolC 37
Dabt Sa5)
Equity 13516
sharehiodder Funds/Tatal Assats % B3 T
Gearing [Debly/Debt + Equity] % 29,65
ERITDAF Inferast Cover x 4.1
Dividends 232
Passenger volumes
SO0 Measure Target Tracking = on nan-pe: =
Dornestic 4,723, 7904 fbowve Farecast Q2 passenger restart
intermational ERER Skl Above Farecast 2 passenger restart
Tatal 5,701,001
Carbon
S Measure Target Tracking Comment an nan-performance
Maintain trand with aur miestons emissions reduction goal of 84% s o Currantly well ahead of soence based targets aut 1o 2035 tranding down
reduction in Scape 1 & 2 by 2035
Demonstrate cantirued responsibility and leader yesfna Work with Hydrogen Cellactive and A1 bast practice
transition
Rinew ACA lavel 44+ oF abowe e S
. . Discussions underway with all airlines aperating at CHC - refer ta
Seek Lo inf 15 kl
eh e inTuenee airpart Seaps 2 emssions e sugtssnability separts and wark with NZ around ydragen snd SAFS
Waste
SO0 Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-perdormance
Imglernent CIAL Waste Minimisation Strategy et i
Create separated waste streams with known destinations e
Undertake waste minimisation projects to recuce emissions el ‘iaste sortation project underway
Energy
S0 Maeasure Target Traching Comment on nan-pericrmance
Red L aility and ruwall 14 clu! Kawha
Mctively puriue energy ransition fram Fossil fuel 1o dean snenggy s, Pa :ﬂn sustainadilicy anel rene ¢ ENETEY Sctvations Incluting Kawhal
i
Make an impact beyend ClAL terminal boundaries s o
Undertake enengy efficiency projects, inclisding LED Rghting s oo Underway
Water
S0 Measure Target T E Comment on non-performance
Beasure, urderstand and undertake Lo conserve water anound terminal and sl
campus "
Moise
SN Measure Target Tracking Comment an nan-peronmands
Musmber of nose complaints per 10,000 sircraft movemants {pa) =10
Successful delivery of updated noise compliance camours Lo Ecan e ) Bodels provided 1o Ecan in December
L { d ki bact CIAL f i
nng. .r:rm and angaing pregram fo pratac Tam nalse reversa yesfno
sensitivity affects
Offers of acoustic mitigation to naiss-impacted properties carrently sligible e/
Land
SO0 Measure Target Trackin = n nan-pe: =
Understand and erhancs our urique drdand habitat e
Undartake campus landscapa planning to celebrate native species and plant i
=T
sucreisian planning =
BAonitor and undarstand bird migratian pattarns to mitigate bird strke s
Inserl Bird strike management areas in the regional and didtrict planning st
frmewark *
Health & Safety
S0 Measure Target T 3 Comment on non-performance
Maintain H3& W score abovae BS% in annual culbure and engagement survay yes/na
CIAL HIEW workplan delivered on schedule s
Annual resicw of SMS and HSMS e
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Incramigntal increase in wallbaing anid work life blend scores in culturs &

e
engagement survey
Deliver Besli=nce Woekshops e
Camminity
S04 Measure Target Traching Comment on nan-periormance
Continued suppart far events for city benefit (ie.. Visitars, reputation, A Has been restricted by Covid seitings and Omicran outbreak more recently
residents| s/ with many events cancelled - now back underway
Re-activate the Community Fursd e Commaunity Fund now back up and running
Senior Leaders participate in and address events and functions, sharing Has been restrictedd by Cowidl settings and Omicron outbreak more recently
mpertize and skills yes/y with many =vents cancelled - now back underway
Sippont |D(a|3f“.:‘ national charitses :IM.'OL‘@ hazting collectians in the yes o} Community Fund naw back up and running
tesmianal and active staff engagement in charity events
Qpen stakelolder engagement & communication via Exec attendance at gl Has beer restricted by Covid settings and Omicron outbreak more recently
ewanis, speeches, etc 'with mamy events cancelled - now back underway
Respectively engage with our local commanities, ivi mana whenua &
stakebalders in respect of CLAL's plars to explore potential for & new alrpart e ol Plan well develoged ard ongoeng
in Central Otago
People
SO Muasuire Target Tracking Commient an nan-performands
Improvemients in leadesship measures in anmual Culiure 8 Engagement yesin
survey
snproved retention of critical future talet yesfna Retention rates currently impacted by tight labaur market and
unsustaanable public s=ctar wage grawth
Design and delivery emenging leadess programme e Unclerway
Embed Future of Work Policy sy Close o completion
Improrvemmends in participation and inclusion measures inanral Culure & e
Engagemsant survey
Embedding of arganisation wide employee value statemerts e
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Lyttelton Port Company Ltd Cpaarter nded Hi-De-22
Performance against Statement of intent targets
On track
Uncertain
Wil oL B i e
Anrusl Tarmet 1o be assesved al year-end
Finamcial
SO M siire Tasget Tracking Comiment o nos. performance:
Reverme (Sm) 17 L
Cperating Marpn 13% 15%
EBIT EE] 175
EBITDA 50 5.8
Mt Prafit aftes Tax (3] L 121
interast Cover Ratic E] Ai
Omdend proposed [Sm) 10 BB Divichered of S6.6m @aid i Octaber
Dt [5m) 290 201 Db wepiec i 1o i s Capital devalogrres conlinues
Equity ELD L
Shareholkder Funds to Total Assets ETH E7.5%
Mat Gaasing 8% 34.3% Percentage will change as debt mcreases
et Dbt 1o ERITOA A6 176 Percentage will change as debd increases
Oiwidend ¥iekd 7% 1.7 Diybetestd OF 56,6 pald i Octobar
Retum on Louty 5N 11%
Return on ewested Capdal 23% 4.5%
Ponply
SO0 Maasure Taget Tracking Comment om non-performance
Dlrvir Culture af Respect Pragrarmme toall Sl ditlivery Qe 22 - i 23 cdue La cperationsl demands. Pragmissing al
[ ) o steady managable pace
Gox-mnthiby reparting on Workplce Culture ;r::—;‘r::j!'tnfrrll publeked in September - rext seternal report e 51
Action Plan implementation progress -
Leadership and development Deliver Leadership Development Duscorery, co-design complebe. Development WIP. Schedubes to kick off
Frogramme March 2023
Gender balance mabe/fermale E5/15 E7/13 As ot Decermiber 2022
Engagement Pubie Surviy conducted par francial yiar - Doty wvd nclusion Pulse Servey conductad in G CED Pulss sy
WP, Ocsed Finh Janusry 23
Health & Safety
501 Measurs Tasget Tracking Camment em nes:perlermance
Reportable injuresfincdents n a
Total Recordable Injury Frequenty Rate <54 a0
Loat - tine injury freguency rate =265 261
Headth and salety inceraction per wear BOO L
Sevwor Leaders Critical Contrel Chiski 500 a7
Infrastructure for the Fubure
501 Measure Tasgert Tracking Communt ea nee-parfermance
Programme delivery - percentage of programme delisered mare than one a0k
ek over cperational requirement
Asset Management Plars deweopssnt and implenentation Cwerall strategy andl plan far cantralised LFC
w61 maragement devaloped
Implemeriation oo developed
Proygeammis with full Sust mrabilty Analyes and Mans 10WrR
Social Capital
501 dmarsure Tarput Tracking Commaint e nes-parfermance
Port Linson Comemittes Meetings pes year =4
FIAG Mietings per year 5
Flanet
SO0 Measure Tasget Tracking Camment om nes: performance
Carbon Bedichion 16F% reduction in scope 1 and 2 aperabonal
emisstans or carkon intensity from basebre
year J018
Faasitslity work has ident died bansitioning awsting equipment bo biodesel
s difficult once it bas started being un on mineral diesel; cur newer fleet
Conduct Biodiesel trial in LPC plant of GFadhds ard unzabia 1o ute Bediote] a8 thay use ad-bik; and supply of
hiaduinl i problesnatic At present. We ar {EEERE @
ebectrdfication for |one-term emissions reduction.
Waite Canguct comprahirmiio widts Sudits ta
identify o new baseline for waste
Commence waste dashibosrd reporting for
operational areas
Biodiversity Pomtre Publish our biodiversity imgacts and Extensive work 1= undenway on this project, but we are now working with
dependencies analysts external stakeholders and it is lkely the completion of this porton of our
biodive rsity work will spill into the first halt of FY24
754 of all LPC Lyteeion non-operatioral
laeed i actively managed Tor key présacans
Dl o peeguin b Lat Bod wergity
positive enhancement programme
Nesponsible Sourcmg 1008 of operatiansl product supplers
=480k srmam evalunted sgoret responsible
=ourting ariberia v updated Ethcal
Procurement Declaration
Reparting Publish first full integrated regort Report publshed Septemiber 23
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Enable Services Ltd Quarter Ended 31-Dee-22
Pesformance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Lncerain

'Will reat ke achieved

annual Target 1o be assessed a1 year-end

Growing a Strong Business

500 Measure
Grass lelecommunications revenue
NPAT
Total Assels
Dt
Equity
Sharghalder's funds o tatal assets ratia
Festurn an invested capital % [ERT § invested cagital)
Dperating margin % (EBITDA [ irvested capital)
Return an equity % (NPAT [/ sverape squty]
Interast Cover 's (EBIT/Interast Expansa)
Dttt b EBITIOA o5 [Met debt [ undedying EBITCA]
Mat gearing % [Met dabt / net debit plus equity)
Dividends SW«Drr-
Divicend yield % v
Curmuldative connection 150,365
Conmections 5LA achiswemant =055
Tolal nelwark availability >59.97%|

Dur People

S0 Measure

Maintain provision of the living wage for all Enable [direct} and primary
contractar employens.

Undefinad|
Continue to svalve aur people strategy interms of engagernsnt; employes
banafits; and parformance managament, recognition, and reward to lify Undefined|
il oy s e ngagemenl
Continug to smarowe Enable’s diversity and inclusivensss i lesdership. Undefined|
Continue bo manslor far rermuneration and benefit inegualities in Enable Undefinad
and ensure there aran't any,
Comtinue o deliver & best practice Heslth, Safety and Wellbeing made| that Rolling 12 month average of 5.
GNSUTes BUT peapks, partner argansation’s paople, custemers and 3 TRIS In FY 23
cormmurily are kepl sale and well, as meaiured by Tolsl recardable injuries | No TRIar seriou
{TRI) <=3 and no sersois hanm | snes inourrad, Injuries |
Comment on nan-perormands

Sustainable Future

SO0 Measure

Achieve and maintain 8 Corp certfication te enfarce Enabde's commitment
10 erauring cur business supports a sustamabile futwee and pravide 5
measura of our owerall perfarmancs,

Adepl science-based Largets (SBT) lor scope 1 and 2 abscbale ermistions
reduction that require Enabls to achesve a 35% recluction by FY25 agamnst
aur FY20 baselne and & 62% reduction by FY30.

Finalise a plan achieve net 2era emissions (scopa 1, 2 and 3] by FY30in line
with COC expectatians,

Redesgn cur appraach te resource constamation te support circular
mranarny princgles, including corporate and operational procurement and Uridefined|
tendar decisions,

Achiewe
certification

Plan Finalised|

Work wilh our key contraclars (o minimise nelwark infrastrocture waste, Implemend
specificalty: ArOEramme,
a.implement a multi-duct recycing pragramme, and
b. finalisa a reuse and recychng plan for first generation equipment to be Fanaliza plan,

implemented as it is decommissioned.
Ensure our corporate landfill waste s belaw our FY22 banchmark, by

o PR F¥22 benchmark
continuing 10 educate our people on waste minimisation.

Community
50 Measure
imarce digital equity for GCHT tenants through a partnership mitiative to
suppart mare tenants to partidpate in the digital werld,
Partner with Government, industry and ather potential stakehalders to
develap & fibre-based propesition specically te addeess digital equity issues
im our community.
Continue WO operate our Chrstchurch Free Wi-Fi service in key central
locatians, and market it to suppart maximum ecanamic grawth, wisitar, and
commanity benefits,
Support the largest kacal secondary schocls ta leverage the full patendial of
fibre broadband for better education outcomes by delivering Hyperfibre
them.
Winrk clasely within the CCHL Group and with other patetial partners 1o
undack and realise new initiatives that can support the group ta deler
Ereater valise and retumms 1o our commumity,
Maintain key strategic partnershins and spansarships aimed at supparting a
local erdranment of growth and innavation, including:

a. our Canterbury Employers’ Chamber of Commerce and Future Leaders
in Technolagy spensarships: and

b, our partnership with University of Canterbury to provide engineering
studenils with project spporturites,
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wleritify and renlice new Spparturty o BAFEEr With 3n arganisatian an &
jaint inftiaties or sponsarship that will suppart growth in our commaunity ar Undefined|
SURROFT il apporiunities 1o grow,

Continue to engage directly with rwi and mana whenua te build knowledge
and better understand Enable's relationship with the land and gur

Undefined|
commanity and enhanced cultwral understanding and competency with our
Bsiness.
Actively participate in He Huanui Maori COHL and the cress-OCHL Graup
lepdership tearm 1o Accelerate iniiatmes aimed at plei improved
endershy im0 e iril FeS B e pramoting improved Undefined|

cultural capahility across the Group and generating postwe outcomes for
A Bori and aur D oader community.
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CityCare Ltd Quarter Ended 31-Dec-22
Pesformance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Uncerain

‘Will reat ke achiewed

Anmal Target 1o be assessed a1 year-end

Financlal fall are Group measures] F000s
SO0 Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
Revedisg 5 326,975 Target excludes Spencer Henshaw
Growth [Revenue Growth] 6.2 Target excludes Spencer Henshaw
1 20,458 Target exclides Spencer Henshaw
E ] 9,619 Target endludes Spencer Henshaw
nterest Expenses 5§ 327 Interest will increase dise to new CCHL dett te fund Spercer Henshaw
NPAT 5 7,850 Target extludes Spencer Henshaw
Profitabibty Efficiency (Operating Marging ILE% Target exclsdes Spencer Henshaw
Debt {CCHL : News COHL debt taken on to fund Spencer Henshaw
Leverage/Solvency (Debt to EBITDA) - Hew COHL debit - covenarnts forecast to be met
Met Funds 3 20,37 Hew COHL debt taken on to fund Spencer Henshaw
Equity % 66,532 Target entludes Spencer Henshaw
Return on Irvested Capital T.A% Target ewcludes Spencer Henshaw
shareholder Funds to Tatal Assets 54.7% Target extiudes Spencer Henshaw
Shareholder relurns |Divedend Field] [3 II'>F_ Dividends suspended wnder new Tunding arrangement

Client Satislaction
S0 Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
Posilive year-or-year “Het Promater Score” [NP5] based on annual

CLERMET Sundey wes/no
Environmental
SO0 Misasure Target Tracking Comment on non-perfarmance

1005 of new [non-operational) passenger vehickes purchased or lessad to
Eree brybrid or EV (excludes wehicles procuned through acquisitions] (subjec to
wehiche avallability)

Annual reduction of Company-wide greenhouse gas emissions normalised
against anraal tumnover ta reach 2050 goak

Health & Safery
SN Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
<10 incidents requiring natification to Workdate annually

<1 WaorkSale imvestigation annually

Grow awr health and safety culture theawgh the utilisation of insights from

the annual independent Cancordia survey

Emplayes eRgagamant fdiversity
S0 Measure Target Tracking Commient on non-perfarmance

neremental increase in the number of wamen in leadership robes

ncremental increase in the number of Bson,/Pasifika in |eadership rales

ncraase inyauth in the workforce measured by higher % of siaff under 25
years
More than 50 peogle in registerad traiming annually

System Tt

[500 Measure [ varget | wracking | Comment on non-perlormance ]
I'\ﬂalr:am current ISC-accradited systams | I IArﬂled I
Community

SO0 Measure Target Tracking Comment an non-perfarmance

Collabarate with commaunity stakaholdars to deliver the safe coordinatian
al =15,000 valunleer hours

A
SO0 Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
Posilive Net Promater Score yes'no|

wdentify twa new products or technolagies ta brng to markst
3 |l times injuries

<3 miedical treatmant in|unes
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EcoCentral Limited Quarter Erdad 31-Doe-22
Parformanod against Statemant of Inbent Largets

On Lrack

Uncertain

‘will not be achsewed

armual Target ta be assessed at year-end

Fimancial

S0 Measure Target Tracking Camimsent on na
Il quianter reveiues abone prafin due 1o higher thar forecast tanres at

REvE e 242.3m the Ecolrops, strong cormmadity prices for recyched matenals fram the BooSan and
strong Eoodhop sales perfarmance.

et Profs After Tax %1.53m T profit enhanced by higher revenue soross the business unets

Total Assets £23.5m Cependant an timang of rell owt of captal expenditure programime but tracking with
target

Equity %14 Bm YTD equity enhanced by ¥T0 prafit levels

Deht Hil fea term deftt

AnE 13.7% 1O prafit enhanced by higher revenue acress the business units

Dividends 20.25m 57 5K paid Octocher 3027

Ehesreholder Equity 63.0%

Operations

201 Measure Target Tracking Comment on ne i

Eenbrog - Waste Minimisation, chert at beast &0,000 ternes fram landfl yesfra

EcuSert - MAF plant impeovement, deliver on completiaon of MFE ard Plastic vesf Projert progressing acoording Lo expected trmeline, and will be completed

1 year capital improvement projects within agreed schedule Januany 2023,

pSert - Proportion of waste <11%
pihap - rumber of customer sales (pa) 143,000

EceShap - tonnes diveried from lendfil (pa) 7500

Health & Safety

S0 Mg g Tangat Tracking Camment on nan-par ormancs

Safe work observations 100 100 The number of scheduled safe wark obserations has increased from 108
o 200,

Remedy and close out comectrae actians: >30% within B weeks of intbiztion %

Sustainability

501 Megasire Target ] Tracking [ Camment on nan-performance

mprowve aperational effickency of machineny - neducton in kwhe'T yesma EcoSort MAF currenthy on target

Reduction of carbon factpnnt yesima To be determined at year =nd

Cemmunity recyding education to commurity groups and busiresses B+ sessions
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Development Christchurch Limited Quarter Ended 31-Dee-22
Pesformance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Uncerain

‘Will reat ke achiewed

Al Target 1o be assessed a1 year-and

Govarnance

SO0 Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
DL will wark chassly with CNZ ta comlifiue Lo Sapase af land held for resale Yes|

an coimame reisl terms

Bonitar the investment of Chestchurch Adventbure Park Vg

DCL does not intend o make any distibufions e
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RBL Property Limited Quarter Ended 31-Dec-22
Performance against Statement of Intent targets

On track

Uncertain

Will not be achieved

Annual Target to be assessed at year-end

Financial

SOl Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
Net Profit After Tax %0.270m 50.146m

Total Assets 518.5m 518.9m

Equity 518.5m 518.8m

Shareholder Funds to Total Assets 99.7% 99.60%

Mana

S0| Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance
RBLPL will work with CCHL and in turn with CCC to establish the future for ves/no

the Ferry Road site, and to then implement whatever is required to give

effect to the desired outcome

Kaitiakitanga
50| Measure Target Tracking Comment on non-performance

Site maintained in compliance with consents and lease arrangements ves/no
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INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interim Income Statement for the six months ended 31 December 2022

Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to & months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Note 5000 S000
INCOME

Operating revenue 3 96,347 66,512
Interest income 129 14
Total Income 96,476 66,526

EXPENSES
Operating costs 4 38,121 33,642
Financing and interest costs 14,596 11,688
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 21,449 21,139
Total Expenses 74,166 66,469
Surplus before tax 22,310 57
Total taxation expense 6,247 16
Net Operating Surplus after income tax 16,063 41

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June 2022
have been audited, The accompanying notes form part of these interim financial statements.
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Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income for the six months ended 31 December 2022

Unaudited Unaudited

6 months to 6 months to

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

Note S000 S000
Surplus after income tax 16,063 41
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement:

Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (net of deferred tax) 11 7,187 11,772

Other comprehensive income for period, net of tax 7,187 11,772

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 23,250 11,813

Interim Statement of Changes in Equity for the six months ended 31 December 2022
Share Retained

Capital Reserves Earnings  Total Equity

MNote 5000 5000 5000 5000

Balance at 1 July 2021 57,600 715,290 A27.696 1,200,586

Total comprehensive income for the period 11,772 41 11,813

Balance at 31 December 2021 57,600 727,062 427,737 1,212,399

Balance at 1 July 2022 57,600 848,027 480,474 1,386,101

Total comprehensive income for the period 7,187 16,063 23,250

Dividends paid to shareholders - (2,838) (2,838)

Balance at 31 December 2022 57,600 855,214 493,699 1,406,513

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June 2022
have been audited. The accompanying notes form part of these interim financial statements.
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Interim Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

Unaudited Audited
As at As at
31 Dec 2022 30 June 2022
MNote S000 5000
EQUITY
Share capital 57,600 57,600
Reserves 855,214 848,027
Retained earnings 493,699 480,474
TOTAL EQUITY 1,406,513 1,386,101
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Term Borrowings 5 507,575 446,918
Derivative financial instruments 11 2,805
Deferred taxation 170,790 167,995
Trade and other payables 480 480
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 678,845 618,198
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Borrowings 5 50,000 124,000
Trade and other payables 17,656 18,697
Taxation payable 5,498 852
Derivative financial instruments 11 543
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 73,154 144,092
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,158,512 2,148,391
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 9 1,388,621 1,392,985
Investment Properties 10 718,734 714,192
Intangible Assets 1,019 1,314
Trade and other receivables 4,529 4,873
Derivative financial instruments 11 20,824 15,230
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,133,727 2,128,594

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June 2022

have been audited. The accompanying notes form part of these interim financial statements.
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Interim Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Unaudited Audited
As at As at
31 Dec 2022 30 June 2022
Note S000 S000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,811 4 388
Trade and other receivables 22,117 14,849
Derivative financial instruments 327 -
Inventories 530 560
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 24,785 19,797
TOTAL ASSETS 2,158,512 2,148,391

For and on behalf of the Board

,j;bf \?\ L e A—nn .

Catherine Drayton Kathryn Mitchell
Chair Director

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June 2022

have been audited. The accompanying notes form part of these Interim financial statements.
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Interim Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended 31 December 2022

Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to 6 months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Note $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Receipts from customers 92,840 69,338
Interest received 129 14
Net Goods and Services Tax received 395 -
93,364 69,352
Cash was applied to:
Payments to suppliers and employees (43,290) (38,704)
Financing and interest costs (14,223) (12,178)
Met Goods and Services tax paid - (1,566)
Net income tax paid (1,602) -
(59,115) (52,448)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 34,249 16,904
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was applied to:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (17,284) (5,472)
Purchase of investment properties (4,704) (10,653)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (21,988) (16,125)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Borrowings 52,000 238,000
Cash was applied to:
Borrowings (64,000) (239,000)
Dividends paid 8 (2,838) -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (14,838) (1,000)

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June

2022 have been audited. The accompanying notes form part of these interim financial statements.
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Interim Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to 6 months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
5000 5000
Met (Decrease)/Increase in Cash Held (2,577) (221)
Add cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 4,388 4,112
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD 1,811 3,891
RECONCILIATION WITH NET OPERATING SURPLUS AFTER TAX
Net operating surplus after income tax 16,063 41
Non-cash items
Amortisation of capitalised borrowing costs and fair value hedge ineffectiveness (40) 3
Amoaortisation of lease surrender and incentives 328 376
Accrued interest within derivatives (809) 128
Depreciation, amaortisation and impairment 21,449 21,139
20,928 21,646
Items Not Classified as Operating Activities
Capital items included in trade payables and accruals 863 4,152
Net gain on asset disposals ] -
871 4,152
Movements in Working Capital
Increase/f(decrease) in trade and other payables (7,251) (9,904)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 30 963
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,037) (10)
Increase/(decrease) in taxation payable 4,645 16
(3,613) (8,935)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 34,249 16,904

The financial statements for the six-month periods have not been audited. The full year financial statements to 30 June 2022
have been audited. The accompanying notes form part of these interim financial statements.
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Notes to the Interim Financial Statements for the six months ended 31 December 2022

1. Basis of Preparation and Accounting Policies

Christchurch International Airport Limited (CIAL) is a company established under the Airport Authorities Act 1966
and registered under the Companies Act 1593. The company is an FMC Reporting Entity under Part 7 of the
Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013.

The interim financial statements presented are for Christchurch International Airport Limited and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. As the wholly owned subsidiaries were not trading and held no assets and liabilities during
and at the end of the pericd of review, the financial statements for the group are the same as that of the parent.

These interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2023.

The interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice
in New Zealand and the requirements of the Local Government Act 2002, the Financial Reporting Act 2013, the
Companies Act 1993 and the requirements of Part 7 of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 and the NZX Debt
Market Listing Rules of NZX Limited. These unaudited interim financial statements comply with Mew Zealand
equivalents to International Accounting Standards NZ IAS 34. Christchurch International Airport Limited is
designated as a profit-oriented entity for financial reporting purposes.

These interim financial statements are not required to and do not make disclosure of all the information required
to be included in an annual financial report. Accordingly, this report should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements and related notes included in Christchurch Airport’'s Annual Report for the year ended 30
June 2022 (“2022 Annual Report”).

The accounting policies set out in the 2022 Annual Report have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these interim financial statements, except for the adoption of new standards effective for periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2022. Christchurch Airport has not early adopted any other standard that has been issued
but is not yet effective.

Key Estimates and Judgements

The financial position and performance of the company for this interim period have reflected the transition to a
post-pandemic environment, with significantly more people travelling through Christchurch Airport. Domestic
and international travel volumes have continued to rebound quickly following the reopening of borders in New
Zealand and abroad. Year to date domestic and international travel volumes are now respectively sitting at 91.5%
and 53.8% of pre-pandemic levels.

The timing of full traffic recovery to pre-pandemic levels continues to have some uncertainty, with ongoing aircraft
capacity constraints and staff shortages in the aviation industry globally. Elements of constrained travel volume
growth are expected to continue until the global aviation eco-system can scale back up fully to pre-pandemic
levels.

During the preparation of the interim and annual financial statements, several estimates and judgements are
made that impact the carrying value of underlying assets and liabilities = with key estimates relating to the carrying
value, and impairment assessments, of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property. Based on the
company’s performance in the most recent six months to 31 December 2022, these estimates and judgements
have been reassessed and no material adjustments have been deemed necessary for this six-month period (see
further commentary in Notes 9 and 10).

CIAL uses underlying forecast cash flows when making some of its estimates and judgements based on forecasts
of passenger and visitor rebound and growth trajectories using information available at the time of preparing
these interim financial statements. As with all reasonable assumptions made at a point in time it is likely that the
actual outcome will differ over time.
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2. Segment Reporting

Reportable Segments

The company’s reportable operating segments have been based on the monthly internal reporting that is received
by the Chief Executive, as the chief operating decision maker. This information is used to assess performance and
determine the allocation of resources.

The operating segments are based on the type of services rendered. Discrete financial information is presented
to the Chief Executive to a Net Profit Before Tax level, which is used to assess segment performance. An allocation
of all corporate revenues and expenses (except tax), is included within each operating segment.

Operating Segments — Services provided
Planes

This area of the business offers services that facilitate the movement of aircraft, cargo and passengers on the
airfield.

Passengers

The passenger operating segment provides services to the terminal retailers, provides ground transport solutions
to staff and the public and includes the terminal portion of the aeronautical charge.

Property

The property operating segment earns revenues from the provision of investment properties to landside airport
campus tenants and operating the Novotel Christchurch Airport.

Planes Passengers Property Total
Unaudited six months to 31 Dec 2022 5000 $000 $000 5000
Total segment income 17,157 45,982 33,337 96,476*
Total segment expenses 15,954 37,145 21,067 74,166*
Segment Net Profit before Tax 1,203 8,837 12,270 22,310*

Planes Passengers Property Total
Unaudited six months to 31 Dec 2021 $000 $000 $000 $000
Total segment income 10,862 21,673 33,991 66,526*
Total segment expenses 11,009 34,225 21,235 66,469*
Segment Net Profit before Tax (147) (12,552) 12,756 57*

*Agrees to total income, total expenses, and surplus before tax on the Interim Income Statement.

Income reported above represents income generated from external customers. There was no inter-segment
income in the period (31 December 2021: nil).
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3. Operating Revenue

Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to & months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
5000 $000
Revenue from contracts with customers
Landing and Terminal charges 37,467 20,005
Ground transport and other trading activities 16,048 14,848
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 53,515 34,853
Other Income
Rent and Lease income 37,388 26,690
Gain on disposal of assets 10
Other revenue 5,434 4,969
Total Other Income 42,832 31,659
Total Operating Revenue 96,347 66,512
4. Operating Costs
Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to 6 months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
S000 5000
Staff 12,626 12,345
Asset management, maintenance and airport operations 8,075 6,573
Rates and insurance 7.592 7,068
Marketing and promotions 843 552
Professional services and levies 1,500 1,464
Commercial entity running costs 4,020 3,373
Other 3,065 2,266
38,121 33,642
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5. Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has committed bank funding facilities for an aggregate $375,000,000
(2021: 5500,000,000) with six banks. In addition, the Company has an overdraft facility of 51,000,000 (2021:
$1,000,000).

Total bond funding at 31 December 2022 is $250,000,000 (2021: $150,000,000). $100,000,000 (2021:
$100,000,000) of the bond funding (maturing May 2024) is held at amortised cost, adjusted by the fair value of
the designated hedge risk instrument, Additionally, the Company has a $50,000,000 bond and 5100,000,000 bond,
maturing in April 2027 and May 2028 respectively.

During the period, several maturing bank facilities were extended for periods ranging between two and five years
and one facility was repaid to reflect the current reduced liquidity requirements of the company.

All borrowings under the bank facility and overdraft facility are unsecured and supported by a negative pledge
deed. The negative pledge deed requires that no security interest is provided over any assets for borrowings,
unless an equivalent security interest is created for the borrowing group and bond holders. Interest rates paid
during the period, including offsetting interest rate swaps, ranged from 2.6% to 5.5%. (2021: 1.1% to 6.3%). The
bonds constitute direct, unsecured, unsubordinated obligations and will rank equally with all other unsecured,
unsubordinated indebtedness.

During the current and prior periods, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the borrowing facilities.
CIAL was in compliance with all its current financial covenants during the current and prior periods.

CIAL has several bank facilities maturing over the next 24 months. The Board has an approved refinancing strategy
in place, with refinancing through the extension of existing bank facilities and the investigation of debt capital
market issuance options both domestically and offshore.

The company remains confident that any further refinancing will be secured given current market appetite for
corporate debt, positive market engagement and discussions with existing facility providers.

Unaudited Audited

As at As at

31 Dec 2022 30 June 2022

5000 5000

Less than 1 year 50,000 124,000
1>3Years 289,575 271,918
3>5Years 118,000 75,000
Greater than 5 Years 100,000 100,000
557,575 570,918

Total available funding 625,000 700,000
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6. Related Party Transactions

Christchureh City Holdings Limited (CCHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Christchurch City Council (CCC), owns
75% and the New Zealand Government owns 25% respectively of the issued share capital of the company.

Christchurch International Airport Limited enters into a large number of transactions with government
departments, Crown entities, State-owned enterprises and other entities controlled or subject to significant
influence by the Crown. All transactions with related entities:

are conducted on an arm’s length basis;
«  result from the normal dealings of the parties;
. meet the definition of related party transactions only because of the relationship between the parties being
subject to common control or significant influence by the Crown.
The New Zealand Government is the majority owner of Air New Zealand, a major customer of CIAL from both an
aeronautical and rental and lease perspective. Pricing agreements are renegotiated for aeronautical charges with
all airline customers of CIAL, including Air New Zealand, every five years. Air New Zealand also leases several
properties within the terminal and the wider CIAL campus.

Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to 6 months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
5000 $000

Transactions with owners during the period to 31 December
Purchases from CCC and subsidiaries 3,988 3,410
Rates paid to CCC 3,856 3,579
Revenues from CCC and subsidiaries 385 340
Amounts payable to CCC and subsidiaries 651 516
Amounts receivable from CCC and subsidiaries 6 4
Dividend to CCC and subsidiaries 2,129 -

Mon-Shareholder Related Party Transactions

Some directors of the company are, or have been during the period, directors of other companies or organisations
with whom Christchurch International Airport Ltd may transact. Such transactions are all carried out on an arm’s-
length basis and are conducted on normal commercial terms.

Mo amounts were written off or forgiven during the reporting period and outstanding balances were settled under
normal trading terms.

7. Commitments

Unaudited Unaudited
As at 31 Dec 2022 As at 31 Dec 2021
5000 5000
Total capital expenditures committed to, but not recognised in, the financial
statements
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 3,385 2,121
Investment Properties 11,359 8,096

Cashflows associated with the purchase or construction of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangibles and
Investment Properties are included in the Statement of Cashflows.
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8. Dividends
Unaudited Unaudited
6 months to & months to
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
5000 5000
2022 Final dividend paid (4.9 cents per share) 2,838 -

9. Property, Plant & Equipment

The company carries land, buildings, terminal facilities, hotel business assets, sealed surfaces, infrastructure and
car parking assets at fair value. The company revalued all property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) asset classes
carried at fair value at 30 June 2022 (with the exception of the Terminal), as outlined in the 2022 Annual Report.
Mo revaluation of these assets has been performed as at 31 December 2022,

The company has assessed that it has one core cash generating unit ('CGU’) across its PPE asset base which
comprises of its terminal and airfield assets, together with two other cash generating units = the hotel and car
parking assets. CIAL has performed an impairment assessment of all of these CGUs as at 31 December 2022, with
no indication of impairment identified.

Motor vehicles, plant & equipment, office & computers and work in progress are carried at cost.

Additions to property, plant & equipment were 516,800,000 for the six months ended 31 December 2022 (2021;
$4,200,000).

10. Investment Property

The company carries investment property at fair value. The company last revalued investment property at 30 June
2022 as outlined in the 2022 Annual Report. No revaluation of investment property has been performed as at 31
December 2022. CIAL has also performed an impairment assessment of its Investment Property Portfolio as at 31
December 2022, with no indication of impairment identified.

Additions to investment property were 54,700,000 for the six months ended 31 December 2022. (2021:
$7,800,000).

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

There have been no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy used in measuring the fair value of
financial instruments in the six months to 31 December 2022.

The company's derivative financial instruments are all classified as level 2 and the fair values are determined using
valuation technigues. The company has an outsourced treasury provider that has provided the fair values as at 31
December 2022. These valuation techniques are based on observable market data and the interest rate swaps
calculation takes into account the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

12. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 there were no contingent assets (2021: nil) and there were no contingent liabilities (2021:
nil).

13. Events Subsequent to Balance Date

On 27 February 2023, the directors approved the payment of a fully imputed interim dividend of 25.1 cents per
share amounting to $14,457,000. There were no other events occurring after balance date that could significantly
affect these interim financial statements.
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COMPARISON OF FORECAST TO ACTUAL RESULTS

The company prepares an annual Statement of Intent which is approved by shareholders and incorporates
financial and performance measures for the ensuing year.

A comparison of the company’s actual performance for the six months ended 31 December 2022 with those
measures are as follows:

S wmn
5000 $000 $000

a) FINANCIAL
Total Revenue 185,415 96,347 89,147
EBITDAF [carnings befare interest, tax, depraciation, amortisation and fair value movements) 105,492 58,226 51,872
EBITF {gamings before interest, tax and fair value movements) 61,663 36,777 29,977
Interest Expense 25,873 14,596 12,936
Met Profit (Loss) after tax 25,769 16,063 11,498
EBITDAF as a % of Revenue 56.9% 60.4% 58.2%
Return on Invested Capital (EBIT/{Equity+Debt)) 3.7% 1.9* 1.7%™*
b) PASSENGER NUMBERS FY 2023 HY 2023 HY 2023
FY Target Actual Target
Domestic 4,723,790 2,336,590 2,288,559
International 977,211 479,166 413,220
Total 5,701,001 2,815,756 2,701,779
c) RATIO OF SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS TO TOTAL ASSETS F‘:’: 1:%?; H:‘::]::; Hi::]gﬁ
Debt 569,000 561,000 572,000
Equity 1,351,600 1,406,513 1,217,804
Shareholder Funds / Total Assets % 63.7% 65.2% 61.7%
Gearing (debt / (debt + equity)) % 29.6% 28.5% 32.0%
EBITDAF Interest Cover x 41 4.0 4.0

* the half year actual and target amounts are based on performance for the six-month period to date, and hence will be
proportionately lower than the full year target shown in the first column. It should also be noted that the performance in the
second half of each financial year is forecast to include any uplift in investment property revaluations, and hence in a normal
year will generate a higher return ratio than in the first half of the year.
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d) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Performance target

Performance Measures

2023

Progress to 31 December 2022

Health, Safety & Wellbeing

1. Culture - continue to develop a positive
culture that enables the health, safety
and wellbeing of our people

2. 5afety Management - continuous
improvement in systems to manage
safety and wellbeing

3. Wellbeing - activation of our Whare
Tapa Wha

Maintain health, safety, and wellbeing
score above B5% In our annual culture
and engagement survey.

Incremental increase in
leadership conversations.

safety

CIAL Health, Safety & Wellbeing
workplan delivered on schedule.
Annual review of SMS and HSMS.

Incremental improvement in  the
wellbeing and work/life blend scores
in our annual culture and engagement
survey.

Deliver resilience workshops.,

= Activities to foster a positive HSW
culture have continued, and the annual
culture and engagement survey will be
completed in early 2023.

Informal Safety leadership
conversations have continued, and a
new  App developed to gquantify
completion rates to ensure consistency
across our teams. Use of the App and
reporting  against  the metric  will
commence in Jan 2023.

» On track for delivery by end of financial
year.

External review of the SMS was
completed as part of the CAA
Aerodrome recertification audit in Nowv
22 and the HS5MS is scheduled for
external audit in Jun 2022,

The annual culture and engagement
survey will be completed in early 2023.

Scheduling of workshops to  build
competency around managing
psychosocial risk factors is underway
with operational teams to give them
tools to pro-actively manage
challenaing situations,

Sustainability

Carbon

4. We set long-term emissions reduction
targets based in science, aligned with
keeping global temperatures within 1.5
degrees,
Our goals are as follows;
® to be net zero by 2030
= to be absolute zero emissions for aur

Scope 1 and 2 by 2050

* to influence reductions in our Scope
3 stakeholder’s emissions where
possible.

Maintain trend with  our  milestone
emissions reduction goal of B4%
reduction in Scope 1 & 2 by 2035
{using FY2015 carbon baseline).
Renew ACA Level 4/4+ or abowve and
look for opportunities to demonstrate
continued climate leadership.
Demonstrate continued responsibility
and leadership in aviation transition.
Actively seek to influence airport Scope
3 emissions reductions.

= Qur Emissions reduction goal is on
target.

Our ACA L4 renewal is scheduled for
October 2023, We are on track to
achieve L4 or higher by that date.

This is ongeing. CIAL is participating at
global level in ACA steering group for
further leadership in carbon reduction

best practice, as well as active
participation  within  New Zealand
context,

Qur scope 3 reductions influence is in
progress - with our Kowhai Park
renewable energy precinct, and MOU
with Alr New Zealand and hydrogen
consortium demonstrating partnerships
to accelerate de-carbonisation.
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Waste
5 Waste is a by-product of operating a

large and diverse organisation. We aim
to minimise waste by redesigning our
approach to better support a circular
economy.

Energy
6. Energy efficiency has multiple benefits

for CIAL; we reduce our carbon
footprint, reduce our operating costs,
and minimise our demand on the
national grid.

Beyond this, we understand the
importance of clean  renewable
electricity generation and resilience,
and the role critical infrastructure
assets play in supporting the national
energy transition.

Implement CIAL waste minimisation
strategy.

Create separated waste streams with
known waste stream destinations.

Undertake waste minimisation projects
to reduce emissions and minimise
waste.

Actively pursue energy transition from
fossil fuel to clean energy sources.
Make an impact beyond Christchurch
Ajrport terminal boundaries to create
partherships and demonstrate
leadership to encourage faster energy
transition uptake.

Undertake energy efficiency projects,
including LED lighting upgrades,

In progress and on-going.

In progress, with the initial focus being
on diverting more arganic streams from
general waste.

In progress — the first project, of an
onsite waste sortation facility has been
commissioned and operational from late
January 2023.

In progress and on-going.

Kowhal Park renewable energy precinct
has progressed with joint venture
partners being chosen to deliver phase
1 of the solar precinct,

Our  Building Management System
continues to find energy efficiency
improvements, and LED lighting
upgrades are in progress,

8. Historically,

Water
7. Christchurch is unigue in using 100%

naturally filtered water. Our passion is
to  maintain its integrity, avoid
accidental contarmination and minimise
use of thisprecious resource as it
passes under the airport.

noise has been
the environmental issue of greatest
focus at airports around the world.
Our responsibility and
preference are to collaborate with  all
stakeholders, especially residents and
businesses close to Christchurch
Airport and its flight pathsin relation to
noise impacts.

Measure, understand, and undertake
to conserve water around terminal and
campus.

Moise complaints are limited to 10 per
10,000 aircraft movements  per
annum.

Successful delivery of the updated
naolse compliance contours  to
Environment Canterbury.

Offers of acoustic mitigation to noise
impacted properties currently eligible.
Long term and ongeoing program to
protect CIAL from noise reverse
sensitivity affects.

In progress and on-going.

Ongoing.

Ecan's independent Expert panel
Review underway, expect to have
agreed contours by FY year end.
Ongoing, CIAL delivering treatment to
second property opted to take up the
offer.

On-going, CIAL engaging with regional
and district plan review processes.

Land
9. Qur Place is an area of unigue natural

beauty. We have a responsibility
to protect it,
to encourage biodiversity, and our
native species.

We aim to maintain improve our

land and  remediate  contaminated
land.

We also have a responsibility to our
wider stakeholders to

understand climate risks and
mitigation, as well as airport hazards
such as hird strike.

Understand and enhance our unigue
dryland habitat.

Undertake Campus landscape planning
to celebrate native species and include
plant succession planning.

Monitor and understand bird migration
patterns to mitigate bird strike risk.
Insert bird strike management areas
in the regional and district planning
framework.

This work is on-going and supported
with  “i-naturalist” citizen science
program.

Landscape planning and emphasis an
natives is on-going. A map of our CIAL
area has been completed with a basic
understanding of biodiversity footprint,
Ongoing, regular off airport avifauna
surveys underway.

On-going, CIAL engaging with regional
and district plan review processes,

FOR THE SIX MONTHS TO 31 DECEMBER 2022
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Community Engagement

10. To make a positive contribution to the
social and community cutcomes of our
City and the South Island

Our People

Demonstrate support for the city and
the region, its image and activities as
pandemic impacts allow. Provision of
promotional space at the airport to
showcase events and activities across
the region.

Re-activate the Community Fund as
the pandemic allows.

Engagement and communication with
stakeholders led by the Chief
Executive and GMs initiating and

accepting invitations to meetings,
speeches, addresses, panels and
workshops.,

Senior leaders participate in and
address events and functions, sharing
expertise and skills.

Support local and national charities
by hosting collections within the
terminal, and active engagement by
staff in charity events.

Respectfully engage with our local
communities, iwi mana whenua &
stakeholders in respect of CIAL's plans
to explore the potential for a new
airport in Central Otago.

Established a "Meeting space in the
arrivals area for event and activity
related groups to gather on  arrival
before transport to their venue.

Eight Community groups and projects
received grants from this fund in
September 2022,

Our Chief Executive and executives
spoke both in person and online to local,
national, and international events.

Senior leaders and content experts took
up invitations to speak at a wide variety
of events in a variety of cities here and
OVErseas.

Mare than 20 local and national charities
benefitted from our hosting and
supporting through staff engagement.
We continued to engage with local
communities and groups, plus respond
to inquiries and stakeholders - including
media - as we progress our project.

Retain and develop key talent

11. Review and update of Potential and
Performance/areas of strategic walue
talent mapping exercise
Succession plans confirmed, and
pathways actioned
Pipeline of emerging leaders
developed, and competency
development pathways activated

Develop, support and value

leadership

12 All employees and people leaders
understand the role and expectations of
a "CIAL Leader”
Our leaders are highly effective in
coaching for performance, enabling
change and are committed to
supporting, empowering and
developing others
All our leaders are accountable and
recognised  for  their  successful
perfarmance and leadership behaviours

Improved retention of critical talent,

Design and deliver emerging leaders’
program.

Incremental improvement in
leadership performance and personal
development and performance
reviews,

Incremental improvement in

leadership measures in culture and
engagement survey.

Retention of critical talent is a constant

focus and strategies have been
successful in preventing turnover.
Succession planning has beean

completed and shared with CIAL board.
4 employees identified as emerging
leaders from across the organisation will
be participating in a & day off site
development program in 2023, All will
be assigned an internal mentor once the
program is completed to support the
application of learning.

Annual culture and engagement survey
delayed until 2023 with leadership
measures unable to be reported on.

Leadership development program to
commence in 2023  with inclusive
leadership the first focus.

GHRISTCHURCH AIRPORT / INTERIM REPORT 17
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Build a workforce of the future = Embedding CIAL Future of Work [» Future of Work introduced to CIAL's

13, Future oriented talent planning is warking party and establishment of | EPSG framework and working group will
embedded into operational  and key strategic objectives. be established early 2023.
strategic planning _ = Internal recognition of the innovation |* Ongaing.

There is enhanced understanding of the and change being caused by Future of |a annual culture and engagement survey
skills we have today and the skills we Work strategies ) - - !
will need in the future delayed untll 2023 with innovation
We attract, recruit and develop a | *® Incremental improvement in measures unable to be reported on.
diverse and highly skilled workforce Innovation measures in culture and

engagement survey.

Strengthen diversity, inclusion and * Embedding of organisation wide |*= New values created with employee input

engagement employee value statements that and launched in 2022,

14. Creation and implementation of & |  guide how we work, make decisions, |a srandalone flexible work guidelines
diversity, inclusion and participation and consider diverse perspectives t0 | jnhiroduced, and some arrangements
strategy and engagement determine the way we treat each | .qiablished. Continual review of job
program which promotes diversity of other,

design and work patterns to ensure
* Ongoing support of flexible work optimal environment is in place for our
arrangements  that reflect our people to perform

people’s needs and the needs of CIAL. |4 Annual culture and engagement survey

thought throughout our business

= Incremental improvements in delayed until 2023 with participation
participation and inclusion measures and inclusion measures unable to be
In culture and engagement survey. reported on

18 FOR THE SIX MONTHS TO 31 DECEMBER 2022
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OTHER INFORMATION

Mature of Business

CIAL owns and operates Christchurch International Airport. The company operates predominantly in the business
of providing airport facilities and services to airline and airport users, The nature of the company’s business has
not changed during the period.

For the current and previous reporting period, the results are for Christchurch International Airport Limited and
its five wholly owned subsidiaries. As the wholly owned subsidiaries do not trade and hold no assets or liabilities,
the results and financial position for the CIAL group are the same as that for the CIAL parent company.

Stock Exchange Listings

The company has two series of bonds (“CHC010" and “CH5020") which were quoted on the NZDX on 25 May 2018
and 19 May 2022 respectively. Each issue was for $100 million of unsecured, unsubordinated, fixed rate bonds,
with “CHC010" maturing on 24 May 2024 and "CHC020" maturing on 19 May 2028.

Credit Rating Status

On December 16, 2022, S&P Global Ratings ["S&P') raised the issuer credit rating on Christchurch International
Airport Ltd (CIAL) and issue credit rating on the airport’s debt, to A-, with outlook ‘Stable’.

Regulatory Environment

The company is regulated by, amongst other legislation, the Airport Authorities Act 1966 and the Civil Aviation
Act 1990. The company is an ‘airport company’ for the purposes of the Airport Autharities Act 1966. The company
has consultation obligations under the Airport Authorities Act 1966.

The company is required to comply with the Commerce Act (Specified Airport Services Infarmation Disclosure)
Determination 2010, with disclosure financial statements required to be published in November each year.

GHRISTCHURCH AIRPORT / INTERIM REPORT 19

[tem No.: 14 Page 327

Item 14

Attachment C






Finance and Performance Committee Christchurch g
22 March 2023 City Council w-w

15. Appointment of elected members to the boards of
ChristchurchNZ Holdings Ltd, Venues Otautahi and Civic

Building Ltd
Reference / Te Tohutoro: 23/51843
Report of / Te Pou Linda Gibb, Performance Advisor, Resources Group
Matua: (linda.gibb@ccc.govt.nz).
General Manager / Leah Scales, General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
Pouwhakarae: (Leah.Scales@ccc.govt.nz)

1. Nature of Decision or Issue and Report Origin

11

1.2

13

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

This report proposes the appointment of elected members to the boards of ChristchurchNZ
Holdings Ltd (CNZHL), Venues Otautahi (VO) and Civic Building Ltd (CBL) for the current 2023-
2025 triennium.

This report has been written following advice from the Apppointments' Committee about the
process it has followed to reach recommendations for appointments of elected members to
each of the CCOs.

The Appointments’ Committee’s report to the Council’s with its recommended appointees has
not yet been completed as interviews for the board roles were only completed yesterday, 15
March. The positions were heavily subscribed for and as a result the work required of the
Appointments' Committee was more time consuming than expected.

The Appointments’ Committee’s report will be finalised and circulated separately prior to the
Finance and Performance meeting. It will be added to this report as Attachment A.

Staff consider it is undesirable to defer making the appointments as the three boards need the
full complement of directors to give the boards the full capacity and capability to exercise
their CCO governance responsibilities.

The Council established the Appointments’ Committee at its meeting on 25 January 2023
(CNCL/2023/00003 refers) comprising the following members - Chair of ChristchurchNZ
Holdings Ltd, Chair of Venues Otautahi and the Mayor.

The Committee was charged with undertaking the work required, as prescribed by the
Council’s Policy for the Appointment and Remuneration of Directors of Council Organisations
to recommend elected member appointments to the boards of CNZHL, VO and CBL.

Council staff consider the process advised by the Appointments’ Committee as having been
undertaken is consistent with the Council’s Policy for the Appointment and Remuneration of
Directors of Council Organisations.

The Appointments' Committee recommends the following elected members be appointed for
the current triennium, effective immediately and ending at the 2025 local body election:

e Councillors [insert two names] to CNZHL;
e Councillors [insert two names] to VO; and
e Councillors [insert three names] to CBL.

The decisions in this report are of low significance in relation to the Christchurch City Council’s
Significance and Engagement Policy. The level of significance was determined by estimating
the extent to which the decisions might impact the community.
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2.

3.

Officer Recommendations Nga Tutohu

That the Finance and Performance Committee:

1. Approves the following elected member appointments to Council-controlled organisations’
boards for a term of approximately three years each, effective immediately and expiring at the
2025 local body election:

Councillor [insert name] and Councillor [insert name] to ChristchurchNZ Holdings Ltd,;
Councillor [insert name] and Councillor [insert name] to Venues Otautahi Ltd; and

Councillor [insert name], Councillor [insert name] and Councillor [insert name] to Civic
Building Ltd.

Reason for Report Recommendations Nga Take mo te Whakatau

3.1 Theappointments’ process undertaken meets the requirements of the Appointments' Policy
and the Council’s requirements per its 25 January 2023 resolution (CNCL/2023/00003 refers)
for work to be undertaken to recommend elected member appointments to the boards of
CNZHL, VO and CBL.

Alternative Options Considered Etahi atu Kowhiringa

4.1 The only alternative option is to not appoint elected members to the CCO boards which would
be out of step with the Council’s 25 January decisions.

Policy Framework Implications Nga Hiraunga a- Kaupapa here

Strategic AlignmentTe Rautaki Tiaroaro

5.1 Thisreport is consistent with the Council’s governance policy which reflects its views of good
governance in the local government context. It is not specifically related to the Council's Long
Term Plan (2021 - 2031).

Policy Consistency Te Whai Kaupapa here

5.2 Thedecision sought is consistent with the Council’s Plans and Policies. In particular, the
requirements for director appointments contained in the Council’s Appointments’ Policy.

Impact on Mana Whenua Nga Whai Take Mana Whenua

5.3 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to ancestral land or a body of
water or other elements of intrinsic value, therefore this decision does specifically impact
Mana Whenua, their culture and traditions.

5.4 The decision does not involve a matter of interest to Mana Whenua and will not impact on our
agreed partnership priorities with Nga Papatipu Runanga.

5.5 Governance arrangements that are optimal benefit the entire community.
Climate Change Impact Considerations Nga Whai Whakaaro ma te Ahuarangi
5.6 Not relevant to this decision.

Accessibility Considerations Nga Whai Whakaaro ma te Hunga Haua
5.7  Not relevant to this decision.
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Capex/Opex Nga Utu Whakahaere
5.8 CosttoImplement - there is no impact on the Council’s costs as a result of the

recommendations in this report.
6. LegalImplications Nga Hiraunga a-Ture

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report Te Manati Whakahaere Kaupapa
6.1 Local Government Act 2002.

Other Legal Implications Etahi atu Hiraunga-a-Ture
6.2 Thereis no legal context, issue or implication relevant to this decision.

7. Risk Management Implications Nga Hiraunga Turaru
7.1  Notrelevant.

Attachments Nga Tapirihanga

No. | Title Reference Page

A Appointments' Committee - Recommendations for elected
members appointments to CCO boards (Under Separate Cover)

In addition to the attached documents, the following background information is available:

Document Name - Location / File Link

Not applicable

Confirmation of Statutory Compliance Te Whakatuturutanga a-Ture

Compliance with Statutory Decision-making Requirements (ss 76 - 81 Local Government Act 2002).
(a) This report contains:
(i) sufficientinformation about all reasonably practicable options identified and assessed in
terms of their advantages and disadvantages; and
(ii) adequate consideration of the views and preferences of affected and interested persons
bearing in mind any proposed or previous community engagement.
(b) The information reflects the level of significance of the matters covered by the report, as
determined in accordance with the Council's significance and engagement policy.

Signatories Nga Kaiwaitohu

Author Linda Gibb - Performance Monitoring Advisor CCO

Approved By Leah Scales - General Manager Resources/Chief Financial Officer
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16. Resolution to Exclude the Public

Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987.

I move that the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
items listed overleaf.

Reason for passing this resolution: good reason to withhold exists under section 7.
Specific grounds under section 48(1) for the passing of this resolution: Section 48(1)(a)

Note
Section 48(4) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 provides as follows:

“(4) Everyresolution to exclude the public shall be put at a time when the meeting is open to the
public, and the text of that resolution (or copies thereof):

(@)  Shall be available to any member of the public who is present; and
(b)  Shall form part of the minutes of the local authority.”

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting
in public are as follows:
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SUBCLAUSE AND
ITEM | GENERAL SUBJECT OF EACH MATTER WHEN REPORTS CAN
NO. TO BE CONSIDERED SECTION REASON:CI\.II-DER THE PLAIN ENGLISH REASON BE RELEASED
PUBLIC EXCLUDED FINANCE AND REFER TO THE PREVIOUS PUBLIC
17. PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES - EXCLUDED REASON IN THE
22 FEBRUARY 2023 AGENDAS FOR THESE MEETINGS.
AS SOON AS THE
CHRISTCHURCH CITY HOLDINGS LTD - PROTECTION OF PRIVACY TOPROTECT THE REPUTATION OF COUNCIL MAKESITS
18. DEPUTY CHAIR APPOINTMENT S7(2)(A) OF NATURAL PERSONS THE CANDIDATE IN THE EVENT THE DECISION AND THE
APPOINTMENT IS NOT APPROVED. CANDIDATE IS
NOTIFIED.
THE REPORT CONTAINS
CHRISTCHURCH CITY HOLDINGS LTD - PREJUDICE COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL INFORMATION WHICH, QELIT_I'QSRAI\E;I-IEIAUSAELOF
19. QUARTER 2 2022/23 STRATEGIC S7(2)(B)(IN) POSITION IF RELEASED PUBLICLY COULD BE REPORT BY THE END OF
UPDATE DETRIMENTAL TO CCHL'S FINANCIAL SEPTEMBER 2023.

PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR.

THE REPORT WILL
REMAIN WITHHELD
FROM PUBLIC RELEASE

MAINTAIN LEGAL UNTIL THE GROUND

INSURANCE SUBCOMMITTEE PART A TO KEEP LEGAL ADVICE FORWITHHOLDING

20. REPORT STR)(G) Egl(\);l:l_EESgéONAL CONFIDENTIAL. UNDER THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL

INFORMATION AND

MEETINGS ACT NO
LONGER APPLIES.
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Karakia Whakamutunga
Kia whakairia te tapu

Kia watea ai te ara

Kia turuki whakataha ai

Kia turuki whakataha ai

Haumi e. Hui e. Taiki e
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